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IN THE CRIMINAL COURT OF COOK COUNTY,
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IN THE CRIMINAL COURT OF GCOOK COUNTY
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS
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IX THE ORIMINAL OOURT OF COOK COUNTY.
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ARGUMERT BY MR. O HCE DARROW
ON F OF THE DEFENDANTS--

DEL TO0 MR. DARROVW PERSONALLY,
(Pages Numbers 3937 to 4115 were
the psges of the Argument taken

out of this Volume VII.)
. ' v C

!

HeinOnline -- 7 Illinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County.Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb ii 1924



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) © 88,
COUNTY OF COOK )
IN THE CRIMINAL COURT OF COOK COUNTY,

AT THE JULY TERM, A.D. 1924,

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF )
ILLINOIS, )
) ,
Ve, )  Gen.Nos,33623+33634
) .
NATHAN LEOPOLD, JR. AND )
RICHARD LOEB. c )

BILL OF EXCEPTIONS

-

BE IT REMEMBERED that heretofore to-wit: on
the 23rd day of July,-A.D. 1924, being one of the days
of the said texru of said Goﬁrt, before the Honorable
JOHN R. CAVERLY, one of the Judges of sald Court, the
above entitled cause came on for hearing upon the indict-
ments heretofore found herein, the defendants, and each of
them, having entered pleas of gullty.,

APPEARANCES:

State's Attorney Robert E, Crowe,
appearing on behalf of the People.

Messrs.C.S.Darrow and Benjamin C, Bach-
rach and VWalter Bachrach,
appearing on behalf of the Defendanta.
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Hei nOnl i ne --

THE CLERK: Nathan F, Leopold, Jr., Richard Loeb.

MR, DARROW:;  Your Honor, befors we enter any other,

o matbsr, Mr. Walter Bachrach has been assisting us in

the preparation of this case, and I wish to move that
his name may be entered as one of the Counsel fcr the
Defense,

THE COURT: Hadn't you better file his appearance

in writing?

MR, DARROW: All right.

THE COURT: Yes,

MR, DARROW: You file hi8 appearance in writing in the
afternoon, will you.

MRl CROWE: ~ The record can shoy that the defendants
are represented by Mr. Darrow, Mr., Benjamin Bachrach
and Mr. Ralter Bachrach,

THE COURT: Yes,

MR, CROWE: Ang the State will be represented by
Robert E. Crowe, Thomas Marshall, Joseph P. Savage,
Milton Smith and John Sbarbaro.

THE COURT: Now find seats everybody and be as

quiet a8 possibls, The other day, gentlemen, and
at the day of arraigmmeunt,the plea had taken use

1 1llinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 2 1924



somewhat by surprise, and probably the proper formality
was not complied with, so in order to havs the record

clear I will aek Nathan F, Leopold , Jr. to stand up.

L

Whersupon the Court advised the-defendants

'in the worde and figures as follows, to-wit:
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NATHAN F., LEOPOLD, JR. Btand wp.

You, Nathan F. Leopold, Jr. and Richard Loeb were on
the 6th day of June, 1924, indicted by~th§ Grand Jury in
the Criminal Court of Cook County, Btate of Illinoié, Gen~
eral Number 33633, People of the State of Illinois vs.
N;than F. Leopold, Jr. and Richard Loeb, upon a charge
that you, Nathen F. Leopold, Jr. and Richard Loeb did on
the 2lst day of May, 1824, murder one Robert Franks.

Upon arraignment on the 1lth day of June, 1924, in
the Criminal Court of Cook County, State of Illinois, you
were present in person and with dounsel, and.- you personally
entered a plea of not guilty to the indictment aforesaid.
On the 2lst day of July, 1924, you were again personally
present in the Criminal Court of Cook County, State of Illi-
nois, and Clarence Darrow, Esquire, Attorney for you, asked

~leave to withdraw your plea of not guilty and to enter on
your behalf your plea of gullty. And thereupon the Court
fully explained to you, Nathan F. Leopold, Jr., the conse-
quences of entering sﬁch plea, and you were at that time

fully advised by the Court of your right to & trial by a

jury upon a plea of not gullty, and that as a consequence

of your plea of guilty and under your plea of guilty the

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 4 1924



Hei nOnl i ne --

“B—
Court had the power to sentence you to the punighment of
death, or to sentence you to imprisonment in the Peni-
tentiary for your natﬁral life, or to sentence you to
imprisonment in the Penitentiary for a term not less than
fourteen yeors. And éfter being edvised of the consequentes
of entering your plea of guilty upon the indictment for
Murder of sald Robert Franke you then pérsonally and by
counsel pergisted in pleading gullty to the said indictment
for Murder.

The Court, having heretofore fglly explained to you,
Nathan F. Le?pold, Jr. the consequences of entering your
plea of guilty of the murder of the said Robert Franks,
again deeires to fully explain to you, Nathan F. Leopold,dr.,
the conseque;ces of entering such plea, and now here advises
you again that you have a right to a trial by a jury under a
plea of not guilty herein, and that as a consequence of the
plea of guilty of the murder of Robert Franks the Court has
the power to fix your punishment at death, or imprisonment
in the Penitentiary for your natural life, or imprisonment
in the Penitentiary for a term of not less than fourteen
years, and that such plea of guilty will make no alteration

in the punishment. And the Court desires to know whether,

with the consequences of entering such plea of gullty before

1 1llinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 5 1924



you, you now here persist in pleading guilty to the

nurder of the sald Robert Franks in manner and fornm

s charged in the indictment herein.

Hei nOnl i ne --

NATHAN F. LEOPOLD, JR., "I do, your honor."

1 11linois.

Crimnal Court.

Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 6 1924



NATHAN F. LEOPOLD, Jr. Stand Up.

You, Nathan F. Leopold, Jr. and Richard Loeb were on
the 6th day of June, 1924, indicted by the Grand Jury
in the Criminal Court of Cook County, State of Illinois,
General Number 33624, People of the State of Illinois vs.
Nathan F. Leopold, Jr. and Richard Loeb, upon a charge
that you; Nathan F. Leopold, Jr. and Rlchard Loeb did on
the 21lst day of May, 1924, kidnap one Robert Franks for
Ransgonm.

Upon arraignment on‘the 11th day of June, 1924, in the
Criminal Court of Cook County, State of Illinois, you
were pregent in person and with counsel, and you personally
entered a plea of not guilty to the indictment aforesaid.
On the 2lst day of July, 1924, you were again personally
present in the Criminal Court of Cook County, State of
Illinois, and Clarence Darrow, Esquire, Attorney for you,
asked leave to withdraw your plea of not éuilty and to
enter on\your behalf your plea of guilty. And thereupon
the Court fully explained to you, Nathan F. Leopold, Jr.,
the consequences of entering such plea; and you were at
that time fully advised'by the Court of your right ;o a

4
trial by a jury upon a plea of not guilty, and that as a
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consequence of your plea of guilty and under your plea
of guilty the Court had the power to sentence you to

the punishment of death, or to sehtence you to imprison-
mené in the Pen;tentia:y for your life, or to sentence
you to imprisonment in the Penitentiary for any term not
less than five years. And after being advised of the
consequences of entering your plea of gullty won the
indictment for kidnaping of said Robert Franks for Ransom
you then personally and by counsel persisted in pleading
guilty to the said indictment for Kidnaping said Robert
Franks for Ransom.

The Court, having heretofore fully explalned to you,
Nathan F. Leopold, Jr. the consequences of entering your
plea of guilty of the kidnaping of the said Robert Franks
for Ransom agaiﬁ desires to fully explain to you, Nathan
F, Leopold, Jr., the consequences of entering such plea,
and now here advises you again that you have a right to
a trial by a jury under a plea of not guilty herein, and
that as a consequence of the plea of gullty of the Kidnap-
ing of Robert Franks for Ransom the Court has the power

to fix your punishment at death, or imprisonment in the

Penitentiary for your life, or imprisonment in the Peni-

1 1llinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 8 1924



tentiary for any termvof ﬁot less than five years, and
that such plea of guilty will make no alteratioh in the
-punisghment. And the Court desires to know whether, with
the consequences of entering such plea of guiltiﬁbefofe
you, you now here persist in pleading guilty to the
Kidnaping of the sald Robert Franke for Ransou in manner
and form as charged in the indictment heréin.

NATHAN F. LEOPOLD,JR. "I do, your honor."

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 9 1924



RICHARD LOEB, Stand up.

You, Richard Loeb, and Nathan F. Leopold, Jr. were
on the 8th day of June, 1924, indicted by the Grand Jury
in the Criminal Court of Cook County, State of Illinois,
General Number 33833, P eople of the State of Illinois vs.
Nathan F. Leopold, Jr. and Richard Loeb, upon a charge
that you, Richard Loeb, and Nathan F. Leopold, Jr. did on
the 21st day of May, 1924, murder one Robert Franks.

Upon arraignment on the 1lth day of.June, 1924, in
the Oriminal Court of Cook County, State of Illinois, you
were present in person and with counsel, and you personally
entered & plea of not gullty to the indictment aforesaid.
On the 2lst day of July, 1934, you were again personally
present in the Criminal Court of Cook County, State of Illi-
nois, an% Clarence Darrow, Esquire, Attorney for you, asked
y;eave to withdraw your plea of noy guiyty and to enter on
your behalf your plea of guilty. And thereuppn the Court
fully explained to you, Richard Loeb; the consequences of
entering such plea, and you were at that time fully advised
by the Court of your right to a trial by a jury upon a plea
of not guilty, and that as a consequence of your plea of

guilty and under your plea of guilty the Court had the power
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t0 gentence you to the punishment 6f death, or to sentence
you to imprisonment in the Penitentiary for vour natur;i
life, or bto sentence you to imprisonment in the Peniten-
tiary for a term not less than fourteen years. And after
being advised of the consequences of entering your plea
of guilty upon the indictment for Murder of said Robert
Franks you then personally and by counsel persisted in
pleading guilty to the said indictment for Murderx.

The Court, having heretofore fully explained to you,
Richard Loeb, the consequences of entering your plea of
guilty of the murder of the said Robert Franks, again
desires to fully explain to you, Richard Loeb, the conse-
quences of entering such plea, and now here advises you

- again that you‘have a right to a trial by a jury under
a plea of not guilty herein, and that as a consequence
of the plea of guilty of the murder of Robert Franks the
Court has the power to fix your punishment at death, or

'imprisonment in the P enitentiary for your natpral 1life,
or imprisonment in the Penitepﬁiary for a term of not
less than fourteen years, and that such plea of guilty

will make no alteratién in the punishment.  And the |

Oourt desires to know whether, with the consequences of
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1LZ’

U

entering such plea of guilty before you, you now here
persist in pleading guilty to the murder of the saild
Robert Franks in manner and form as charged in the
indictment herein.

RICHARD LOEB "Yes, ycir honor, I do."

1 1llinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 12 1924



RICHARD LOEB. 8tand up.

You, Richard Loeb, and Nathan F. Leopold, Jr. were on
the 8th day of June, 1934, indicted by the Grand Jury in
the Criminal Court of Cook County, State of Illinois,
General Number 33634, People of the State of Illin?is Ve,
Nathan F. Leopold, Jr. and Richard Loeb, upon a charge
that you, Richard Loeb, and Nathan F. Leopold, Jr. did
on the 2lst day of May, 1924, Kidnap one Roberi Franks
for Ransom, |

Upon arraignment on the 1lth day of June, 1924, in
the Criminal Court of Cook County, Btate of Illinois,
you were present in person and with counsel, and you
personally entered a plea of not guilty to the indictment
aforesaid. On the 2lst day of July, 1934, you wers again
personally present in the Criminal Court of Cook COounty,
State of Illinois, and Clarence Darrow, Esquire, Attorney
for you, asgked leave to _withdraw your plea of not guilty
and to enter on your behalf your plea of guilty. And
thereupon the Court fully explained to you, Richard Loeb,
the consequences of entering such plea, and vou were-at-

_that time fully advised by the Court of your right to

_a trial by a jury upoh a plea of not guilty, and that
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plea of gullty the Court had the power to sentence you
to the ptinishment of death, or to sentence you tg impri—
soament in the Penitentiary for your life, or to
gsentence you to impriscnment in the Penitentiary for

any term not less than five years. And after being
advised of the consequences of entering your plea of
guility upon the indictuent for kidnapping of said Rob@rﬁ
Franks for Ransom you then personally an& by counsel |

persisted in pleading guilty to the said indictment for

kidnapping said Robert Franks for Ransom,

- The Court, having heretofore fully explained ﬁp
you, Richard Loeb, the consequences of entering your
plea of guilty of the kidnaping of the said Robegt Franks
for Rhnsom, asain desires to fully exp?ain to you,
Richard Loeb, the cons;quences,of enteriné such pleé,

and now here advises you again that you have a right

to a trial by a jury under a plea of not guilty herein;

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 14 1924



-] 5

and that as a consequence of the plea of guilty of the
kidnapping of Robert Franks for Ransom the Court has

the power to Ffix your punishment st desth, or impri-
somment in the Penitentiary for your life, or imprison-
ménﬁ in the Penitentiary for any term of not les; than
fife years, and that such plea of guilty will aake no
alteration in the punishment. And the Court desires to
know whe;her, with the consequences of entering such
plea of gullty before you, you now hare persist in plead-—
ingvguilty %0 the kidnaping of ihe said Robert Franks for

' v , L4 N .
Ransom in msnner and forwm as charged in the indictment herein.

RICHARD LOLB: Yes, your Honor, I do.
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THE COURT: Those who are not seated will have to
leave the courtroom. it 18 at the direction and
advice of the Fire Department that the Court is acting,
that no person be permitted to stand, when all the
seats are taken, therefors thoee who are not seated
will leave the courtroom, and the bailiffs will not
permit anybody else to enter the courtroom, other
than officers and those connscted with the court.

You mey proceed, Gentlemen,

MR, CROWE: I would.suggest that the hearing on
the indictment in the case of\the People vs. Loeb and
Leopold charging kidnapping for ransom be continued,
and the State'le now ready to proceed with the presen-
tation of evidence in the case of People vs, Loeb and
Leopold charging them with murder,

MR. BACHRACH: We object, if the Court please. We
object to any continuance of the case. There is a
plea of guilty in both cases.

THE COURT: I don't think you understand. You

~mean to proceed with this one case now?

7

 ““MR._CROWE: _Yes, and-when I finish that I-will pro-_

ceed with the other.
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THE COURT: You see, you cannot mingle the two together.

MR, DARROW: The evidence is just the same in both
of them,

THE COURT: I know, but what he wents to do, 1is to
proceed. Now, for instance, there is no necessity of
the ocorpus delicti -- that is the death of the boy —-
being proven in the kidnapping case, the kldnapping
for ransom, while thére is here.

MR, CROWE: Two different cases,

THE COURT: The proof is actually different, but it
will remain on its call from day to day, and then
when the first indictment ie disposed of there wont
be but very little testimony ngeded in the ransom case,
very little probably, and before I Qetermine the pun-
ishment in the murdsr case, we will have heara the
testimony in the ransom case. It remains on the call
from day toiday, but he is now trying the case for
murder,

MR, BACHRACH: Inasmuch as there is no real trial
-and-the-only purpose of it—

MR, CROWE: What is this, .;f it isn't a trial?

Ie it an experingnt or a_-try-cut?
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THE COURT: Wailt. You see, thers may be evidence
introduced in the murder case, and there will be,
that would notbe necessary at all in the kidnapping for
ransom case,

MR. BACHRACH: If we do not object, what is the
difference?

MR, CROWE: I assume that this is a trial that is
going to be conducted according to‘%he rules.

THE COURT: Yes,

MR. BACHRACH: Certainly.

MR, CROWE: And it is not an experiment or a tryout.

THE COURT: I thinkthis is what we will do. We
will go ahe&g with the murder case now, with the under-
standing that the two or three witnesses that are
necessary in the ransom cage, will be put on in the
kidnapping for ransom case, and the Court will hear
all the testimony, and the record will ha%e to show
that this is the evidence taken in indictment number
33834 and then afterwards --

MR, CROWE: 336233,

THE COURT: —- in 33623, and than afterwards it wont

teke but o very little time in tha ransom pase probably

1
- - J v = e -
>
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MR, CROWE: Half an hour.

THE COURT: -~ about half an hour.

MR, BACHRACH: You will proceed with it afterwards?_

MR, CROWE: .YeS.

THE COURT: It just ré;ains on call from day to day,
and the recerd now shows that we are only trying xkix
33623.

MR, DAﬁROW: All right.

THE COURT: And immedia?ely that is concluded then
we will go on with the short testimony that 1s necessary
in the other case,

MR, DARROW: All right.

THE COURT: With that understanding we will proceed
now, gentlemen, in the case of the People vs. Nathan F,
Leopold, Jr. and Richard Loeb, indictment for murder
general number 33633, ‘

MR. CROWE: Now, may it please your Honor, it is
the duty of the Btate, as I take it, at this tine,
to outline to your Honor the evidence that the State
intende to introduce in shppOrt of the charge of

~murder contained in this indictment.
7 ~It-1s not the -purpose-at this time, nor_wolld.

1t be proper, for the State to ﬁﬁégqgngéyggggptiupgﬂ
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the Pacts és it expects to develop them, but merely to
outline briefly what those facts are, and at the con-
clusion of all of the hearing, then to argue to the
Court that on those facts, in the judgment of the
State, the extreme penalty ought to be imposed on
both of these defendants.

The evidence in this case —--

THE COURT: Pardon me, Mr. Crowe. Would it be well,

or do you want your witnesses, if there are any in
the room, excluded before the openingstatement?
MR, DARROW: We don't care, your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you, Mr. Crowe, desire it?

MR, CROWE: I think most of them are out, your HBﬂbi&

THE COURT: All right,

MR, CROWE: The evidence in this case will show that
Nathan Leopold, Jr. is a young man 19 years past, that
the other deiendant, Richard Loeb, is a young man of
19 years; fhat they are both the sons of highly
respected and prominent citizens of this community;
that thelir parents gave them every advantagethat

wealth and indulgency could give téﬁyoiﬁ. ’

_ attended the best sChools in this_communify and Have;
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from time to time, had private tutors. These young
men behaved as a majority of young men in their social
set behaved, with the exception thatthey developed
g desire to gamble, and gambled for large stakes, the
size of the stakes being such that even their wealthy
companions could not sit in games with them.

the evidence will further show that along
in October or November of last year these two defend-
ants entersd into a conspiracy, the purpose of which
was to gain money, and in order to gain it they were

\ ready and willing to commit a cold-blooded murder,

These young men are men of intelligence
and edﬁcat%on. In the criminal project that they
were about to embark in, it was necessary that cer-
tain letters be written,

The evidence will show that they knew that
it was possible to tell what kind of a typewriter
was used in any given instance, They'secured a
typewriter, which was stolen from a student in Ann Arbor
early in November, 1933, It was a portable Underwood

typewriter, and the letters which were written in this

case, which will be introduced in evidence, were written
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upon this machine.
During the month of Novembér, December,
Januﬁry, February and March, these two defendants planned
and schewed this orime and devoted their energlee in
working out detalils so it would be impossible for them
t0 be detected and brought to the bar of justice.
The first overt act beyond the acquiring
of the stolen typewriter will be a newspaper folded
in a compact manner and tied to a string, which these
defendanté experimented with by thoowing it from the
rear of a moving Illinols Central train to see where
it would land so that they might give directions
. later on to their victim as to how to throw the
wmoney that they hoped and intended to get.
- On the 9th day of May, 1934, in pursuance
to the unlawful counspiracy that these two defendants
" had entered into, Richard Loeb went to the Morrison
Hotel, in the City of Chicago, and registered under
the name of Morton D, Ballard of Peoria, Illinois,
-He took with him a sultcase containing some books
belonging to the Chicago University, and in one of -
= i oy - -

Thode books 1s a libraly card—on whicir e hadqﬁrituen

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 22 1924



Hei nOnl i ne --

his dame "Richard A. Loeb". There is a condition on
the card that the book must be returned within a
certain time and the person who draws the book 1is
obliged to-sign it, and in this case Richard A. Loeb
signed his name, They had previously decided
that it would not be feasible to use either one of
their automobiles. The one that Leopold used was
a bright red with a maroon top, disc wheels, sport
model, and one that would readily attract attention.
They had learned that you could rent an automobile
from the Rent-a-Car people who had a place of busi-
ness on Michigen Avenue near 13th Strest,

They had also learned that it was necegsary
to make an application in writing prior to obtaining
the car, that it was necessary to glve thrse refer--
ences and one of them had to be a Chicago reference.

It was arranged that while Leopold would

'go to the Rent-a~Car company to make this applica-

tion Loeb was to remain in a little eating house
on Wabash Avenue, I believe the number is 1353, Leopold
was to'give the name of Louis Mason, address 1352 Wabash

Avenue and the telephone number as his Chicag reference
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and when the Rent-a~Car pedble belepﬁahed to this
address Loeb, who was waiting there, was to answer
the phone.

After Leopold went to the Rent-a-Car people
and made out hies application, which will be introduced
in evidence here, he gave the name of Morton D, Ballard
of Peoria, Illinois, the same name that Richard®7oeb
had used when he rented a roogin the Morrison Hotel;
he gave as his Chicago Addres= the Morrison Hotel;
he gave two fictitious persons in Peoria aes references,
and he gave lLouis Mzson of Wabash Avenue as the
third reference.

I'he Rent;a—Car people thereupon called up
the number, the phone was answered by Richard Loeb,
the inquiry was made ae to whether he was Louls Mason,
and he said "yes".

"So you know Mort&n D, Ballard of Peoriaf"

"Very well," "What about him."

"i811, what kind of & man is he?"

"He is a man of integrity and entirely trust-

.
LN

“~worthy and you can safely give him credit," or words to . =

. .. that effect.
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They gave as a bank reference the Hyde
Park State Bank. The evidence will show that for
some time prior thereto Richard Loeb had an account,
a legitimate account, in the Hyde ParkState Bank,
under his name,

Prior to hie going to the ‘Rent-a-Car people
Richard Loeb drew a check, on the Sth of May, for
four hundred dollars, to currency, which he gave to
Leopold for the purpose of financing this criminal
conepiracy. He also drew a check to Currency for
one hundred dollars, cashed it and gave the huﬁdred
dollars to Leopold, and-Leopold, under the name of
Morton D. Ballard, opened an account at the Hyde Park
State Bank.

Haf&ng made arrangements and established
credit with the Rent-a-Car psople, they took a car
out, rode through the streete of the City for several
hours, and then returned the car on May 9th,

On the day of May 31st their plans for this
kidnapping and murder were coﬁplete. lhey had in mind

no particular person as the subject, but had digcussed

four or five boys whose fathers were wealthy men
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in this City. Oné of them, Billy Deutsch, thé grané—
son of Julius Rosenwald, another one a young boy named
Hartman whose father is the proprietor of the Hartman
Furniture Company, snother one was John Lsvinson a .
young boy whose father is a prominent and distiﬁgmished
attorney at the Chicago Bar, Several others were
discussed.

Leopold and Loeb had gotten together and
wrote ~- have you got that letter, Joe? -~ and wrote
a letter addreseing it merely as "Dear Sir", intending
after they had selected their victim to address it
to the father of the boy that they had kidnapped. I
wont wait now to read that letter. The letter will
be presented to yowr Honor in evidence, and it |
substantially states that "Your son has besn kidnapped.
If you comply with our request, don't notify the
police or make any effort to apprehend us, the boy
‘will be returned safely t0 you upon the payment of
'Ten Thousand Dollars," and they state how the money --
what denominat15;s the bills should be in -=- 1 Eave

the letter here and I will now read it to you:
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marked bills Eill render the entire venture futile.

"Dear Sir: As you no doubt know by this tims, your
son has been kidnapped. Allow ue to assure you that
he is at present well and safe. You)need fear no
physical harm for him, provided you live up carefully
to the following ;nstructions and to such others
a8 vou will receive by future communications. Should
you, however, disobey any of our instructions, éyén'
slightly, his death will be the penalty.

Fiist, for obvious reasons make absolutely
no attempt to communicate with either the police au-~
thorities or any private agency, Should you already

have communicated with the police, allow them to
continue their investigation, but do not wention
this letter.

Second, secure before noon today ten
thousand dollars. This money must be composed en—
tirely of ald bills of the following denominationsP

Iwo thousand dollasrs in twenty dollar bills,
eight thousand dollars in fifty dollar bills, The

P-—
money must be old. An attempt to include new or.

¢
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"Third; The money should be placed. in
a large cigar box, oOr if this 1ls 1ampossible, in a
heavy cardbosrd box, éecurelg closed and wrapped in
white paper. The wrapping papershould be sealed
at all openings with sealing wax.

Fourth. Have the money vwith you, prepared
a8 directed above, and remain at home after one o'clock
P, M. See that the telephone ig not in use.

You will receive a further communication
instructing you as to your future course,

As a final word of warning, thie is an
extremely commzrcial proposition and we are prepared
to put our threat into execution should we have
reasonable grounde to belisve that you have committed
an infraction of the above instructions.

However, should you carefully follow out
our instructions to the letter, we can assure yo#
that your son will be safely returned to you witﬁ}nl
8ix hours of our receipt of the money.

Yours truly,

- George Johnson,"
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MR, CROWE: Have you got the other letter found in
the car?

THE COURT: Do you want to change places now,
youy court reporters, relief men? Step right up.
All right.

MR, CROWE: They had also previocusly prepared, that

is prior to May 31lst, the following letter:

"Dear Sir: Proceed immediagely to the back
platform of the train, watch the east side of
the track, have your package ready, look for
the firet large red brick factory situated
immediately adjoining the tracks on the east.
On the top of thies factory is a large black
water tower with the word "Champion" written
upon it. Wait until you have completely
passed the south side of the factory, count
five very rapidly and then immediately throw
the packags as far east as you can,

Remember, this is your only chance to
_recover .your-gon.._

—Youretruly,
" George Johnson,"
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: fhe envelope which contained that letter

read:

"Mr, Jacob Franks.

Should somebody else find this note, please

lease it alone. The letter is very important,"

The evidence will show that both of these
letters were jointly composed by both of the defendants
in this case, Leop;ld and Loeb, that the mechanical
work or the typing of it, was done by the defendant
Leopold,

The evidence will further show, as a
further evidence of the extreme caution and cunning
with which this cruel and vicious murder was planned
and comnitted, that Leopold, some days previously,
had bought a block of note paper from a gtationery
store on 63rd Street --

MR, SAVAGE: 47th Street.
MR, CROWE: 47th Street, and that these two letters

were written upon that paper.

On the morning of May 3lst, as was the
custom of the chauffeur of the Leopold family, he
placed in the runway alongside of the hoﬁse, about

half 'past seven that morning, the red Willye-Knlght
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car that belonged to and was driven by the defendant
Leopold.

Leopold attended the Chicago University, as
wag his custom, that morning, and then he and the
defendant Loeb began to make the final preparations
for this wmurder, for while it hae the aspects of a
kidnapping proposition, they had determined that
immediately upon seizing the victim they were golng
to immediately murder him and extort the money after-
wards in the manner as will appear fromthe evidence in
this casee,

the evidence will further show %h@t they
went to the leopold home where they secured a quantity
of ether which Leopold had heretofore uwsed in chlor-
oforming birds, Leopold being a student of ornithology,
and conducting a number of classee in that subject;
he got some tape from the bathroom of his house, and
a gag., They then went out on Cottage érove Avenue

and bought a bottle of hydrochloric acid. It was

-

the first bottlethis druggist had sold in a period

"of three or four years. The purpose of the hydrochloric

“v0id wag, thet after having murdered their victim they ..
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intended destroying his features with it eo that it
would be impossible to identify himi They gtgpped‘1£
another store, the propriétor of which wiil appiﬁr |
before your HomOr, snd bought ropss for the purpoee
of binding and tying their little victim, They
stopped in another store and bought a cold chisel,
over the sharp end of which they wrapped this tape
g0 they would not Injure themselves in any degree,
and with the other end they intended to beat the
1life out of whatever 1ittle boy they happened to
gelze upon.

Having méde all these elaborate prepara-

tions for thies murder they went down to the Rent-a-Car

people and got a dark Willys-Knight car, with the

side curtains put up all around the car. They
then returms d about one o'clock to Leopold's house
and‘Leopgld told his’ chauffeur that the brakes
vere out of order on his réd Willys-Knlght car, and
he would 1ike to have h;m fix them,

They transferred from the red car the.

implements of death that they had gathered and

“placed it in the dark Willys-Knight car that they
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had rented at £he Rent-a-Car company.

they then proceeded over to the Harvard
School , which is & private school on the south
gide of thie city. and attended by the sons of
wealthy citizens of Chicago. Both of these boys
had been students at this school and Richard Loebls
younger brother ies still and wae at that time a
student there.

Loeb went in to look over, ag he terms
it and hisg co-murderer terms it "prospects" to
see what 1little boys might be there that they knew
whose fathers were wealthy men and who would be able
to produce the ten thousand dollare the following day.
They talked to one of the boys and talked to one --
Loeb talked to one of the boys and to one of the
instructors, who will appear before your Honor and
tesetify. The only boy that they had discussed,
that Loeb saw at that time, wae Johnnie Newman,
and he returned and imparted that information --—

MR, SAVAGE: Levinwson,

MR, CROWE: =-- Johnnie Levineon, and he returned
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to the Rent-a—=Car which had been parked do@n a
block or two ,away in which Leopold was, and told him
that Johnnie Levinson was there and that they would
get him,

Not wishing. to attract attention and poesi-
bly imperil their safety, they decided to park the
care several blocks away from the school, They
went home, got a pair of field glasses at the Leopold
house that Leopold used to use in his study of birds,
and from a safe distance, for themeelves,tgﬁggﬁhthese.
field glasses they watched the movemdnt of their 1it-
tle innocent intended victia.

S0 satiefied were they that Levinson was
to be the victim, that one of éhem went into the
drug store to get the address, the house addrees of
hie father, so they could addrees the blank envelop
that contained the first ransom letter and send it to
him, |

Fortunately for Levinson, after school
that day, he did not come in the direction that they

intended he should come, and to that chance, or that
_act of providence, and that alone, accdﬁnts for the

faot of hie being a witness here today and/the COTpus
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delicti of this crime.

There was a little boy thirteen or foufteen
years of age, the son of a wealthy citizen of our
community, a boy who knew Loeb very well and intimately,
a boy who the day before, on the 30th of May, had
played tennie with Loeb in hie yard, named Robert
Franks. He also was a student 2t the Harvard School.
He was the last boy yo leave the grounds and he walked
down in the direction of the car where sat thece
two cold-blooded, calculating murderers,

As he approached the car Loeb called him over

-and says, "Come on, Bobbie, I will give you a ride

Yoo

Bobble said, "No, I prefe? to walk, it 1is
only a short distance."

He says, "Well, come on over, I want to
talk to you about the tennls racket you had yester-
day, I want to get one for my brother."

Youmg Franks came over, wae invited into
the car and told by Loeb that he would introduce him
%o Leopold.

He ,took his seat alongside of the driver.

He was asked whether he objected, -i-f-they-went around -
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the corner and he gaid ™no", and the evidence will

ghow that the reason that they wanted to turn the
corner wae that on that street there were several
citizens walking along and they were fearful that
the citizens might hear the outcry of this young boy
as they began to beat the life outv of him.

Having turned around the corner he was imme-
diately struok four times-over the head with this '
cold chisel, and then the man in the back seat grabbed -
this little, fragile, dying, innocent boy and pulled
him back, ehoved a gag down hie mouth, 2nd then
the evidence will show threw his hand over his mouth
and held it so firmly and tightly that the marks
were discernible after the dead body was found,
and so held him until life left this 1little, fragile
body.

He was then wrapped up, 1f your Honor please,
bleeding, mangled and dead, wrapped up in an automobile
blankét which belonged to the Leopold family and which
Leopold had taken out that day for this very purpose.

+Prior to embarking in the last stage qf this

contemplated kidnapping and murder theseé two asicndanits—
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were fearful that their machine might be etopped wpiié
the dead body was in it, and in order to protect
their liberty they secured, at the Leopold home,
two revolvers, which will be introduced in evidence,
and each were armed with one, it being thelr inten-
tion to kill any citizen or any police officer who
wag luckless enough to stop that car while they
had the dead body in it; and fortunately no police
officer, or no citizen, did stop the car or we
would have another murder ceee in the Criminal Court.
Having strangled and suffocated and beat
thie little boy to death —- this happened along about
five o'clock in the afternoon, it doesnot get dusk
or dark until about half past eight at that time
of the year, —-- Leopold in his study of ornithology
had visited the Forest Preserves, located on thé
.PanHandle Railroad at 118th Street, he had been out
there meny timee with Claseses of ladiee and children,
teaching them the science of birds, |

»~

He had discovered there a drain in a

‘culvert which, €0 him, afford¢d & Very conmveniént -

" ané* secure place for hiding the body of their little -

,
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murdered‘vibt;m.
They drove around, up and down the roads
- leading to thie place, until they got hungry, and
then stopped, and with this little, bloody corps
‘in the car, they got out and caluly ate.

Immediately after killing him the first
shing they did wae to undrees the lower péition of
him, They took his shoes &nd etockingé and trouse¥s
off, then wrapped him in a blanket, and when they
got out to the culvsrt and drain, after dark, they
took the body out of the car and took the balance
ofrﬁhe clothee off of him,

Leopold had provided himeelf with a pair
of high rubber boots so that when he was putting the
body in the drain and he wae standing in the water he
wouldn't get wet.

The evidence will show. that along in Novembef'
of this year, about the time these defendants firet
pPtted and planned this gruesome oriab Leopold became
afflicﬁyd with h;adaches and it was necessgry«for him

to wear—glzesesa.
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The evidence wiil show fhat Dr. Deutsch pres-

,cribéd, and that Almer—Coe & Company made the glasses:
About three months prior to May 32nd, the

headaches having dieappeared, it was not longer

neceesary for Leopold to wear his glasses and he

put them in the top coat pocket of one of his birding

e@%ts.

‘When they got out to the culvert and had
completed undressing their little victim, Loeb poured
the hydrcchloric acid over his face, intending to
wipe out his features so he couldn't later be iden-
tified. The can of ether was not neceezary becausé
a8 a result of the blows administersd immediately
after getting Franks into the car, the shoving of
the gag dowﬁ his mouth and the clesping of the hand '
over the mouth, life had long since béen sxtinct,

Leopold took the body, ana, face forward,
shoved it into the drain, The water in there washed
away moet of the hydrochlogic acid and the features

were merely darkened. They then left. mhey stopped

on the road and telephoned the Leopold home, where the  _

R r

aunt and uncle, Mr. and Mrs, Schwab, were walting for
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ﬂeopold to come and ﬁake phem home, that they would
be delayed. |
They then drove back to the Leoﬁ%ld home,
tﬁey parked the death car down a coneiderable dis-
tance in the block, they went in the gerage and got
out the red Willys-Knight, the car owned by Leopold,
and in that €ar he took the Schwabes home. VWhile
he wa8 taking the Schwabs home, Loeb remained there
talking to Mr. Nathan Leopold, Seénior.
¥hen he returned -- when Nathan Junior re-
turned, he and Loeb remainsd up playing cards until
the father went to bed. Then they began to plan
to destroy any evidence that there might be of
their participation in thishcruel and vicious murder,.
they took the clothes belonging to the lit-
tle Franks boy, so carefully, so cruelly and with
such calculation did they go about this, that they
reasongd that you couldn't burn the belt buckle and
it wmight be found in their furnace later on, that
you couldn't burn the little clasp pin that this
“boywore, that his shoes would not burn, €6 they

a
“eEparavéd those thing¢ tvhat would not” burm TTom ™
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those things that would, and they took the clothes
down into the basement of the Loeb home and bﬁrﬁf
them in the furnace. |

They had the Leopold automobile robe
saturated with the blood of this 1little boy. They
were afraid if they burned that in the furnace
the etench would fill the house and attract attention,
go they hid it in the yard behind some shrubbery and
gsome boxee, the yard of the Loeb home,

They went into the garage and got out
& bucket and washed the blood as best they could
off the car. They had previously washed the
blood off their hands at the culvert, and attempted
to wash it off their clothes.

About one o'clock that night, in order to
get rid of the chisel, they got back into the red

Willys-Knight, and as they were passing the corner

.0f Greenwood and 48th.Loeb threw the blocody chisel

from the car, A watchman standing on the side-

walk saw it thrown from the car and picked it up

and turned it over to the police, together with a
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degc;iption of the car owned by Leopold.

Thay then went out in the country and
buried the shoes, the pante, the belt buckle and
the clasp pin,

Later on they got the blood-scaked robe,
Saturated it with gasoline and took it to 73rd
and the lake and touched a match to it.

They took the Underwood portable typewriter,
upon whichthese two letters were written by Leopold,
ard which was in Leopold's home, Loeb tors the letters
ocut, or twisted them of f with a pair of pliars, they
threw the letters in one portion of the 1ake‘ap
Jackson Park and the machine itself in another portion
of the lake,

They had, they thought, completely destroyed
all evidence which would tend to connect them in
any msnner with this dastardly crime. There remained
but the car itself.

The next day at noon they took the car over

to Leopold's garage and began to wash the blood off,

— e

"I CarRilT o8 1Nt réduceq T evideiice and your Honor
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will see ‘the blood under the carpet of the car.
You wi 11 see the effort theymade to wash it off, You
will see the blood upon the frame work of the car,

While they were washing the car the‘chaufw
feur employed by the Leopold family, came down,
the door of the car was open, the defendante parted
their coate in this fashipn (illustrating) so that he
couldn't look into the car, He asked them could he
help them and they said, "No, we have merely spilt
some red wine on here last night and we want to
vash it off, and we can do it without any helﬁ
fr;m you."

The% then returned the car., On the way
back fromthe culvert they got out of the car, looked
up Jacob Franks! house address, took the ransom letter
with the blank envelope, and in the handwriting of
Nathan Leopold, Junior, the ransom letter was addresged
to Jacob Franks at 5052 Ellis Avenue., They put a
epeclal dellvery stamp on it and then Leopold telephoned

the Franks honme, The teélephoned was answered by
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Mre. Franks

Lecpold =aid "this is George-Johnson. Your
gon has been kidnspped. He is safe. Don't worry,
details later,"

They then mailed the ransom letter to
Jawob Franke,

It was.their original intention that the
eeoond letter, addreesed to Jacob'Franks, was to be
put on top of a Keep-the-City-Clean box in that
nzar neighborhood, They experimented with that
and foundthat the gum would not stick to the box. So

 %hey decided then that instead of placing it in &
Keep-the-City-clean box they would put it in the
rack which holds telegraph blanks on a Pullmen car
leaving the Illinois Central station at four o'clock
Standard time that afternoon. That is the car that
they had experimented throwing the bundle of
newspapers from to see where it would land,

These detaile had been worked out some days
in advance of the actual crime.

Next, after getting rid of the chisell thev..
béth returned to their homes and slept soundly thet -
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night and the next day met again for the purpose of
g;e;ting the ten thousand dollars from Franls .

the defendant Loeb went down to the Illinois
Centrdl, bought & ticket, got on car 507 and put
the second letter in the rack.

They then telephoned the Yellow Taxi Company,
told them -~ Leopold did the telephoning and said
h;s nawe was Jacob Franke, and he wanted a car
sent over to his houee at 5053 Ellis Avenue right away.
They then telephoned Jacob Franks that there would
be a car at hie house at once, that he was to get
in it with the money, to go to the drug store on
63rd Street, where he would receive further inetruc;
tions,

Mr, Franks at that time was talking with
Samuel Ettelson. They had just learned thatthe
dead body of his son had been found, and for that
reason Mr, Franks did not go with the Yellow Taxi
to this drug store.

Leopold then telephoned the drug store
and inQuired of the clerk whether there was a man

——3 T

Tomfd 8000 rfanks there, He was told no, and some
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minutes later again telephoﬁed, and thie time the
proprietor told him that there wss no person by the
name of Fraﬁks there,

They then walked out to the corner and
gaw on the newsstand the ﬁaper with the headline
that the body had besn found. They figured that
that was the reason why Franks had not gone to the
drug store and decided that they had better abandon
ﬁhe ldea of getting the ten thousand dollare.

Friday and Saturday they went along in the
even tenor ¢f their way, and Sunday morning Leopold
was called out to the police station near the
culvert and questioned by Captain Wolf. Wolf had
no idsa or no suspicion that he was in any manner
connected with the crime, but merely wanted to get
from him the namee of people that he knew who fre—
Quented thie place and who wore glasees., This infor-
maticn was given by Nathan Leopold, Jr..

The police in the meantime had brought in
& number of other suspects, who were held and ques-
tionsd énd let go.

Right alongeide of the culvert and the body

was found the next day, on the 33nd, a palr of spectacles.
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'hey had a dark frame. They were turned ovef to
the police, Along with the spectacles one of the
stockings of little Bobble Franks was found,

Joseph P, Savage of the State's Attorney
office, on getting these spectacles learned that
only one firm in the United States made them, a
New York firm, and only one firm in Chicago handled
them, that was Almer,Coe & Company. He hzd an
occulist write a prescription of the glasses, and
then asked Almer, Coe & Company to find out for
whom those glasses were made.

Almer, Coe & Company gave the etate's
Attorney the names of three persons who had the
identical prescription filled. One of them was
a lady, one Nathan Leopold, Junior, and the other
a member of the Chicago bar,

‘ The laQX wag brought into the LaSa%}g
Hotel and Queetioﬁed by ?he State's Attorney, and
it was apparent that the glasses in the case were
not hers, she having here on, and these being much

too large for her, The Attorney was out of town.

The next psrson brought in was Nathan Leopold,
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Junior. ’He'was agked by the State's Attorney
whether or not he was familiar with the scene where
the body was found,and he said he was very fadlier
with it, thathe had bsen out there maybe 150 or 200
tires studying birds, He esaid that he knew the
exact spot where the body was placed, becauce the
Saturday and Sunday previous he had been out there
and had run over the mouth of the culvertin an
attempt to shoot soms birds. He was asked whether,
in his Judgment, he thought a person who was not
familiar with the ecene, wnanting to hide the body at
dusk, would be able to stumble into it accidentally,
and he sald absolutely not, "this is some consider-
able distance from the road, and whoever put that
body there must have known about the culvert and the

drain prior to that time."
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He was asked whether he had read the letter,

ranson letter, and he said, yes, he had, He was
asked his opinion as to the education of the man who
wrote it, "Well," he sald, "he must have been a man of
gome education, elther a high school man or probably a
high school graduate," He says, "I was unable to find
any errors of any sort in that letter except possibly
the word 'kidnepped!, 1t is either spelt with one or
two t's . I don't know which," but he says, W"either one
I think is proper,"

THE COURT: Well, we will have two sessions of court,
one beglinning at ten o'clock, and continuing until

twelve thirty, the other beginning at two and continuing

to four thirty. Halfway through each of those sessicns,

which will be an hour and a quarter after we start,
there will be a recess of five minutes, If the defendants
or either of them wish to go tec thewashroom the sheriff
will accompany them there, We will suspend for five
minutes now, gentlemen.

(Whereupon a short recess was here taken by

’

the Court.)
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3 (Wﬁereupon, pursuant to a short recess heretofore
taken, the following proceedings were had,)
THE COURT: You may proceed, Mr, Crowe,
MR. CROWE: May it please the Court, go back a mouent,
After having as they thought with theilr extreme care and
caution, absolutely removing all signs or evidence of their

guilt of this atrocious murder, they went one dégree further

in thelr caution and agreed upon a story that they should
tell if either were questioned about this murder, The
story they agreed upon is as follovs:

That they were to say that they went to school
that morning at the usual ti.e, around eight o'clook;
that Leopold drove his red Willys—Knight car, that after
the classes were dlsmiessed about éleven or shortly after,
he pickeé up his boon ccmpanion and who is now his
fellow defendant, Richard Loeb, and they went down to
Marshall Field's and had lunchecn in the grill room, They
then went out to Lincoln Park, the extreme end of the
parks Leopold was to study a rare form of a sea gull that
was suprosed to be there, While Loeb never took any
inimrest in ornithology he was to state he came aloné
because it would satisfy his parents that he was taking
an interest in serious matters., Leopold was to have a

flask of Scotch and Loeb was to have a bottle of gin,
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3 and while Loeb was etudying the habits of this,raxe bird
Loeb was toc consume the contraband articles, When they
were about to leave at six o'eclock or thereabouts, Loeb
had drank a little more than he ought to and for that
pason they did not go to their homes for dinner, but went
to the Cocoanut Grove where they had dinner, and then
Went out in the red car again and picked up a couple of
girle somewhere, between the ages of 19 and 23, and
after taking them arouvnd the parks, boulevards, and having
made an indecent proposal to the girls and the girls
having refused to domply they ordered them out of the
car and made them walk home from the park,

They were to have this story provided they
were called in at any time within a weék of the murder.

Leopold was brought into the LaSalle Hotel
to the Statel!s Attorney of this County, on the Thursday
of the next week, and that 1s the story he told the
State's Attorney of his movements on the day of the murder,
He waskasked whether or not he could compcse a letter as
grammatically correot as the ransom letter, and sald,
"Without any trouble whatever," He was asked whether
or not it was not trus that the man who wrote it was
accustomed to using the trpewriter, and he says, "Yes,

and I am accustomed to use one for the last two or thiee
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years." He was asked what kind of typewriter he had,
and he said, a Hammond typewriter, and it was homne,

He w&e then asked whether he wore glasses, and he told
th'e Statel!s Attorney, early in the fall he had trouble
with headaches, and that Doctor Deutech had prescribed
for him and he had the prescription filled at Almer Coe
& Company,

He desoribed the glasses and said after he had
worn them for two or threes months the headegches
disappeared and he quit wearing them and when asked where
the glasses were at that particular time, he said, "They
&re undoubtedly at home.," The State's Attorney then
showed him the pair of glasses found alongside of the
murdered body. He looked at them and uput them on -and he
sald, "If I was not positive if my glasses were hoﬁe, I
would say that these aremine." He was then asked to go
cut to his house and get his glasses, and he went out in
Company with a2 police officer, He then told several
members of his family that he could not find his glasses,
that he had lost them and that the State's Attorney had
a pair of glas-ea which were very much like his, and were
probably his, and they all expressed considerable ‘concern

about the matter,

He was a friend of ®amuel A, Ettelson, who has
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been former Corporation Counsel here, and wno was an

attorney representing the Frénks family in this case.
He and his brother then procseded to get in touch with
Samuel A. Ettelson., They located Samuel A, Ettelson
over at the home of the Franks people, and the State's
Attorney was assured that this boy came of a perfectly

Tegpectable family and it was ridiculous to suppose that

he had any knowledge whatever of this crime,

The police officer who accompanied then,

however, insisted that he come back to fhe Statels

Attorney witn him, He€ returned to the La Salle Hotel

and brought with him the case which will be introduced
in evidenoe, for these glasses, and stated he had not

been able to find his at home, and that the ones that.
I had presented to him, were undoubtedly his.

He was then asked "How 1is it, Nathan, that
you dropped them aut there, how could that happen?"
"Well," he says, "I always had them in my top coat
pooket, and it is possible that Sunday, with big rubber
boots on and running over this culvert, I might have
tripped and dropped the glasses in that manner,"

He was asked to demonstrate how 1t happened,

and he made several attempts by falling and tripping to

the floor, but the glasses remained in his coat. He
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was then asked to put the glasses in his coat, lay his
coat on the floor, pick it up by the tails and hand it
to the State's Attorney. He did, and the glasses fell
out s

The evidence will further show that this is
the manner in which the glasses had fallen out, He had
taken his coat off in order to shove the 1little body of
his murdered. viotim into this culvert, and after he had
washed the blood off his hands, he asked Richard Loeb
to hand him his coat, and in the dark Dick Loeb picked
it up by the tarl, and the glasses fell out,

After having told the State's Attcrney that

he had been with Richard Loeb all that day, Richard

Loeb was sent for and brought in, He arrived at the hotel

about six o'clock that evening. When first questioned
Y.

88 to the happenings on Wednesday, he had no recollection

of what had ocourred on that day at all, it was like
every other day to him, He could tell what he did on
other days but not on that particular day, That was
in pursuvence to the agreement that he had made with
Leopold, that if he was called in after e week of the
crime, neither one of them were to knowwﬁhat they had

done on that day, but any time within a week they were
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to tell the story about Lincoln Park, tﬁe Cocoanut Grove
and the unwilling ladies.

After the State's Attorney had questioned Richard
Loeb for some time he exhibited consid:rable nervousness
and finally wanted to know why he was nou interrngated
ebout the Frank case. Eventuzally he remembered the same
stery that Leopold had previously told about their déings
on Wednesday, May 3lst, and accounted for his apparent
lapse of memory in the first instance, by saying that he
had gotten pretty drunk that day at the park and that
may account for the fact he did not readily remember what
they had done that day.

About one o'clock in the morning, that would
be one olclock Decoration Day, Friday, the twe defendents
Were taken from the La Salle Hotel to the Statels
Attorneyts office where a stenographer was called and
they made a statement in which they again detailed the
alibil referred to, and whioch statement will be presented

to the Court.

There are some other metters in that statement
that I will ask, when the time comes, that counsel for
the other side read, and the Court read, and that the

same watters may not be read aloud to a courtroom.
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The reason for those questicns will be made clear to your
Honor, at the time, and ths importancafof the tesézaony
being heard by your Honor will also be made apparent at
that time.

Along about five or six o'clock on Decoration
Day morning these boys Were sent to - one was sent to the
48th Street Police Stetion and the ofher was sent to the
Detective Bureau., Prior to that time they had been, as I
say, at the La Salle Hotel where they had dinner with me
that evening, and left there around one 08block, and in the
Statel's Attorney's offkice up until about five o'clock or
half pastsfive that monning,when they went to the police
gtations. The State's Attorney and his assistant
remained here until seven or eight o'clock,

The nextday they were brought back to the
Btatel's Attorney's office about four o'clock in the

afternoon. The father of Leopold and his uncle, asked the

Statel!s Attorney for an opportunity to talk to thelr boy?

The State's Attorney took the defendant Leopcld intc one

of the back rooms of the Btate's Attorney's office, and
told the father and uncle to talk to him as long as they
pleased and proceeded to leave the room, and they said,

"No, we would like to have you remain while we talk to him,"

and the State's Attorney told them he had no desire whatever
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9 to be present, and they would be undisturbed and ocould
converse as long as they wanted to. They said, "No,"
they merely wanted to assure themselves that the police
were not abusing them, and if the boy wae in my custody
they wanted him to remain with me as long as possible
and would give me such assistance as they could because
they were satisfied and I muet be satisfied that they
had no cohnectlon whatever with .this grewsome and terrible
cTime., They asked whether the becys could receive a
change of linen, and I said, "You.ean send anything you
want down, including their razor and shaving sets, so thc
can shave, or I will have them sent out, have them sent
to a hotel,"

MR, B, BACHRACH: May I interrupt you, Mr. Cwowe?

MR, CROWE: Yes.,

MR, B, BACHRACH: Did they also say they wanted to
cooperate with you in every way they could to help you
solve the matter?

MR, CROVE: ” The uncleand father, and also the uncle
of Mr, Loeb, Mr, Loeb, the uncle of the defendant, appea:
about the same time and made the same request, and the
game offer was made to him, that he could talk to hils
nephew alonhe and in privacy, and he asked that the State!

Attorney slso remain, Both the boys assured their
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their family that they were being treated with the utmost
Considerabion end courtesy and they were told to remain
with the State's Attorney and to give him whatever aid
and assistance they could in his investigation.

Having all expressed the greatest confidencs
that they themselves knew nothing about the commission of
tvhe crime itvself.,

Long after the parents left and the State's

"Attorney left the office the defendants were taken to some

first class restaurant in the city, I believe the Red
Star thset evening where they had thelr supper or dinner,
and then brought back to the State's Attorneyls office.
Very 1little questioning was dcne between that
time and eleven o'clock of either one of the defendants,
At eleven o'clock some of the office force of the State’s
Attorney left, and the newspaper boys wanted an opportunity
to talk tc the two defencants, it being the intention
at that time to suspend operations until the next day,
About that time we found out from reporters of the Chicago
Daily News, who will testify here, that Nathan Leopold
during the winter had at his house an Underwood Portable
typewriter, and we will demonstrate beyond all reasonable

doubt to your Honor that both of these letters were written
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on an Underwood portabl¢ typewriter,

We learned from these alert and intelligent
reporters that during the winter Leopold had four of his
classmates working with him preparing for an examination
and that this portable typewriter was used., We thereupon
Interrogated Leopold in reference to it and he denied
emphatically that he ever had an Underwood typewriter in
his houce, an Underwood portable. When told that four of
his fellow students had told us that he had one there in
February, he said, "Well, if that is the case, one of them
must have brought it with him, 1t certainly did not belong
to me."

When confronted by these boys he persisted in
denylng the possession or ownership of such a machine,
He was then asked, "If these bcys did not own it, who
else could be the owner of 1t?" And he answered, "Leon
Mandel, the second."

" Leon Mandel is in Europe. If Leon Mandel owned
that machine he either took it prior to lesaving for Europé
or 1t is still at your house, Mr, Leépold?" "Yes, sir,
that is correot." "Mandel has been in Europe over a
month." "Yes, sir, that is correct." "Your sergant
says the machine was at your house two weeks ago. If that

is true then Mandel did not take it with him, did he?"
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"No, sir, then the machine must be at my house, and I
will go out and look for it for you."

Leopold then went out with Josep£ P, Savage and
8ome police officer tec look around vearious places for the
typewriter, end could not find it. He came back to the
State's Attorney's office and sald, "Well, that machine
does not belong to Mandel", and said no more,

About that time the chauffeur came in., The
chauvffeur who had been employed for some years past by
the Leopold fam:ly came in and told the State's Attorney
that the red Willys-Knight car that Leopold and Loeb saild
they had used going to Marshall Field's, to Linceln Park,
to the Cocoanut Grove, qnd for the purpose of taking
these unwilling ladies.gut for a ride had been in the
garage from one o'clock in the afternoon of the day of
the murder until ten thirty when they took it out,

About that time Richard Loeb sent for the
State's Attorney, and said he wanted to talk to him, and
said, "What are you holding me here for?" The State's
Attorney says, "You realize you are in custody, do you?"
And he says, "Yes." "You haven'?t anything on me, you
are not asking me anything abcut this, and what are‘&ou
keeping me here for?" The State's Attorney told him

he was not paying any attention to him at all, that he
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13 wag devoting all of his energy in tightening a web around
his friend Leopold, because as soon as he had tightened this
Web around Leopold, he had Richard Loeb also, because
Loeb had told him that he had spent the entirs day of
May 21st in company with Nathan Leopold. The Statels
Attorney then told him the evidence he had to indicate
that Leopold had murdered this boy, and as the State's
Attorney finished his recital, Loeb gald, "My God, give
me & drink of water," The State's Attorney gave him a
drank, and he says, "Well, I will tell you the entire
truth."

The State will show unargued to ycur Honor
the motive which prompted Richard Loeb to so suddenly
and unexpeotedly oonfess at that moment, was another
evidence of his cautionness and his craftiness and his
desire to protect hie own hide. He knew that the -
man who had beaten the 1ife out of +this 1little boy
wae his confederate Leopold. He figured that the
State's Attorney had the evidence which would send
Leopold to the gallows, independent of anything that
they might say, and he was going to ingr-tiate himself,
he thought, into the good graces of the authorities, by

telling all he knew about the grewsome detalls of this
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While he was reoiting the details of this to John
Sbarbaro of my office, Nathan Leopold sent Joseph Savage
in and asked whether I would see him. The State's
Attorney walked into the\room where Nathan Leopold was
sitting, and he saié, "Let me ask you a hypothetical
question." I salid, "Very well, what is 1t?" He says,
"Supposing John Doe had committed this murder, and John
Doels family wus as wealthy and influential as mine is,
and could hire able criminal lavyers and get a friendly
judge and bribe the jury, don't you think he could beat
thls case?" And I said, "Well, Nathan Leopold, I will
let you try it out." He says, "What do you mean?"

I says, "I am going to charge you with this murder,"
"Why, you haven't anything on me except some flimsy
Circumstances, you will never do that," "You don't
know, Nathan Leopold, your pal Dick Loeb is telling the
details of this murder, do you?" "No, my God he is

not doing it, he would stand until Hell freezes over", or

‘some simlliar expression, and then the State's Attorney

mentioned the Rent-A-Car, and the Morrison Hotel, and
said, "If Losb did not tell that, who did?" "Well," he

says,AIf Losb is talking I will tell you the real truth",
A\

and then he proceeded to tell his story to Joseph P&

]
Savage.
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Their story is identical in all essential

détails, except each of them, careful of their own

a3kin, much more careful than they were of the boyd of
little Franks, each one says that the scheme originated
with the other, Each one says the other is the man who
gtruck out and choked out the 1life of thise poor little

bOy.

They were brought together, their confessions
were read, they argusd back and forth, and those confessions |
Will be read to your Honor,

They then, beginning sbout elight o'clock that
morning went with the Statel's Attorney and his asd stants,
ﬁolice to the various places where acts were done in -
furtherance of this terrible conspiracy. The card signed
by Loeb at the Morri son Hotel where he uses the name of
Ballard was procured and will be introduced in evidence.

The satchel left there by Loeb with the books, together
with a library card on which appears the q;gnature of
Richard A. Loeb were obfained and they will be presented
in evidence.

The Rent—A-Car in whioh this foul murder was

committed was secufed , drenched and covered with the blood

of young Robert Franks; the application made in the hand-
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writing of Leopeld in which he ﬁses the name of Ballard
wag secured and four witnesses who positively iientif&
Leopold as Ballard, were guesticned in their presence
and they will tell their story to your Honor.

The 1little lunch room at 1352 Wabash Avenue
Wag visited where Lo.b walted for an hour and & half
eating raisins alongside of the telephone waiting for
the Rent-A~Car people to inquite for Louis Mason so that
he might give & good recommendation to his co-conspirator
and fellow murderer, and the people of that store will

appear and tell your Honor in detail,

The drugstore vhere the hydrochloric acid
ﬁés procured that was to eat away the sweet little features
of this poor little Franks boy, so that these cautious,
educated, trained oriminals and murderers might be safe
from detection., The drugstore will be produced, the man
who sold them the paper upon which these two letters were
written will be produced, The plece where they attempted
& burn the automobile robe belonging to the Leopolds and
that was drenched in the life blood of little Franks that
place vwas visited, and which piecesof that robe remain
soaked in blood, they will be prdduced and identified

before your Honors

Qut in the country, yes, in Indiéna, if you
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rlease, where they buried the shoes of this little tot,
where they burled his belt buckle and his little clasp
pin, that place wae visited and these exhibhits were found
where they hid them, and they will be produced before
your Homor,

Cautious, orafty, cruel and vicious. Leopold
it will appear in evidence was attempting to direct
suspicion to others., Loeb, cautious; oruel and vicious
was attempting to divert susplcion by aiding these alert
and honest reporters of the Daily News in locating the
drugstore that Frank was directe%lto go to. Agreed to
go with}them and elp them locate the place, which Frank
in his excitement had forgetten the name, and exact
Jocation. Loeb salid tc these newspaper men, this is
before this story was told to the State's Attornay, this
Was when suspicon was directed against other people, "Let
me go with you and I will help you find the place", and
one of the reporters said, "Well, Dick, you mustknow this
little Frank boy, he lives in your neighborhood, hils brother
goes to the school," or words of that qort, and then to
show the abandoned and malignant heart that is in the bosonm
of-Liceb, ﬁoeb said, "Yes, I know him well," "What kind of

a fellow is heZ" And here, this little fellow that is lying

1qplll.g.oigng.d.e%dtoﬁyembog%oﬁpf Trrxlag. 11?].&1 ed tennis with hinm
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the day before, who lured him to his death, Dick Loe
says, "Vell, if you are going to kidnap or murder
a person he 1s just the cocky kind of a son of a bitch you
would pick."
The State will show to ycur Honor by facts

and cirocumstances, by witnesses, by exhiblts, by documents,

‘that these men are guilty of the most cruel, cowardly,

dasdardly murder ever committed in the annals of American
jurisprudence, The State will demonstrage their guilty here
80 oconclusively that there 1s not an avenue for them to
escape, '‘and they make a virtue of necessity, when they

have nc escape, they throw themselves upon the mercy of

this court.

We will prove that all these matters happened
in Cock County, Illinois, and when the State has concluded,
when the defense has concluded, and the final arguments
are rede, in the name of the People of the State of Illinois,
in the name of the womanhood and the fatherhood, and in the
name of the children of the State of Illinois, we are
going to demand the death penalty for both of these cold

bloodsed, eruel, vicious murderers.

i
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MR. DARROW: Your Henor, I want to say a few words at
this time, The defendants in this case have entered a
plea of guilty. Now, in all cases with any prosecutor,
it seems to me, who is interested purely in administering
Jjustice, it would not héveuﬁéen possible to go into all
the details that have been gone into this morning, and
make all the covert threats that have been made, E¥erybody
knows that this was a most unfortunate homicide, That 1t
ig the cruelest, the worst, the most atrocious ever committed
in the United States is pure imagination without avestige
of truth, and everybody knows that too. Those words are
litany of State's Attorneys and that 1s all.

A death in any situation is horrible, but Wwhen
1t comes to the question of murder it is doubly horrible.
But there are degrees perhaps of atrocity , and as I say,
instead of this being one of the worst of the atrocious
charagter, it is perhaps one of the least painful and of
the smallest inducement. Bad, nevertheless, bad enough
of course, but anybody with any experienco.;f criminal
triale knows whatit is to be branded as it has been

repeatedly, as the greatest, most important and atroclous

. k11ling that ever happened in the State of Illinois, or in

the United States.
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MR, CROVWE: Mr, Darrow, Jjust a minute.

Meyer

rel. , If your Honor please, if the purpose of Mr,
Harvey

13 M Darrow is to make an opening statement as te what they
7-33

intend to prove, I have no objsction, but if his purpose
now is merely to make an argument, I object that thie
isnt'%t the proper time.

MR. DARROW: Well, was it the proper time for you to
make 1t7

MR, CEWE: If I stepped outside the bounds it was
your buginese to objeot . I insist that this be cone
ducted like a law sult and not like an experimen t.

MR, DABRBW: Oh, your Honor, he has learned that
somewhere in the book. This will be tried like a
{aw sult,

MR. CROWE: I object, if your Honor please, to an
argument of this gort. I insist that he should conw
fine himeelf t0 &- statement as t0 what he expectis to
prove,

MR, DARROW: Your Honor, it comes with poor gEracse
from counsel after for more than an hour he sought to
stir up feeling in this community, where he had re-
peatedly sought to stir it up that justioce may be
blind in this case.

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 68 1924



MR. CROWE: T insist on & ruling, your Honor.

THE COURTS Well, ocounsel for the state went further
than-he should pavo gone, and 1f oounsel for the
defeﬁdantg had objected of course I would have to
sustdan it. ‘It 1g true tthat thig isn?t tho time
for argument. The argument of counsel for either
glde or both sides will be after all the evidence
ig introduced.

MR. D#RHOWP Surely, your Honor, but --

THE COURT: Ve will let'Hr. Darrow go &head.

MR. DARROW!: I wouldn®t make an argument.

THE COURT: Now, Mr. Darrow, confine it as nearly
ag you oadn to that which you expect to prove.

#r. DArrow: TVery well, your Honor. I am aware
at this time 1% isn?t a proper statement, but I felt
outraged at the whole statement that ﬁas been made
in thie case. That accounts for it., All this
evidenoce that is sought to be introduced in this
case is utterly incompetent; all the statements
made in this case are incompetent. All of this is
added to the statementsalready made publicly, and
have no bearing on this case whatever, with the plea

of guilty in it. No one on the part of the defense
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claimp thet there was not a conspiracy, that there
was not a mudsr, that 1t was not done by these two
boys, that it was not done in a way that they have
alreedy give? to the press for a purpose, rehersed
now, and to %a rehereed later, all of which ls inw-
competent.

¥ shall insist in this case, your Honor
that terrible &s this is, that terrible as any
killing ie, 1t would be without precedent if two
boye of this age should be hanged by the neock
until dead, and it would in no way bdbring back

Robert Franks or add to the peace and security of

iy

this comumunity. I ingist that it would be without-

precedent, aswe learnoed, if on & plea of guilty
this should be done.

B We will attempt to inform the ocourt, and
inform the court in a way that can leave no chance
for reasonable men to doubt, as to the make~up of
both these boye, thejr limited degree of responsi-
bility in this case, and we think all of thise is
borne out by every faot in this case; no one could

imagine that mature people of full reepohsibility

could have done it as it was done in thie case.
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We think the court should not permit for the
ﬁura purpose O0f rehersing again to this comm unity,
to stir wup anger and hatred iln this community
thet may result in many other crimes, detaile whioch
have nothing to do with thle case upon a plea of guilty
and of which the community is already aware. ye eimply
ask your Honor to keep this within the legal prescribed
grounds of a hearing ae this case 18 presented. 0Of
course I might say to your Honor that we hesitate
under our eituaticn in this ocase where we are asking
for the clemency we think we ought to have, and nothing
more, w8 hesitate to be put in the attitude of
objecting. We gat and lietened to this statement,
utterly incompetent and meant only to appeal to the
passion of man.

When thie case ie presented, I know this court
will tsake it, take 1t calmly and honestly, in conw
gelderation of the community and in consideration of
the lives of these two boys, and that any echo that
may come back from thie extravagant and unlawful
statement and from the lurid painting in thie court
room, vhich was made for nothing excepting that a

hoarge cxry of angry people may somehow reach these
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chambers, —~ w8 know your Honor would dieregard that
and do in thi e case® what ia juet, falr and merciful,
and a court must always interpret Jjust i ce and mercy
together.

MR. CROWE: Mr, Bailiff, willl you ocall Jacob Franks.

THE COURT: Mr. Bachrach?

MR. BENJAMIN C. BACRRACH: No, I don®t care to make
an opening statement at this time.

MR. CROWE: While we are waiting Mr. Greshdn ise here.

Take the stand, Mr. Greshan.
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EDWITN M. GRESHAN

& witness called on behalf of the People, h?ving been
firet duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION BY
Mr. Crowe:

@ Will you kindly state your name? A Edwin M.
Greshan.

Q And vhere do you live, Mr. Greshan? A 5130
Greenwood Avenue.

Q Aro you related in any manher to the late Robert
Franks? A I was the boy'!s uncle.

Q And I direct your attention to June, - May 33nd,
1924. Did you ‘Bee the body of Robert Franks that day?
A I did. '

¢ Will yo® tell the court in your Own way unqer what
clrounstances.

A I was asked by Mr, Ettelson to accompany two
reporters, one from the Dally News and one from the
Evening American. I didn®t know where 1 was going until
I had started driving. I hzd my ocar,

Q About what time of the day was thie?

A wWell, I should Judge around half past two in the

afternoon.
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well, all right. whore did you go?

Wo started out south, and when we had gotten a

short distance one of the reporters, who was eitting

in the front seat with me --

Q
A

Q
A
Q
A

Never mind vhat he said. Where did you go?
ie went out to Hegewisch.

And where did you go out there?

To the undertaker'’s in Hegewiach.

And describe or state what you saw?

I went into the undertaking ewtablishment, and a

reporter sald to the undertaker --

MR. DARROW: I objeot,

MR. CROWE: No, no. No conversation. Did you see a

body?

A

. 0
A

Q

Yes sir,

{
whoge body was 1t?
Robert Franks.

Well, now, describe the condition of the body when

you saw 1+%.

A

The body had absolutely no clothing on. It was

laying on 1te back. It had on the glasses. I removed

the glassep to meke sure that ' the.PRd¥ wag the boy!s.

I noticed further « I looked further t0o see that there
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were msrke on the boy?!s teeth. yhen ths boy was 2

child he had ricketts and that had left marks ox pearls

_in the teeth, and I looked at the teeth to make sure

that the pearls were there. They wsere there, It Fas
beyond the question of a doubt in my mind that the
boy was Robert,

Q@ That is, Roberts Franmnks, your nephew, the son of
Jacob -~

A Jacob Franks.

Q ~- Franks?

A Yes.

MR. CROWE: Fross examine.

MR. DARROW: That will be all .

THE COURT: Is that all?

Mﬁ. DARROWS Yes.

THE COURT: That is all.
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JOBOB FRANKS

oalled as & w itnees on behalf of the People, having

been first cduly sworn, testified as followe:

=

> O P> O WO O > O P O b o > O O

Q

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY
Mr. Savage:

Will state your name, pleasef

Jacob Franks,

Your address, Mr, Franke? A 5053 Ellls Avenue.
Chicago?

Chilocago.

Do you know Robert Franks, the deceased in this case
Yes sirx.

What ®elation was Robert Franks to you?

Son.

fon. when did you last see Robert Franks alive?
On the 21st of May, 1934.

About ehat time?

About eight o'clock in the morning.

He was in good health at that time?

Yes sir.

Nothing wrong with his s ight, hearing?ﬁ

HNo gir.

Or his phyeique in any way?
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A No sir,
Q when was the next tiﬁa you saw your son, the
deoeased, Robert Franks? -
The following day.
That Was May 23nd?
33nd.
About what time, MUr. Franks?
About four o%clock in the afternoon.
And under what ciroumstances did you see him?

He was at the morgue.

O > O > O > o >

Desgcribey Mr. Franks, the circumstances under whicl
you saw your boy the nexf day, the 22nd?

A He was dead, lying at the morgue out in -= I don?t
know just the address.

Q And you recognized your son, Robert Franké, on
May 23nd, in the morgue of an undertaking establish-
ment onthe south side, 18 that right?

A Yes sirx,

0 And the boy that you recognized, the deceased in
this case, Robert Franks, your son, was the same boy
that you had seen the prior morning at eight o?cloock,
on May 31lst, alive, is that right?

A Yes sir,
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Q Will you describe, Mr.' Franks, Robert Franks
as t0o slze and age and so forth?

A He wes born on the 19th of September, 18089,

MR. DARROW: I didn't get that.

A 19th of Qeptember, 1909. He was small for hips
age, somewhat slight. I don't know hls messurements.
I hardly think he meagured five feet, and possibly
weighed eighty pounds.

Q@ Eighty pounds?

A Yes.

Q@ Bmall in stature for hie age? A Yes air.

Q And the boy that you saw in the morgus on the
22nd, Mr. Franks, and recognized as your son, was
deaé when you saw him there, is that correct?

A Yes sir.

q On the 3let, ﬁr. Franks, do you remesmber how
your son wee dressed that morning, when you last
saw him, ae to the suit, shoes, stockings and so
forfh?

p I dontt.

MR. DARROW: I objeot on the ground that there is
no dispute about 1¢.

MR, SAVAGE: Mark tho;e People?s Exhibit No, 1 for

identification.
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(whereupon said articles were e0 marked.)

MR, SAVAGE: Q I will ask you to look at Peoplets
Exhibit No. 1, parked for identification and stata
if you know whether or not those are the shoes of
your deceased son, Robert Franke? s marlone Ltlyu,

A Yes pir. Eziﬂgztjif *6‘5U*""9f

qQ And they were purshased where?

A At Fieldt's. ~

Q Marshall Field's. I will a8k you to look at
People®s Exhibit No. 2, marked for identifiocation,
purporting to be a stocking, boy?s stocking?

A Yes sicr,

Q And ask yo@l whether or not on the morning you
lagt Baw Robert Franks allve, whether he was wearing
a stooking answering the desoription of the one you
now hold?

A I didn't notlioe him dressed that morning. I
can?t answer that, but I know those are the kind of
stockings he wore. He hadqothers that matched it::

Q I will ask you to look at & clash buckle, marked
Peoplets Exhibit No. 3 for identification, and
state whether or not that resembles the buckle woxrn

S
by your son, Robert Franks? /f.mvg'ééfwg
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A Yeg he had two or three belts. They were all
alike with the exception of the colore of the ribbons.
Q I will ask ou to look at People 's Exhibit No.
3-B, marked for identification, and state whether or
not the belt buckle resembles the belt buckle worn
by your son, Robert Franks, deceased, in this case?

A Yes sir.

o I will aek you to look at Peoplets Exhibit 3-C,
a belt, and state whose that is, 1f you know?

A My boy's. The buckle was attached to thies
ribbon,

. g Your boyl!s?

A Yes sir.

Q I will ask you to look at Péoplefas’Exhibit 3-D
for identification, and state what that is, 1f you know
and to whom it belonged?

A Yes, this & 1is a class pin that I bought for him,
for my boy, a claes pin for the Harvard school. -

Q You Bought that and presented it to your son,
Robert?

A Yes sir.

Q And you recognize that as the pin --

THE COURT: He says it is.
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MR, SAVAGE®? Q Mr. Franks, when was the first time
that you missed your son, Robert?

A About eix otclock in the evening of May 3lst.

Q Just ge on in your own way, Mr. Franks, and tell
what happened after you had mlissed your son at six
otclock May 2lat, 19247

MR, DARROW: I objeot.

MR, SAVAGE: ¢ wWhat did you do, if anything?‘

MR. DARROW: Yes. I object.

THE COURTS Sustained.

MR. SAVAGE: Leaving out the conversations, Mr. Frank,
juat tell what you did after your son was ﬁissing, if
anything.

¥R. DARROW: Aes to that I objeoct.

THE COURT: Oh, yes, it makes no difference what he d4iag.

MR, SAVAGE: Q Did you receive a te lephone conver-

]
oF
e

sation after you had missed youtr son that evening, '?la
Franks? .
MR. DARROW: Exocuse me, just a minute.
MR, SAVAGE: Q Did you receive a telephone conver-
pation after you had missed your son that evening?
A No.

Q Perfaining to your son?

| ] \
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Q Dpid you receive a letter the following morning?
A Yeg sir,
Q I will ask you to look at People's Exhibit No.
4, 4-A and 4-B and state whether or not that resembles
the letter, or whether or not that is the letter you
received at your home on the morning of the 33nd of
May?
A Yes slr, that is the letter.
Q Is that the envelope, Mr. Franks?
A Yes sir.
MR, SAVAGE: For the purpose o{ the record, your Honor,
I desire to read the envelope and letter into the record.
Envelope poetmarked Chicago, Mat 23lst, 1 A.M.,
1934, Illinois. Beaxi ng s8ix two cent postage stanmps,
addressed in print vMr. Jacob Frankas, 5043 Ellis Avenus,
City. " wfpecial." And underneath "ppecial® s
line drawn or underscored. Stamp mark, "Fee claimed
at Chioago, Illinois.s Faltwq lo Ol e
Letter: g“""‘f%‘d
"Pear Sir:
As you no doubt know by this time your son has
been kidnaped. Allo w us t0 assure you that he is

at present well and safe. You need not fear no physical "
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any physiocal harm for him providing you live up
carefully to the following instructions and such
others ag you will receive by future communicetions,

Should you, however, disobey any of our instruotions,

.even slightly, his death will be the penaliy.

l, TFor obvious reasons make absolutely no attenmpt
to communicate with either the police authorities
nor any private agenoy. Should you already have conw
municated with the police, allow them to contlnue
thelr inveatigations, but do not mention this letter.

3. Seocure before noon today $10,000. This money
must be'composod entirely of old bills of the follow-
ing denominations: $3,000 in $30 bills, §8,000 in
$50 bills., The money must be old. Any attempt to
include new or marked bills will render the entire
venture futile. The money should be placed in a
large cigar box or a if suoh is impossible, in a
heavy cardboard box securely closed and wrapped in
white paper. The wrapping paper should be sealed
and all openings with sealing wax.

4, Have the money thus prepared as direoted above

and remain home after one o?*clock P. M. BSee that

the telephone is not in use. You will receive a
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future communication instructing you as to your
future course. As & final word of warning, this
is 2 ntriotly commercial proposition, and we are
prepared to put our threats into exscution should
we have reagonable ground to bslieve that you have
committed an infraotion of the above inastructions.
However, should you carefully follow out our
instructions to the letter, we can assure you that
your son will be safely returned to you within six
hours of our receipt of the money.
Yours truly,
George Johnson.®

Initials "G R R .»

THE COURT: Is that offered?

MR. SAVAGE: Yes, your Honor,

THE COURT: How long do you expect to have Mr, Fradks
on the stand?

MR, CROWE: He might come back at 3 ofclock,

THE COURT: All right.

MR, CROWE: We would like to ask him one more
question,

MR. SAVAGE: Q M¥r.”Franks, just going back. The

first time you told about seeing your boy, that is
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on May 3lst, alive that was about eight o*élock in
the morning on May 2lst?

A Yes sir.

Q That was in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

Yes sir. | |

Q And that was the last tlme you saw him alive?

A The last time I saw him alive.

Q yow, the next time when you saw him dead on May
33nd, in the morgue of this undertaking establishuent,
that wag in the afternoon?

A May 23nd.

THE COURT: He said »,: May 23nd, about 4 P. M.

MR, SAVAGE: That was in Chlicagp Cook County, Illinois?

A Yes sir.

THE COURT: we will suspend now, folks, until 3
O%clock sharp. Go out as quietly as possibly now,

and dontt ocrowd. Twdo otclock. )

(Whereupon a recess was taken until

3 o'clook P. M. of the same day. )
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July 33, 1934,
2:00 o'clock P.M,

Court convened at 2:00 o'oclock P.M, same
day, July 33rd, 1924, pursuant to recess heretofore

taken.

MR, CROWE: While waiting for Mr, Franks, if your
Honor please, with your permission I will put Dr. Ben-
gon on, and if he is not here I will put on Dr, Springer.

THE COURT: Is there any objection on the part of
the defense?

MR, DARROW: No objection,

THE COURT: Dr. Benson,

MR, CROWE: See if Dr. Benson is there, and if not,
call Dr. Springer.

THE COURT: Here is Dr. Springer.

MR, CROWE: Dr. Springer, take the stand.

MR, SAVAGE: Your Honor, at this time, may the
record show that the witness, Jacob Franks, is with-
drawn for the time being,

THE COURT: Very well.
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JOSEPH SPRINGE R,\
a witness called on behalf of the prosecution, was
first duly sWorn and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMIN ATION
BY MR, SBARBARO,

Q Just state your name? A Joseph Springer.

Q@  What 1s your occupation, please?

A Physlcian and Surgeon, -

Q How long have you been a physician and surgeon?

A Since 1895,

MR, SBARBARO: Youu wili admit his Qualificatione,
will you?

MR. DARRO@: Oh, yes,

MR, SBARBARO:! Q What is your official capacity?

AI anm Coroner'g physician, Deputy, of Cook County,

Q Now, directing your attention to the 22nd day of
May, 1923, were you 8o employed?

A Yes sgir,

Q Did you perform & post-mortem examination or aﬁtoﬁgy
on the body of one Robert Franks?

A Yes sir.

Q Where did that occur? A At Hegewisch,

133rd and Houston Avenue.
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Q Who elss was present or assisted you?

A Dr. Benson,

Q Who identified the body of Robert Franks?

A The body was identifled to me by the Undertaker,
who stated there was & relative called in the afternoon
and he identified the body as that of Robert Franks.
The Undertaker's name is Stanley Olejniczak.

Q Whe was the relative, Greshan?

A Mr. Greshan.

Q What was your finding, Doctor?

A On inspection I found a boy, fairly well nourished,
about five feet tall, welghing one hundred pounds,
estimated. On inspection I found the face, involving
the forehead and cheek and nose and the mouth, the '
inner side of the lips and the mucous membrane of
the mouth showed evidence that some irritant had been
placed on the facs, I found two inches above, on
the right side of the head in the reglon of the hair,

a small, sharp wound, the uppsr surface was flatteped;
on the left side in the same reglon I found another

wound about ahalf an inch running longitudinally,

the first wound wae three-Quarters of an inch in length.
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I found on the left side in the back of the head a
bruise and a ewelling, and on the right side in the
back of the head I found another bruise and a swell-
ing, The swelling and bruiss were cauged by exter-
nal violence, On opening the scalp I found there

was a large amount of blood in the tlssues undsrneath.
On opening the forehead part of the scalp I found that
the cuts were of a sharp edge and were down to the
periosteum, or the bone,

Q What caused the two cuts in the forehead?

A Some blunt instrument?

Q And what, if you know, caused the two in the back
of the head? A A blunt instrument,

Q VWhat else did you find, doctor?

A T found on the shoulders small scratches like,
extending down the right shoulder, down the back and
as far down as the buttocks. I found = few super-
ficlal scratches on the forehead.

Q Will you describe the face, Doctor?

A The face Was of a darkish hue, copper colored,
whicb had extended all the way down along the face, as

I described a minute ago, down into the mouth,
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and~£he tongué ﬁ;s -

Q What did you find the cause of théx to be?

A That was done by the acid, which I later learned
wa8 diluted hydrochloric acid.,

Q Did you examine the contente ofthe stomach?

A Yes sir., On opening the body I found a dark
discoloration extending down the windpipe, down into
the right luné'and ag far down as the diaphram,

Q What would cause that, Doctor?

A The absopption of fumes and suffocation. I found
small hemorrhagic petite or espots of a minute character
in the lung; the heart was negative; the etomach
was dlluted; it contained some undigested particles
of food and liquig; the kidneys were congested,
the liver wae congested; the other organs showed
no groes pathology outside of the chain of congestion,
The mouth was sWollen, the tongue part, and the pauces
around it was ewollen and congested. I removed the

, organs for analysis, The analysis of the lungs

showed these small hemorrhaghc conditions, and the

bronchi was congested and inflamed; the other organs

showed that there had been some obstruction in the
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circulation,

Q In your opinion, Doctor, and from your examination
of the undigested food, how long wouid you say that
that food was in the stomach? )

. A Well, T would say —

Q How long would you say it was since the --
A 1 should say four to five hours,
Q How loag would you say it was since the déceéééd
had last eaten?
A I should say the boy had his dinner and about five
hours after the digestion was taking —-
Q Do you mean lunch, Doctor, or dinner?
A Lunch, yes,
Q Vhat else did you find about the body?
A In regard to what?
Q Vell anything. There was a line of demarkation
surrounding the mouth, waen't there, showing that
’the color of the skin surrounding the mouth was dif-
ferent than the color of the skin otherwise?
A The color of the skin was as I described it,
running along the mouth down as far as the left elbow,

and on the left side coming up again to within about
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an inch of the forshead, back of that was white,
this had a copper color consistency.

Q@ What else did you find about the bo?y that was
unusual?

A 1 examined the hands and there was no puckering up
to show that there was any evidence of drowning,
The soles of the feet showed nothing which usually
we find in cases of drownilng. The lungs showed me\
evidence of suffocation,

Q  From your examination, Doctor, have you any
opinion as to what was the cause of death?

A Yes sir, he came'to hie death from an inju?}’toythe

head, assoclated with suffocation,

MR, SAVAGE: You may cross examine,

CROSS EXAMIN ATTON
BY MR, BACHRACH.
. Q Doctor Springer, did you mage a written repprt
of your autopey to the Coronex?
. A Yes sir. |
Q You signed it? A Yes sir.
MR, BACHRACH: Have you that report here, gentlemen?

- MR, CROWE: Have you got a copy of it, Doctor?
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A Yés gir,

MR, BACHRACH: May Isee %7

A (Witness producing papsr and handing same to
Mr. Bachrach).

Q@ The papsrs that you have produced from your pocget
are entitled "Doctors blank," two sheets, They are
correct copies of the report you made to the Coroner?

A vyes sir,

MR, BACHRACH: I don't suppose it is propesr for me
at this time to ofrer them in evidence, but I would
like them to go in evidence.

MR, CROWE: You may do so. We will offer them,

MR. BACHRACH: All right Will you offer thenm?

MR. CROVE: Yee,

MR, BACHRACH: All right. I content to that.

MR, CROWE: The State will offer these,

MR, BACHRACH: I am willing that they may Ve considefqd
read, Mr. Crove. |

MR, CROWE: Well, we might let the Doctor read it 1
right into the record. Go chead and read the report'

into the record, Doctor.

THE COURT: By consent, the reporf may be read at
this time.
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THE WITNESS: "On the 32nd day of May I made a posb
mortem of the body of Robert Franks at 13300 Houston
Avenue, the body being identified by Edwin M, Greshen.

"Upon general inspection the body measured
five feet in length and 100 pounds in weight. There was
evidence of exposure to sand and water and the vody was
nude.

"Upon examination I found two cuts on the :
forehead ingide the hairy margin two inches above the’
left and right eyebrow. The left cut was one-half inch
in length and the right three-quarter inch both with dull
edges and ante-mortem."

("Ante-mortem" means before death.)

"There were numerous soratches on the left
side of the forehead, all of which were ante-mortem. The
Tace presented a peculiar appearance, with a marked out-
line around the nose and mouth and part of the chin, the
color of the skin in this area being pale. The rest of
the face presented a flushed and streaked appearance’éuch
as would result from acid fumes.

"There were a number of socratches on the

back, over the left shoulder and over the right buttock,
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all of which wére ante mortem.

"There was one superficiai sharpedge cut over
the spine one inch left of the median line and just above
the buttock. This was post mortem. I found no cutis
anserina of the hands, and only the scrotum showed evi-
dence of having been submerged in the water.

"The genitals were intact, but the rectum was
dilated and would admit easily one middle finger. There
wes no evidence of a recent forcible dilation.

"On the upper left side of the tibia were two
small abrasions five inches below the knee.

| "Upon opening the head I found the two previous—
ly described cute on the forehead having penetrated the
skin, muscles and pericesteum,

"In the occipito-parietal region both right
and left were hematomas underneath the scalﬁ, which were
tpe result of heavy blowe by some bluﬁt instrﬁmenﬁ béﬁorqﬁ%
death.

| "Upon opening the skull I found no evidence
of fracture. The brain was hyperemic and large.

"Upon opening the body I found the viscera

vpresenting s peculiar 51;22 color appearance throughout.
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The lungs and pleura were of the eame color except
for a number pf hemorrhagic spots in the lungs.
"The liver was discolored and congested,
"Ia my opinion death was due to Injury and

suffocation.®

REDIRECT EXAMINATIOQ
BY MR, SAVAGE,

Q In your opinion, Doctor, how long had the dece;séd
been dead?

A I figured death had ocourred, at the time of
my examining the body, it muet have occurred about
from two to five hours prior. There was.no rigor-
mortis set in,

MR, SAVAGE: Thét is all.

MR, BACHRACH: No further oross examination,

J'(W%tpess exoused)
. M . i EAREETA L
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AXEL F, BENSON,

a witness called on behalf of the prosecution, wae

first duly sworn, and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. SBARBARO,

fR, BACHRACH: If this witness 18 going to testify
to anything different from the other witness I cannot
object, but if he is going to tectify to the aame
matter, it sesms to me that it is jJust a repetition,
and there will be no contest of it.

THE dBURT: Is 1t a repetition of what Dr. Springer
testifled to? If so, there is no necessity of S
proving the same thing by two witnesses, as long as
there is no contest.

MR, CROVE: We are nov going to take up very
much time with this witness, There are just one or
two Questions that we want to ask him, h

THE COURT: A1l Qightl Go apea&. What ie your
name, doctor? | | ' | |

A Axel F, ﬁenson.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

" MR, SBARBARO: Q Where do you live? )
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Q 1537 North Mayfield.

Q What is your occupation, Doctor?

A Coroner's Physician.

Q How long have you been employed 1in that capesclity?

A Four months.

Q Did you post the body of Robert Franks?

AT did.

Q Who identified the body of Robert Franksé

A Edward M, Greshan.

Q Is that the Uncle?

THE COURT: There is no need of going into that.
Ve have got that proved by one witness and it is only
a repstition and it is burdening the record, and
there is nothing that you can --

MR, CROWE: If yow Honor please, the cother
witnees did not testify that the uncle had identified

the body, but that the Undertaker told him that

[

‘the uncle had, and that ® is why we want this Doctor

to testify on the subject,
THE COURT: All right, but there is no dispute.

MR, CROWE: That ie the only reason we call hinm,

to show that the body had been identified by the uncle,
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THE COURT: Ail right, go ahead, Doctor. By
whom was the bodly identifisd in your presence?

A By Edwin M, Greshan.

MR. CROWE: The uncle?

A The uncle of the boy.

MR, CROWE: That is all.

(Witness exoused)
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MR, CROWE: Now Jacob Franks.

JACOB FRANKS,
resumed the stand as a witnesg on behalf of the prose-

cution and being further examined by Mr, Savage testi-~

fied ae follows:

Q State your name please?

A Jacob Franks,

Q Youare the same Japob Franks that testified here
Just before adjournment?

A Yes sir,

Q Now after you received this letter, referring to
People's exhibit number 4 for identification, Mr,
Franks, on the morning of May 22nd, 1924, what did
you do, if anything after that?

A1 got home from downtown about half past tenand

 1 remained howe until I got a call about three twenty,
& telephone call.

Q@ Then what did you do? A The call was
for ms to jump into a taxl that they had sent for |
me and to éome out to an address on 63rd Street,

‘) Q You received that call?
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A T 4id.
Q Did you follow the instruction of the telephone
’conversation about getting into the cab?
A No, by that time I knew my boy was dead.
Q Did the cab arrive at your home?

A ves sir.

Q Now you say you went dovntown?

A Yes, |

Q What was the purpose of your vieslt downtown after
you received this letter, Mr, Franks?

A To procure the ten thousand dollars.

Q Did you procure the tenthousand dolars?

MR. DARROW: Just a minute. That is objectéd‘téfl
That is not the subjoct matter in this case.

MR, CROWE: I think it is competent to show, your
Honor, what he did after receiving -—-

THE CCURT: What difference does it make what he
did? That would be competent in the ransgm case,
in the other indictment, but in this case I don't

think 1% makes any difference.

MR, CROWE: The motive in the murder case was to
get ten thousand dollars, It is important to show,

firet, why they took a boy who had a father capable
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of getting immediately ten thousand dollars, and
there 1s no better proof to show that fact than that
this man at once got the ten thousand dollars.

THE COURT: There wont be any dlspute about it.

MR, CROWE: I know, but suppose when we argue the
motive in this case lster on, In fixing the penalty --
MR, DARROW:  Well, I will withdrawm the objection.

MR, CROWE: -- and the argument 1s made that the boys
picked ocut a man who did not have ten thousand dollars,
and there is nothing in the record to show your Honor
that the man had ten thousand dollars?

THE COURT:  Vell, counsel withdraws his objection.

"He says to go ahead. You did procure the ten thou~
sand dollars?

A Yes sir,

‘MR, SAVAGE: Ié the denominations as mentioned in
fhe letter, Mr. Franks? |

A Exactly, yes sir.,

Q And did you prepare that ten thousand dollars as
you were instructed to do —--

MR, DARROW: I object.

MR, SAVAGE: — by the letter?
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MR, DARROW: Just a minute, I obiegt. I think
they have gone far enough.

THE COURT- Oh well, he says he had it in the
denominations as reduired by the letter,

MR, SAVAGE: Q@ VWhat did you do with the ten thou-
gand dollars?

AT wrapped it up a8 per the instructions that I

recelived.

-

Q And that was when you were awaiting the telephone
communication which you received later?

A Yes sir, |

MR. SAVAGE: That is all. You may cross examine.

 MR. DARROW: No cross examination. |

(Witness excused)
S
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MRS. FLORA FRANKS,
a witneeg called on behalf of the prosecutlon being
first duly sworn, was exanined and testified as followe:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROBE,

Q Will you kindly state your name?

A Mrs .Flora Franks,

Q You are the wife of Mr. Jacob Franks?

A Yes sir.

Q Where do you live, Mrs. Franks? A 5053
Ellis Avenue.

Q Ellie Avenue, Chicago?

A Yes, |

Q Did you have a s&n named Robert Franks?

A Yee,

Q How old was he?

A Fourteen.

Q When is the last time yéu'sﬁw'h¥mlalive?

A  Vednesday noon.

Q What date? " A May 33nd.

Q May 28nd, or 21lst? A 21st%,

Q May 31st, 19247

A Yes.
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Q And where did you see him at that time?

A A%t homs. |

Q At 5052 E1l1is Avenue?

A Yes,

Q Did he have lﬁnph at that time?

AIYes.

’Q Dig hg return ali%e to your pouse after that?

A Yo, |

Q What did Robert Franks do, that is, did he
go to echool?

A Yes,

Q What school was hg‘éﬁﬁendypg?

A Harvard School, -

Q Harvard School?

A Yes,

Q Where is the Harvard School located, do you know?

A Between 47th and 46th on Ellis,

Q In Chicago; Illinoie?

A Yes,

Q And your home is in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois?

A vyes,
Q Now, your son did not return after he left at

noon that day?
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A No.

Q Te your houe ?

A No.

Q Wheén did you next see him, or ses his body?

A Saturday night —- Friday night -— Saturday ni eht .
Q@ The Friday following? On Vedneeday evening
May 21, 1924, 4id anybody teléphone you at your home?

Aﬁjes.

Q Did you receive a telephone call?

A I received a telephone call Wednesd;y evening.

Q  About what time was 1%7?

A Well I think it was ten thirty, I am not positive
sbout the tims,

Q About ten thirty in the evening?

A Yes,

Q Now will you state to the Court what was said to
you and what you said over the phongat that tims?

A %ell, the phone rang and I went to the phone and
they aeked for Mr. Franks end I said Mr. Franks waé
not home, but I was Mrs. Frankes, and I asked them
what they wanted, and they €aid, "your son has been
kidnapped, he 1s all right, further newsin the

worning", and I said, "who 18 it"? And they said,
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"Jobnson". I wanted to ask something elee but they
rang off,
Q Now will you describe the kind of a veice., Was
it a volce that you were familiar with?
A Yo, |
Q Was it a masculine or feminine voioé?
A Masculine.
Q Was thesre any other thing about the voice that
you notad at the time?
A Well it sounded like —- itwas not a gruff voice,
Q Well how would you describe it?
A 1t was more of a cultured voice than a xamgk gruff
voice, o
MR, DARROW: ‘I didn't herar that.
MR, CROWE: It was more of a cultured voice than a
gruff voice.
Q You had no further telephone calls?

A No,

'Q You are familiar with your sén's clothing?

)

i
A Yeg, . !
.

* ‘ . '
Q I will show you a pair of 1low ehosg here and ask

you who they belonged to?

A To him,
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Q To Robert Franks, your son?

A Yee,

Q And a stocking?

A Yee,

Q I= that his stocking, Mrs. Franks?

A Yes,

Q Do you know whether or not he had a clasp pin or
- school pin?

A Yes sir.

QI will ask you to look at that and state whether
or not you hzve eeen that before?

A Yes, . { ,

Q That is your son's ciégp’piﬁ, ié\ﬁk?

A Yes,

Q Did your son have a belt on that day?

A ves,
- @ I will ask you to look at these two pieées of
a belt and state whether or not they were hig?

A Yes, : .

:Q You must'talﬁ and not nod your head so the
reporters can ge¥ it. I will show you a belt buckles
and agk you whether tha£ was his belt buckle? |

A Yes, this was his, There is ‘something on this
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here, tﬂough, that ween't his, something that is
written here. ;

Q@ Well, thoee are msrks that we have made for
the purpose of identifying them,

AT see, .

Q@ That is a part of the belt buckle of your g£on,
Robert's, belt?

A Yes,

MR, CROWE: Now if the Court ﬁlease, end oounéel
on the other side, we have a number of exhibits
here that are hard to mark, and I would suggsst
that when we get all through, and it will be nsceseary
with a great many of theun, tocgggegﬁem up, to show
where they were found and so on, when we get all
through I will then offer each one in evidence, and
if there is any objgotion it caﬁ be made at that
time? K A

MR, DARROW: ‘It will be easy to mérﬁ‘thém; your
_Honor. ' | ' ‘
THE COURT: All right., . : ’
MR, CROWE: So Ilwont offer them at this time,
THE COURT: Very well. -

MR, CROWE: With the consgent of councel on the other
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side and the Court, when we are through I will offer
all the exhibits,

THE COURT: Vsry well,

MR, CROWE: You will crosg examine,

&R. DARROW: There is nothing, Mrs.‘Franks.

THE COURT: That is all.

(Witnese excused)
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J. B. CRAVENS,
a witnesg called on behalf of the prosecution wes flrst
duly sworn and testified ae follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,
Q@ Your name is what, eir?
A J, B, Cravens,
Q Where do you live, Mr. Cravens? A 4433 Lake
Park .
THE COURT: Is 1t"C-r—a~v" or "b"?
A C-r-g~v-e-n-8.
MR, CROWE: Q What is your occupation?
A Hotel business.
Q Vhat? A Hotel bueiness,
Q Connected With‘what hotel?
A The Morrison Hotel.
Q For how long a time have. you been connected with
the Morrison Hotel?
A %ell off and on for thelast ten years.
@ What are your particular duties over there?

A Room clerk.

Q What syetem have you over there, when a person wants
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to rent a room over there how do they reglster?

A They reglster on cards.
Q And that was the system you had in vogue on May
7th, 19347

A Yes sir,

Q I will show you a card number 74334 and dated May
7th, 1924 and I will ask you whatthat is if you know?

A That is a reglstry card that we use at the
Morrison Hotel,

Q And that indicates whet person regletered at that
hotel?

A Morton D, Ballard.

Q@ Of vhat city?

A Peoria, Illinois,

Q. And any street addrese?

A 302 Elm Street,

Q What room, if any, was that person aséigned‘ﬁo?

A Room 1031. o

Q Have you any'method of telling when they arri?ed and
when they checked out?

A Yes sir,

.Q What method have you?
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A The date of the arrival is alwayse stampéd on
the card. |

Q Have you any other slip showing the arrival?

A Yes sir, the bellboy's slip, the slip that we
give the boy when he rooms the party, it iesmade out
by the clerk.

Q This second slip marked "Arrival®, is thet. the
8lip?

A Yes sir.

Q It shows the arrival of Mr. Ballerd, Room 1031?

4 Assigned to room 1031.

Q Doee 1t show that he had any baggage?

A One sultcarse.

Q What i& that?

A That is a telephone oall, that ie the slip that is
made out by the operator in the telephone room where

- the man calls from his room.

Q This third plece of paper, “ﬁoog No.10Q31, L éOQé,
5 cents," would indicate tha£ the occupant of tﬁ;t |
room telephoned, would it? |

A Yes sir, called thatnumber. ~ The exchange would
begin with "L", i1f any one of the &xchanges begin

with "L".
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Q "L 8096" indicates that they telephoned such
& number?

A Yes sir.

Q what is that? A That is the envelppe
which the baggage was checked. That was put in after
they checked him out, when itwas not occupied.

Q@ Well now what happened to the sultfase that was
brought up there, do you know?

A The room not being occupled, we made an inspec-
tion of the room and found insufficient baggage to
carry the account any further, so we checked him out

“ ag "skipped",

Q@ Did you see the grip that was up there?

A Yes sir, |

MR. CROWE: Let me have that grip, will you?.

Q i Will show you a suitcase ang as% you if you

v ever saw that before?

v L]

A Yes sir,

Q Ie that the suitfase that the person purportiné,
to be Morton D, Ballard left at your hotel on the

7th of May?

A yes sir,
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Q Now vwhat was in that suitcace?
A Four books, I bellsve 1t was four.
Q And what kind of books were they?
471 didn't sxamine the bookse personally, but there were
four booke.
Q Well, I will ask you to look st those four and state
whether or not they resemble the books?
A y=e egir, they do.
MR, CROWE: You mzy take that Euitoaser
Q What is that card entitled, "Hotel Morrison, Chicago,
No.3213, suitcase, date Mayle, 19234"?

A That is the check from the checkroom when the grip

wee brought out of room 1031 and checked as "ekip baggage'.

We put that in this 1ittle envelop and pin it to the ekip
account.

Q The envelop you refer to ig "Morton D. Ballard, room
1031"7?
‘A Yes,

‘ A L '

Q. Whatis that, "C.O;Du{" : , "

A C.0.D.

Q@ So whza thers was pot'an&body in the room you took

the grip down and checked it in the check room?

A vyes sir.

Q What is this? A That ig amther telephone gli
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O 'hat ie ancthsr telsphone elip, "Room 1031, State 3800"*?

A gee eir.

0 Indicating that there wers two telephone cal'e from
that rocm?

A vee 81,

Q What i& thie?

A That is the bzllboy's shset showing the bellbey that
roomeg the party. You see they registsr on that card
and we give the bellboy the arrival slip, and the bell
captain puts the nuwber on the sheet, when the boy left and
wken he returnsd.

Q@ This sheet of paper ﬁﬁre hezded "May 7th, 1824, afternoon",
that ic the elip you say the bellboy keepe 1o indicgtg -~

A The bell captain, o

Q@ -- the bell captaln kespe to in&icate at\wbaﬁ tine
the person gete =z room?

A VWhat boy roome him and what time the boy returns,

Q And whet doee it ehow in refsrence to room 1051

on May 7th?

' i 5, . ) '
A "Bellboy -number 12 at 4325 and returnsd tc the floor

' 1
N
' [

at 4:30."
Q@ Bellboy Number 12 brought him:'to the room at what
time?

A 4:85 in the aftermnoon and returned to his post

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 117 1924



-118

8t 4:30. |

Q And this pilece of paper I show you hzre is what?

A Th%t is what we call our record hour referencs book.
All those cards are copied alphabetically, the time that
they arrive and the time when they check cub.

Q This paper is headed "June 7, 18924, 1031, Ballard, Moxton™?

A Thie is arranged alphabstically, a reference for our
own use ycu might say. Room 1031 is written alphabetically,
and the time of the departure is stamped here with this
etamp.,

Q@ What is that?

A 'That is just simply a copy of the record that is made

in the auditor's office. ,

Q@ The papsr I now show you hesaded "Nane's Bailard, ﬁorton,“
ls merely a copy of the record?

A yes eir,

Q Is made for the convenience of yow auditor?

A Yes eir,: . ' ’» : ' o ‘

Q The last peper I showed you headed "Morrison Hotei,:The'

| Ho%el of Perfect Service, Room 1031," that is the bill

that was prepared?

A Account sheet, that is the guest's acocount shest

made 1n durlicate.
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@ Showing how much due?
A $80806

Q And that haes never besen paid?

MR, CROWE: If ths Court please, and counszl for the
defense, instead of r:zading these into the record now, znd
offering ghem, I will adhere to the original suggestion,
that at the conclugion of our case we will offer all
the exhiblits and read them at that time,

MR, BACHRACH: That is esatisfactory to the defensae,

THE COURT: It may be so0 understood.

WR. CROVWE: Q@ I have showsd you a rattan suitcase,

e e e o o v S - L
You recognize that as the suitfase that the marn who got
Roowm 1031 had when he came in at that time?

A vee sir,

MR. CROWE: The record may show &t this time that the
four booke referred to are:

"Bancroft's History of the United States,
, The Economlc History of Roae,
Journal of Constitutional Convention, and
N Ths Influence of Wealth in Impsrial Rome, "
MR, CROWE: Youmay crosg8s examine.

MR. BACHRACH: No cross examination.

(Witnese sxcused)
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THOMAS TAYLOR,
a witnese callsd oa bshalf of the prosecution being first
duly sWern, tecstified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, CROWE,
Q What is your names please?

A Thomae Taylor,
O Where do you live, Mr, Taylor? A 3839 North
+ Robey.
: Q What is your occupation?
A House dstective,
Q House detective at what hotel?
A Morrison Hotel,
Q And how long have you been house detiobive there?
A Since Fsbruary 13th.
Q Andduring the month of May of this year were you house
detective there?
|‘A Yes sir,
@ Was th:re anything about room 1031 on the 7th of Mey
, or any subsequent date, that partigularly att?acted your |
attentiosn that you had enything to do with officially
a8 house d&tacfive? |

A About May 9th. I had occasion to go to rcom 1031,
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A On the night previcus to that the party whe occupied
that room skipped out,.

Q And when you went up there whet did you find?

A I found a sultcase,

Q I will show you or call your attention to a sultcase
I have here, a rattan suiﬁoaee, and agk you whether you
ever saw that before?

A yes sir, I have,

Q Where did you see 1t?

AT seen it in room 1031 of the Morrieon Hotel on May
oth,

Q What if anything wes in it at that time?

A At that time on inspection of the sultcase I found
‘four books, |

Q I w11l show you one,"Bancroft's History of the United
Svates" and I will ask you to look at thst and etate whe-
ther that wae one of the books or not?

A That is one of the bqoks, yee sir,

Q Ana I show }ou a “Journél of Constitutional Convention®
vfy Madison, and I will ask you whether that ie another
one of them?

A yes gir,

Q "The Ecunomic History of Rome", by Frank, and I

Wwill agk you if that is another one of them?
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A Yes eir,
Q And "The/Influence of Wealth in Imperial Rome", is
thzat another one of them?

A Yecs eir, thege are the four books which I found in

s
the suitcase on May S9th,

Q@ Did you examine any of the books to s<e whether there
were any cards in them?

A Yee esir, I did.

‘Q I will ask you to look 2t the "Journal of the Constitu-
tional Convention", oy Madison, on the back pagz. There
is a 1little envelop there, or a card, ie therenot?

A Yes gir,

Q And in that envelop, what card, if eny, wae in it
when you looked at it and examined it?

A well this card here¢it would be . This one here I
didn't open.

Q@ Md the card that you refer to is ‘e g2t my other
glasces, will you? That is one of the disadvantages of
getting old. The card marked "J K 141, Reserve Book,
Seesion No. 249309, Author Madison, Title "journal' then
printed, ' I promice to return this book to the attendant
before leaving the room', and the nam= is 'C,C, Phipps!,
scratched out in pencil, and "Ruesell" scratched out in
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A Yeg Bir,

Q@  And thut wz2s in this book 2t the time?

A A%t the tine that I examined it.

Q@ At the time that vou examined the book on the 18th
of May, 1924°%

A vyss sir,

MR, CROWE: That is al1l, =ir, Crose &xamine.

MR, BACHRACH: ©No croes examination.

(Witnees excueed)

MR, CROWE: Who is the next one -- oh, just a minute.

Q What did you do with the suitouse and the booke,
Mr. Taylor? ‘

A I checked them in the check room.

Q And aftervarde -- ‘ A hnd sttached the check
to the account, |

0 And afterwards what happened?

A Why, they werelaying there for a number of days and
later on two detectives came from the, Scate's Attorney's

ll

! office. ’ : ’

Q From the State's Attorﬁey's'éffice and you turnsd
tq§m ovér to us?

\A Yes sir.

MR. CROWE: That ie a1l

(Viitnees excused)
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CHARLES  ® AR D,
a witness called on behalf of the prosecution was first
duly sWorn and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,
Q@ What is ycur name please?
A Charles E, Ward,
Q Where do you live, Mr. Ward? A 2014 East
93rd Street, ‘
Q What is your occupation? A Cashier of the Hyde
Park State Bank,
Q For how long a time have you been cashier of that
bank?
A Since March 27th of this ysar.
Q Wers you employed by the Hyde Park State Egﬁk on'the .,
7th of lMay, 19347
A I was,
Q I will ask you whether or not a person giving the
name of:Mbrton D, Ballard opened an account at your
'Bank on that date?
-A He didg,
Q I will show you a card here whibh reads: "Name. Address.
Peoria, Illincis., Morton D, Ballard, 302 Elm Street,

Peoria, Illinois", among other things, and ask you what
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that card is?

A That is thelsignatura cgfd for our files uséd‘in com—
paring signaturés with.

Q Well now, Will you tell the court under what circumstances
this account was opened, what was said and done by you
and the person purporting to bs Morton D, Ballard?

A The party representing himself as Morton D, Ballard
came to the dssk and stated that he wanted to open a
checking account, and I &gked him where he llved, he said
he lived at the Morrison. I/gaid, "Do youknow anybody
in Hyde Park", andhe said, "no, I don't know anybody
in Hyde Park",.

THE COURT: Will you please stop chewing ggm?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, -

MR, CROWE: Q@ Proceed.

A I sald, "Well, have you any other address?" Hé said,
"Yes, Peoria, Illinois.™ He put down the addreés, ]
the Peoria addrees on the card and gave —-

. o
MR. CROWE: Q Well, directing your attention to this

" card, what if anything on that card wes written by this
" person, Morton D, B&ilard, read all that was written?
A The name on the top line,

0 Well, read it?

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Crimihal Cowrt. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 125 1924

h

[
!



~126-
A "Morton D, Ballard, 302 Elm Street, Peoria; I11inoie,"
On the line where it saye "Sign", -- "Morton D, Ballard",
Q Underneath the Peoria address, what other addrese
is givent
A "Morrison".
Q And what elee?
A Angd "Be careful against uncollected funds."
Q Who wrote that?
A Our bookkesper,
Q That is in the hendwritingof your bookkeeper? |
A Yeq,
Q Now do you know how he came to write that, at whose

suggeetion?

S,

A The bookkeeper wrote that at my suggestidn.]

Q Go ahead and tell what conversation, if any, you had
with this person who purported to be Ballard, any furfhér'
convereation? k

A I had no further conversation except to ask him whaﬁj
kind of a check book he would like, and I gave him a
check book, togsther with a pass book shéwing the amount
of the deposit. |

MR, CROWE: Have you got the ledger, Jég? .

Q What 1s thie that I show you?
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Q And it reads, "Morton D. Ballard, 302 Elm Street,
Peoria, I1linois™, and shows what?

A It showe a deposit on May 7th of{100.00 and a with-
drewl on May 22nd of One hundred dollare,

Q Closing the account?

A Yes.

Q I show you a cancelled check here which is entitled,
"Chicago, May 23, 1934, Number 100, aad also 2310," and
I ask you,what that 1s?

A Thie ie a check on our own bank, The "2310" is
our "ABA" number,

Q Check for one hundred dollars payable to whom?

A Check for one hundred dollars payable 1o “Cagh“.

Q And drawn againet whose zccount?

A Morten D, Ballard. | |

'Q On May 22nd?

A May 223nd. v '

Q Now after that did you ever see’

this pereson who
purported to bs Morton D, B2llard?

A Not after that tiame.

Q At any time?

A Not after that timel-- well, ==

Q I don't mean in your bank, but at any other place did
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gou ever see this:péfsoﬁ”who purported to be Morton D,

Ballard?

A I identified him previously.

Q Did you ever gee thie person after May 7th?
THE COURT: Yesor No?

A YNo,

MR. CROWE: Q Did you ste¢ anybody in the County Jeil?
A Yee,

g Now, who did you see in the County Ja;l?

AT saw the man that opened the account,

Q And when was thet?

MR, DARROW:L:st him point him out, if he wants to.
MR, CROWE: Q About when was that?

THE COURT: Well, do you see him now?

A Yee,

THE COWRT: Point him ott, plsase?

A The men that ie sitting directly behind this men with

the grey halr and the glasses,

THE COURT: Stand up.

MR, BACHRACH: Q' Te that the one?

1

A Yee sir,

MR, BACHRACH: Indiceting the defzndant, Leopold?
A Yés.

MR. CROWE: Q No&; when you saw him in the County Jall,
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will you etate what if anything he cfaid, or what if anything
he dia? |

A He said we had no rigﬁt to see him, fhat it was Rix against
his constitutional righte to be exhiblted,

Q@ Vhat if anything did he do with his hande and
arme ?

MR. DAREOW: Wee thie in the jail?

MR, GéOWE: Yes,

A He made an effort to conceal hie identity,

Q@ Indgicate what he did?

A Well, he did such ae this (witnese i1llustrating).

MR, CROWE: That is all. Crope examine.

MR, BACERACH: Juet one or two Queestions,

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. BACHRACH.

Q This occasion in the County Jall, was that the occasion
when the State's Attorney and some police officer brought
Leopold out of the 'cell and forced him to be exhibited
to you, is that correct? | |

4 They brought him out inéo an ante .room.

#R, CROWE: ©Now, who brought him out?

MR, BACHRACH: He didn't want to go, did he? Did he
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A T think he did.

1 i
3 '

Q Did he call out in'a‘léﬁd £one of voice that neither
the police or the State's Atterney had any right to force
him to be exhibited to anybody?

A He said they had no right.

0 Did he talk in a loud tome of voice, 2ng resiet?

A Yes, |

MR. BACHRACH: That is all.

MR, CROWE: Just a moment,

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CROWE.

Q Where‘waé the State's Attorney when you saw him?  When
you gaw Leopold who was he with? ; o

A The Statele Attorney?

Q Yes. . A Mr, Cronson was with the
State's Attorney, ‘

‘Q And who elze? The point I am getting at is, did the
State's Attorney and eome police officer bring this )
man down to you, or did you and the State's Attorney
walk ub to Where this man was?

A We were brought up to where the man was,

Q The State'!s Attorney and 'you and the pdliceuofficers
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walked up to where he was in jail?

AYeg s8ir,

Q Did the State's Attorney or the police drag him or
put thelr hande on him at all in your presence?
MR. DARROW: Just & moment. Thie ie somewhat collateral,
your Honor.
A No, I don't recollsct that.
MR, DARROW: I think I will objeot tothat,
THE COURT: ALl right.

MR, CROWE: Mr. Bachrach brought it out. That is all,

(Witn=ss excused)
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ARTHUR DOHERTY,
a witness called on behélf of the prosecution, being first
duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,

Q What is your name?
A Arthur Doherty.

QHE COURT: Pardon me, I didn't get it, young man?

A Arthur Doherty. |

THE COURT: Arthur Dcherty?

A Yes,

THE COURT: Spell your last name pleass?

A D-b—~h-e-r~t-y.

MR. CROWE: Q What is your occupatioﬁ?

‘A Teller at the Hyde Park State Bank.

Q ; How long have you besen Teller at the Hyde Park Staié
Benx? |

A Abgut fifteen. months,

Q I will ask you to state'whe?her or not ygu”kpoﬁ a
man named Richard A, Losb?

A To gee him, yes,

Q Did Richard A, Losb have = account &t your bank
tﬁis spring? |
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Q "Richard A. Loeb"?

A Not that I remember.

Q Do you know Morton D, Ballard?

AI do.

Q How long have you known him?

A Viell just from coming in the bank I recognize the name.

Q Vould you recognize the personf

A T would.

Q@ I will a8k you to state whether or not you ever zaw
a check, this check, cancelled check, dated"May 233, 1924,
Cash $100.00 and signed by Morton D, Ballard"?

A Yes I aid, I cashed it.

Q Who did you cash that for?

A For Richard A, Loeb.

Q Do you sse Righard‘A. Loeb npw?

AT do,

Q Where ishe?

A Sitting over there now, sitting over there, he 1g
standing up now,

" MR, BACHRACH: Indicating the defendant Richard A, Loeb:

" MR, CROWE: What? c

MR, BACHRACH: Indicating the dsfendent, Richard A, Loeb,

THE COURT: The record may s8O show.

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 133 1924



~134-

MR, CROWE: That is 8ll§ Mr. Doherty.

MR, BACHRACH: One mompnt, Mr. Doherty, juet to save

tine.

CROSS EXAMTNATION
BY MR. BACHRACH.

Q Do you say Richard A, Losb had an account in that
.bank? |

A Why not 1ﬁ'££é£fﬁ$£§:’ Morton D. Ballard had the
account thsare,

Q Wwas there an account for Richard A. Loeb in the
bank?

A ; don't know.
WMR.uBAchrach; That isall.

(Witnese excused)
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CLARA VINNEDGE,
a witnees called on behalf of the prosecution, wes fifs%
Guly sworn and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAVINATION
BY MR, CROWE,

Q What ig your name please?

A Clara Vinnedge.

Q Where do you live, plaase?l(q

THE COURT: I didn't get tﬂé’ﬁaﬁx’é?

A Clara Vinnedge,

THE COURT: Spell that, pleaser?

A V-i-n-n~e-d-g-e,

MR, CROWE: Q Where do you live, bleag?? A 5338 Viood-
Lawn, |

Q What is your occupation?
A I am statement clerk at ths Hyde Park State Bank.

. QI will show you a paper here and a8k you vhet it is?

) A It ig'a statemeht of Richard A, Loeb for themonth

8t *

of'April“ v o
MR. BICHRACH: Whab year?
A 1934,

MR, CROWE: Q Do you know or does that indlcate whzre

Richard A, Loeb lived?
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A The ;ddrese 15.5017 Ellis Avanue, Chicago.

Q I will show you another paper and ask you what that 187

A This is the statement of Richard A. yoeb, 50X7 Ellis
Avenue, Chicago, for the month of May, 1934.

Q@ And will you state what that shows in reference to
his account in that month, if anything?

A It showe that on the first day of May hs had a bal-
ance of $1,189.75, and on the 7th day of Mey h; drew a
check for $400.00 and a check for $100.00, and on the
15th day of May he drew a check.for $10.00, on the 23rd
of May he made another deposit of $536,51, which gives
a balance of $1,216.36.

Q Now I will show you a check dated April 23rd, 1924,
a cancelled check for $35.00 on your beank and signed
by Richard A, 1oev, and ancther one for $100.00 to cur-
rency, April 19th, signed by Richard A, Loeb, and
arothsr one for April 14th for $5.00 signed by Richard A,
E?eb, payable to Ralph Schoolman, znd another check
dated April 8th, 1924 and numbered 480 signed by Richard
A, Loeb for $350.00, one dated April 6 and numbered 479,
signed by Richard A, Loeb for ten dollars, another one
for ten dollars dated April 5th and numbered 478 and

another ons dated April 5th, 1924 and numbered 475 for
ten dollere, cash, Richard 4. Loeb, ‘Another ome for
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$120,00 to £k Emanuel Shapiro eigned by Ricﬁard A,
Loeb dated March 238th, 1934 and numbered A.B, and one
for five dollare cash April 15th numbered B W L S and
signed by Richard A, Loeb, Another one dated May
28nd -- no, I will ask you what thoes checke are?

A These checks ars the checks issued on Richard'A,
Loeb's a;co unt.

Q I will show you a check dated Msy 7th, 1924 numbered
apparently "2" with a line connescting drawn ovaer the
i&ﬁ; payable to cash, for four hundred dollars and signed
Richard A, Loeb. What is that?

A This is a check, Cash, a check for four hundresd dollars
that was issued on our bank,

Q Cashed by ycur bank?

A Cashed by our bank.

Q Another ons dated May 7th, 1924 nurbered S S or "s55"?
What is that? ' |

A "55" I guess. ‘ , .

'Q "55" "Cash, $100.00, Richzrd A, Loeb."  'What ie-that?
A That is a check, Cash, a check for $100.00. That .
wa8 cahsed in cur bank,

Q And one May 13th, 1934 nuiber "Bull" -- is that "Bull"?

A I believe it is.

Q Cash, ten dollars, Richard A, Loeb, 5017 Ellis,
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and I will agk you what that 1is?

A It is a check for ten dollare to cash. That wes
cashed at the Bouth Side Trust and Savings Bank.

Q By Richard A, Losb on his account?

A . Yes,

Q Here is a check of the Foreman National Bank, with
the "Foreman wational Bank" stricken out, and the
"Hyde Park State Bankn written over it, April 19th,
1924, and numbered "X L" or "X W L S", Currency, One
hundred dollars, Richard A. Loeb, what is that?

AThat 1e a check, a Currency check, for one hundred
dollars that was issusd by Richard A, Loeb,

Q I will show you another card and ask you what that
187 ,
A This is a signature card, Riéhard 4, Loeb, Hs gives
his address as 5017 Ellis Avenus, his telephone number
as Oakland 4370, on September 28th, 1933, he was regis-
tered as a student. |

Q ind the date?
A September 28%th, 1933.
Q@ VWhat ie this?

« + A Thie is a statement for Morton D, Ballard, address

308 Elm Strest, Peoria, Illinois, for the month of May,

1924,
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Q These checks and this signature card which I show
you are the checks and signature card of Richard A,
Loeb who lived on Ellis Avenue and who gave his occupa~
tion as a student?

A Yas sir,

MR, CROWE You may cross examine .

MR, BACHRACH: No cross examination.

THE COURT: That is all, lady.

(Witness excused)

MR, CROWE: I will fiollow the same procedure with these
a8 I have indicated that I will follow with the others,
'if that is satisfactory?

' MR, BACHRACH That is sa;;sfgctq}y.
MR, CROWE: Just a moment, Misg Vinnedge.,

1

Q Do you know Mr. Loeb?
A Pardon me?t |
Q Do you know Mr, Loeb if. you sée him?
A }'res gir, ‘ |
Q Will you look arcund the courtroom and see'Whether
you can s8ee him?

A Mr, Loeb ie etanding there,

Q Indicating the defendant Richard A. Loéb, end that
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is the men who}gé' account we have just been talking
about ? |

A Yes sir.

MR. CROWE: All right, thenk you.

THE COURT: It i recese time, now, gentlemen, You

may have a five minutes recess,

b

Whereupon a short recess was hsre taken by

Court and COunsel.
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DAVID L,BARTISH,
called as a witness on behalf of the People, having been
first duly sworn, was examined, ;nd testified as foliows:
DIRECT EXA INATION
By
Mr. Smith,
Q@ Will you state your name?
A Devid L, Barish.
MR, SMITH: Put your hat on the table.
Q Where do you live?
A1352 South Wabash Avenue,
THE CLERK: Spell your last name,
A B-a-r-i-g-h.

MR, SMITH: Q@ What is your business?

. A Cigar store and lunch room,

Q@ TWhere is your business located?
A 1353 Wabesh.,

Q Drawing your attention to the ¢th day of May, 1924,

. Were you in your place of business that day?

A Yes, sir.
"Q Do you know the defencant in this case, Richard
Locb? |
A Yes, sir,

Q Was he in your store on the 9th day of May, 19347
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A Yes, sir.
Q@ About whet time of day?
A Oh, noon time I guess, somewheres around that time.

Q@ Around noon time?

A Yes,

Q Will you .ell his Honor, Judge Caverly, what you -gaw
him do when he was in your store at that time?

A He came in and bought a slug and wanted to use the
telephone. He walked up and bought some candy, a box of
raisins, end sald, "Can I wailt here for a telephone call,

I expect to be called back," I gald, "Yes, sir," and
he stayed around eating his raisins and waiting for his
call,

a Wes there a telephone call came in that day?

A Yes, |

Q What did he do with reference to that call?

A He enswered the call.

Q Did he go to the teleg@gng'ﬁdgéhﬁapa1ggéqg; ﬁhgﬁrag?gr
it rang?

A Yes, sir,

Q Then what did he do?

A He went out after he got through talkinéa

Q How long would you say he stayed in your store waiting
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A
that.

Q
A

- Q
A

146
&%

Half or three quarters of an hour, something like

Who was in the store Wifﬂ you?

My wife,

Who else?

My brother's brother in law,

Your brother's brother in law? What is his name?

Tuckerman,
Tuckerman?

He was telling us he went to a Masonic stag, and he

was telling me what went on there, you see, and we were

joking around there.

Q

“

Vhen wes the next time ycu saw Mr, Loeb?

The next time I seen him was on Saturday when thgy\

"brought dovn to the State's Attorney Crowe and the whole

‘bunch,
¥R, SMITH: That is all, Cross examine.
LR, DARROVW: No cross examination. ‘ o
MR, SMITH: Just a minute, Mr, Barish, P’oinf out Richard
Lgeb‘to the Court. |
A There.
MR, SMITH: Indicafing Richard Loeb, the defendanf.
A Yes, sir,
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MAX TUCKERDMAN,

called as a witness on behalf of the People, having been

firet duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

Q

A

DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Mr, Smith.

-Will you state your name?

Max Tuckerman,

Q Where do you live?

A

3034 West Roosevelt Road.

MR, SNITH: Keep your voice up,

Q
A

> O > > D

= O

Q

What is your businesg?

Furrier.

Do you know David Bgr;gp?

Yes, sir,

Do you know w@ére his place of business is located?
Yes, sir.
What relation is David Barish to you, if any?

No relation at all.

Is he in the family in any way?’
No, sir.

Is he any relation to your hrother in law?
His brother 1s my brother in law,

His brother is your brother in law?
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A Yés; sir,

Q Vere you in his plage of business on the Qtp daylof
Yoy, 19847 | “

4 Yes, sir.

Q And what time of the day were you there?

A About half past ten,

How long did ycv stay there?

= O

A couple of hours.

Do you know the defendant, Richard Loeb?

> O

Not until I saw him a couple of weeks ago.

Where did ycu see him?

> O

In the State's Attorney's office.

And who was present when you saw him there?

©

r

A The State's Attorney, and two other men there,
~Q Now, will you state the conversation you had o? that
wag had in your presence in the State's Attorney's office
While Richard Losb was there.at the time you stated?
A Word for word? |

¢

Q Vell, as near as you can remember it
A Well, I valked in, I came from south and walked in
to the store to have & bite to eat, and when I walked in

fiere I asked Dave Barish was Sam here, that wes my

brother in law, and he says, "No", I says, well,
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I gays, I told hinm where~I was May 8th, in tﬁe evening,
I said, at the Auditorium Hotel at a Masonic Smoker, and
I zleo mentioned of & certain building on Washington
Street between Wabash and Michigan where they thought I
was canvassing. I don't know what it was., They told me
there I was not allowed to canvass so i told them I waé
net canvassing there, I was soliclting nmy business that
I was supposed to do.

Q You are telling the Court now what you told your

brother in law on May ©9th at his store?

A My brother in law'!s brother,

Q Mr, Barish?

‘A Yes,

Q That was around noon time of May 9th, 19247
A Yes,

Q Now, when ycu were in the SBtate's Attorneyl!s office
what happenedthere in the presence of RichardA. Loeb?
A T wes asked 1f I rememberad him end I said no.

Q Yes, |
A If I am not mistaken the Statels Attorney asked

Richard Loeb to question me, and he --

THE COURP: What do you want to find out from this

witness?
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MR, SMITH: I want him to testify that Richard Loeb told
him in his presence in the State's Attorney's office
what he told his brother in law May 9th in the restaurant,
for the purpose of showing Richard Loeb was in that
regtaurant at that time, In other words, Richard Loeb
reiterated this conversation. Richard Loeb told this
man in the presencs of the State's Attorney and others
what this man recited to his brother in law in his brother
in law!s restaurant, about the stag.,

MR, CROVE: What I want is to detail -~

THE COULT: Let him ask the direot cquestions if counsel
don'!t object.

MR, SMITH: Q Did Richard Loeb tell you ;n the
Statel's Attorney's office what you and your brother in law
were talking about in your brother in law'e restaurant on
May 9th, 19247

A  Yes, sir,
, @ And was anything said about your personal appeaianoé?

A Yes, — .

Q@ Moustache or no moustache?

A Yes, sir:

Q What was said?

A They asked me if I had a moustache and I sald yes.
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ten days ago.
Vho asked ;you whether 'you took your moustache off?

A The State's Attorney,

Q What did Loeb say with reference tc your moustache?

A I don't remember if he saild anything at all., What
I heard him ask me wus 1f I had a brother that looked like
me, and I said no, I have a brother in law that looks
like we. And they sent for me --

Q State to Judge Caverly what Hicha;? Losb sald abmut
your whereabouts on May 8th, 19347

A He told me I was at Dave Barish's store and repeated
the conversation I had word for word, and I was asked if
I remesbered him, and I said, "No, but he must be the wan
if he can come out with the conversation I had word for
word,"

Q That was cn May 9th, 1é24?

A Yes,

MR. SMITH: Cross examine.

/MR, DRARROW: No cross examination, That is all,

(Witness exocused.,)
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WALTER L. JACQOBS,
‘oglled as a Witness on behalf of the People, having been
first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
. By
Mr, Crowe,
Q@ Your name is what, sir?
A Walter L., Jacobs.
@ And where do you live, Mr. Jacobs?
A 5240 Hyde Park Boulevard,
Q Vhat is your business or occuvnaticn?
A Pregident of the Rent-A~Car Coupany and general
maneger.
THE COURT:
Q Vhat company?
A Rent-A-Car Company.‘
MR, OROﬁE; And were you connected with that company in

that capacity during the month of May, 1934, and particularly
_on, the 7th,  8th, ©th, 3lst and 33nd?

A Yés, sir,

Q@ Now, the business of your company geﬁerélly‘ié to
rent cars to people who drive them themselves? -

A Yes, sir, |

Q You have Willys-Knights , have you?
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A Yes, sir.
Q And what other kinds, Fords?
A Fords,.

Q@ Now, if a2 person wishes to make an application, wishes
to rent a car, what do you require them to do as a

condition precedent?
A It is necessary to f1ll out en application in which
they state their name and address,
Q@ You call that a lsass agfeement?
A One side is z lease agreeument, and the other an épplica-
tion,
Q And on the other side is an gpplication?
A Yes.
-@ I will show you a document here whioh on the cne side
is number 4629, entitled A lease agreement, dated the 9th
day of May, 1854, and signed by the Rent-A-Car feople by

J. McBurney, and Morton D. Ballard, and I ask you what

"that is?

R

A, It is a 1é§se agreement'and application.

Q Now,'on the lease gide state who signed,ﬁhqt lease, if
you #now?
| A The name reads Morton D, Ballard.

Q Vere you present at the time thatwas signed?
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No, sir, that is, I did not see him sign it.
Well, did you see the person who signed it?
Yes.

When?

At that time.

And how did you happen to see him?

Ur. Herndon, the clerk who accepted the application

did not feel satisfled to pass on it himself and referred

the man and application to me,

Q

How, do you see the man in court who gave the name

Morton D, Rllard, and who was in your office on the 2th

day of May, with reference to the lecase agreement?

A

Q
A

+ MR,

Yes, sir,
Will you point him cut?
Right there (Indicating),

CROWE: Indicating the defendant Leopold — Nathan

Leopold, Jr.

Q
fill®

3

A

Q
‘A

that.

On the other side is the applica'ion they have to

cut?

Yes,si:.

And that was filled out at the time it came up to you?

It had been filled out probably a'few moménte before
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Q By Lé&pold; he at that time was going under the name -

of Morton D, HRllard?
‘A' Yes, sir.

MR. CROVE: I am reading some of the answers here at this
time, your Honor.

"First, name, Morton D, Hmllard; age 33, occupation
galesman, married cor single, single; home address 303 Elm
Street, Peoria, Illinois; home phone 808 J; business phone
15 W, name of firm, person or firm by whom or with whom I
am connected, I am employed by the Chick Manufacturing

Company; how long, seven months; address of person or firm

by whom I wes employed or with whom I aa connected, 2303

I1llinois Avenue; I have lived at the abcve address twelve
vearg; I bank at the Hyde Park State Bank, three refereaces:
One, Louls Mason, 1358 Wabash Avenue; Calumet 4658;" --

MR, CROWE: Will you call that fellow back, we did not
get him to t estify what his telephone number was.

"Second, Carroll F., Williams, 298 Elm Street, Peoria;

‘536 J; third, Thomas Cutter, 8206 Washington Avenue,

.753 J, telephone. UName of good friend, Car2z Johnson,

-

address 1258 Lawrence, Peoria, phone number 512 JR, signed

Morton D, Ballard,"

Q Well, what if anything did you say to Morton D. Ballard
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13 A T looked over the application and —

Q That is, to the defendant, Nathan ﬁeopold, Jr?

A I asked him the phone number, or we tried to get
Calumet 4568 originally and were unable to obtain the
number, znd then he told me he thought it might be 4658
and I celled Calumet 4658 and asked for Leculs Mason, spoke
to Louis lason and asked as to Morton D, Ballard's
responsibility and Integrity, and whether he was & fit
person to rent an automobile to and he assured me that he
wasg,

Q@ Now, when you say you talked to Louis Mason had you
ever known Louis Mason at that address?

A No,sir,

Q You talked to somebody who said his name was Louis

Mason?

A Yes, sir,

Q And what else did you say?

A He merely answered the questions I asked him about
Mofton D, Bllard, to the effeot that Morton D. Eallard
Wag & responsible party. ‘

Q And then what did you do?
A I instructed Mr, Herndon, the clerk, it wauld‘be‘all

right to let Mr. Ballard have a car.
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Q Now, in pencil on this application on the top is

~Written "Morrison Hotel", who wrote that if you know?

-

A I don't know,

Q@ Do you know whether or not Leopold under the name of
Ballard got a car from your concern after this application
had been signed?

A That day, I was there when the man made cut our little
seles ticket, Exhibit A,

Q Have you got oﬁe of the sales tigkéts'thére?

A Yes, this 1e the one,

Q This one?

A Yes, that he made out on May 9th,

Q What time of the day was that?

A Well, our record would shoWw thet it was ot twelve
Pl

Q@ And you were present at the time Nathan Leopold, Jr.,

got this car, a record of which is on the slip I hold in m?

. hand, marked Exhibit A, and numbered 3458?

A Yes, sir.
Q Well, now, tell what that record ghows to his Honor
in reference to that cer?

A It shows that the lease number of the man renting the

car was 4639, and we rented him a Willys—Knigﬁtb—a
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Q@ That is, that was tﬁé nurber of the leuse agreement
Petween your concern and Nathan Leopold, under the name of
Ballard, 46397

A Yes, sir, He rented a Willys-Knight touring car, our
number of it being 18. The car was taken out on May Sth,
1924, atl3 P.M,

THE GOURT: At noon?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, and was returned May 9th, 1934,
4:37 P.M, The meter reading going out was 8,34, and
the meter reading coming in was 8:43, showing a total
mileage driven nine miles, which at fifteen cents per mile,
making the mileage charge a dollar and thirty five cents
and when he returned the car as he agreed to return it that
night or before, he made a fifty dollar cash dpposit, of
which forty eight dollars and sixty five cents was returned
to him. The exhibit A lesses is signed by Morton D, Bllard
and for the Rent-A-Car Company by Herndon.

MR, CROWE: Now, after thet day did you see Nathan Leopold,-

Jr. ageint
AT did.
Q- When?

A It was on, I believe, the 3lst day of May, in your

company.
Q@ Were you in your place on the 31lst of M

7
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4 I was there, yes, sir,

Q Did you see Nathan Leopold at that time?

4 I did not.

Q@ What i1s this peper I hand you?

A Exhibit A, or sales ticket,

Q@ VWhut does it show?

A It shows that on May 3lst, 1824, at eleven A,M,,
the car was rented to cur customer whose lease nwdber was
4639,

Q That is Morton D. Bllard or as we now know him Nathan
Leopold, Jr?
. A Yes, gir, Willys-Knignt touring car, which our order
Inumﬁer was 17. The mileage at that tims was 10:38 and
mileage in was 1158, It was returned on the 22nd as
agreed, the exact time of day not noted here, and driven
a hundred and eighteen miles, The charge wes , total
Cherge was $24,35. A cash refund was made of ten dollars
and seventy five cents, He had made a thirty five dollar
cash deposit. FExhibit A was signed by Morton D, Ballard
ag lessee, and J, McBurney as representing the co@pany.

MR, CROWE: All right; oross examine,

MR. DARROW: No cross examinatim.

(Witness excused.)
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17 WILLIAM C, HERNDOUV,
celled as & witness on bshalf of the people, having been
Tirst duly sworn, was examined and testified asg follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
By

Mr,Crows,

Q@ What is your name?

A William C. Herndon?

Q 4And where do you live, Lr. Herndon?
A 1910 Sunnyside Avenue,

Q@ What is your occupation?

A VWhy, at that time I was the assdetant manager of the
Rent-A-Car Company?
Q By that time you mean the month of May, 192%?

A Yes, that is right,

Q Who are you working for now?

A Schel® Chemical Gémpany.

Q I will hand you an exhibit which réads, "lease agreemént
Number 4639 between the Rent-A-Car people and a person
purporting to be Morton D. Béliard, and ask you vhether - -
and on the other side ie an application of Morton D,
Ballard, Peoria, Illinois, and signed by Morton D, Ballard,
and ask you if you ever saw that before?
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same corroborative testimony of the witness who has just
testified, I suggest there is no use repeating it. There
will be no denial of the testimony from the Rent-A-Car
people, There will be nc dispute about that.

MR. CROWE: I prefer, if your Honor please, to present
my case. Of course, the plea of guilty admite everything,
Your Honor is going to be asked to fix the punishment
here, and the State is going to ask -- I want to show
by the mountain of evidence we have piled up that when
they pleaded guilty there was not anything else they could
do but plead gullty, I want to show their guilt clearly
and conclusively, and the detalls of it and ask that they
be hanged, I don'!t think I ought to be limited,

THE COURT: You are permitted to go into every detail,

MR, CROWE: We are not doing that --

THE COURT: I say you may go into every detall of it,
but if one witness testifies they saw him, Nathan Leopold,

go into a certain doorway of a certain building and it is

~not denled, there is no necessity of putting cn three

witnesses for the sauwe corrcboration.
MR, CROWE: If your Honor please, I think I have made

considerable progress in the presentation of the evidence

"and I den't think I ought to be limited, Mr. Bachrach would
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like to try fhié case on wy stétement end his argument,
THE COUPT: You may go into every detail of 1%, every
phese of it, but there is no need to corroborate a witness
when it is aduitted by the cther side., You may proceed
with this witness.
MR, DARROW: I hope lr, Crowe dces not think we want
to carry the impression that the plea of guilty was the

best thing we could do in this case, We will admit that.

‘We are not doing it to help the State out, We are deing

it because we think it is the best,
MR, CROWE: Tc help the defendants out.
MR, DARROW: Certainly.

IR, CROWE: There is no misunderstanding betwean you and

I, Mr, Darrcw, but I insist I ought to be permitted in a
case of this importance to proceed in the manner I am
proceeding.

THE COURT: Ask him a direct question, then.
1R, CROWE: All right.
| AT will direct your attention to a lead pencil notation,
101K Herndon", is that your handwriting?

A That is my handwriting.

Q Well, now, tell the Court whether or not Morton D.Ballarh
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or the man who represented ﬂzﬁaelf as ﬁorton D, Ballard
avplied to yocu for this car?

A He applied to me under the name of Morton B, Ballard,
fepresented himeelf as a salesman for the Chick lMsnufacturing
Comoany of Peoria, Illinoils, He gave me his bank as the Hyde
Park Bank, he gave me his references which I tried to call
and wes unable to call, At the time he did not have enocugh
identification to satisfy myself to give him a car, which
hs later brought identification, and the number he gave
ne to call, was Louis Hason, which I put down and corrected
with pencil afterwards., You can see that it has been
changed.,

Q UHow, did you refer that to anybody higher ln authority?

A I referred it to Mr, Jacobs, Walter Jacobs.‘

Q That ie the man who just left the stand?

L He was here on the stand before me. On the account
I was too busy when he came in in the afternoon, with his
identification, to look it up
| Q lNow, do you know the -- have you seen the man Qh6 
gave his nane as Morton D, Ballard, since that time? _‘

THE COURT: Is he here noy}

THE WITNESS: I have,

MR, CROVE: Point him out,

THE COURT: Yes, point him out.
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21 THE WITNESS: There (Indicating).

THE COURT: Vhich one?

THE WITNESS: Nathan Leopold.

MR, CROWE: Hathan TLeopold, Jr.? Now, wer; you wifh the
concern on the 2let?

A I wes,

Q@ Did you see Nathan Leopold, Jr., on the 2lst of May,
192347

A I did.

Q Well, tell under what circumstances and what was
done?

A He came in the Rent-A-Car Company, 1436 South Michigen,
end rented a car, asked for a Willys~Knight. His application
had been O'KD, and he received a Wiliys-Knight. He ran 1t
with very little mileage that day, and the condition was
0'K, The next time he came in --

Q@ That was on the ninth?

' ﬂ 'Ninbh of May.

Q Now, ‘on the 3lst?

A On the 3lst he ceme in sbout, sometime between eleven
and 13 lo'clock to get a oaf. I happened to step out —

' THE COURT: Did he get one? ‘

THE WITNESS: He got a car.
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4 Willys—Knight touring.

Q Vhat was the number of it?

A Number seventeen,
Q Was 17 your number?
A Yes, the Rent-A-Car's number.

Q@ And do you know the license number or any of your
nunbers on 1t7

A I don't know, only the 17 is the last tWo numbers of
the license plate.
Q And that is your nunber?

A Yes,sir,

Q 41l right. And when did he bring that car back?
| A He rented it May 23nd.

Q And how far had it gone while he had i%?

4 A hunired and eightesn miles.

Q And when was the next time you saw him?

4 The next time I sew him wes When you called me in your
office.

THE COURT: The office of the State's Attorrey?

THE WIfNESS: The State's Attorney's office.

MR, CROWE: Q Now, have you got the boss out there --

what is the name? I will show you a license plate here,:

and ask you whether you have seen that before?
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4 I have, thet wes on car 17,

Q That was the car Nathan Leopold, Jr. took out on the
218t of May, 19247

A Yes.

Q TFollowing the same procedure, your Honor, we will
introduce this when we get through. The license plate
is 701917, Illinois 1247%

A Yes, sir.

MR, OROWE: All right, oToss examine.

MR, DARROW: HNec cross examination.

(Witness excused.)
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MISS MARGARET FITZPATRICK,
called as & witness on behalf of the People, having been
firet duly sWorn, was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Mr, Crowe,
Q What is your name please?

A \Margaret Fitgzpatrick.

Q £ind where do you live, Miss Fitzpatrick?

A 4907 West Lnd Avenue.

Q@ What is your occupation?

A Stenographer.

Q You are employed by whom?

A Rent-A-Car Company.

Q And'iﬁ addition to acting as stenographer how many
other duties have you got there?

A Everything. Answer the telephone, general office
work.

Q I will shbw you a card number 4639, and ask’yoh to
state to the Judge what that is? |

A Identification card, Every man that fakes out a car

fille out a lease, and there is one of these cards attached

. to it.

1

Q And that is the identification card that was attached
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A Yes, sir.

MR, CROWE: The identification reads: "Morrison Hotel",
and then there ig a line drawn through it. Morton D,
Ballard, 302 Elm Street, Peoria, then in pencil Trenier
Hotel, phone 802-J, business addres 803 Illinois Street,
phone 15 W, occupation salesman, age 23; heighth Zfive
foot six and a half inches; weight a hundred and forty
pounds, Eyes, gray, halr black; customsrls signature,
Morton B. Ballard, O'Kd for Rent-A-Car Service J. McB,"

Q Do you know how the words Mérrieon Hotel happened to

get a line drawn through it?

A Yeg, I drew that through.

Q@ And under what circumstances did you do that?

A Mr, Ballard called u p over the telephone, stating tﬁat
he wished his address changed to the Trenier Hotel,

Q And you soratched out the Morrison Hotel and wrote

Trenler Hotel there?

4

A Yes. c S

:Q Now, have you seen this Mo?ton B, Ballqid since this
time? |

A Yee,' I have.

Q Do you ses him now in the court room?

A’ Yes, I dod.
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Q Is fhat the man standing up?

- A Yes, sir,
Q You now know him as Nathan Leopold, Jr?
A Yes, sir.

Q Have you got those two identification cards I mailled
to the hotels? I will show you an envelope, yellow envelopse,
yellow drive it yourself system, 1426 South Michigan Avenue,
Chicago, Illincie. Mr., Morton D, Ballard, Trenier Hotel,
Chicago, Illinois, and postmarked on it Chicago, May 39th,
8 P,M’, 19384, Illinois, a four cent sifamp and cancelled,
Dia ygﬁ ever see that before?

A Yes, I did, I sent it to him.

Q You addressed it and mailed it to the Trenier Hotel?

A Yes,

Q@ What did you put in that?

A Identification card, two rate cards and a letter,

Q And this little leather book card known as Yellow

Drive it yourself System, 1436 South Michigan Avenue,

.. Calumet 2200, Chicago, Illinois; identification card A,
number 4639, that is the number, is 1t not, of the,
" lease?
A Yes, gir, it 15._

Q Lease agreement.
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' Q This envelope I show you addrecsed to him at the

170

A Yes, sir,

Q Name Morton D, Hllard, residence address 203 Elm
Street, Peoria, Illinois, business address 303 Illinois,
occupation salesman; age 23; height five feet six and a
half inches; weight a hundred and forty; eyes gray, hair
black, signed by Morton B. Ballard, and O'Kd by Mr,
MaBurney of your concern. You filled that out with the
exception of the signatures and mailed it to Morton B.
Ballard at the Trenier Hotel according to his dirsction.
Now, is that the original one you mailed out?

A No, it is not; this is the original.

Q How come that you made a duplicate of 1t?

A Mr, Ballard came in on the 2lst and said he had not
received the other identification card yet so I had him
sign —

Q And you had sent one, the first -one to Ur, Mor%on B,

Ballard, Morrlison Hotel, éhicago, Illinois, had you.

A Yes, sir, I had,

]

Morri son Hotel was written by you on the typewriter?

!

a YeS,Sir‘

Q And in that envelope you had mailed him the original

jadentification card which I now show you in this Imather
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A Yes, sir.,

Q And it zeads, "orrison Hotel, identification tard No.
4629", lorton B, Bellard, 203 Elm Street, Peoria, 203
I1linois Street, Peoria, occupation, salesman; age 23;
height five feet six and a half inches, welight a hundred
and forty;,; eyes gray, halr black, customer's signuature
Morton D, Hllard?"

A Yes,sir.

Q Both of those were mailed out by you‘té'ﬂim?

A Yes, sir.

You aaw him sign beth ¢f these, did you?

= O

I saw him sign the duplicate, not the original.
({pk J'y Q Phe duplicate, not the original?
A TNo,sir.
Q@ Now, when did you next see him?
A I saw him on Saturday.
Q That wes Saturday, May 3lst, or June lst of this year?
A Yes,sir, . ' |
Q Did you have a talk with him then?
A As soon as he came in he came over to the switohboard—-
no, I beg your pardon,

Q Well, did you have a talk with him in yoaurcoffice in

L}

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopc‘)l d and Loeb 171 1924



R9 reference to these identification cards?

A He came in on the 3lst and I did,

. Q And vhat was that talk?
A He asked me what had happened 0 hinm,
Q That is, the one you sent to the Morrison?
4 Yes,

| Q@ VWhat did he tell you?

A That was when he signed the next one.

'Q And told you to. send it wherej
A To the Trenier Hotel.
Q To the Trenier Hotel?
L Yes,
Q Yow, on thuat Saturday morning he cawme in with me,

elther the 3lst ofKMay or lst of June, did vou have a

talk with him about these 1dentification cards?

A

Q

No.

Do éou remember anything belng said as to how you got

the information about his changing hotels?

A

I stated that he came in instead of telephoning and

he said, I beg your pardon, Miss Fitzpatrick, it was.over

the, phone I gave you thaé information.

Q

You sald that he came in and told you he had rmoved

to the Trenler, and he said, "No, I beg your pardon, Miss
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30 Fitzpatrick, I telephoned you that information?"®

A Yes,

MR. CROWE: I think that is all, COross examine.

1R. DARROW: No oross examination,

(Witness excused.)

THE COURT: Counsel for both sides have asked me to
adjourn at four o'clock., It is now four o'cleck and we
will suspend until tomorrow morning at ten o'leclock,

MR, CROWE: Weit a minute, Have all the witnesses that
are out there come in so that the Court can inétruct them
to be here promptly tomorrow,.

THE COURT: Please take seats then, until the witnesses
come'in. Are the witnesses here in this case, are they
here now?

THE BAILIFF: Yes, your Honor,

THE COURT: All the wltnesses in this case return tomorrow
morning et ten o'clook please, and be sure and be here
promptly at ten, You bhetter try and make it nine fortx five
because the elevators will be crowded about ten o'clook
toumorrow,. Be here at ten o'clock gharp,

(Whereupon an gdjournment was talken untll ten -

olclock A, M., Thursday, July R4th, A. D, 1924,)

L R S
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July 24,1924,
10:00 ofclock A.i,
Court convened at ten o'clock A.M, July 24,

1924 pursuant to adjournment heretofore taken,

PRESENT: Same counegel as before,

MR, CROWE: 1If your Honor please, I am golng to divert
a 1ittle froam the regular order here by calling a witness
from New York, to let him get back.

THE COURT: Very wsll,

MR, CROWE: OCallin Andrew Russo.

ANDREW RUSSO,
& Wiltness called on behalf of the proseoution.was first
duly sworn and teetified as follows:?
DIRECT E XAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,
Q Will you state your name please?
A  Mndy Russo. |
Q Talk so the Judge can hear you thﬁre. Where do you
y

live, Mr. Ruseo?

A 331 East 151st Strset, New York.
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Q@ And in the months of May and June of this year what
was your. businese or occupation?

A 1 was an electrician for the Pullmen Conmpany at
the Mott Haven Yarde in New York.

MR, CROWE: What @as the number of that car, Jos?

MR, SAVAGE: 507, car Borian,

MR, CROWE: Q Do you remember the car numbered 507, a
Pullman car, the name of it being Borian?

A ves gir.

Q Did you see that car in the month of June?

A Yes sir,

Q Did you find anything in the rack that held the
telegraph blanks?

A Yes sir.

Q What did you find? A T found that
letter addressed to Jacob Franks,

Q And what day was that, Ur . Russo?

A On May 3lst,

Q May 3lst, 19247

A ,es sir,
Q@ And where was the cér at the time you found a létter

addressed to Jacob Franke, in the rack for telegraph

blanke?
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A It was in the yard, the Mott Haven Yards, on
track number one.

Q And that track is in what city?

A New York City.

Q How did you happen to find if there, that 1s, what
cauged you to look in that?

A Well, in the mornings the boss usually gives us
go many cars to work, you see, and when we work these
cars we have to look them all over for what we call
an inspection report, what the conductor makes out after
evary trip, and he usually puts it in this rack where
I found this letter, While hunting for the inspection
report I picked up this letter, The letter was closed
and on the front of it was written "Jacob Franks ",

Q Now I will show you an envelope, & plain envelop,
on which is typewritten, "Mr. Jacob Franks", and
underneath that, "Should anyone slse find this note,
please leave it zlome, the letter ie very important."
Is that the envelope that you found at that time?

A Exactly, that is the saame envelope I remember,

I tore it open.
Q ' And you tore it open? A I tore it open, yes 8ir.
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Q It was seszled, was it?
A Yes gir,
Q Now, I will call your attention to a pisce of
note paper upon which the following appears in typewriting:
"Dear Sir: Proceed immediately to the
back platform of the traln, watch the east
slde of the track, have yocur package ready,
look for the first LARGE red brick factory
situzated immediately adjoining the tracks
on the east, On top of thim factory is
a lerge black water tower with the word
CHAMPION written on it. Wailt until you have
completely passed the south end of the factory,
count five very rapidly and then immediately
throw the package as far east as you can.
Remember, this is the tnly chance to
, T@COVer your son.
Yours truly;
‘ George Johnson,"
Q Did you ever see that letter before?
A Yes sir,

Q Was that letter in the envelope that you have just -
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identified? A Yes sir,
Q #nd you turned the letter and the envelop over to
the Statel's Attorney's Office?
A Yes sir.
VR, CROWE: I can mark these without any difficulty,
so I will offer it in evidence now andhave them amark it.
THE COURT: Very well.
MR, CROWE: Mark it on the bzck there "People's
Exhibit A" I will give it a lettier instead of snumber
on account of the other exhibits,
MR. DARROW: Letter of a certain date "1l be all right.
MR, CROWE: What? |
MR, DARROW: Letter of a certaln date, if it is
dated.
MR. CROME: People's Exhibit A of this date, and
People's Exhl dt B of this date , the envelope.
' (Whereupon the letter and envelope were
' marked as above requested)m
MR, CROWE: You may crose examine, Mr, Darrow' or
Mr. Bachrach. ,

MR, BACHRACH: No cross examination.

(Witnese excused)
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DAVID BARISH,
a witness called on behalf of the prosecution, was first
duly sworn and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATTON
BY MR, CROWE,
Q What ig your neme? I think he was sworn yesterday?
MR, SAVAGE:  Yes,
THE WITNESS: Yes, I wag sWorn yesterday.
MR, CROWE: What ie your ncome?
A David Barizh,

Q And you are the same David Barish that testified

“ heretofore in this cauae?

A Yes sir,

Q Have you a telephone in your place of business?
A Yss sir,

Q Did you have one there on May 9th?

A Yee sir, I have got one there for eight yéafgf

Q What wae the teleph&?ﬁumber? |

A Calumet 4658,

Q Calumet 4658, and that was the telgphone numbeg
given to you; phone on ﬁay ch, 192417

A ves sir,

MR, CROWE: That is all.
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MR, EACHRACH: No ¢ross examination.

(Witness excused)

FRANK B. TUTTLE,
& Witness called on behalf of the prosecution, having
been first duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE.

@ Whatis your name plsase?

A Frank B, Tulitle.

Q Speak so hie Honor can hear you?

A Frank B, Tuttls,

Q And you spell your name T-u-t-f-l-e.

A Frank B, Tuttle,

Q  What is your occppation, Mr. Tuttle?

A Hotel clerk,

Q And you work for what hotel? ° A 'HStel
T;enier.
'Q ‘Where is that located, pleaes? A 409 Oak-

wood Boulevard,
MR, DABROW: Will you please speak a little louder?

THE COURT: Hotel what?
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MR, OROWE: Hotel Trenier.

THE COURT: Spell it7? '

A T=r-g-n-i-e-x,

MR, CROWE: Q Angd that is located where?

A 409 Oakwood Boulevard,

Q I will direet your attention, Mr. Tuttle, fo a‘yellon
envelope upon which appears in the corner, printed,
"Yellow, DRIVE-IT-YOURSELF-SYSTEM, 1426 South Michlgan
Avenue, Chicago, Illinois™, and has the pogt gtamp
"Onicago, May 29th, 8:00 P.M. 1924, Illinois", a can-
oe;led four cent stamp, =2nd typewritten on it is "Mr,

Morton D, Ballard, Trenier Hotel, Chicago] Illinois,"

and I will ask you whether you have ever seen that

before?

A Yes sir.

Q And when you had it it was sealed? | A It was
sealed, yes sir,

Q I will direct your attention to0 a 1little card, leather
card case, in which is an identification card which
reads, "Yellow, Drive-it-yoursexf-system, 1436 South
Michigan Avenue, Chicago, Illinois, identification card

A, 4629, " and in red, and marked out 1s "5353, Name,
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Morton D. Ballard, Resident address 303 Elm Strest,
Peoria, Business address: 203 Illinoie Street, occupa-
tion salesman, Age 33, helght 5 feet 6-1/3 inches,
weight 140 pounds, eyee gray, halr black, Customer's
gignature : Morton D, Ballerd, 0.X. for Yellow, drive-
1t-yourself-system service," By K. McBurney, and I
will a8k you whether that was in the envelope when
you first saw 1it?

A As far as Iknow. Thes envelope‘wae gealed and

there was something about the size of that in it,

about thzt thickness,

Q And where did you see this envelope first?’

A 1%t was in the mail rack at the hofel.

Q Attre Trenier Hotel? A At the Hote
Trenier, yee,

Q And you turned it over to the State'a Attorney,
did you?

A Yes sir,

i
MR, CROWE: Cross examine.

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY ¥R, BACHRACH.

Q When you first saw ths little card case it was in
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that yellow envelop?

A Yes eir, juet now.

Q You never saw it before at all? A I never
gaw 1t.

Q You don't know wh:thér it was in that envelppe when
you first saw the'envelope or not?

AT do not.

MR. BACHRACH: That is all,

MR, CROWE: Now wait a minute,

REDIRECT EXAMIN ATION
BY MR, CROWE.

0 Who in the State's Attnrney's office did you turn
this over to?

A To the two officers that came ovut thevre looking for

information.

Q Do you remember the names -—~ Murphy and Homq;?

A Yee, Homer is the tall fellow, |

Q Homer iz the tall, thin fellow, and Murphy is the
~8hocter and stouter one?

A Yes s&ir,

Q And you turned it over to them?
A Yes sir, ‘
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CAPTAIN O'MALLEY:

MR, CROWE:

Tuttle,

1 11linois.

~184~

A11 right. Is Murphy andHomer around?

Homer 1is here now.

Bring in George Homer. That is all, Mr.

(Witness excused)

Crimnal Court.

— e e = e

Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 184 1924



13 -185~

GEORGE B8, HOMER,
a witnees called on behalf of the procecution, was Biret
duly sworn and tecstified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,

Q What is your name, sir?

A Gsorge S, Homer,

‘Q  And your occupation ie Wh%t, Mr. Homer?

A Police officer attachsd to the State's Attorney's
office.

Q I will show you a yellow envelope upon which anpeare,
"Xellow, Drive-it-yoursslf-System, 1436 South Michigan
Avenue, Chicago, Illinois", printed in the corner,
and typewritten "Mr. Morton D, Ballard, Trenier Hotel,
Chicago, Illinois," and the post Office stamp "Chicago,
May 3gth, 8:00 P.M, 1834, Illinois", and a four cent
cancelled stamp, and written in ink on the bottom of it,
June lst, 1924, 5:15 P,M., J.F.Murphy and G.S,Homer,"
and I will ask you whkther you ever eaw that before}

A Yes sir.,

'Q Where 1s the firet place you saw 1it?

A Why at the Trenier Hotel at Oakwood Boulevard and
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Gra.ad Boulevard Chicago.,

Q Who gave itto you? A Mr. Tuttle, the
cletvk out there,

Q The man who just testified here?

AYee sir, -
Q Did you sign your name there?

A yes sir,

Q Now what was in 1t at that timef | A Why,
this folder here, a lsather folder, with an 1ldentifica-
tion card, addressed or made out to Morton D, Ballard,
303 Elm Street, Chicago, 303 Illinois Street, and his
occupation was Salesman, and an identification --—

MR. BACHRACH:  We caannot hear a word here?

THE COURT: Talk louder, please,

MR, CROWE: Talk up so that evsrybody can hear you.

THE WITNESS: A leather folder with an identifica-
tion card in it addressed to Morton D. Ballard, with
his residence as 303 Elm Street, Peoria, Business address
803 Illinois Street, his occupation salesman, he also
gives his age as twenty-three, height 5 feet 6-1/3

inches, welght 140 pounds, eyes gray, hair'black,

[
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the customer's sigﬁature on here is "Morton D, Ballard,
0.K. for Yeliow Drive-lt-yourself-system service by
K. McBurney", the card is signed by him,

Q@ I will direct your attention to the back of this
card cese and ask you whether or not the name of
"G,S.Homer" wae writiten by you?

L yee Bir,

Q And when did you write your ﬁame onthera?

A June 1st, 1924.

Q And what did you do with this envelope and card case
after you got it?

A I turned it dver to Aés;,stéi;t Staté'sl,At;téé:i#eSr’
Milton Smith.

MR. CROWE: I willask that the envelopebe marked
asExhibit B, People's Exhibit B &f this date,

MR. BACHRACH: No objection.

MR, CROWE: :And that thg folder card case be marﬁed
People's Exhibit C of thie date, and I introduce them‘
in evidence,

MR. BACHRACH: No objection.

THE COURT: Let them be marked,

| (Whereupon the documents were marked as requssted

by counsel).
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MR, CROWE: Q Did you maks any of'thé arrests in this
caeef
A Yees gir,
Q ?hich cne of the defendants 4did you ariest?
A Richard Loeb,
Q And on what day was that? A June 24th,
I can’t just recall it now..
Q Vell it was --
A Friday.
THE COURT: When?
¥R, CROWE: Q@ Well, it was the day you brought him
into the LzaSalle Hotel?
A Yes sir.
Q Whatever day that wos?
A Yes sir,
Q@ Do you recollect what day that was?
A On Frigday.
Q Let me direct your attention to the fact that Friday

was Decoration Day?

1
i)

*h Vell, it was Thursday then, the day before Decora-
tion Day. | -
Q The Day before Decoration Day?
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MR, CROWE: That is all, you may cross examine.

MR, BACHRACH: No

1 11linois.

cross8 examination.

(No cross examination and witness excused)

Crimnal Court.

e e aw = e
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EMIL DEUTSCH,
a witness called on behalf of the proseou£ion, hadng
been first duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,

Q What ie your name please? A Emil Deutsch,

THE COURT: Ch, talk louder, pleaeéf:\ |

THE WITNESS: Emil Deutsch. "

THE COURT: Spell your last name?

A D-e~u-t-s-c-h.

MR, CRORE: Q And what 1is your addbese, plegse?

4 30 North Michigan, |

Q What is your occupation or profesesion?

A Physician,

THE COURT: Physlician?

THE WITNESS: Physician.

MR, CROWE: Have you any specialty?

A Yes, I specialize in eye diseases,
: Q Do you know the defendent Nathan Leopold, Jr.?

AT do.

Q Waé he a patlent Sf yourse at any time?
‘A He Wwas.

Q@ Did you preecribe for him?
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A T did,

Q I will show you a prescriﬁtion which haé printéd
on it, "Dr., Emil Deutsch, Dr. L. B. Bernheimer, Eye,
Ear, Nose & Throat, 30 North Michigan Boulevard," dated
-- what date is that?

A October -- 10/1-- 11)1. )

Q "11/1 1983", that is the date, Hours 9:30 %o 8:00,
Telephonee, Desrborn 9475, Central 1414, Purzszoription,
Mr. Nathan Lesopold, 4754 Greenwood, R EY —— what does
thzt stand for?

A For richt eye,

Q "Plus 50 axis ®o0"t .. "

A 90 left eye. - |

Q "L E" that stends for left eye?

A Left eye,

Q  "50 plus 50 axis, 105 in ink marked out and 90 axis
ordered changed by Dr. D2utsch over phone and signed
by "A.Deutsch", and I will ask you whether you ever saw
that before? |

A yes, I did. , , ‘

Q Whatie that?

A Thie is the original presoription that I gave to Mr,

4
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Nathan Leopold, Jr. to have the prescription filled for
glasses at the opticians!,
Q Now you made a change over the phone?
A Yes,
Q How d d that happen?
A After the prescription wes preeented to the patient
I found it advisable, in order to get better resulte,
to change the axie eo that both eyds would be uniform.
Q What was the matter with Nathan Leopold's eyes at
that time?
AT found he was afflicted with e minor degrze of
astiguatiem, |
Q And dld anything result from that?
A He complained of eye-strain and headaches,
Q Who did you telephone to make this change, 1f you
know?
A I telephoned to the optician who filled the prescrip-
' tion, Almer,Cos & Company.
Q@ Almer,Cos & Company? A Yes,
MR, CROWE: I will now offer in evidence the prescrip-—

tion which I juet read, and ask that it be marked as

people's Exhibit D of today. Any objection?
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MR. BACHRACH: ©No objsction.,
(threupon the prescription was, marked
as requsetsd by counssl),
MR, CROWE: You may croeg examine,
MR, BACHRACH: No croses examination.

(Witness excused)
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THOMAS MoWILLIANS,
> witnesg called on behalf of the prosecution, was first
duly sworn and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROVE.
@ What 1s your name plesee?
4 Thomas UcWilliane.

Q Whére do you live, Mr, ,cWilliams? A 3808

Pine Grove Avenue,

-

Q What is your occupation? A Menager of the
Hotel Morrison,
Q And you were’mgpager du;ing‘the‘month of May, 19247
4 Yes sir. \'““V‘?: . %ﬂﬁzﬁ -
Q 0f the Hotel Moiriéon?

AYep gir,

Q 4nd that i8 located in the City of Chicago?

a

A Yes,
Q I will direct your attention to a yellow senvelope
which has in the lefthand cornsr printed, "Yellow, Drive-

1t-yourself-system, Incorporated, 143€ South Michigen
May 34th, 1934, typewritden on it, "Mr. Morton D, pallard,

Morrison Hotel, Chicago, Illinois", and the post office
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staﬁp, "Chicago, May'lBth, 11:00 P,¥, Illinois", and
a camcelled four cenf stamp, written in pencil, "Chérles
McWilliams, Managey," --
A Thomas McWilllame.
Q -- "Thomas McWilliams", and T w1l ask you whether
you ever saw that before?
A Yes eir, T did.
é Vhere dig you Beg iﬁ? A I‘saw 1£ on my
desk at the hotel.
Q At the Morrison Hotel-?
A Yes sir,
Q Wee there anything in iéf ‘ ’ '
A Well, I presume there was, I turned it over intact.
THE COURT: Talk up so that we can ald heaf you?
A Ysg eir.
MR, GROWE{ Q There was something in 1t?
A Yes sir,
Q And you turned it over to the Superintendent of Pollce?
A To Superintendent of Police Colline, yeg‘sir.
Q It was sealed at the time? ‘
A Yes sir.

Q  And you didn't open it? A No sir,
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!

MR. CROWE: All right, that is all. You-may croes
examine if you wieh,

MR. BACHRACH: That is all.

(Witness excused)

- ww e am o e
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ELIZA é ETH SATTLER,
& witnees callsd on beshalf of the prosecution, being
first dQuly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,
Q@ Will you git down there, madam. What is your name
pleaseq
A Elizabeth Sa??ler.
THE COURT: Vhat is 1t7
THE WITNESS: Elizabezth Satrtler.
MR, CROWE: Q where do you live, Miee Sattler?
A 4754 Greenwood Avenus. ‘h
Q 4754 Greenwood Avenue?
A Yes,
Q Ie that correct? A Yes,
Q What is your e®cupation? A I don't under-
gtand?
Q What is your occupation, what do you do, what is yowr
:business? - |
A Maiqg,
Q Maid for what family?
A Mr, Leopold.

Q Th&.‘b 18 MI‘- - A Nl F- LéOpOld’-
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Q Nathan Laépold? A Yee,
Q@ And how long have you been maid there? L Over
three years, the fourth year.
Q More then three y:ars, Now the Leopold fami}y
live =t the asddrese that you gave as\your residencd?
A Yes, |
LQ‘DO you know Nathan Leopold, Junior?
A Yes,
Q@ Do you see him in the courtroom?
A Yes gir,
QWill you indigats whsze.Be 182 ' ¢ . . A There (in-
;éicating).
MR, CROWE: Indicatiﬁg'the Defendant ﬁa%han ﬁeopold,
Juniow,

Q During the winter of this year did you see any type-

w;iters in the Leopold home?

A Yes.
Q How many? ‘ AIPT%O.
Q Will you describe them? A There was one big
Hammond,
' Q One big Hammond machine? A And a small

Underwood typeswriter,
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Q A esmsll Underwecod typewriter?
A Yes strx,
Q When did you firet see the Underwood typewriter in the
Leopold home?
A It was many monthe in the house,
Q Well when is the first time you saw it?
A That was bsfore Chriestmas time.
Q psfore Christmas, 18337 | A Yes,
Q And when is the lasgt time you saw it in the house?
A It wes zbout two weeks before I was asked about it.
Q@ Two weeke before you were asked about it?
A Yes,
Q Aded about it where? C
A Tnthe house, by Captain Shoemaker, he asked me about it,
Q Captain Shoemaker asked you about it in the house,
and you had seen it‘about two weeks before that time?
A Yes,
Q Do you remember when Shoemaker talked to you about
it, do you remembsr the date?
A Yes, it was about a week after the murder, on a
Frigay,

Q It was the Friday forenoon following -~ the week

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 199 1924



a7 =200~

following the murdgr of the Franks boy?

A Yes, '

Q@ Thatwould be décoration day? A Yes,

Q Now I will direct your attention to — at that time
where was Nathan ypeopold, Jr., if you know, on that
Friday? |

A On the Friday he was held,

Q He was beingheldrby tﬁe Authorities?

A Yes,
Q I will direct your attention to an Underwood portable

typewriter and a box?

A Yes, Q.

¥
1

Q I will ask you to look st them aﬂd stafé wﬁetherﬂéi
not that resemblsg the typenriter you saw in the house?

A Yes, it doee,

Q It was in a 1little éetter condition at that time?

A Yes, The case was black.

MR, CROWE: Mark that for lidentification, and later on
we will conneot it up. Mark 1t for identification
"People’s Exhibht 1 fo; identification" as of today.

(Marked as requssted by counsel)

MR, CROWE: Ig the case separate there?

MR, SAVEGE: The lower portion is attached., Mark
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the case.
MR. OROWE: Mark the case and the lower portion

also. Mark the lower portion Exhibit 3 for identifica—-
tion as of today.

(Marked as reQuested by‘couneel)
MR, CROWE: Q@ DNow, did you ever see Nathasn Leopold,Jr.
use this machine?
A Yes,
Q On what occasiona and when?
A Many times,
Q@ Many times? A. Many times, somstimee

alone and sometimee with friendas.

Q Sometimes alone and somstimes wWith friends?y

A Yes,

@ Did you evse see any thinge thab were written on thie,
any papers?

A Yze, I gaw thea,

Q What did you s3e? A T aidn't look at the
papsrs what waes on 1t, but I eaw many, he translated
gomething and studied.

Q Speak up so that the Judge can hear you, and the
defendants end their counsel. He tranelated many

things ?

1 1Illinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 201 1924



=g —-202-

A Yes, and estudled it.

THE COURT: Did the Reporters get that?  Will you
repeat, lady, so they can get it, plezse?

A He wrote many tineé on it, he used it.

MR, CROWE: Q Both alone and with friends?

L Both alons and with friends.

'Q Did the Leopold family have any sutomobiles?
A Yss, |

G How many? ’ A Five,

Q@ Five automobiles?

A Yes, j

'Q Vhere used they té'iééﬁitﬁé autonobilé robes, if
you know? |

A They had some in the garage and some in the house,

Q Soms in tlre house and some in tle garage?

A Yes,

QT will direct your atbtention —- I think we had better
take it down there, Can we switch this 1ight? That
will interfere with you. You had better take 1t down
there. I will direct your attention to a charred robe,
a greenish colbr?

A yves, that is Nathan Leopold's.
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Q You can describe that better than I can, what kind
of'méférial is that, what would you cail tﬁati‘

A (No snswer by the witnese).

Q Well, it is a fuzzy green robe?

A Yes,

Q Did you ever gee a robe s;mi}gr to that in the
1Lsopold home?

A Yee, I saw 1%, '

Q Whan did you sse 17 A Oh, 1%t was weeks
before that happened,

Q Wezaks Dbefore? A But I didn't know.it.

Q Bsfore it happeﬁed,‘agd‘when you saw itlypd\éfg
referring to what?

A I noticed it was in the houceafterwards, but I didn't
notice it before,

THE COURT: Face this man, lady, will you, and tell
it all to him, and if you can make him hear it the
Court reporters c¢an hear 1it.

MR, CROWE: Q Well, you have noticed a robe 1like
that in the Leopold home?

A Yes,

MR. CROWE: You might pin a little piece of paper

on it and mark that "People's Exhibit 3 for identification”,
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ag of today.
MR, SAVAGE: Three, Judge.
MR, CROWE: All right, mark it People's Exhibit 3
for identification as of today. |
(Marked a8 redquested by counsel)

MR, CROWE: You may croes examine.

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR, BACHRACH.
Q@ What is your name?

A Elizabeth Sattler,

A
1]

QT aidn't hear tne last nsme? . - A Elizsbeth
Sattler, |
Q@ You are employed in the Leopold house?
A Yes,
Q Ang how long have you beenemployed there? ‘,gﬁ Over
three years, on the 19th of May it was three yearé?ii
Q And what position do you occupy there?

A M=3ig.
Q Maid? A Yes,
Q Second maid? A TYag,

Q Did you testify before the Grand Jury in this case?
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Q And were you aeked the same questions that you have

testified about here?
A Yes,
Q And where are you employed now?
A By Mr, Leopold.
Q And have been allthe time?
time, yes elr. |
MR, BACHRACH: That is all.
THE COURT: That is all, lady.

(Witnesg excused)

e ]

A A1l the
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ARNOLD-- MAREMONT,
a witnese called on behalf of the prosecution, being
firet duly sworn, teestified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,
Q What is your name?
A Arnold Maremont,
Q@ Where do you 1ive; Mr. Maremont? A 5318 Ingle-
8ide.
Q And what is your occupation or business?
A Student.

Q Where do you study? A At the Uniyer-

Vot 1
v
gy ' "' -

sity of Chicago,
Q And for how long a time have you bsen a etudent
there?
A Two years,
Q What are you studying now? A TLaw,
Q Do youknow the deferdant Nathan Leopold, Jr.?
A Yes sir,
Q How long heve you known him? A I have known
him for a period of about four years,

aﬁQ Will you state whether or not he was stﬁdying law
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at the University with ypg?
A He was,
Q During the winter of 1924, did you have any occa-
sion to viéit the home of Nathan Leopold, Jr.?
A Yas sir, '
Q ‘VWhen and what was the occasion?
‘yA At various timee, The occasiong vggre moetly to
study law,
Q Well, do you knos what "dope sheeting" is8?
A yes sir,
Q Will you tell the Court and the reet ofus so that
.we way know what it is also? | ’
A Well, in studying law, in preparing for gXxamina-
tion, in prsparing for comprehensive study, one-must
go over the lacturee, after all the gubject of law is
taught primerily by studying cases and cdlaborating ——
MR, CROWE: One moment, I would suggest that Mr.
Darrow listen to this.
MR. DARROW: I thought it was about the races, Bob,
I thought probabd)y the Court needed to have it ex-
plained to him.

MR, CROWE: All right.
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THE WITNESS. By attempting to take the meeting péiﬂta
snd the basis of law upon which the cases were decided,
and then after going through s complete number of
cases, on any partiocular subjeoct, one simply has to
tak:s the polnte of law out of each case and collect
them, and he has a more or lese falr idea of what
the case amounts to, and dope sheeting is simply
picking out these mgjor points, in any particular couréeJ
contracts or torts, and studying them to get an idea
upon what ground that subject of law ls decided,

Q Now during the vwinter of 1934 did you do any
"dope sheeting" at the home of Nathan Lecpold, Junior,
“the defendant in this case?

A Yee sir.

QWho else wae present on any of these occasions
with you?

A  Howard Oberndorf, Lester Abelson, Maurice Sham-
bery, and later on, not in the winter or the spring,

a fellow by the name of Nethan Kaplan,
Q Now did you notice at thsttime any typewriter in the

home of Nathan Leopold, Jr.?
A At which time?
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0 At any of these times that you were "dope sheetingn
there duringz the winter of 19247
A Yes sir,
\\_ - T -
Q What month was thie in? A The first time

I noticed a typewritexr? |

Q Yes, A It wae in Novemrer.

- Q In November, IQééi

A Yes sir.

Q Abcut how meny times wera you in his home from
November, 1923 until April, 19247

A Do you mean to "dope sheet"?

Q Yes, A Oh, perhaps half a
dszen. | -
Q Were you in there at any time dwr ing January?

A No,

Q February? A Yes sir,

Q How meny times during pebruary, about?

A Once, exactly.

Q Did you see =z typewriter at ghat t;me%J
A Yes sir.

Q Whzt kind of a typewriter?

AT couldn't tell you.
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Q Well, describe 1%? A It wes 'gome sort
of portable typewriter,
Q That is the same one that you saw in November?
A No eir,
Q What one did you see in November?
A A Haumong.
Q A Hammond? A Yes,
Q And the one you saw in Fsbruary wae a portable type-
writer?
A Yee sir,
MR. CROWE: Will you open thzt, Joe?
'Q I will dirsct your attention to a typewriterlheie
and ask veu to look zt it and state whetheror not
you have ever ge¢en thet before? It hes a tag with
the number "17" on 147
ATl recall seejng a typewriter similar to that,
Q@ Similar to that? A Similsr to that,
af the eame make,
Q Thatls the one you saw in the fall of 1923 at the
Leopold home?
A Yee eir,

MR, CROWE: Now, will you open up that other one?
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Q T will direct your attention to an Underwood Type-—
writer, somewhat the worse for wesr, and I wil ask ’
you to state whether or not you ever saw & machine similer
bo that in the Leopold home?
AT couldn't tell you.
Q WiFl you deecribe the portable mzohine you saw there?
A1 actually couldn't describe it in any way, except
to attempt to recall the incident ofwhy I remember it
wag a portable, As you see, looking at the Hammond,
it is a very distinctive typewriter, the circular form

of letters distinguishes 1%t completely from any other

" type of typewriter that I had sver seen,and on that

particular occasion in February, the early part of
Februery, instead of working in the attic, Nathan Leopold's
gtudy, where we usually worked, we worked in the Library
on the main floer of the home, and the Hammond was always
upstairs, and on that oocasion there wae some sort of

a typewriter sitting on the desk near the window in

one corner where we came in, and when we came iﬁ

Nathan took the typewriter and put it on the card table
that we were working at, and having never seen a type-

writer of that particulsar kind before, in fact the only
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kind of partable I ever had occasion to s<e was a
Corona, and I remarked that it wzs a different type-
sriter than I had ever seen, What sort of typewriter
it was or the nsme of it I couldn't say, because when

I was firet called in to testify I thought it wag a
Remington, and not being particularly intereeted in
typewritere I didn't take occasion to recall the nane,

QI will show you threse yellow sheets here, which are
apparently carbon copiee, and ask you to look them over?

A Those are mine. (indicating).

Q Anda I will ask you to gtate whether you ever saw
them before?

A Yes sir.‘

Q Where did you see them?

'his is a carbon copy of a typical dope shest tha;
was prepared by us on that occasion in February that
you are talking about.

Q And who prepared it, I mean who typed it?

A It wes typed meinly by Nathan Leopold, I think
I typed about two lines of it,

Q éere are four more sheets, what are those?

A That is my carbon copy of the zame thing.
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Q nf the aas thing? A Yese,

Q In other worde,s carbou copy of this dope shest
would be made for each of you boys?
Aves sir,

Q@ And the last cne I hand you here consiste éf four
sheete, iz the carbon copy that you got at that time?

Mﬁ. CROWE: I will ask to have these\four gheets fas-
tened togethsr, andlet them be merked as one exhibit
and introduce them in e¥idence.

MR. BACHRACH: No objection,

MR, CROWE:  What are the first thres shéets I showed
you?

A That is four also,

Q That is four algo, that iganother carbon copy?

A TYes sir,

Q Hede =t that time? A Yee sir,

MR, CROWE: Mark thet alsc. What is the last exhibit?

MR, SAVAGE: Three,

MR, CROWE: Mark one exhibit 4 and the othsr exhibit 5,
I will introduce them in evidence, your Honor.

THE COURT: They may go in,
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(Which sald documents were marked as
requected by couneel)

MR, CROWE: Q Now these coples were made on the port-
agle machine that you have hsretofore deeoribed?.

A Yss gir,

Q Directing your attention to Decoration Day of
thie year, Friday, along in theevening, did you see
§&than Leopold, Jr., the déféndant in this case?

A Yee sir,

Q VWhere did you see him? A At the State's
Attorneyrs office.

Q Did you have a telk with him oxr did he talk wiéh
you with reference to the portable typewriter?

A Yee eir,

Q Wil® you etéfe what wes seld and by whom, or the
suts tance of ite

‘A Well I wes asked some Questions by one of the State's
Mtorneys, Assistant State's Attorneys, at the time,
in the presence of Nathan Leopold, following which he
asked to have thepsrmission of the State's Attorney
to ask me a few Questions, His questions, when permis-
elon was granted, his firet question, if I recall accurately
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was, "Where wae the typewriter when I cams into the
house that evening", and I think I answered that the
typewritzr weg sitting on a deek in the corner of the
library., I think then he asked me whether I was eure
it was there, and I said yes, Then I think he asked
me wa€ he in the room,and I said I didn't think he was,
I thought he came down after I came in the house, he was
ups talrs phoning or doing something. I think that wae
all thathe asked ne at the time,

Q Did he at that time discuss the ownership of this
typewriter with you or with anybody else in the room?

A No eir,

QThere was no discussion about the ownership d‘ﬁh;
typewriter at that time?

A Not at that particular instant. During the evening
there wag a discussion.,

Q Well, all right. Later on, or before that?

A 'Before that,

Q Before that, and what wae the discussion about the
ownership of the typewriter, carlier in the evening?

A This was not in his presence. He was in the State'’s

Attorneyrs Office, in a different room,
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Q Then if he was not precent don't stabte it
You may oross sxamins,
MR, BACHRACH: ©No cross examination.
(No croee examination and witnees

excused., )
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HOWARTD OBERNDORTF,
called as a witness on behalf of the prosecution, having
been first duly sworn, testified as followe:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROVE,
QO Will you state your name, pleass?

A Howard Oberndorf,

Q And what is your occupation? A Sthdent .
Q Where do you live, Mr. Oberndorf? A A% 4920 Black-
stone,

Q You are a law stg@gnt at the Chicago Univergity,
are you? | |

A Yes sir,

Q Viere you studying law last winter and last £all?

AT was,

Q Do you know the defendant Nathan Leopold, Jr.?

AT dol

Q Have you sver had any-occastion to, visi®x his hodle?

AT have,

Q For what purpore?

A To study.

MR, CROWE: Well I might shorten this a little, by
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aakipg, if there is no opjection —

MR, DARROW: I @didn't get that?

BR. CRONE: I might shorten thie by asking him 2 lead-
ing Question?

MR, DARROW: Oh yes, lead him,

’
MR, CROWE: Q You are one of the students that
used to go up kxBE¥ thers and dope sheet?
A That is right.
Q Did you ses a porbable typewriter at any time during
the menths of February or March or April of thig
year at the Nathan Lsopold, Jr., homs?
A Yes sir, o
Q .D0 you imow what kind of a machine it waé?
A1 do not,
QI will dirsct your attention to Pzople's Exhibit
1 for identification, and 8, and I will ask you to
look at 1t and statewhether you ever saw a machine of
that general type iﬁ the Leopol home during February
or March or April of thisyear? " Y 0
A T couldn,t say that that machine ie any more
like the one that I ever saw, than any other portable

typewriter that I have ever sesn.

Q Well, get the question again. Directing your atten-
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tion to People's Exhioit, ie the machine tﬁat you
gaw in the Le2bpold home of the same general type?

AT bzlisve the answer I gave holds. All portables
look alike to me.

Q Well thes is a portable -— would you call thet
a portable?

A T would.

Q 4nd they sl look alike?

A Yes sir,

Q@ Did ycu have any t2lk with Nathan Leopold Jr, on
decoration day of thie yzar, in the Stats's Attorney's
office, in reference to a portabls typenriter?

A ves air, |

Q W:11 you etate wletthe conversation was between you
and he or bztween any othzsr person and he in your pre-
g22nce, in ref-rance to & portable typewrit:zr?

A My, Savage asked me questions similer to those
that I hsve been asked now, and the answers were
practically the game as I have given now, namely,
that I didn't know exact ly what kind of a machine it
was, Nathan Leopold zeked a few questions bn that
occagion, firet,where wae the machine when I entersd

the room, and to the best of my knowledge I said it was
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on the table or dzsk by the window, The second Question
waf in reference to when Maremont asked a2 question regard-
ing the mzchine, saying he hadn't noticed it ® fore,
and Nathan wantsd to know whether that was made when
he was in the room or not, and I eaild I wasn,t sure,
it was probably made on one of two occasions, when we
came in in the beginning, or when Arnold took the mabh;ne
to use it for writing a few lines while Nathan went
to the telephons, and I wasar't sure of these two facts,
if the statemant w2e made or the dquestion was asked,
Q Was there any qusstion about the ownersh p of the
machins at that time? | |
A There wae not.
Q mhere had been a discussion prior to that between
you and Savage?
A Yo sir,
‘MR, CROWE: All right, you may croses examiﬁ;;
MR, DARROW: That is all.
(No cross examination and witness

excusead).
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MAURICE SHAMBER G,
called as a witnsss on beshalf of the Prosecutica, having
b:en first duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMIVATION
BY MR, CROWE.
Q What is yow nams?
A Maurice Shambsrg,
THE COURT: Talk louder please? A Meurics
Chamberg,
THEE COURT: Spell your nawe?
A E{-:a.-u-r-—i—c—-e S-h-a-n-b-e-r-g.
MR, CROWE: G Andyou 11v: whers? A 843 La-
fTayette Parkway.
Q You are a student at the Chicago Univarsity? & Yee
gir.,
Q Studying ¥aW, are you? A Yes gir,
Q And’were during the winter of 19234, ie that'cor-
rpct? , , '
A Yes sir,
Q Do you know the defendant Nathen Leopold, Jr.?
4 ves sir,

Q Did you study law with hiu?

A Yes sir, . .
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MR, CROWE: Now if there is no objection, I will
lead him along?

. MR, DARROW: fThat ig all Tight,

MR. CROWE: necause I think this is merely corrobora-
tion of the oth:r,

MR, DARROW: That is &all right,

MR. OROWE: Q Ygu have"dope sheetud" at tﬁ? Leopold
homs during the Winter; have you?

A Yes eir,

O #nd worked on Equity? A ves gir,

Q There wouldbe carbon coples made and dietridbuted

.
Coy !

among you boys? T '”?

A Yes sir. |

Q Wwhat kind of a machine would this typewriting be
done on?

A A Hammond,

Q Did you se: any other kind of a machine there?

AT did later on,

Q Vhen? A I think it was about the '
seocond to the last time I wae thare, I don't remember

exactly the date,

Q Well about when, What month? A The latter

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 222 1924



50 A o ~333-

o

part of Februa;&.

Q And in February you saw what kind of a machins,
beside the Hammond?

A A portable,

Q Do you know what the make of it was?

A No eir,

Q Did you have a discussion with Nathen Leopola in phe
Vétate‘s Attorneyl=soffice on Decorztion Day of thie

year in refarence tc¢ u portzble typewriter?

A Yeg sir.

Q What was the diecussion?

A well, I was confronted with the queetion that Nathan
Leopold s2id that was my typewriter, and of course I
den 1ed that gtatement., Then I belizve Nathan Leopold
asked me thesse questions, one whether I knew whether
there was a portable bypewritsr in hise home prior to
the time we had used it the first time, and the answer
was no., The second question was, when was the firdt
time we ueed 1t -~ I think it was, I don!s exactly
recall, and the answer I gave was,"I think it was
the first time wes 'doped' Equity."

Q Now what elsg, if anything, was said at that time?
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A Tpat wae ail.

Q I will direct your attention to a Hammond typewritsr
h=re, it has been offered for identification, =md I
w1l ask you whether that is the zame gensral make as
the one you saw in the Lsopold home?

A Yes sir.
‘ QI w11 dirsct yaur'attention t0 another typewriter,
an Underwood portable, and ask you whether or not that
ie the esans general type of machiﬁe that you saw in
February in the Lz2opold homs?

AT really doa't know, All I kaow is that it was
a portable typewriter, |

Q That it was a portable typevwriter?

A Yes s,

MR, CROWE: All right, you may cross examine,

MR, DARROVW: Nothing.

(No crose examination and witness

exoused).,

L T I
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LESTER ABELSON,
a witness called on behall of the prosecution havihg
been first duly sworn, tsetified as followe:
DfREGT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROVE.

Q Will you state your name? A  Lester
Apslson,

Q And where do you 11 ve?

THE COURT: Wwhat iz the namé?

MR, CROWE: Abelson,

Q vhesre do you live, Mr. Abvelson? A 937 Mar-
gate Terrace.

Q And you are a law student at the Univerelty of
Chicago? ‘

AL an,

MR, CROWE: Now in order to e2ve time, his testimony
will be —-- your testimony about the portable typewritser
will be substantially as the other three boye who
preceded you, wont 1t? ) |
AT belleve it will‘be.

MR, DARROW : All right, we will admit it.

MR, CROWE: And unless there is —-

e
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MR, DARROW: We will admit it w.uld be subetantially

the sams as the other two boys.

MR. CROWE: All right.

Q You were in the Statsls Attorney's Office on Decor-

ation night?

‘A1 wae,

Q And sew Nathan Leopold, &nnior there and talked

to him about the portable typewriter?

A Yes gir,

THE COURT: You may have a recsess now, gentlemsn.

MR, CROWEZ: Abou ten minutss, your Honor?

THI COURT: A1l right.

¥hsreupon a shert cecess Was hers

taken by Court snd Counssl,
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(Whereupon pursuant to a short recess heretofore
taken the following proceedings were hed,)
MR, CROWE: Cell in one of the Smith girls, Take the

Bta.nd, Mﬁdamo

LUCILLE SMITH,
6a11ed a8 a Witness on behalf of the Peopls, having been
first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Mr, Crowe,
MR, CROWE: Now talk up loud sc that the Court and counsel
and the defendants can hear you,
| Q What is your name please?
A Lucille Smith,
Q Where do you live?
MR, DARROW: Louder.,
MR, CROWE: Lucille Smith.
THE WITNESS: 90543 Aveue L,
MR, CROWE: And what station is tHat?
A South Chicago.
Q South Chicago?
A Yes, sir.

Q Where did you live on May 2ls%, 192432
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A At 118th Street and the Pennsylvenia Reilrosd.

Q And vwhat station do you call that?‘

A Agers.
’73 Agers Station?

A Agers Station,

@ Have you a daughter?

A Yes, sir,. |

Q What islhet name?

A I have several, Jeannette -

Q Well, have vou one thut is here today?

4 Yes, sir, Jeannette Saith,

Q@ Jcannette?

A Yes, sir,

Q Wow, directing your attention to the night of May 21 4,
1924, where did you and your daughter go that evening?

A Ve went to a show at 106th Street,

Q That is a wmoving picture show?

A loving picture show, yes, sir.

Q And what time did you get out, about what time?

'A I suppose about nine o'clock or thereszbouts.

0

Q@ And what did you and your daughter do then? That is,

hew did you go home?
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A We stopped -- walked across the street, went iﬁto ﬁhg
Candy store and then Went'direot home.

Q Aldng what road? -

A Along Ewing Avenue until we got to 108th Street, and
then 108th Street until we came to the dirt road that goes
across the prairie, and then went on the dirt road,

Q Now, was your attention or your daughter's attention
when you were walking across the road attracted to an
autowobile?

A We met an automcbile on the dirt road.

Q And desoribe the automobile as best you can and anything
that happened in caﬁnection with 1t?

A Vell, it was a large dark touring car we met and had
side curtains‘on » As we met 1t, we simply stepped to the
right to let them go past. They(?ad bright lights and they
blinded us, and we stepped into the grass and waited until
they drove past us.

Q Thebright lights blinded you?

A Yes, sir,

MR, CROWE: You may oross examine,

MR. DARRQOW: No cross examination.

MR, CROWE: Oh, yes, which way was the ocar headed, to

Chicago or from Chicago?
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4 A To Chicago.
Q@ Ycu stated they had had side curtains?
A Yes, sir, the side curtains were on,

MR, C(ROWE: All right, That is all, Now, will you step out

and tell your daughter te come in,

(Witnesg excussed., )
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JEANNETTE SNITH,
called as' a Witness on behalf of the people, having Egen
first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Kr,Crowe,

¥R, CROWE: Sit down please,

Q Your name is what?

A Jeannette Smith,

Q And where do you live?

THE COURT: A little louder,

IR, CROWE: Jeannette Smith, Just speak so everybody can
hear you.

Q Where do you live?

A 9543 Avenue L,

Q You are the daughter of the lady who just got off the
gtand?

A Yes, sir,

Q Directing your attention to the night of May 3lst, 1924,

‘about shortly after nine o'clock, you were with your mother,

were you?
A Yes,sir,

Q Returning from a moving picture show?
A Yes,sil‘.
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Q Do you remember walking up a dirt road?
% Yes, sir. |

Q Did ycu see an' automobile at that time?
A Yes,sir,

Q W11l you describe 1t7

L It was & large dark touring car and had side curtains

on and bright lights,

Q And you and your wother stevped aside to let 1% go by
A Yes,sir,

Q Tha* was coming toward or from Chicago?

A From Chicago.

Q Coming to Chicago or from Chicago?

A From it. | :

Q Which way were you walking?

A Ve were walking that way (Indicating), south,

MR, SMITE: They were ccming from Chicago.

THE WITNESS: I mean we were coming from Chlcago.

MR, CROWE: Q And which direction was the machingﬂgoing?
A To Chicago.

Q To Chicago?

A Yes, sir.

MR, CROWE: You may cross examine.

MR, B, BACHRACH: No cross examination.
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MR, CROWE: Do you know where the culvert is oub bhere
at 118th?
A Yes, sir.
@ How far was this spot you were on from that culvert?
A Well, it was about —- 1t would be about eleven blocks,
I imagine. ' .
Q About eleven blocké?
A Yes,sir,
Q Was the machine going to or coming from the culvert?
A Couing from the culvert.
MR, CROWE: All right. You may go, thank you, Mr, Bernard

Hunt.

(Witness excused)
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v

BERNARD HUBRT,
calléd as a ﬁitness on behalf of the People, having been
first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRFCT EXANINATON
By
Mr. Crowe,
THE COURT: Take your seat up there, please. Ve will
Sugpend Jut a minute, The Grand Jury are ceming in.
(After the Grand Jury retired, the following
proceedings were had.)
MR. CROWE: Will ycu state your name, please?
A Bernard Hunt,
THE COURT: The last neme?
THE WITRESS: Hunt,
MR. CROWE: Q Whers do you live, Mr, Hunt?
A 8333 Aberdeen Street,
Q And what is your occupation?
A Night watchman.
Q Directing your attention to May 2lst, or the early morning
of May 22nd, 1924, will you state to the Court where you
werel

A I was at 45th and Greenvood Avenue,

Q Did you see an automobile go by from which anything

was thrown?
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l
v

A Yes,
Q Abcut what time of the evening was that?
A About one thirty in the mornihgt
MR, DARROW: What time did he say?
4R, CROWE: One thirty in the mornihg.
Q Of what morning?
A The morning of the 23nd.
Q The morning of the 22nd?
A Yes, sir,
@ VWhat kind of é car did you see at that time?
A It was a maroon car,
Q Viell, describe it?
A The car was = i% hadla rouﬂd‘ééb‘anq roﬁh@ cﬁftéins
and red wheels.
Q What kind of wheels?
A Disc wheels, and bright metal headlights,
Q@ Are you familiar with the various makes of cars?
A Yo, sir, I am not.
Q@ You don't know what make this was?
A Yo, I do not.,
Q Now, did you see that car afterwards?

A Yes, I seen i1t afterwards,

Q Where?
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A ;'seen it over hege at thé Mﬁgicipal Pler,

MR, .SUITH: Talk up louder, :

MR, CROWE: @ And is the car yéu saw at the Municipal Pier
the sams car you saw pass you this night or morning?

A Well, T believe it is the same car. It just answers the
description, I did not see the number that night, but
otherwise it answers the description in every way.

Q Now, where was the car on the morning of the 23nd when
yéu saw 1t, on what street?

A On Greenwood Avenue,

Q Going in what direction?

—

A Going south, It wag westbound on 48th Street, and swung
é

‘Bouth on Grsenwood.

Q@ Did anything happen?

A Well, the only thing that happened was before they threw
the chisel out, they slowed down ==~

Q Then what?

A —~ near 49th Street and the man that was sitting in the
Tear éeat of the car he ralsed up like that (Indicating),
part ways and leaned ghead and threw this chisel out, or
the object, such as it was..

Q And did they stop or keep on going then?

A No, they never come to a stop. They slowed down so a
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12 & men ocould easily step out of the car without any trouble,
and after they threw the chisel out they started up again
and I was on 48th Street at the time, and I --

Q VWhat did you do?

A I stayed there until they passed me by on 49th.

Q Then what did you do?

A It was on my road to where the chisel lay, I was on
my road to the Greenebaum house --

MR. CROWE: Talk so everybody can hear you,

A ~- I walled down and seen the chisel laying on the
side&alk, went over and picked it up and examined it.

Q Describe the chisgel,

A The chigel wos & cold chisé‘ll.‘

Q Yes,

A Wrapped with tape and blood was on the chlsel at the
time, fregh, or it was dried.

Q@ I will show you a chisel bound with tape and with a
paper on here, and state whether you ever saw that ohisel
before?

A Yes, sir, I saw that chisel before, that is the chigel
I picked up,

Q Is that the one that was thrown out of the car?

A That is the one that was thrown out of the car.
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13
Q And you turned it over to the authorities, did you?

A Turned it over to the authorities.

Q@ When did you turn it over to the authorities?

A About 13:30,

Q@ The same morning?

A That wzs the first opportunity I had of turning it over,

MR. CROWE: I will offer in evidence the chisel bound with
tape and blood soaked and ask that it be warked People's
Exhibit, whatever number it i1s, Mark it on the tape,

(Document marked as requested by counsel,
People's Expibit 8-J.)

Q@ Vho do you work for? ‘
A Vell, I get my own route there,

Q Well, you work for the neighbors, watching their
places?

4 TFor the different pronerty owners.

MR, CROVE: You may oross examine.

MR, DARROW: No cross examinatiwn.

MR, CROWE: This paper, if your Honor pkease, has some
initials on it. That paper is just put on for purposes
of the police. The tape is on the other end. All right,
that is all, Mr, Hunt,

(Witness excused.)
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14 MR, bROﬁE: ngn Mendel, II,
MR, SMITH: The Chief of Police is here.
MR, CROVE: Just wait a minute, Mr. Mandel, Step out.
Chief Collins.
MR, SMITH: The Chief stepped down sgtairs,

MR, CROWE: All right, Mr, Mandel. Here the Chief is.

MORGAN A, COLLIUS,

' ealled as a witness on behalf of the People, having been
first duly eworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
By

Mr, Crowe,

.Q - Will you state your name, please?

A »Morgan A. Collinsg,

Q And what is your occupation?

A I am a police officer, at present Superintendent of
Polics,

Q Of the City of Chicago?

A City of Chicago.

Q@ I will direct your attentionk Chief, to a yellow
envelope on which ig printed "Yellow Drive It Yourself System;
Inc," Will you read that, I have not my glasses.

A "Yellow Drive It Yourself System, Inc,, 1428 South

Michigan Avenue,"
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' i ) \.' !
Q@ That is printed in the left hand corner, and then there

t
, !

is & staup made, 24, May 24th, '234, typewritten, Morton D,
Ballard, Morrison Hotel, Chicago, Illinois. The post office
mark ie Chicago, May 13th, 11 P M, Illinols, and four cents
cancelled stamp, and on the extreme end 1s written in pepcil,
Thomas leWilliams, Menager, Did you ever see that before?

A Yes, sir,

. .Q'Who gave i1t to you, and when?

A lr, McWilliams on Mey 3lst, to the best of my
Tecollection,

Q Was there anything in the envelope”

+ ‘A 'Yes, there was a communication to a man named Ballard,

:d Ang what else?

A Sume advertising matter and a card of membership of
some kind issued to Ballard,

Q@ And what was that card in?

A The cardwwas in a case which accompanied -~

Q I will show you that card case with the identification
card issuved by the Rent-A-Car People to Morton D, Ballard,
and ask you whether that is 1%?

A Yes, sir, that 1s the case and that is the card,

Q@ And the letter addressed to him on the "Yellow Drive

It Yourself System", to Morton D, Ballard, Morrison Hotel?
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16 A And this is the letter,

Q These two letters are advertisements?

A That is the ad materisl they had in there,

Q And you turned this over to the State's Attorney's

office?

A I turned it over to Captain Schumacher, and he turned

1t over to the State's Attorney,

MR,

CROWE: I will introduce the envelops ang'ask that it

be marked People!s Exhibit 7.

MR Y

MR,

(Marked as requesied by counsecl.)
CROWE: The letter has People's Exhibit 8.
(Harked as requested by counsel,)
CROWE: The identification card, People's Exhipit S«

(Marked a8 requested by counsel,)
CROWE: And the iwo ads marked 10 and 11,
(Marked as requested by counsel.)
CROWE: You may oross examine,
DARROW: No cross examination.
CROWE: Call the next witness,
SMITH: Mr. Mandel.

(Witness exoused.)
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17 UEON MANDEDL, I,
called as a Witnese on behalf of the Peop193 having been
first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECTBEXAMINATION
y

Mr,Crowe,

Q@ What is your name please?

"~

Leon Mandel, II,

And where do you live, Mr. Mandel?

> O

Lake Store Country Club, Glencos, I11indis.

What 1s your occupation?

O

4 lerchant.
Q And your place of business is on State and Madison?

A Yes, sir,

O

Do you know the defendant, Nathan Leopold, Jr,
A Yes,sir,

Do you knoWw the defendant, Richard Losb? |

= D

Yes, sir,

Q How long have you known these two defendants?

4 I have known thelr names for as long as I can remember.
I have known them personally since November, 19233,

Q At any time in the fall or early winter of this year,

did you and Nathan Leopold, Jr., contemplate the translation

of any works?
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18 A iYes,'siri

Q. Will ;ou state to the Court what it was that you and he
intended to translate?

& The work of an Italian gatirist, by the name of Aretin6¢

Q Aretino? |

A Yesg,

@ And had you made a study of Aretinols works?

A No, sir. I came across references to him in the study
of English literature, and transzation made from the Italian
into German of his works while studying at the University,
and beceme interested.

Q Had your study -- what particular work of Aretino were
you goling to translaté?

4 The Raglon Anenti, or Dialoguss.

Q Had you read that?

A Yeg, sir,

Q@ And do you know whether Nathan Leopold, JT., had made
any study of Aretino's works or this particular book?

A Why, he had not, noc, sir,

Q What?

‘A He had not.
Q You were better informed on 1t in your judgment than

he was?
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18 Q Now, was there anything done towards t£e translation,
.@id you do any work, either ﬁe or you, any typevritten
work? |
A Yeg, sir,‘the first few pages were translated, He did
the typewriting.
Q@ And where and when did he do the typewriting?
A At his home some time in the winter.
Q Some time this last winter?
4 Yes,sir,
Q Vhat kind of a machine, if you know, did he work on?
A T don't know, sir.
Q Do you know whether it was a statidnﬂ;y\or portable
machine?
A Vhy, 1t was a portable machine.
Q@ The make of it you don!t know?
A lo,sir.
Q@ You knew these defendants socially, did you?
L Yes,sir,
Q Did you ever gemble with them?
A Yes, sir,
Q How frequently?

A Probably five or six times.
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Q And what would you play?
& Bridge,
'Q What stakes would Leopold and Mandel play for, if you

know? Leopold and Loeb, what stakes would they plsy for, if

you knew?

A

Thelr stakes varied,

Q Well, what was the highest and the lowest?

A

Q

L

> O

I sheould say between five and ten cgntg & point,

A poxint, in bridge?

Yes, sir,

That is equivalent to what limit in poker, do you know?
No, sir.

What 1s that?

No, sir, I don't know.

MR. DARROW: Don't you know?

MR, CROWE: I asked that questlon for your comfort and mine

also, Mr, Darrow.

Q

Well, did you consider that a high sfp%e to play for?

MR, DARROV: I object to that.

THE WITNESS: I did not play for that stake.

IR, CROWE: What 1s the highest stzke you played for?

MR, DARROW: I object.

MR, CROWE: With them?

MR, DARROW: I object.
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31 THE COURT: On, yés, I @on'f think he ought to be required
to say that, what he has done. He sald they played for fivé
_and ten cente a point, bridge.
YR,CROWE: I don't know whether your Honor knows whether
that is a high stake or not,

THE COURT: I do.

MR, CROWE: All right. You may cross examine,

CROSS EXAMINATION
By
Mr,B,Bachrach,
Q Mr, Mandel, how often did you play at the rate of five
and ten cents a point with these two defendants?
& I did uot play with them for that stake,
‘yﬂ. CROWE: Why not? I beg your pardon,
MR, B, BACHRACH: You did not play with them you say?

A T played in the game with them but did not play for
the same gtake,

Q@ Did they have any big losses when you played ith them
&t all?

A Yes, sir,

Q How big?

A I think the largest was about ninety dollars, I believe,

Q That is the largest loss?
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22 L Yes, sir, that is the largest I saw,

Q\And who won it?‘(

A I really donit know, they would play against each
other,

Q@ If one lost that, the other won?

A Yesg, sir,

Q@ They were playing a little higher than the rest in the
game? -

A Yes,sir,

Q Did either of them win that much other times?

A I'don‘t know, because that was the only way we played
with them.

o Q@ Yes. And how often did you play with them?

A About five or six times, sir, possibly.

Q Altogether?

A Altogether,

Q And how much money changed hands during that five or
gix times, altogether?

A I am unable to state that, éii.

Q@ Give an outside figure. ‘

A Altogether in the geme, you mean, between all the four

players or five players?
qQ Yes?
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23 A Three or Your hundred dollars, I presunme,
Q Somebody was out three or four hundred dollars altogether
on &ll those games? |
A Yo, sir, you sec they were playlng against each other
which would mcan\if one won, the other would lose that amount.
q Yes,
L The other players in the game might only lose five or
ten dollars, so it 1ls hard to estimat;the entire amqunt

won or lost,

MR, B, BACHRACH: That is all,

RE DIRECT EXAMINATION

By
Mr,Crowe,

Q@ You say they were playing agginst one another and
their 1imit was five or ten cents?

A Yes,

Q And what was the other players' 1imit?

A B®tween one and three cents.

Q Now, did you ever loan a portable typewmitér to‘Na%han
Leopold?

A VNo,sir.

Q@ Or ever glve him ones

A VYo,sir,
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. ‘ , v
MR, CROWE: That is alls Just one further questlon,

Q@ You have just returned from Europe recently?'\

A Yes, éif,

1 11linois.

Crimnal Court.

(Witness exoused.,)
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25 ,Ha G STR OjM B'ER G, .
calieé as a witnéss on behalf of the Peéple, ha&ing beéﬁ
firét duly'SWOrn, was examined and testified ;g.follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION |
By
Mr.Crowe.

Q Will you state your nams pleasé?

A H. C, Stronberg.

Q And where do you live, Mr. Strégﬂgrg?

A 1054 East 47th.

Q@ What is your occupation or business?

A Stationery, book stors,

Q@ You run a stationery and book store?
A Yeg,slir,

Q@ Do you know the defendant, Nathan Leopol&, Jr?

A Yes,sir,

Q@ For how long & time have you known Nathén Leéopold, Jr,?

4 About seven or eight years,

Q And he has frequently bought thinges in your storé, hes
he?

A Yes, sir, off and on.

Q Do you remember selling him anything in the spring of

this year?
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A T sold him paper und envelopes.

Q « When?

A About the middle of May,

Q Of this yea¥?

A Yesg,sir,

Q@ Do you recollect the kiﬁd of envelopes and paper you
gold hin? .

A Yes, sir, pretty near. Plain envelopes and plain paper.

MR. CROWE: Will your Honor pardon me just a mrment, We
are getting the exhibits out. And I want the ransom
letter,

Q Did you see Nathan Leopold around the first of June of
this year, at your place of business?

A To, sir, I think about the middle of Uay.

Q@ I know, but did Nathan Leopcld and some officers and
anybody from the State'!s Attorney's office come out to see
you?

A Yeg,sir, , .

Q About the first of Tune?

A Yes,sir.

Q Yhat, 1f anything, did Nathan Lecopold say at that time,
to you? Did you show him any paper,

4 No, sir, T did not. He said he bought paper and envelopes
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27 and also candy, chocolate candy.,

Q Vhen did yhe say he bought that?

. A Vell, he did not state the time. He said he péughp it.

Q@ Now, I widl show you three pads,

A It looks like that one.

MR, CROWE: Indicating the one whioch reads "Our Leader",
"white satin finish." It looks like that paper?

A Yes, sir,

Q That is the paper you sold him in the middle of May?

A He picked it himself and, sald, "That will do."

Q He picked 1t when? The day he was down there with
the State's Attorney's man?

A No, before, in the middle of Mdy; so‘I did not take
no notice. He said, "They will do". Hs picked the paper
and envelopes.

Q@ And this came from your store, didn't it?

A Yes, sir,

Q@ I will show you an envelope?

4 That is uine,

Q Will you state whether or not the envelope I am showing
you resembles or not the envelopes you scld Nathan~Leopold

on the -=- in the middle of May?

A It looks like that ons,
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28 Q It iooké‘likehthat one?
A ’Yes,lsir. | s
Q@ Now, I will show you an envelope addressed to Mr,Jacob
Franks, marked People'é Exhibif B‘of this date, and ask you
whether or notb—
A That ie about tho size of that paper, ien't i%?
Q — 1t resembles the envelope you sold him at that time?
A Yes, that is right.
Q@ I will show you a plece of paper which has been
marked People's Exlibit A of this date, being a letter,
typewritten letter on 1t, purporting to be signed by George
Johnson, and ask y-u whether that remselbles the paper you
sold him?
A Yes, sir, it &oeé.
R I will also show you another envelope addressed to Jacob
Franks --
A Thaf is about the same,
r ‘MR, CROVE: -— Which I do not belleve has been introduced,
Judge, your Honor, but the envelope that was mailed to
Jacob Franks containing the ransom letter, and ask you to
look at that, and also the other tw? pieces of peper there

\
that contain the ransom letter and state whether they

remseble the paper you sold —
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Q ~- Leopold in May?

A 'Yes; sir, the same size,

Q@ Do you know how much he paid for these?

A Five and ten cents for the envelopes.

Q Five cents for what?

A For the tablet, and ten for the envelopes.,

MR. CROWE: Now, we offer in evidence a pad of paper
marked "Our Leader, White Satin Finish", which the witness
has just seen, and ask that it bemarked Pecple's Exhiblt
13.

(Marked as requested by counsel,)

MR, CROVE: And the plain white envelope with, in penéil
on the right hand corner, "6-~1/3", that the witness has
Jjust seen and ask that be mark;d People's Exhibit 13,

(Marked as requested by counsel,)

MR, CROWE: You may cross examine, —

MR. B. BACHRACH: No orcss examination,

MR, CROWE: That is all.

(Witness exoused,)
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]

ALBERT HUBINGER,
called as a witness on Behalf uf the Peopls, having been
firet duly sworn, was examined and testified as folldweE
DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Mr, Crowe,
Q@ What 1g your name, pleasel?
A Alvert Hubinger,
THE GOURT: What?
THE WITNESS: Albert Hubinger.
IR, CROWE: Q And where do you live?
A 517 East 34th Street,
Q And what is your business?
A Hardware clerk.
Q@ 4And where is the hardware store located that you work
in?
A 4336 Cottage Grove Avenue,
Q And you were working there during the month of May,
12347
4 I was,
Q And you worked there on the 2lst day of May?
A Yes, sgir,
Q I will ask you to state whether or not at any time

around the firet of June you saw Nathan Leopold, JTr., in
1 1Illinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 255 1924



200
31 ydué plaée of business? Look at the gentleman With his
. arm on the table there, in the middle.‘Did you see him at
your place of business with me?

A T ocan not state positively that I did.

Q Somebody was out to your place of business about the
firgt of June with myself?

- A Yes,sir,

Q Do you remember seling a cold chisel during the month of
May?

L Yes, sir,

Q@ I will ask you to look at the cold chisel heretofore
introduced in evidence by the State, and state whether or
not that reaembles the cold ohisel you sold in May?

A Yes, sir, it is similar. .

Q@ The same general pattern?

A Yes,sir,

Did you sell any rope at the same time?

> O

Yes,sir,
Q I will show you & pilece of rope here, and ask you
does that resemble'the rope that you sold at the same time?
A It does,
Q How much of the rope did you sell, do you know? "

A Between twenty five and fiity feet,
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YR, CROWE: I will introduce‘this s%rand of Tope in
q#%dence and ask it be marked People’s Exhibit 14, |

(Marked as requested by counsel,)

MR, CROWE: @ Now, do you remember the gentleman sittiné
alongside of Leopold being in vour store, indicating Richard
Loeb?

4 I can not make_a positive identification.

Q Well, do either one of those men resemble the man that
was in there?

A The latter one you addressed as Richard Loeb resembles
the gentleman,

Q The latter one, Righagd Loeb, resembles the man?

A Yes,sir, .

Q That is the maﬁ who bought the chisel and the rcpe?

‘A" Yes,sir,

MR. CROWE: All right, Thank you. Cross examine.

MR, DARROW: No cross examination.

MR, CROWE: What is your address?

A 517 East 34th Street.

Q 517 East 34th Street?

A Yes,

MR, SUITH: All right.

(Witness excused.)
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33 AARON ,A.D L ER,
called as a'Witness on behalf of,the People} having hesn
fir;t duly sworn, was examined and testified as follon;i
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY
Mr,Crowe.,
Q V¥hat is your name?
A Aaron Adlér‘
¥R, CROWE: You will have to talk louder.
THE GCOURT: What? Adler, A—d-l-e—f?
THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, A-d-l-e-r. |
MR, CROWE: Asaron What?
THE WITNESS: Adler, A-d-l-e-r,
IR, CROWE: Q Where do you live, Mr. Adler?
A 4458 Cottage Grove Avenue, |
Q What 1s your business or occupetion?
A Drug store,
Q Where is your drug store?
A 4458 Cottage Grove Avenue,
Q@ And were you located thers in the drug business on the
2lst day of May, 19347

A Yes,sir,

Q@ Do you remember selling a bottle of hydrochlaric acid
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on that date?‘

A

Q

Yes, sir.

How big a tottle was 117

A Pint bottle.

> o

O = oo

-

> D

Q

What?
Pint bottle, a pound they call it.
A pound?
Yeg, sir,
And whet kind of hydrochloric acid was 1t7
C P they call it, ochemically pure,
Chemically pure?
Yes, sir.
Now, do you Trecolkst the'méﬁ}££é£‘ybu sold it to?
Yes, sir;
Who?
The gentleman was Nathan Leopold.
Nathan Leopold resembles him?
Yes, 'sir.
Had you sold any hydrochloric acid, that is a bottle

of it, before that?

A

Q
A

No,sir.
For how long a time had you gone without making & salef?
About three or four yearsa ’
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35 Q Had not scld any for threg or four years?
A .That partiocular brand, no. . |
Q How many dlfferent grades are éhere of hydrochlbric
acid, chemically pure and what else?
A Commercial grade.
Q@ Vhat ie the difference between the chemically pure and
commercial grade?
A One is for soldering and the other for laboratory use.,
Q@ Which is the strongest? .
A Chenically pure.
MR, CROWE: You may cross examine,
MR, B. BACHRACH: No cross examination.
MR, CROWE: That is all. :
THE COURT: Call your next.

(Witness excused.)

Y
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36 SYEN ENGLUND,
called as a witnesa on behalf of the People, having been

first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY
Ur,Crowe.
Q@ What is your name please?
A Sven Englund,
Q@ 4And where do you live?
A 4754 Greenwood Avenue,
Q You are a chauffeur for Nathan Lecpold, Sr?
A Yeg, sir,
”Q You are still employéd theré?
‘A Yes, sir, still working there,
Q@ And have been a chauffeur for how long a time?
4 Oh, I have been working for him altogether since 1906
and '08,
Q How many care are there?
4 There is four cars,.
Q Describe the various cars that the Leopolds have?
A There is a Packard twin six, a Lincoln first serial,

& Lincoln of the second serial, and Willys-Knight, and

Wills St, Claire.
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37 Q Will you desoribe the Willys-Knight car?

A The Willyé;Knight is\-— 1t is a sport wodel, maroon
with red disc wﬁeels and nickel piated bumpers and lamps
add it has a tan top and reflectors,

Q Whose car was that?

4 Nathan Leopold, Jr. used_to drivé that, that was hils
car,

Q@ Directing your éttention, Mr, Englund, to the 21st day
lof Hay, 1924, I will ask you what if anytﬁing you dld with
reference to the Willys-Knight sport model that belongs to
Nathan Leopold, Jr.? What time did you take it out in the
morning?

A I took it out between seven thirty and seven forty five
in the morning, and left it at the 'side door on the drive

Q@ That was your custom?

A Yeg, sir, that was the standing order,

Q Vhen did you next see the car that day, May 21lst?

A About coneo'clock,

Q Describe who brought it in and the ciTounstances?

A I was up in the room , upstaire in the garaée, and I
saw the car coming toward the garage on the driveway and
I went down to meet them and Nathan was driving in toward

the garage, and he suid he had some stuff in the car he
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wanted to put into Dick's car.

Q@ Now, who was Dick?

A  That was Richard Leeb.

Q Was Dick Leeb there at the time?

L No, he was gbout fifteen seconds behind, about fifteen
seogn&s back of hiu. |

Q What did he have?

A He had another car, I didn't take much notice of the car.

Q0 What was the color, light or dark?

A It was kind of a dark greem,

Q@ And Dick Loeb was in that car and Nathan was driving
the —--

A .He was driving his own car,

Q What else did you see?

A YNathan said he had some stuff he wanted to put into
Pick's car snd he took that stuff and folded it up so I digd
not see what he had. I saw him put it into Dick'!s car, in
the back of the car, and then he asked me 1{ I could not do
anything for the squeaky brakes, and I told him I read in the
motor magazine I could oll the brake bands and stop the
squaking I believed, and for him to be careful and use bhis
emergency brake so he won't run into something and break nis
neck. So, I oiled the brake bande and I said I would do i%
right avay, and I went and pulled the Packard car, I pulled
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that in the garage, and then I took the W;llyé~Knight right
after and pulled it in the?garage and took the disc wheels
off andloiled up the brakes.

Q You worked on the Willys-Knight that belonged to Nathin
Leopold, Jr, commencing what time that afternoon?

A About ten minutes to wo.

Q@ And it was in the garage from ten minutes of two until
what time?

A I went out driving at ten minutes to two sk when I
gotback at half past five it was in the garage.,

Q And was 1t taken outgof the garege at any time after
that, do you know?

A Nct uwp to nine thirty, I wes up to nine thirty and the
Car was in the gerage when I went to bed at nine thirty.

Q@ Vas it taken out after that?

A Uy wife says 1t was taken out --

MR, CROWE:No, no, not what your wife says?

Q Well, do you know whether it was taken out yourself?

A No, I did not seec 1t taken out.

Q You did not ses it7

4 TNo.,

Q Now, the next day ddd you see Dick Loeb and Nathan

Leopold?
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A TYes, they pSﬁe in, Richard with another car. That
was not Nathgn‘s cér.

Q Vas it the same car that Dick Loeb had the day
Eefore?

A Yes, as near as I can téll. I did not take such an
awlful close look at it, but --

Q@ And what if anything did these defendants do? That
igawith thie car that they brought in on the 33nd?

A I heard somebody downstairs, and then I was looking
out through the winéow and the car was in the driveway
and I went down to see what they was doing, Dick Loeb
had a pail of water and a cake of Bon Aml and XxB a scrubbing
brush and he was standing and rubbing the scrubbing brush
against the Bon Ami, and he had water on the brush, so there
Wag kind of a soap lather, and was putting it on the
outside of the car, on the paint on the rear door, bekindn
the rear and the front door, on the outside of the car,

Q Well, what else happened? Vhat was said?

A And then he said, Dick Loeb said they had scnme wine
and they spilled some in the cer and he did not want his
folks to know it,

Q Did he tell you the color of the winé?
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A Yo, he did not say the color ¢f the wine.

Q@ Uow, did yéu say anytﬁing to them?

A I — yes, I sald that T had no soap in the garage, I
had Gold Dust there, but it would take the varaish off the
car if you use the Gold Dust on the paint, And thenNathan
was on the other side of the car, and he had the gasoline
can., The gasoline they used, they poured gesoline and
he said "Here is your can", and he come arcund the back
of the c§r to me, and sald, "Here is your can.," I toock
the can 5? gee 1f there was any dirt in it, but there was
a2 quart and a half of gasoline—in the bottom of the can
end there waes no dirt in it, it was clean,

Q Now, did you offer to clean the car?

A I don't remenber if I really did the offer, but they
did not want we, Dick Loeb said it was all Tight, he was
just about through he said,

Q Now, was the door of the car open?

A.About four to six inches, and was open from the back
toward the front, and I was standing at the right front of
the car.,

Q Did yeu look into the car or did they do anything in
reference to the open door while you were there?

A Wo, I could not see through the open door. Heé had
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the dﬁorlopen about fbur to six inches and T was stanaing |
in the opposite direction.

‘Q Now, had you ever seen either ﬁicﬁard Loeb or Nathan
Leopold clean an automoﬁile around ycur place before?

A No, they never had clsaned -wne there,

Q Was there anything the matter with your young daughter
that dey? |

L Yes,she was ailing, she was sick, h§d a cold,; and ny
wife took her to a doctor,

Q She went to what dootor?

A To Doctor Wright, in the Mallers Building.

Q@ And that was on the 2lst —

A Rlst of May.’

Q ~— of May?

A &es,sir.

Q How many robes did the Leopold family have for their
autonobiles?
""A Oh, there is quite e number of robes phere; méybe six
or eight, or something. |

Q iﬁnd where were those robes kept, that is, as a general
rule;“

A4 I had one in the Packard car that Waslkept in the car

N

gteady. All the spare robes was kept in what we call the
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@ I will ask you to look at pleces £f a green robe that
are partially burnt —-

A That locks like one of the robes, the robe was a little
dark on one side and a little bit green on the other,

Q That resembles one of the robes Leopolds have?

4 Yes,

é Has that robe been missing?

A I have not secn the robe since Mey 2lst.

Q You have not seen the robe since May 2lst at the Leopold
house?

A Yes,

§R. CROWE: The remainder of the robe we are now shoWing"
the witness are those pieces that were identified this
morning, and have a pin in them and have been marked
People's Exhibit 3 for identification of thls date, You

may cross examine,

CROSS EXAMINATIQN
By
Mr, B. Bachrach,
Q Youwere down in the State's Attorney's office on

Decotation Day?
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44 A Yesg, sir, I was,

Q And the State's Attorney asked you about the car in the
garage?

A Yes, sir, he asgked me about the car in the garage,
yes.

Q And about all of these guestions?

A Yes, about the same,
‘@ And you were‘algqlbqipré”thg Grand Jury?

A Yes,sir.” |

Q Your wife too?

A Yes,sir,

Q You are still employed by the Leopolds at the Leopold
heuse?

A Still employed by Leopold§, yes.

¥R. B. BACHRACH: That is all.

MR, CROWE: That 1s all. Send your wife in now,

(Witness excused,)

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 269 1924



45

2L

MRS, ALMA ENGLUSND,

called as a witness on behalf of the People, having been

first duly sworn,was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

By
Mr, Crowe.

Q What is your name?

A

Alma Englund.

MR. CROWE: Youwlll have to talk louder than that.

THE COURT: Talk sc all can hear you.

THE WITNESS: Alma Englund.

THE COURT: Alma Englund.,

THE WITNESS: Yes,

MR, CROWE: Q And you are the wife of Sven Englund who

just left the stand here?

A

Q
A

Q

Yes, sir.
You life in the garage of the Nathan Leopold family?
Yes, Bir, I do.

Your husband was employed there and you lived there

on the 31lst and 32nd of May, 19347

A Yes, sir,

Q

A

Have you a daughter?

YeS,Siro
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‘ ég??
Q How old is she?
A She will be ten in November,
Q Do you remember the day you toock her to the doctor in
the Mallers Building?
A Yes, sir,

Q And you had a presoription filled for her?

L=

Yes, sir.

At Kidder & Lewis?

> O

Yes,

What day was that?

= O

The 2lst of May.

Q And this box is the box that oontained the medicine
that you got at that time? |

A Yes, sir.

MR, CROWE: I will introduce that in evidence merely fopr
the purpose of fixing the date. Mark that Pecple's Exhibit
15,

(Marked as requested by counsel,)

MR, CROVE: Q@ Now, Mrs, Englund, do you know the red
Willys-Knight car that was owned by the defendant, Nathan
Leopold, Jr,?

A Yes, gir, I do.

Q Was that in the garage On the evening of May 21st?
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A Yeés, it was in there ah five o'clock.,

Q VWas 1t taken out at any time after five o'olock that

night?

A

Yes, they took out the car about half past ten, but I

don!t know if it was the car or not.

Q You did not sees the people that took it oﬁt?

A No, and I did not see them teke the car out either.

Q And it was back in the garage the next morn;gg?

A TWell, that I don't know, | o

Q Did you see it after the 3lst?

A Yeg, I gaw it after.

Q@ It was around the garage after the let?[

A Yee. f{if}f

Q Now, when the car was taken out what were iéu'dging?

A T was undressing, going to bed.

Q@ And you started downstalrs did you?

A Yeg, sir,

Q In your night clotheg, and you went back on tnﬁﬁ
aocount? '

A Yeg, sir,

MR, CROVE: That is all., Cross examine.

MR, B, BACHRACH: No cross exanmination.

(Witness excused)
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MR, CROWE: May we suspend now, Judge?

'THE COURT: All right, if there is no objection,

MR, B, BACHRACH:

MR, DARROV: Yo,

No objeotion.

THE COURT: We will suspend now until two o'clock. All

the witnesses be back at two c'cleck sharp.

(Whereupon an adjournment was taken until two

oelock P,M., Thursday, July 24th, A. D. 1934,)

1 11linois. Crinminal Court.
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July 24th, 1924.

| 23:00 ofclock P,M,
Court convensd at two o'clock P.M. same
day, July 24th, 1934, pursuant tomecess

heretofore taken.,

Present: Same counsel &s before.
Jd, T. SEAS S,
.called a8 a witness on behalf of the prosecution, having

been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECTEXAMINATION
BY MR, CROVE,

THE COURT: I want to Warn you, you camera men, that
I #will send a man to prison who attempts to use onse.
The firet thing you know, 211 of you will go out if

. you don't behave yourselves, Procsed, Mr. Crowe,

MR, CROWE:‘ Q@ Will you kindly state your name?

A J, T. Seass. |

THE COURT: Talk louder please?

AJ, T, Seass,

MR, CROWE: Will you spell that?

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 274 1924



2 -370~

A S;é—a;s—s.
Q And where 40 you live, Mr, Sezss?
A 5%. Charles, Illinois,
Q What i1s your occupetion? A I am with
Halsey,Stewart & Company, a bond house.

Q In May, 1934, were you connected in any manﬁer
with the Harvard School in Chicago?

A Not directly copnected.

Q VWell what was your connection? A I organ-
ized & grouvp Of boye that I took charge of in the after~
noons, that I got from the Harvard School,

Q Well, you wers in the Hervard School on May 31st,
19247

A Yss sir,

Q Did you know Robert Franks in his lifetime?

A Yes gir,

Q He was & student at the garvard School wasn't he?

A Yes gir,

Q Where is this Harvard School located?

A 4713 Ellis Avenue.

Q@ Shicag ,. Cook COunty, Illinois?

A ¥Nes sir.
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Q Did you see Bépert Franke at the Haxverd School
on May élst, 19347
A ves sir.
Q Whatis the 1last time you sav him on that day,
what hour?
A Well it ves shortly aftsxr two o‘clocﬁ?
@ Do you know the defendant in this case, Richsrd
Loeb? |
A Yes egir,
Q Did you see Richard Loeb on May 31st, 1924, in the
Harvard School?
A yes sir, '.: P
¢ Did you talk to him?
’ Yes sir,
Q About what time of dey was it when you saW Richard
Losb in the Hervard School?
A A%out'two thirty in the afternoon,
Q What conversation, if any, did you have with him?
A Very short, I don®t remember what it was,
Q Just passed the time of day? A And,shoé];
hande with him, ,

¥R, CROWE: You may cross examine.
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MR. BACHRACH: No oross,

'MR. CROVWE: Just a moment.

Q Do you know Johnnie Levinson?

A Yes sir,

Q He is a student at the University? AAt
ths Harvard School.

Q Or at the Harvard School, rather?

A yes sir. '

Q was he there that day, on May 21lst, 1984?‘

A Yes sir,

Q@  V%as he with you at the time you spoks to Loeb?

A yes sir, |

Q Wh;re did you go with Levinson that dé§fl

A To a 13t at the corner of Drexel Boulevard and
48th Street.

Q And what did you do? A Played base—
ball.

Q Until what time in the afternoon?

A Four thirty.

Q And then where did you or Levinson go?

Al went home and Levineson went anothser way héme, he

lived in a different direction.

Q And which way? A He went north.
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Q' North on what strees?
A,f didntt see him leave,
MR, CROWE: All right, that is all.

MR, BACHRACH: Nocross,

(Witness excused).
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CARL J, ULVIGH, a
witngee celled on behalf of the proeecution, héving,
been first duly sworn,teetified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE.

Q ‘“ill you state your name, plsase?

& Carl J, Ulvigh,

Q Where d you live? "A" 4605 Drexsel
Boulevard,

Q And what 1s your cccupation?

A Chauffesur.,

Q For whom? A Mre,, Arthur Spiegel.

Q And what was your 6ccupation on’ May 3lst, 19247

A I was a chauffeur,

Q Do you know the defsndant in this case, Richard
Loeb?

A Yes sir,

Q How long have you known Richard Loeb?

A Iknow him since he was a 1little boy,

Q Do you know the defendant Nathan Leopold, Jr.?

A Yes gir,

Q How long have you known him? A About
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Q I will ask you whether or nd you saw Riqhgrd Loeb

on the afternoon of Mey Zlst, 192347

A Yes sir.
Q Where did you see him?
Avenue,

Q

Near what other sﬁrg?t?

A 48th Street,

Q And what was he doing at the time?
wag driving a car going south,

Q@ What kind of a car wae he in?

know, it wae a dark colored car,

Q@ What was the color of it?

~28 0~

A On Ellie
A He
A T don't

A I{ was a dark color, a real derk blue, or dark

green, I don't know which i% was, but it wae a dark

color,

Q A dark colorsd car, and What was it, a touring

car or a limousine or what?
A It was =z tcuring oar.
Q And what about the curtains?

curtaing all around it.

B

L rThere were

Q Wge thers anybody with Richard Loeb at that time?

A Yes sir,
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Q Who wae With him? A T don't mow.
Q ‘Vhers was Richard Loeb #itting in the car?
A ygeo was sitting behind the wheel.

Q Driving? A TYes,

Q And wherewas the other man?

A On the side of him,

'Q  About vhat time of day wae thie? A Fou?
"thirty, it was near four thirty.

Q Where were you going at that time?

ATl was going down to the Michael Reese hospital.

QTo call for whom?

A HMrgs, Spiegel.

Q And had you bsen in the habit of going thesre Wednee-
days at that hour, four thirty?

A Yes, I came from school as Wednesday is my echool
day for the lest two years for two families, we take
the car to school, and my day happened to be Wednesdey,

Q Well, were you ables to see the features of the

other man?

"
£

A No, I could not.
Q Did you speak to Loeb or did he speak to you at

this time?
A No sir.
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Q I msan by spsaking, did you salute one another?
A I waved at him,

Q@ And did he wave back at you?

A Yes, he 1lifted his hand.

MR, CROWE: Crossg =xamine.

SEOSS EXAMINATION
BY MR, BACHRACH,
Q  When wnas your sttention first called to seeing
Richard Loeb driving th t car on that day?
A I think it was on a Monday morning when I tock
Arthur Spiegel to school, ’
Q What? | A ‘I think it was én?;
Monday morning after the boys confessed ths marder
I took Arthur Spiegel to echool,
Q Well those confessione were reported in the
newspaper on the day after Descoration?
AI think that is right,
Q That is correct, isn't 1t?
A Yes,
Q Decoration Day was on Friday, the 30th of May,

and this wae the next day, the 31lst of May?

A Yes,
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Q This year? A Yes sir.

Q Is that correct?

& Yes sir,

Q And ths time you saW Loeb driving wae on the 218t day
of May?

A Yes sir, on a Wednesday.,

Q That would be ten days baforé?

A Yes sir. |

Q Ten days before your attention was first called to i%?

A Yes sir, .

Q 18 that correct? A Yes gir,

Q Between those dates your attention had not been

fcalled to it?

A No.

Q And who called your attention to it on the 313t day
of May?

A Arthur SpPiegel.

Q ge called your attention to 1t 1

Aﬂkzgssir.

Q Did he? A Yes sir,

Q Arthur Spiegsl? A Yes mir.
Q The boy? A Yes gir,.
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Q@ In a conversation witﬁ you?

A He came out thet morning 811 excited and I asked him
what he was so excited about —-

Q well, I haven't asked you that, But hz called
your attention to it in a conversation with himself, did

he?

A Yeg gir, '

Q Now then at the tims vyou seW Loeb, Sn the 3lst dg.j
of May, did you look at your watch at the time you eaW
him?

4 No, I didn't,

Q You cid nott :

A No,

Q Did you make any note of the time at which you saw
him on thah day?

A No, I did not.

Q Did you regard it, on the 3let day of May, 1954,
a8 though that matter was one of importance?

A No.

Q And ten days later when your attention was called

t0 it by someone you then remsubered seeing Loeb

drive a car?
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Q And you say you didntt notice who Was seated along-
gide of him?

A I dgidnot,

Q Did you obcerve very closely who was seated along-
side of him?

A No,

Q Now then, do you rémember where you were at two
o'clock on May 3lst, 18847

A vse sir.

Q Where wers you?

4 At school,

Q Atthe school? , ', A At 59th and Een—
wood.

Q And did you leave the school shortly after

that?
AT think it wae somewhere near a quarter to three

welpft the school.

~
=l

Q Who left?

A The chi{dren.

Q You rsuained at the school from two olclock untii
about a quarter of thgee?

A ves sirz,
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Q Wwers you waftigg for your chargeé to taks them home?
ATl wes waiting for the children to take them home,
yesg gir,
Q 4nd at a quarter of three did you take them home?
A yes sir,
Q How long did it take you to gst home?
A Oh it took mz about twenty minutes, I had five
different places to g.
Q Then you got homs about five minues aftsr thres?
A ves gir,
Q Where did you go then? A I went home, to
my own home, |
Q How long did it take you to get there?
A It took me znotter five minutes to get home,
Q And then where did you go?
A 1 went over to 47th Sireet and done eoms shopping,
Q Then where did you go? A T went over
to Mrs. Splegel’s house again.
Q And what time did you get there? A Around
about twenty minutes after four.
Q And how long after that wae it that you sew Dick
Loeb, the defendant, driving & car in Ellis Avenue?

A About four thirty.
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Q About fou¥ thifty. "Was 1t osfore four th}r£y?[‘
A No, I dontt think so, it was.zbout fourthlrty
vhen I left the house.
Q And where wag he when you s&W him driving?
A He was juet north of Ellis Avenus,
Q North? 4 North of 49th Street
on Ellis Avenue,
Q Going in which directicn?
A South,

MR, BACHRACH: That ie all.

REDIRECT EXAMIN ATION
éY MR, CROWE.

Q Now this place that you saw Dick Loeb —— Richard
Loeb, the defendant in thie case, in ean automohile,
about 4:30 on Mey 2lst, 1834, on Ellle Avenue, near
whet othsr street?

A Near 49th.,

Q —- near 49th Street, that ic in the Oity of
Chicagp , COunty of CY%k and State of Illinois, is 1t?

A ves sir.

Q Mr. Bachrach asked who called your attention to this
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firsf, =nd you said the talk you had.with Mr. Spiegel;’
Will you state what thet conversation was? ‘

MR, BACHRACH: I object, if the Court please, I didn't
go into it.

MR, CROWE:  well, I understand, but you asked for it,
and when you thought it was going to hurt you you
droppsd it. You having brought it out I am privileged,
when you are afraid of it, to bring it to the Court's
attention,

MR, BACHRACH: Thz2re isn't any use of saying I am
afrald of i%.

MR. CROWE: Well, you dropped it.

MR, BACHRACH:  Vhen you say I brought it out , I
brought it out and didn't care to go into it, and I
sald to him,"wes it in a conversaticn with you,"
and when he sald yes, I didn't gare to0 go into it
any further.

MR. CROWE: Well, that opened the door.

MR, BACHRACH: You are mistaken when you say that I
was afrald of it.

THE COURT: Has it any bearing on this case?

MR, CROWE: It hae a bearing on hies testimony as to
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how the Batter was brought to his attention and how he
fixee the tine.

THE COURT: The conversation itéelf,yhas that any
bearing on the case?

MR, OROWE: It will have on the fact. It shows
how this man fixes the time and the date and the occur-
T Eence.,

THE COURT: Very well, he said he had a conversation.
Unless the oonversationhes some bearing on this case,
we don't need to hezar it. If 1t hae any bearing, we
can hear it.

¥R, CROWE: @ Well, will you staté what you faeati‘d."M
to Mr, Spilegel or what he gaid to you in reference to
this matter?

MR, BACHRACH: I object,

THE COURT: Oh, let him tell it.

MR, CROWE:; Q Go ahsad?

THE COURT: Do you remembsr vhat the oopversation was?

THE WITNESS: vYes sir,

THE COURT: rTellit.

A Arthur Splegel csme out excited that morning and
’

I asked him what ie the trouble, and he said, ndid you
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read the newepeper® and I said "no", and he said, "dld
you see that Dick Loeb confeéees‘to the murdsr", and
I eaid, "I 4en't believe that. I sew Dick Losb driving
& ocar that Wednesday, but it was no Winton.® I said,
"I think it is all bunk." That is 211 I Bad to say.

¥R, OROBE: @ What kind of a car did the newspapsre
say he had st that time?

MR, BACHRACH: I object,

THE COURT: vyes, sustalned.

MR,CROWE: All right, thet 1e all.

MR, BACHRACH: That is all.

(Witnees excused)
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GEORGE C. FRY,
callgd‘as & Witness on behalf of the prosecution, being
filrst duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CROWE,
Q@ Whei is your name please?

A George C, Fry.

QWhere do you live, Mr. Fry? A 745 Bucking-
ham Place. b
Q What is your cccupation? A Ticket Seller

Central Station, Chicago.

Q On May 3let and gand, 1924, what was your occupstion?-

:\iizfﬁt Seller. o
®Will you state whether or not on the 33nd dayof

May, 1924 you sold any pullman seats in the car Quearon,
Number 5057

A 507,

Q 5077 A Yes sir,

Q I will show you what purports tdAbe & Pullman dupli-
cate, from Chicago to Michigan City, Indiana, and agk

you whether you heve &var seen that before?

/
A Yes 8sir.

4
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Q Now what is that? A That is the Agent's

gtubof the Pullman ticket.
Q And what does it indicate?
A It indiocatee that'Sseat 4 in Car 507 was sold on the
gand of May, ‘,
Q On that day? -
A ves eir, 1
Q Mnd you are the man theb sold 17
A ves sir,
Q@ And thie is the stub that you kept?
A Yez gir.

MR, CROWE: I will offer this in evidence, your Egﬁsf'
It reads:? T
"Pullman Company, Agent'e Stﬁb, of no

value except to the Agent. Chicago to

Michigen City, Indiena, Bleank, M train,

gseat Number 4, car 507, 75¢, printed

Y
by Kinkaid-Gelleepis, Chigfago, U.S.A. a

form S4," and a number 3081, "offioce
35 and 33 --
what 18 that, 25 and 337
A Every office has a different number,

Q &nd what is your oiffice number? A That is our
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office number.

Q And on the back is stamped "Central Statiom,
May 32nd, 1984, Chicego." Your office’ s down atb
the Illinois Central Depot?

A ves sir.

Q On 12th and Michigan?

A ves eir,

Q And what is that there?

A That is the o%her msn who is t0 testify here.

THE COURT: Talk loud so we can hsar you?

A Thetis the other man who is to teetifyhere.

MR. CROWE: Q There is a name here, what 1s that?

AJ, F, Ball.

Q J. F, Ball?  What do you do with this?

A Thoee are kept in the records,

Q Kept in the records,

VR, CROVE: I wont offer this until Mr. Ball teetifies.
You may crosg examins.

MR, BACHRACH: No cross, »

MR, CROWE: Q What road wes that on?

A Michigan Central.

Q Do you know the defendant in this case, Richard Loeb?

A No eir.
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Q You don't recollect who you sold thie to?

A No gir.

MR, CROWE All right.

(Witness excused)

— . e ww  ms Y eu
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\

JOHN F, BALL,
a wWitnese called on behalf of the proéecution, having
been firet duly sworn, testified 2s fol}bws:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
EY MR, CROWE.

Q You may state your full name?

A John F, Ball.

Q Where do you live, Mr. Ball? A 7013 Jeffery
Avente.

rhe court; What did you say your name is?

A Ball,

MR, CROWE: John F, Ball, Lo
'THE GOURT: A1 right.l" R
MR. CROVWE: 7013 Jeffery Avenue.

A Yese sir,

Q Whet is your occupation, Mr. Ball?

A Ticket Sellee for the Illinois Central Rellroad,
Q Ana on May 22nd, 1924, what was your occupation?
A Tke sanme, |
Q@ Do you know George C. Fry?

A Yes eir,

Q Do you and Fry work together?
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4 gn the same office, not tog-ther,
Q In the game office?
A Yes sgir,

Q I will show you & ticket which reads:  "Pullman
Agent's Stub, Of no valus sxcept to agent., Chicago
to Michigun City, Indiana. Séat Number 4. Caxr 507.
Seventy-five cente. Printed by Kinkaid-Gellespie,
Chicago, U.S.A, Office 85 and 23" —- i thet the
number of your office?

A Yes gir,

Q "Number 3081, form 24 ", and on the back theféof
is etamped "Central Station, May 23-34, Chicago", and
"J. F, Ball", written in lead pencil., Did you ever‘H‘
see that before?

A Yes I 4digd.,

Q What is that? —

A That is & stub of this pa:piqq%gr ssat sold on
that day to Michigan City, | o

Q Who did you give that tod A I believe
it was Mr, Savage, I am not sure.

Q Mr. Savage, the gentleman sitting herq?

A ves gir,
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MR, CROWE: Do you want me to call Mr., Savaze in order
to conmsct this, Mr, nachrach?
MR, BACHRACH: No, what is the fact, Mr. Crowe?
MR, CROWE: He =aid he gave it to Savage.
MR. BACHRACH: I am satisfled with that,
¥R. CROWE: I nowoffer thie in evidence and ask 1t
be marked People's Exhibit 15, I think,

MR, SAVAGE: 18,

(Which s&id document was marked
"People's Exhibit 16").
MR, CROWE Do you know whether the Original was
sver turned in, of this?
A No, I do not.
Q You don't know that? A That would be at
the Pullman company downtovm.
MR, CROWE: All right. Any cross?

MR. BACHRACH: No.

(No cross examination and

witness excused).
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TONY INKE,
@ Witness called on bechalf of the prosecution, haﬁing
bzen first duly sworn, tesctified as follows:
ILRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE.
BR, CROWE: I don't beliesve th‘is man uwnderstande
Engiish, Whet lenguage do you epeak?
THE WITNESS Polieh,
THE COURYT: Can you spsak English =t all?
THR WITNESS: I speak a 1ittle bit.
THE COURT: A 1ittls vit? ‘
The Witness: Yes,
MR. CROWE: Well, maybs we c&n géﬁiglopg.
THE COURT: Yes,
MR, CROWE: We ha®e an intsrpretor here, however,
THE COURT: Stand up. Raise your right hand and be
snorn. See how far you can go with him.
MR, CROWE: @ What is your name?
A Tony Minke,
Q@ Where do you live, Mr. Minké% A T 1ivs
at Robey, Indiana,
Q Robey, Indlsna?

A Yeg, -
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Q What is your business? A I work in the

American Maize Company.
Q Americen what? A Ansricen Maize
Company.
Q On Mey 22nd, 1924, were you &t the culvsrt near the
Panhandle Railroad, at 118th Strest?
A1 can't underetand. |
’fHE COURT: How?
THE WITNESS: I cen't undsretand.
MR, CROWE: I thinkprobably we will gebt along faster
if we interpretit.
THE COURT: All right. Ielfhere somebody here mam who
can interpret? -
MR. CRORE: Yes, Will you swear the intsrpretor
to interpret from English to Polish and the answsrs
of the witnese from Polish into Eanglieh?
(Whzreupon the interpretor, Frank Mengak,
was here ewWorn by the Clsrk of the Court).
MR, CROVE: Q On May 22nd, 1924, were you neer the
culvert located near the Panhandle Railroad and 118th

Strest in Chicago, Cook COunty, Illinois?

A At that time I wae just paseing by there, I was
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on my way to Begwich to a Watchmaksr whe;é I had my }i’
watch for repairs., I have the watch with ae noﬁ. ‘//TLM
Q Now, what Eine of day was thig? A About

nine o'clock in the morning,
Q Did you s=e & de&dd body any place at that time?
A Yes, I did. I saw a boy's body in this pipe.

Q Now go ahead and tell =211 about it?

THE INTERPRETOR: I am going to give you this in ﬁS
sections, ’\k
MR, CROWE: All risht, Q\\ \}\ .
A As I eaw this boy's body in this pipe I then bent {; .
down this way, a8 I have indicated, and looked in ‘\§ A N
further, and sfter I saw the body in this pipe T then SN ° L
noticed th+t thers wasfour men coming along oa & handr\§§ N }
I v

car, a gasoline handcer, and =8 those four men wex
coming along with the hendcer I hailed them and had
them stop end I called their attention to this body, 4 X <J
in this pipe, it wzs sither a man or some pereon :;.3%§?
dromed in thie pipe. | -

Q And what slse?

A And then these men Xk ocame over %o the place where
thieb?dy‘was 1lying and they picked up thie body and

they took 1t over onto another handcar, thers were two
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handcars at this place.

Q Now will you tell the court how the body wae layling,
whether it wes on ite face or back vwhen you first eaw
it in the pipe?

A The body wae facing to the ground with its body
to ths ground. ‘

Q Fece down? | K

A Face down,

Q Vas there water in that pipe whare the body was
laying?

A Yes there was, about a foot of water,

Q When you pulled the body out, describe the body
ag to whether it was a boy,a girl or a man, or what?

A It wag a boy, his body.

@ About how 0ld?

A Well, I dorlt know the exact age.

Q Well, abcut how o0ld? QAifph;‘pEPbab;y
twelve years of age, |

Q About how big, how hzavy was the boy?

AOh I don't know the weight, but as to the height,
I thipk the body was very near the same height as

nyself,
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@ And how tall are you? 'A I am about five
feet, over,

Q Now what did you notice about the body in the
way of -- describe any unusual things about the body
afted you got it out?

THE INTERPRETOR. The witness doesn't answer the question,
- MR, CROWE:  Did the body havs any clothes on?

l Y

A No, |

Q The body was naked, wae 1t?

A It wae neked,

Q Now wsre there any clothes around the culvert,
the drainpipe there?

A No, there was no clothing there, Me and the
otheér wen made a gearch near the body thsre and we found
no clothing of eny kind, except a pair of gladses, but
I dldn't see themmymelf,

Q You didn't see the glaeses?

AT sav the glasses later on when the police héq
it in the patrcl wagon.

Q I will shoW you a pair of glasses now and ask you
whether they resemble the glassee that the other fellow

gave to the police?

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 302 1924



30 - 303~
@ Yee, aboutb the same kind of glasses the police
officezrs had there,
Q Now what did you do with the body after you got 1t
out, where wae the body'taken?
AThe body was taksn to the Lake Shore Depot.
Q And whervs was it taken from there, do you know?
AT walted there until the patrol wagon came up and
then they took the body, and they aleo 'RRE my nawe
and the names of the othsr men who were thare st the
time.
Q well, the body waes turned over to the police?
A Yes,
1Q Did you find out afterwards whose body this ﬁae?
AYes, I did, after the police had notified me and
they brought somekind of a paper over to the office,
Q Well, whose body wasit?
A Well I don'tkoow of my own knowledge t0 whom the
body belonged, but enly from hearsay, i
MR, DARROW:  Ask him the dirsct questicn.
MR, CROWE:Q Well, was it Robert Franke! body?
A Yes,

MR, CROWE: Now I would like to have those glasses
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that I sxhibited to ths witness a moment ago, marked
in gome menner for identification and later on we
will introduce them in evidence, Will you mark them
accoréing tdfthe letter that we were using today?

MR, SAVEGE: Masrk the envelop.,

(Whereupon the envelop containing the
glasses referred to was marked "People's
Exhibit E for identification".)

MR, CROWE: Q ©Now when you pulled the body out
of the drain, at nine o'clock in the morning, was there
any 1life in it or was the body dead?

A It wae dead,

MR, CROVE: You may croes examine,

MR. DARROW: No cross examination.

(No cross examination and witness

exqueed)

L e

P
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PAUL XKORFT,
a witness called on behalf of the progscution, Waving
been first duly sworn, testified as followe:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, GﬁOWE.
Q VWhat iz your name, 3ir? ‘t
A P;:;,Korff.
THE COéRT: What ?
A Paul Korff,
THE COURT: Spell the last name?
THE WINNESS:  K-o-r—f-f,
MR. CROWE: C Whers do you live, Mr. Korff?
A 6453 South Carpenter, o
Q@ And what iz your business? A Signal
repairman,
Q On May 22nd, 1924, about nine ofclock in the
morning where were you?
A1l was on my way to work,
QWell where were you in referenoe.to 118th streetuapd
the Penhandle Railroad?
A We was leaving Kolsauer about nine ofclock, that is

about 108th Street, on a gasoline car going to our work

to Wolf Lake, that 1e a railroad branch between Hegwich
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and Hsmmond, , :
Q@ Now tell what happensd from fﬁam time on?
A When we pagssd @bout 1230th or 13l1let street we
seen a man standing alongslde the réilroad track motioning
ug to stop.
Q Vae that the man that juet left here, Mr. Minke?
A Yes, Tony Minke,
Q All right, then what happened?
A Bo we stoppsd the car and went back again to see
vhat he wante, We got off the gar and he pointed;in
this drainpipe, thie culvert, goingundernsath the
+ rallroad track, we 2een a naked body laying in there and
We mads arrangements to pull this body out, Whils
the fellows that were with me wire making thelarrange—
mente I looked around, I seen t he body was naked
and I thought there must bs some clothes around and I
started looking arowngd for clothes, and I went around
end I picked up a pair of eve clasaes.
QI will snow you & pair of eye glasses which have
been marked "Peopls'e Exhibit E for identification" and
a8k you if those are the eye glasses thst you picked up '

at thattime?

A Yem, that is a pair just like it,
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Q And whz did you do with the glasses?
A T took them over to Hegewlch.

Q Who did you give them t0? A To 2 police

officer.

Q Do you know what policz officer you grve them to?

A I don't know his name, but I know him vwhen I
see hiu,

Q Do you know Sergsant Andergon?

MR, SAVAGE: It was a wagon man.

MR,CRORE: Q VWell, you gave them to & police officer
in the police station?

A In Hegevwich.

Q In the Hegewich police station?

n i

A Yes,

Q What ddd you do with the body?

A Ve turned‘the body over to the police, too,

O To the same squad that you turned the glasrces over
o7

A ves sir,

MR, CROWE: pyzve you got those three police officers
here?

NCAPTE[N OTMALLEY: They are here. Thisic the man.

MR, CROWE: Q Do you know that man here?
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A Yes sir.
Q Is he the man you turned the glasses over to?
A Yes six,
MR, CROWE: That is sll. What is your name, officer?
A POLICE OFFICER. Anton Shazpino,
MR, CROWE: All right. You can retire for a minute.
Send the othsr two officers in here,
Q And he was present whan the bodf wae turned over
slso, was he?
A Ysg egir,
MR, CROWE: Q TUhat is your name, officex?
TEE POLICE OFFICER:' Koleczka,
YR, CROWE: Whet iz the other officers name?
THE POLICE OFFICER: Alvie B, \Myers,
¥R. CROWE: Q Are ‘those the other two police officers?
AT couldn't eay.
Q You caﬁ‘ﬁ say?
A No, |
MR, CROWE: All right. You can ratire now,
Q Whzt condition wae ths body in when you pplled 1t
out of the culvert?

A The body wae naksd.

'Q Waeg 1% laying on ite back?
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4 Yo, .

Q Or face down? A It wes laying down, head
end first,

Q@ How old a person was it, the body, about?

A About fourtéen yecars 014,

Q A boy or a girle |

A A boy,

Q Ang v:ha’t'di@ you noticer abd@t t he bé:ciﬁ, i,f‘téfényt,hinsg?

A We discovered two holes in hie head, |

Q And:what else, how zbout the face?

A Ve didn't discover anything on the face. The face
looksd kind of blus and 2RAEEEY 1 thought it wag from the
%\;Eé.h'tel'.

Q@ Did  you afterwards find out v:hc;se body this wae?

A Yes, we found out the next day.

Q@ Whose body was it7? A It was the Eody
of Robert Franks,

Q Now this place where you found the body at 118th

Street and the Panhandle-Tracks, was there any life

'

in the body?

A No,
Q@ Dead? A It was gead.

Q At this place that you feund it, at 118th strest and

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 309 1924 -



30 e

the Panhandle Tracze, ie in Chicsgo, Cook CPunty,
Illinoie, 1is it?

A Yes,

MR, CROWE: You mey crose eXamine,

MR. BACHRACH: No cross sxamination.

THE COURT: That 1s all.

MR, CROWE: Now will you call that offioer iﬁ that
had the glasses?  Well, there is just one queet;dﬁ%‘
your Honor that I forgot.

Q How rar in, from the wouth of the pipe, was the
body when you discovered it?

A Do you mean from the end of the drain pips to
hie feet ,? |

Q Yzs,

A About twelve ¥mzgkex inchee,

Q Had it bzen shoved in feet or head first?

A Oh, head firet,

Q Head firet, =nd the feet were about twelve inches
inslde the moutk of the pipe? |

A Yes sir.,

MR, CROWE: That is all.

MR, BACHRACH: Did the wWitness say it wae in Chicago,

Cook County, Illinois?
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MR, CROWE: Yes,

MR, BACHRACH: Ien't it in Indiansa,

MR, CROWE: WNo, in Chiczgo, Illincis . Thls was in the
Hegewich Police district.

MR, BACHRACH: Youmean the culvert?

MR, CROWE: Yes, Indiane comes in where they burled

the shoee, The body was found in the Hegewlok Pollce

District.,
MR, BACHRACH: All riamt.

MR, CROWE: That is all.

(Yo cross sxamination and

witness excused)
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ANTON SHAPINO,
a Witnees called on behalf of the prosectuion, being
first duly ewora, tectified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,

Q What is your nams please?

A Anton Shapino,

Q Whes is your occupation? A Police officer
of the Clty of Chicago,

Q And you are staticned whers?

A 10120 South Union Avenus, Eighth District.

Q What‘is the neme of the police station you work:
out’ of? |

A Tha EBighth District, East Side,

Q Do you call it Hegswich? A Well they call
1t East side end Hegewich.

Q The East sids?

A Yesu,

Q Do you know where 118th strest and the Panhandle
Tracks are?

A ves sip,

Q Do you know the drain where this body was found?

A1 have not been at the drain but I know the loca-
tion.
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@ TYou know 118th stre:t and the Panhandle?

AT lo.

Q Te that in youwr police district?

A Yes sirx. |

Q And 118th Strest and the Panhandle bracge zre in the
City of Chicago, COok County, Stame‘of Illinods?

A ves sir,
' Q And in your police diztriot?

A Yez sir,

Q Do you remsmber on the morning of May 32nd, 1924,
s men named Paul Korff, the man who just left the

witness stand here, do you remember when he and eoue
[ )

~other men -- did you msst thenm that morning-?
AT did =2t 133rd aad the Panhandle tracks,

Q And what was thers when you got there?

A Vhen we got there —-

Q When you say "we" who was with you?

A VWhen I got there several men were thers and they
directed ms to the station at thet point, 133rd and the
Panhandle where we were directed to go to removse the
dead body of a boy, and the body, they had it in the
station wmrappsd up in a canvas, I unwrapped it and

looked through it and examined it and I Baw sevsral

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 313 1924



cuts, Ttwo cubtgon the head, and I easked unger what condi-
tions they found him andwhere, and they told me it
was about & mile --
Q Now, wae the bqeg;gaked or clothed?
A It was naked, They tpld me zbout a mile down the
track,
Q How old & boy wee it? A well I reported
foutteen years. \
Q Was Tony Minke thére?
A Yes gir,
Q He iz the men who testified a little while 270 here?
A Y¥zeir.
Q &d you hove seen him hers?

!

A Yes sir,

Q Was anything givento you by Paul Korff?
A Yes sir,

Q What did he give you?

A Eye glasszs,

LR
vely L

Q I will show you = pair gf e&e giéssés thétvhaﬁé B%eq
merked "People's Exhibit E for identification" and
agk you t0 examins them and state whether or not those
aré the eye glasses Korff gave you?

A Yez sirz,
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Q Did you put a mark oa theu?

AT da.

Q What kind of a mark?

A My initi=l, "A" on the @@tk or wh.taver you cell it
eround the glasses, —

Q And it 1s on there now?

A Yes gmir.

Q Ana thesz are the glasses'that were turned ovar
t0 you by the witnees Korf{?

A Yes gir,

Q That "A" here (indicating)?

A That is my initial, yes sir,

MR, CROWE: If your honor pleass, I desire %o introduce
thsee glasees in evidencs now and call your attention
to the lett=r "A" that he put on at the tiwe they
were

glven to him.
THE COURT: They may go ini

MR, CROWE: Q What Odeitidn wire tﬁe glasses in,
clean ov dirty?

A ¥hy, they wers clean.

Q What did you du with the body then?

A We moved the body to 13300 South Houston Avenue
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NOTZUE

THE COURT: 133007

A 13,300,

MR, CROWE: Q Now did you learn afterwards whose
body this Was?

A The following morning.

QMd who identified iﬁ?

A I dgon't know who identified it only whaet I read in
the papsr, I weemit there at the identification.

Q well, you were nob present when the body wae
identifigd?

4 No sir,

Q@ That is all. Well just a minute. Did you
do anything with theze glasses -- did you put them on
the body?

A I put them on the body at the morgue after I
marked them.

Q Whose morgus 1s that?

A Olejniczak's Morgue,

MR. CROWE: Is Olejniczak here?

pAPTEN O'MALLEY: He is here.

MR, CROVE: that 1z your name?
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MR, OLEJNICZAK:  Stanley Olejniczak.

MR, CROWE:Q T3 that the Undertaker, officer?

A That is the undertaker, He was present when we mede
the second orip with the Captain. pe masn:t there at
firet, his wife was there,

Q And it was in his place that you;ﬁr'tho glasges on
Fhe boy?

A Ygs gir,

MR, CHOWE: That is all.

THE COURT: Any cross examination?

. ‘MR. BACHRACH: No cross examination.

(No crose examinetion and wit ness

excused),

Ll

. MR, CROWE: WNow will you ftaks the stand.-- and Officer,

just remain a minute, will you?

- e T el e et T e e
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STANLEY OCLEJNIC Z“A K,
callsd a8 a Witness on behalf of the prosccution, having
bzen firet duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE.
Q@ TWhat le your name?
A Stanley Olejniczak,
Q Whers do you live?
THE COURT: Will you epell your last nams?
A 0-1-¢=j-n-i-c-z-a-k,
MR. CROWE: What iethe numbsr of this sxhibit, now,
the glaeces? They have bsen introdpeed in avidencs?

MR, SMITH: You have got thuat "EY,

MR, CROWE: They have been Introdwsd in svidence.
Now People's Exhibit number whet — what ie the last
oexnibit?

MR, SMITH: Fourtesn,

MR. CROWE: These ace Peéple's‘Exhibit 15.

Q "You are an Undertaker? |

AA Yes sir.

Q yhere,ie your place of buSiree:? A " 13300

Houston.,
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Q@ Houston Avenue?

A N=eg eir,

MR, SMITH: wake that sixteen,

MR, CROWE What?

MR. SMITH: Meke that sixteen.
MR, CROVE: This is People's Exhibit 18,

Q That is in tha City of Chicegzo, ;sn't it ?
A‘Yes gir.

Q Cook Ceunty and State of Illinois?

A Yes eir,

Q Io you remember, on the day of the 3znd of May,
1934, a body being brought into a place?

A Yee girx, .

Q About what time of day? A Batwezn ten
and ten fifteen,

Q And that was the body of whom?

A Why =zt that time we didn't know who the body was.

Q Well was it a man or a child? |

A Boy.

Q A boy about how o0ld? A T ehould judge
1t to be fifteen.

Q Now did any person identify the body after it had
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been broﬁgpt into your »lace?t
A Yes sir,
Q Who? A The Uncle,
Q@ That is Mr, Gresham?
A Mr., presham,
Q He identified it af the body of whom?
A 0f Jacob Franks —-— Or nggrt Franks .
Q Robert Franks? o
A Yes eir.
Q Did you s=ze a palr of glasses there?

A Yes sir.

“+ Q And whereweres the glasses When you first saw them?
A On the forshead,
Q On the forehead of the boy?

A ves.

Q@ I will show you Peopls's Exhibit k6 and ask you
whether they resemble the glasses that you saW at
’qhat time?

A They lookvery much like them.

:Q All right, sir. |

MR, CROWE What wee the name of that police officer

that just went out, and your name, officer?

THE POLICE OFFICER: . Anthony Stepinak.
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MR. CROWE: Q You know that police officez, do you?
A Yes eir,
Q Was hs thzre that day?
A Yes sir,
Q' Was there any mors than one body brought in?
A On that day?
Q Yes.
A No si%.
Q And the body of the boythat was ideéntified by
Mr. Greghem as the body of Robsrt Franks was the body
that thie policeofficer and the others brought in to
your place that day?
‘A Y28 sir, o

MR, CROVWE: That is all,

(No cross examination and

witness exoused)
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JOHN | KALECZK A,
a witﬁese called on behalfof the prosecution, having
been firat duly sWorn, testified as follows.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROVE,
Q What ie your name?
A John Kaleczka,
THE COURT: Spsll it?
A K-a-l-g~c-z-k-a,
MR, CROWE: Q@ Where do you livé? A 1405
/West 71st Street,
@ On the morning of Mzy 23nd, 1924, shortly after
nine o'clock whsre were you?
A ®ell I was going along the Pennsylvénia tracks on
& motor cear,
Q Near what strset?
A That will bs about 120th, something like that, I
would judge it to be,
Q Wel]l did you stop at any time?
A Well, I stopped when the men halled me to étop,
I didn't kuow what he was up against, o I stoppdd
the car and bscked up to see what was the trouble.

Q Who was the man?
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A Tony dinke.

Q Minke? & I know him now,

Q That is the man that wzs in the courtroom s moment
ago?

A Yeg gir,

Q@ Well when you stoppzd What happened?

A well I stopped and I got off andthe men called me
*p?er and he esaid, " Leok, there is somsthing in the pipe ,
thers is a pealr cf feet eticklng cut" —-- thay wére in
there, they were not etickiné out, but all you could
see wae the feet.

Q Then what happened?

£ Well, I got down and pullsd him oﬁt,‘ He was
stuck in the pipe and I pulled him out,

Q Describe now wh# you pulled out ,what kind of
a b@dy‘

MR. DARROW: Don't you think that has been sufficiently
p;oved? |

MR, CROWE: Well all right,

MR. DARROW: It seems so to me,

MR, CROVWE: Any cross examination?

MR, DARROW: No. :

MR, CROWE: That is all.

MR, DARROV: I don't want to interfere,
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(No croes examinetion and winees
axcuged.)
¥R, CROWE: Now if your Honor please, and Mr. Darrow,
the next testimony thatb I am coming to is the chemists,

I have some chemists here, and I would like to get
rid of them, and I will proumise that while some of

the exhibite have not been introduced, I will promise

to absolutely, laster on, connect them up end make them

sdmlssible, 1s that 1s satisfactory.
MR. DARROW: Well, mark them when they come up?

MR, CROWE: Mark them for identification.

MR. DARROW: They are the ones thst youhavs been
referring to? “

MR, CROWE: The car, the parte of the car, boots
and clothes, T want to gt rid of them’ Now, if we
take a recess, if we take about ten minutes it will
take B8 a little while to asgemble them, we have
got them all hers, |

THE COURT:  All right\‘

MR, CROWE: Ve have got Quite & few exhibite and it

. Will take some little tims $o az€8emble them.
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THE COURT: All right, The chemiste want to look
over some exhibits now and it will take them about
fifteen minutes to do that. We will suerend now

until a quartzr aftvsr three.

Whereupen 2 short recess was hers taken

by court and counszel.

- e e
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1 (Whereupon yursvant to a short recess heretofore
Hervey '

relieves token the following‘proceedings were @g@)

Snyder ' |

at 3:15 ' ’ .

PU DR WILLIAM B, MecNALLY,
7"84:"240 )

called as a witness on behalf of the People, having

r

beea first duly sworn, was examined, and testified as Oy&
4 J ‘%

follows: '
\/
DIRECT EXAMINATION s ",Y"‘ 4
. V-
!

By )
Mr, Crowe. }gglk )
oo g

Will you state your name please? '\33 \J/h

O

=

Willieam B, HeNally, ‘@“Jfgu

Q@ VWhat is ycur oc-upation cr profession?

A I am o physicizn and surgeon; zlsc a toxocologlcal
chemist with the Coroner of Cook County.

Q For how ling a time have you bsen o physioian and
chemist?

A I have been a chemist for 19 yeass; I have béen a
physician for the last four years, I have been connected
With the Coroner's office eleven years, and connscted
with the Rush Medicel College for 12 years as assistant
professor of medicine, at Rush Nedical College,

Q Now you go ahead and glve ycur qua?ifications to

Al

the Court.
MR, DARROW: Therev}s‘no request on our part
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4

2 a8 to the Doctor's compvetenocy. You don't need to go
into that fully unless you want to.

MR, CROWE: Well, you might put it in the record, i%
will only take a minute. ‘

IR. DARROW: All right,

¥R. CROWE: Go ahead and give the balance of your
Qualifications,
| THE WITNESS: A As a chemlst to the Coroner of Cook
County I have made the examinations of the organs of
over ten thousand people; I have exeamined several thousand
weapons, articles of clothing, for bleod stains,

Q@ Now, Doctor, did you examine the stomach and organs
of the body of Robert Franks?

4 T did,

Q@ Will you describe what you examined and the con-
clusions you came to?

A On May 233rd, Coroner's physician Benson submitted
to me organe said to have been Esmoved from the body of
Robert Franks, There were two kidneys, stomach and
content, a lung, a portion of the liver, and bowel.
These organs were first examlned grossly and tﬁe lung
was suctioned and I came to an opinion that findings
were that of suffocation, There was no —-

’
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Q@ That is before you haa -- did you ever see the body
iteself?

A T hed never seen the body, no, gir, at any time,

Q And don't know whether there was any signs of
viclence on the body when you came to that conclusion?

A No, sir.

Q All right, go ahead, Doctor.

A The lung wae suctioned to show evidence, if there
were evidence of drowning. There wis no water found, no
sand, no dlatomes, The mioroscopical examination of the
lung showed a state similar to that of red heforation
that we find in pneumonia. Thers wus hemorrhages throughout
the lYng; hemorrhages into the alveolar cells, The
stomach came intact, weight 378 grams, contained
undigested food, starch and fat, From the presence of
these two, I came to the conclusion that death had
occurred between five énd 8ix hours after a meal, All
of the organs were weighed up and subjected to a
toxocologicalJexamination. I examined for alkaloid
poiéons, such as morphine, strichﬁine, cocoanines,
nicoting; examined for hsavy metal podsons es arsenig,
mercury, antimony; for voléEile poisons such as grain

aloohol, wood alcohol, formaldehyde, acetone, phenol
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i
Y]

cyanide, and nitro-benzol. From this examinatonl

canme fo the conolusion that there was no poison present.
On June 3rd, Lieutenant Loftis of the State's

Attorney's office submitted to & group of experts of which

I was one, three pileces of board from an automobile, a

charred robe, trousers sald to belong to Richard Loeb,

& ocoat, vest and trousbrs, sald to belong to Nathan

Leopold, and on the 5th I received fromMr, Savage a

Ehisel from which I cut a small plece of tape which

had & red stain., I examined a palr of hip boots sald

to belong to Nathan Leopold, also removed from a

Willys-Knight car at the HMunicipal Pier material from

f'ﬁhe left door and material from the back of the front

seat where there wes a large amount of red stain, the
length of which was spproximately 22 inches long. These
staing —~-

Q Noﬁ; just a moment, Doctor. In your examination
wag there any other doctors or chemists present?

A Yes,sir,

‘Q Will you state who those chemists or doctors were?

A There was Doctor John Wesner, of the Colgmbus
Lgboratories,

THE COURT: Wesner?
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THE WITNESS: Wesner. Doctor Ralph Webster, of the
p%;oago Laboratory; and Doctor Lucdwig Hectone of the
McCormick Institute for Infectious Diseases.

MR, OCROWE: Dootor Hectone is now in Sweden, is he?

4 Yes,

Q And Doctor Wesner and Dootor Webster arse both here
in Chicago?

A Yes, sir,

Q Ars theyﬂpresent in the oou?t Toom now?

L They are in the ante room.

MR, DARROW: We will admit they will testify the same
way, all of them.,~

MR. CROWE: I will now show you a cold chisel,
the sharp end of which is wrapped in tape, with blood
or dark spots on the tape and which has been introduced
in evidence as plaintiff's Exhibit what? I think it is
marked on there, DPctor,

A I had my mark on here, however, and the date.

HR., CROWE: May I supply the exhiblt number later?:

Will you get that, Mr. Shesder? 1ill that be satis~

1]
Hl

factory, Gentlemen, and the Court? There are several

marks here, People!s Exhibit 16, I think,
Q Was that the chisel that you took the piece of
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8 tape from and caused a chemlical analysis to be made
of?
A It is,

Q Now, state what you did and what was the result of
your finding?

A Doctor Webster and I were present when Mr. Savage
gave this chisel 1o me and I placed my initial on there
and the date., Doctor Webster also placed his initial

on there. A small piece, approximately half an inch

long by a quarter of an inch wide wes removed for
examination. This examination consisted of a chemical,
. dptioal, and biologlcal examination, A portion of this

wag dissolved in physicloglcal salt solution to put

the blood in sclution, One or two drops were placed
in a small test tube of a half cubic centimeter capacity
and shaken, and 1t responded to the foam test to
protein albuminous material, 4 drop of nitric acid
Wug added to it and a ring test cbtained, To another
“portion of this -- | | |

Mﬁ. DARROW: Yo@ need pot g0 th?o%gh ﬁpe.pfbcess
here.

MR, CROWE: I prefer to get it into the record, if your
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your Honor please,
MR, DARROW: I objects
THE COURT: Oh, let him tell it. Go ahead.

EHE WITNESS: A To another portion was added a frashhy

prepared tincture of gualacum, and in a half O C test
tube, that is cublo centimeter, This i1s known as the
Van Dean's test. A drop of asocetic acid was added,
one drop of peroxide and a blue color was obtained
indicating the presence of blood. ~

MR, CROWE: Whatt kind of blocd?

A Just blood. We could not say at this stage what
the nature of the blood was, This was Just a chemical
test.,

To another portion of this same solution was
added a fragment of benzodine, one drop of ascetic acid
and one drop of peroxide was addeds A dark blue ocolor
Was obtalned indicating the presence of blood,

Q Pardon me just a minute. Did you mark this this
morning?

MR, ALLEN: (Reporter) Yes, sir, that is Exhibit 6-J.

IR, CROWE: 6-J. Justxmake that co}rectioni This is

Exhibit 6-J, instsad of Exhibit 18,

THE WITNESS: To another few drops in a small tesdt

.
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tube half = cubic centimeter capacity was added

one drop of a phenolvhthalein solution and a lsuco

bage of phenolphthalein containing one drop of hydrogen
peroxide for five C C of solution of an inten sodium
peroxide making up to 100 ¢ ¢. v must be freshly
prepared for tests of this kind. With this test a

dark pink red color was obtained indicating the presence

"of blood,

To a small thread taken froam this tape
placed on a microscoplcal slide was added a drop of
physiclogocak salt solution and glacial ascetio acid.

It was ocovered with a covered slips and allowed to boil

..on the electric hot plate. Then it was taken off

and examined mioroscopically for the presence of Heman's

crystels, This test is known as the Tiechman's test,

, The crystals were cbtalned showing the presence of

blood,

Another small portion of this stain was

' ‘placed on a slide and allowed to soak with a
" physiological salt solution and examined mierospocilally

- for the presence of red blood cells or errytherocytes,

showing & bl-conocave disc, which were measured with a
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filer'e micrometer, the average dlameter about
seven end a half micrones.

Another portion of thls solution previously
made was subjected to spectroscopic examination,
uging a Zice microscpectroscope obtaining the
bands of oxyhemoglobin , This alsc showed the presence
of blood. |

Having determined that blood was presentﬁif
was next to defermine the nature of this blood, 1ts

source, For this purpose anti-human serum, anti-dog

]

serur end anti-sheep serum was used., These serums are

ﬁrepa;ed as foilows:

Rabbits are injected intraperttoneal witﬁ
whqle human blood, Bvery five {to six days. 4t the
explration, five or eix weeks, seven days after the
last injection the rabbit is bled from the marginal
veln of the ear, the blood centrifuge and a clear
serum obtained, We now teated this up against a
known human blood, having diluyions made from one
te 500, txe to one to ten thousand, in this way we get
the titre of the antl-serum.

The same was used, the anti-dog, the same
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nesthod of preparation, and the anti-sheep,

The red stains in this caée of the various
articles mentioned, the chisel, dissoclution of the |
same was placed in small half centimeter cast tubes,
one tenth of & co of the anti-human serum was added
to ohe tube, one tenth of a cé cf anti-dog and one tenth
of a cc of anti-sheep., Anti human serum gave a
precipitate calied precipltin, In three minutes @
ring was perceptible, in two minutes. A negative
results were obtained with tne anti-dog and anti-sheep.
Vie also used an anti-hemoglobin preéipitant. Thié
is ~repared by washing the human red cells with
physlological salt solution until all of the plasma
is removed, The red cell s are measured and dissolved
in sterile water, and injected into a rabbit in the szme
manner aéxgbr the anti-human precipltant serum described
above, This was appliéd to the stain on the chisel and
the other articles and it was found that a ring was
obtained showing the presence of human errytherocytes
or red cellts,

From the bhemicai, biological and optical’

methods of examination of the stains, I came to the

conclusion that the stains were of blood of human origin,
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11 Q Now, ﬁjctor, I direct your attention to a'robe,
green automobile robe, the remains of it charred, and
introduced in evidence thisg worning and wmarked as
People's Exhibit 3 for identification as of this date,
State whether or not you tock a pilece of that robe
end made a chemical analysis similmr to the analysils
that you have just described that you made of the piece
of tape?
| A I dig,

Q Along with the other doctors you have named?

A Yes, sir, and found thet the stain was blood of
human origin,

MR, CROWE: I don't believe, your Honor, I have
exhibited this to y-u yet.

THE COURT: I saw it this morning when you were showing
it there,

IIR. CROWE: Later on when we get through I will hand it

- up to your Honor. |

THE COURT: I just noticed it.

MR. CROWE: Did you mark it, Doétor? |

4 It is difficult to mark, Yes, sir, We marked it
ﬁifh a safety pin. Yes, there is the safety pin,

'Q That is the mark you put on it at the time you ‘
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13 took the plece off.

A Yes, sir, showing the locasticn where we took the
plece off.

Q@ And ycu went through the same process as you did
With the piece of tape and your conclusion is that it
wvas stuined with human bleood?

A Yes, sir,

QR, CROWE: Now, glve me the booté;

Q I will show you a pair of rubber boots, hip boots,
and I will later, if your Honor please, connect them
up and make them competent evidence. I understand 1t

_~is satigfactory to the defense éﬂd‘their clients that
| We‘can proceed now?

THE COURT: Yss,ythe attorneys for the defense agreed
you may.

ilR, CROVE: And ask you to state whether you have
ever geen thoss boots before, they being the boots of
the defendant Nathan Leopold,JTr., and worn by him on
lt@e night of May, K 3let, 1984, when le placed the body
Fdead body ¢f Robert Franks in the gu}vert at 118th
Strest and the Panhandlé tracks, Did you ever sae'those

' before? | |
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A I have.

Q@ Did you ever take off anything from those boots,
Cut anything out?

A 1 did,

Q@ And how many pleces did you take out?

A I took two pieces from the inside and one from the

outside of this left boot, and one piece from the
inside and this hoot was marked by myself and Doctor
Webater, Wq are the only two ==

Q@ Is your mark on it?

A Yes, sir, identifying the marks, my initials M C

9/34 and R W, standing for Doctor Webster,

-Q Now, did you go through the same analysis of the
pisces of that left boot of Nathan Leopold as you d;d
with the pieces of tape taken from the chisel?

A Yes, sir.

Q And what conclusion did you come to as & result

. thereof?

A The conclusion Wzs that it was blood of human
origin,
Q@ I will show you the -right boot and ask you whether

or not yéuﬂtook any pleces off that?
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14 A I ftook two pleces from the right boot, one bn the
outside and one to the rear, This 1s also marked
with my initial the date and R W standing for Ralph
Webster, and other identification marks of officers.

@ What did you do with the pieces you took off the
right boot of Nathan Leopold, JT.,, the boot that he
Wore on the night of May Rlst, 1824, when he was
disposing of the body cf Robert Franks?

A T exhibited —- I subjected this to a chemical,
optical and bioloéical examination.

Q@ The same as you did =-

A With the piece of tape from the chisel,

Q@ —— with the piece of tape from the chisel and the

piece of blanket from a robe?

A Yes, and came to thé conclusion that it was ©ldod
of human origin, .

Q Does your Honor want to examine those boots now?

THEiCOURT: We can later when we examine the rest.,

MR, CROWE: Let them all fo together.

'THE COURRB: Yes.

UR. OROWE: Now, will you give me —~ I will now show
&ou what will be proven later to 'be the carpet that '
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15 was on the back of the Rent-A-Car No, 17, the Willys-
Knight car that the defendaﬁts, Richard Loeb and Nathen
Leopold, Jr., abducted Robert Franks in and murdered
him and ask you - on the night of May 3lst, 1834 -~

o and ask you whethéf you took any pleces ¢ff of that?

A T dld, I removed & plece abcut three quarters of
&n inch long, by palf en inch wide , from a clot which
Was examined for blood,

Q From & clot?

A Yes, sir.

IR. CROWE: I would li¥e to call your Honor's
attention to that particular clot, You might hand 1t
closer, It extends qulte a ways,

THE COURT: Yes,

MR, CROWE: Q And what else did you do? Did you get
any other piece at that time or just that piece?

A That is the only piece we cut out of that--

Q Did you mark it? '

4 Yes, sir, I have it ma:ﬁed with our initials. We
cail that our exhibit 6, it is Mc,

Q And whet di@ you do with’tge piece you took out of
this carpet? : ’ %

4 Applied the optical, chemical and blological
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tests as previously desoribed, and came to the
CGoncluglon that it was blood of human origin,

@ I show you & pair of trousers which the state
will later prove to be the palr of trousers worn by

Richard Loeb on the night of May 21st, 1934, when he

and his co—-defendant murdered Robert Franks, and buried
his body iﬁ the culvert and agk you whether you had

" seen those before, and if so when? Whether you took
eny part of them and analyzed theu?

A I saw this on June 3rd and placed my mark and
initial in it, and removed a small piece for examination,
I removed two pieces from the right leg below the knee --
@ &Show it to his Honor,

& Half to three guarters of an inch, irregular in
outline, and subjected it to the same examination,
optical, microscoplcal, and biological, and found these
red staing to be blood of humen origin,

Q ﬁow, did you mark the trousers?

-

A I did, This is my, exhibit, number 1, and my

i

initieal Mo,

! Q Now, I will show you a paii of trousers which the

State will later prove %o be the trousers Worn by the
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defendant Nathan Leopold upon the night of‘May 2lst,
1984, when he and his codefendant Richard Loeb murdered
Robert Frenks and secreted his body in the drein at
118th and the Panhandle tracks?

MR, DARROV: I object to the form of the gquestion.

THE COURT: What,

4R, DARROW: I say I objeoct to the form of the question,
‘He cen identify the marks and so forth,

MR, CROWE: I will withdraw it from now on, and
withdraw the Doctor and put on the witnesses to prove
that these were the trousers of Nathan Leopocld.

MR, DARROW: I don't object to that, but I do to you

" esswning something,

THE COURR: It is the form of the question, séying
each time theymmurdered -- '

1R, CROWE: Well, taey wore them on the night of lay
2lst, 1924, when they had the Franks boy's body with
thenm. |

‘MR, DARROW: W;ll; all‘of that ie unnecessary:and we
will object to it.
| THE 'COURT: Go ahead.

MR, CROWE: All right

Q Now, what did you do with reference to those trousers?
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A ERemoved four pleces from the left side of these
trousers to be examined chemically and bilologloally for
blood. Too of the spots did not éhow blood, The spot
below the one with the rianiix faintly responded
to tests for blood of human origin., The blood where
the blue ring is placed around it, responded to all
of the chemical tests and the bhologlical tssts for blood
of human origin,

Q@ Did you mark the trousers so that -

L Yes, sir, this ile my exnibit 4, Mo, and markéd by
Doctor Wesner.

Q@ I will show you the coat of that trousers being the
coat of the defendant Nathan Leopold, and ask yéu what
you did -~ worn on the night in question by him -~ and
&gk you Lhat you did if anything in reference to
éhat? ‘ v

A Removed a spot at the edge of the lapel about an
inoch and a helf fromthe pocket Fheme a staln was visible
and examined that chemically, pptloslly, and biclogleally
for blood. There are scme other stains in the neighberhood

Trom where I removed this plece,

Q@ And whet was your conclusion after that analysis?
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of human origin.

Q You marked the coat with your initials did you?

4 Yes, sir., It is marked here, same plece, Here it
1s, right here.

Q There is your mark?

A Yes,sir,

MR, GROWE: I would like to offer this coat and brousers
of Leopold that the Doctor just testified in r efersnce
to a5 People's Exhiblt for identification —- what is the
last one for identification? Make it U, éhe trousers

o Peoplels Exhib;} M for identification of this date and

\ the coat N, The trousers of the defendant Leopold that
Wag just examined by the Doctor I willl o*“fer as Pecple's
Exhibit O for identification of this date, I would 1ike

to have the reporter mark that on the edge there. Mark

- This Peoplel's Exhibit O of this date.

1

(Document marked as requested by counsel)
‘ gR. CROWE: Give me the other two, That was the L
trousers -of —~ mark the trousers People's Exhibilt M of

this date for identification, and the coat N. The last

two are Leopold's.
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(llarked as requested by counsel)

R, CROWE: Give me the boots and we will mark those.

I will offer the right boot of Leopold which has been
testified to by the Doctor, as People!s Exhihit P of
thig date for identification.

(Marked as requesteé by counsel)

MR.\CROWE: And the left boot Peorlels Exhiblt Q for
ideﬁfifiéation of this date,

(Marked as requested by counsel)

MR, CRO¥E: And the carpet taken from the Willye-Knight
S8uiomobile belonging to the Rent-A-Car people that ﬁae
used by the defendants on May Zlét and 22nd, and which
has been testified —- concerning which the Doctor has
testified, I will offer as People's Exhibit R for
identification of this date, Mark it on the paper and
tho you ocan pin that paper on, Joe, Put the date on
it,

(Marked as requeéted by counsel)

MR, CROWE: Now, hand me up the boéfa“. I show you some

boards taken from the floor, Doctor, of the car, of the

Rent-A-Car people, Willys-Knkght Number 17, that was

used by the defendants on May 21st, and I will show you
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30
that plece with the paper pasted on 1t markeu 31, and
@gk you whether you have seen that beforse?

A I have,

Q And when did you first see 1t and what if anything
did you do in reference to it?

A I saw that on June 3fd, put my initial and number

"7 on this board,

3o,

ERIA ( ' L e T PREETEN /:’(?;;‘AF‘.‘ ‘ t
+ MR, CROVWE: I have several boards here. Is'that Number
71

A That is 7, belongs to the same board, Seven with

my initiel on it.

Q Well, what did you do in refsrence to thess two, B

"boards that I ghow you being part of the floor of the

car t-at I have just desoribed?

A Removed a small splinter and examined it optically,
mlcroscopically and bilologicelly for the presence —-

R, CROWE: I call your Honor's attention to that.

THE WITNESS: —- and found it to be blood of human
origin. ‘ -
' ﬁR. CROWE: I would like 6 direct the Court's attégt&on
also to this. | |

THE COUPRT: Yes.

IIR, CROWE: I will ask that these two boards be marked
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28 People's Exhibit T1and T 2 for identification as of
this date.
(Marked as reqpéstéd by counsel,)

HR, CROWE: Hoss counsel for the defense desire to examine
these exhibits now or later?

MR, DARROW: Later,

MR. CROWE: I will show you another piece of flooring,
Doctor, taken from the Willys-Knight car of the Rent-
'h-Car Company, Number 17, tha% the defendants had on the
3lst and 22nd of May, containing the foot rest and ask
you whether you had seen that before, and i1f so, when,
and 1f you 4id anything in referenfe to it what did you
do?

A& I gaw this on June 3rd, 1924,

Q@ And did you take a part of it off?

A I removed a splinter from this board and examined
it by the methods previous}§ described, ppe optical
&énd biologlcal methois. ‘ . o '

MR, CROWE: I would like t¢ direct your‘Ho"nor"’s
ettention to the blood on it there, | |

THE WITNESS: And found it to be blocd of humen origin.

MR, CROWE: I will ask to have that marked People's
Exhibit § of this date for identifimtion.

f
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(Marked as reguested by counsel)

1

Q@ Now, Doctor, you took some other pieces off thé
car, did you? '

A T dig.

Q What pieces did you take off the car that we have
been talking about, the Rent-A-Car Nwiber 17 that the
defendants had?

A T took some pieces off the left rear door of
shiny glazy appearance which were noted, and examined
those pleces for blood and found by the uethods
previously described that the stains were due to blood
of human origin,

HQ How many pieces did you ftake off? - ,

A T took off one plece from the door and one piese

from the back of the front seat that would adjoin this

foot rest and thay contained a clot of blood, which
extended for 22 inches along the board.

Q Now, those pleces that are in this envelope, these
three pieces, — '

A Yes, sir. L : y

Q And your analysis showéd human bloodlon all of

them, all three of them? . .
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34 A Yes, sir. The 1little plece cut out here, I used

for the analysis.

MR, CROWE: Will you mark this People's Exhibit for

ldentification W 1, W 3 and W 37
(Marked as requested by counsel)

"R, CROWE: Now, Doctor, were there any other things
that you examined in this connection?

l A Yes, sir,

Q What else?

A I exemined a stocking and a pailr of shoes said
to have belon.ed to Robert Franks,

Q@ Vell, but you found no blood on them?

A Grossly, there wasno appearance of blood,

Q Did you examine anything else you found with humen

blood on?

A No,:sir.

MR, OROWE: You may gréqs examine.

liR, B, BACHRACH: ©No ocross examination,

MR, CROWE: If the Court please, I think I will call
in Doctor Wesner and pmt hiwm on the stand, give his
name and address, and the other Dooctor the same way.

We will only take a minute with each one,
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25 THE COURT: All right,
1R, CROWE: Thank you, DOctor, Tell the other Doctor,

Doctor Wesner, to come in,

(Witness excused)
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36 DR, JOHYX A, WESYNER,
cqlled as a witness on behalf of the Psople, having been
firét duly sworn, wos examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Mr, Crowe,

Q Will you state your nare, Doctor?

A Jochn A, Wesner.,
' Q What is your profession?

A I am a ohemist and physioian;(

Q Of how many years standing?

A Well, I have been a chemist since 1888 and Doctor

o of Medicine gince 194,

i
/

Q@ And you live where, pr%or?‘

.

Chicago, Illinois,

The house address?

> O

819|Lafayette Parkway,

And are you connected with any institution he;e?,

> O

I am president 6f thenColumbus Laboratories,
Chicago, 31 North State Stfeet‘

MR, CROWE: Will it be necessary to ﬁrove)the Doctor's
qualifications? | |

MR. DARROW: No, your Eonor,'we admit his tho;ough

qﬁalificatifns in this line, and let me suggest to you —--
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_7 ‘ MR, CROWE: I will Just ask one question which I think
will cover it all,

MR. DARROW: All right,

MR, CROWE: Q Necw, Doctor, on Sunday, the Sunday
following Decoration Déﬁ, that was June lst, I believe,

4 Yes, sir,

Q@ You and Doctor ngster and Doctor Hectone were
in the State's Attorney's office on that afternoon?

A Ve were,

Q And you left there with the State'!s Attorney, and
the two defendants, Leopold and Loeb and went into the
jail yard?

A That is right. o L

Q And there was a Willys —Knight car belonging to

the Rent-A-Cer people in the yard?

A Thefe wag a car there,

‘Q And did the boys say anythiﬂg in' reference to that
car, the two defendants?

L}

A Well, I don't think in my presence, I don't think
) |

they did in my presencs.

Q@ The boys were thers and there wers pleces, samples
taken from the car for the purpose of allowing you three

gentlemen, the chemists and experts, to make an analysis
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A That is true, .

Q Later on, Doéﬁof\ﬁéNally joined you?

A He did.

Q And you four gentlemen then made a chemical analysie

. of the pisces taken from that ocar?

A Of spots on this car,.different pleces, that is
true

Q And what conclusion dié &qu come to as to wﬁat
Caused the spots?

A Well, the first test we made --

MR, DARROW: I object to that.

MR, CROVE: Well, without going into 1{.’

THﬁ WITNESS: Thess spots were due to blood, Qpﬁ
humen blood. ‘

Q@ And then were you present With Doctor McNally when
an exemination was made of a piece, w®veral pieces taken
from rubber boots belongling to Nathan Leopold, these
Loot s? |

A Yes, I did not see the boots until ngw“but.Ivsaw

these pieces Doctor McNally took from the boots.

Q . And the result of your enalysis showed what?
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32 4 Human blood,

Q 4And’'did you work with Doctor McNally in examining
the pieces tuken from the coat of Leopold, the defendant
Leopold, and his trousers?

A T was present, yes.

Q And what was the result of that anulyeis?

A Those tests showed it was human blcod.

Q And were you presept when a test was made of a
plegé of the carpef taken from the Rent-A-Cer , Willys-
Knight car, 17, £he car in question hers?A

A T vwas.

Q@ And what was the result of that?

+ " A Those tests showed human blocd.

Q 'And were you present when the analysis was made of
the pieces taken from the pants belonging to Richard
Loeb?

A' I wgs.‘

Q 4nd what was the result q% tﬁat fest?‘,

A Those tests showed humen bloed.

@ Vere you present when an analysls was made of the

pleces taken from the charred automobile robve, was

1

' t .

made?
A I was.
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30 Q@ And what was the result of that?

A It showed human blood,

@ And were you present when the piece of tépe taken
from the chisel thrown from the red Willys-Knight
car on the morning of the 23nd of May, 1924, was
exawined?

A T wes.,

Q@ And the result‘of that anal&e;s disclogsed what?

A It showed human blood.

Q@ The morning of the 22nd, instrad of the 31st?

MR, CROWE: I think that is all, Well, did you examine
along with the other Doctors mentioned the ngces taken
from fhe floor poards of the car? |

A i was present, yes.

@ And what was the result of that angly;is?

A It showed human blood,

ViR, CROWE: Any cress axaminatiéq.

MR; SAVAGE: The pleceg from the oa#.

L “MR. CROVE: He testified to that, o
IR, DARROW: No croes examination,’

4R, CROWE: All right, Tiank you, Doctor.

\

(Witness exoused)

IR
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31 DR, RALPH W, WEBSTER,
called as a witness on behalf of the People, having
been first duly sworn, was examined and testified ée
follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Ur, Crowe,

Q What is your name, Doctor?

A Relph W, Webster,

Q@ And your profession?
A Physician and chemist,
Q Where do you live?

A

'Ghicégo, 5634 Dorchester Avenue.
, Q Are‘yéu‘connected with any 1nstitut$&£ﬁ£¥yé‘6}
irg'titutions?

A Yesg, I am, I am professor of medical jurisprudence
| in the University of Chiczgo, alsc director of the
' Chicago Laboratory, 25 East Washington Street, -
@ TFor hov long a\time have you been & pjacﬁiciﬁg
.physicain here? .
A 28 years,
Q - And a chemist?

A The same length of time..
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35 &
1R, CROVE: There is no question aqut his qualifioca-
tions?

MR, B, BACHRACH: None whatever.,

.R. DARROVW: No,

:R, CROWE: Q Now, DPctor, you were in the State's
Attorney's office, Sunday afternoon, June lst, were
you?

A l;5wasf

Q Aiong with Doctor Wesner énd Dgcﬁor ——

A Not at that time, I was there a 1ittié bit later,

Q And following that you and Doctor Wesner and
Doctor licNally and Doctor Hectone made a chemical

analysis of samples taken from a Rent-A-Car automobile,

Number 17, that has been spoken of here, piecers taken

from a palr of rubber boots owned by Nathan Leopold
and worn on the night of lMay 2lst, 1934; pieces taken
from hies trousers and coat worn cn the same day and
night, and the trousers of Richard Loeb worn on the
same day, and samples of pieces taken from a charred
green automobile robe and a piece of tape taken from

the chisel that hus been introduced in evidence here,

and the floar boards of the car in‘question, and a part
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33 of =— and pieces tzken from the carpet that was on the

EA Y

floor of the automobile, That i true, isnft 1t7

4 It is tTue, yes,

Q@ And as a result of the analysis made by you
gentlemen, you came to what conclusion?

A That thess spots that we examined on these articles
enumerated were human blood.

\HR. CROWE: You may cross exanmine,

IR. DARROW: That is all.
MR, CROVE: Much obliged to you, Doctor.,
(Witness excused)

MR., CROWE: Can we adjourn now, your Honor?

!
&
[3 L] '

THE COURT: All right.

iR, CROWE: Ve made pretty falr progress todéy;
THE QOURT: Yes, you did, We will suspend now until

tomoTTOW morning at ten o'clock. All the witnesses

/return tomorrow at ten o'clock sharp.

(Whereupon an adjournment was taken until

Friday, July &5th, 4. D, 1934, at ten olclock

A.\ 1{")
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July 35th, 1934.

10300 otclock A,M,

Court convened at 10:00 o'clock A.M. July 35th,

1934, pursuant to adjournment heretofore taken.

Preaqnt: Same as before.

FRANEK P. BLAIR,
a witness called on bshalf of the prosecution, being
first duly sworn, tsstified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CROWE,
Q Will you state your neme please?

A Frank P. Blair.

.
Q And where do you 1live, Mr. Blair? AT live

‘at 5lst and Sacramento. | ’
Q And what 18 your occupation? - A Marine Salvage

aﬁd Diving.

Q I will direct your attention to a portable Under-
wood Typewriter and the case, and ask you to state
whether or not you ever saw that before, will you look

at 1t?
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A Yee sir.

Q And where ie the first place you saw that?

A On the bottom of the Jackdon Park lagoon,

Q That is Jeckecn Park in the City of Chicago?

A Yes gir,

) And on what day did you sec it? A Well,
I dontt know the exaot date, Mr, Ciomé.

Q Weliabout when?

A It was on a Saturday in June, but I don't know
the exact date,

Q@ In June of this year?

A Yes sir.

Q And after seeing it, what 1f anything did you ‘do
withit?

A %ell firet I eaw the case, I didn't see the typewriter,
and I brought it up to the surface and put it on diving
blocks while the gear was belng teken off, then I
brought it up to your office, and it was mever out of
my hands or sight.

Q And you turned it over to me?

A Yes Bir.

Q Did you make a mark on it at the time, sc that
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&ou could identify At later?

A Yes sir.

Q What mark did you make?

Al gxux out the letter "B" on the rubber roller.

MR, CROWE: Crose examine.

MR, BACHRACH: No crose exXxamingtion.

MR, CROWE: I desire to offer in evidence, if your
Honor please, the typewriter, portable Underwood
typewriter, and the case just identified by the witness,
and I ask that they be marked "People's Exhibit =
the case be marked "Pzople's Exhibit" <= what 19 the
number ?

MR, SMITH: 17,

MR, CROWE: People's Exhibit 17 and the typewriter
iteelf 18,

MR, BACHRACH: I presume you will connect it up
later on by showing -- |

MR.CROWE: Oh yes,

MR. BACHRACH: @11 right.

MR, CROWE: Well, I will offer it now for identifica-
tiom.

MR, BACHRACH: All right. We don't object to its

going in evidence,
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MR. CROWE: ¥Well, 1 will oconnect it up leter anyhow,
THE COURT: It may go in subject to oconneocting it
up later.,
MR, CROWE: Q Is it in the same condition now as
when you first had it?
A Practically, The tape ie torn a little more,
Q And how about the keye?
A Yes, the type were gone.
Q The type were gone when you first had‘it?
A Yes sir.
Q Now prior to going out there did you have a talk
with anybody with reference to the particular spot
you were going to?
AT dldn't know where I was going to.
QI don't mean the exact spot? |
A No.
Q But I mean the lagoon? A wﬁf,'jéu‘qold
me where the lagoon was, isall I know.'
MR, CROWE: That 1is all. |

THE WITNESS: Thenk you.

(No crose examination and wWitness excused)
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PERCY VAN DE BOGERT,
a witness called on behelf of the prosecution, having
been first duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CROWE,
Q Will you state your name please?
A Percy Van de Bogert.
Q Where do you live? A I live at 1140
Eagt 64th Street,
THE COURY: Spell your last name please?
A Van de Bogert.
THE COURT: All right.
MR, CROWE: Q Wpere do you live? A 1140
East 64th Street.
Q@ And what is your ocoupatioﬂ?‘
A Pharmaoist., |
Q In May, 1934, where were you employed?
”A At 1465 East 63rd Street,
Q And who runs that drug store?
A C. M, Ross,
Q By Direoting your attention to the aftefnoon of
May 338nd, 1934, will you state whether or nd you

had occasion to answer the telesphone in that drug store?
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AT did,

Q About what time in the afternoon Wae‘it?

A Around three or three thirty,

Q Well now will you s8tate what oonversation, if any,
you had over the télephone?

A I answered the phone in the usual way and the
party asked for Franks. lanswered over again to make
sure what it was and he said "Mr, Franks" and I said
hewasn't thers.

Q You egaid he waenyt there, then what happened?

A I went out to see if anyohe was waiting in the
gtore by that name.

Q Yes,

A And announced the same and there was not anybody
waiting there, 80 I told the party on the phone that
there was no one thers by that name and he sald all right,

Q Was it a man or a vwoman who was talking on the
other end , if you know?

A I took it for a young men's voige.

MR, CROWE: You may oross éxammne.

MR, BACHRACH: No oross examination.

(Witnees excused)

- ad e N =
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JAMES ¢, KEU¥P,
a witness called on behalf of the prosecutionkwas first
duly sworn andtestified as follows?
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,

Q Will you state your name please?

A James C, Kemp., |

Q Where do you live? A f liYe at 448 Eué£
45th Pleace,

Q What is your occupation?

A Porter.

Q And where were you employed in the mohth of May of

this year?

A At the drug store lmown at that tims 25 Van de Bogert

& Rogs, which is now C, M, Ross,

Q Where is that store located?

A 485 East 63rd Street.

Q Directing your attention tothe afternoon of May
33nd, 1934, will you state whether or not during the
afternoon you had occasion to anewer the telephone
in that drug store?

A Yes sir, I did.
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Q And what time was it? A Between the hours
of three and four,

Q What conversation if any did you have on the phone?

A VWell, being #weeping near the telephone booth
the phone rang, all the clerks were busy, and therefore
it came to my hands to eanswer the telephone, The
answer and the voice sesponded tome "Is Mr. Franks
there" and I answered and said "No, thereie no Mr.
Franks here," and then the voice said, "Probably I
have the wrong number" and they hung up.

Q Could you tell whether it was a man or a Woman
talking? ' ”

A Well it was a man's voice,

MR, CROWE: You may crose examine.

MR. BACHRACH: No oross examination:

THE COURT: That is all.

(¥o cross examination and

witness exoused)
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GEORGE PORTER LERW ; S,
a witness called on behalf of the prosecution, having
been firet duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION BY
MR, CROVWE,

Q Will you state your name please?

A George Porter Lewis, ’

QWhere do you live, Mr, Lewis? A 4559(u
Forrestville Avenus,

Q And what 1s your occupation?

A Sales Correspondent.

'Q Do you attend the Chicago Univeraify?
A I do not.

Q Have you been a student there? A I have
not.

Q Have you made & study of ornithology?

‘A I have, |

Q Do youknow the defqugnt ih this case, Nath?n qu-_
pold, Junior?

Al do.

Q I will ask you to state whether or not you had

a conversation with him prior to May 33nd of this year
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in reference to taking his ornithology claes out?

A Yes,

Q Now will you state when that conversation was?

A I do not remember what date 1t wase, prior to that date
that we spoke of here. We merely referred to it in
more or less of an offhand way.

Q Well now go ahead and tell what he saldand what
you diu?

A I can't remember anything exact mentioned before
that date.

Q Well, in substance?

A But he said that he might want me to take the clasé
out at some time or bther.

Q And then what was said after that and what wae
done?

A On the morning of May 33nd I answered the telephoné
between 8:30 and nine o'clock, it wae Nathan Leopold,
Junior, he asked ms if I was to be busy that day and
I t0ld him I thought I would be. He then asked 1f
I would be able to take his olass in ornithology to
Jackson Park that afternoon. I esaid I thought 1t might

be arranged. He gave me directions then for finding
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the class, to bs a class of small girls.

Q Let me interrupt for just & moment. Now he asked
you, you say, would youtake his clase that day to
Jackson Park?

A Yes,

Q Had you been out with Nathan Leopold Junior the
Bunday previous?

AYes.

Q Studying birde?

A Yes,

Q And where did you and he go on the Sunday previous
to thise?

A we went first to Jackson Park sarly in the morning
after breakfast, which we had on 63rd street, we went
to Riverside, we spent a good deal of time there and
ate our lunch there, then went south to VWillow Springe
or in that neighborhood in the Forest Preserve. e
then went aorose 85th Street to Hegewich, and we there
dropped the fellow who had been with us,

Q wWho was he?

A Sidney Stein, Junior.

Q And then what happened?

A we went north to the track at 108th Street and
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wont down into the vacant territory which we have
known a8 the Calumet region there, and through the
Forest Preserve to about 118th or 130th Street,

Q Do you know where 118th and the Panhandle meet,
where the culvert 18?7

A Just about, yes,

Q What is the answer?

A 1 say yes.

Q VWell did you paes over or near the culvert on
that Sunday with Nathan Leopold, Jumior?

A We passed near it.
. Q Wh;a.t wae he doing at that time?

A Studying birds,

Q Did he have a gun?

A 1 believe that was the day that he borrowed one
in order to take a shot at a rare bird which was down
there.,

Q Tell did he take a shot at 1%7

A He aid,

Q How many shots, do you xnow?

A T"wo or three.

Q Did he hit them?

A No.
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Q %Vell now go ahead with your other story. Had
you been out in that particular seotion prior to that
Sunday, with Nathan Leopold, Junior?

A I had

Q How many times?

AT couldn't very well sstimate, psrhaps twenty times,
probably more,

Q Go ahead now with your story?

A What do you wish me to take up?

Q@ On the 33nd?

A On that afternoon I followed out == vh, poeeibly
I h3d better resume wWith e

Q Yza, you were telephoning in the afterncon?

A ya-,witﬁ therest of our call, yes, I pelizve th;t
he to0ld me that I would bs pald twelve dollars 28 he
expected eight girls to be in the class, He mentioned
a dollar and a half for each girl present. Itold him :4
that I would be glad to take his class for him and
I believe that was the end of our conve;eatial at tpﬁt

1

time,

' Q Now do you know what his fee was?

Al do not. ,
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Q All right, then what did you do?

A I resumed with my natural affairs until the afternoon.
The time set I think was about three o'clock or a little
after, and I went to the University Elementary School
to take the olaes, to meet the girls there, and I
think there were thirteen present, the full claes
I believe,

Q wWell, &d you have a conversation after that with
vathan Leopold, Junior?

AT did.

Q And when was that next conversation?

A I telephoned him thet evening, possibly at seven
or seven thirty.

Q All right. Now what was the conversation?

A1 immediately t01d him that I had taken the oclass
out to the park that day and all had gone succesefully.
'‘Q Did you have another conversation after that with

him?

AT did,

Q whent?

A The Sunday after that I believe,

Qwell, what was that conversation?
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A I telephoned him in reeponse to & call that he
had made while I was at Churoh, and when I returned
I had heen asked by my mother to telephone him,
He to0ld me that he had been questi oned by the police
in regards to the Franks caee and he said his name
had been given to them by the Game Warden at the Forest
Preserve, He also etated that he had been askedto
give the names of dher ornithologiate who were in the
habit of going to that district, and of other people
hemight know who were acquainted with that distriot.

Q What else?

A He then asked if by any ohance I had lost my
glasse® while I was out there on the Sunday previous.

Q Did you wear glasses?

A X d4iq.

Q what kind of glasses?

A Tortoise rim glassea,

Q Have you got them with you?

A I have. VWould you like to see them?

Q will you show ths Court what kind“they are?

.A Yes,

Q All right, continue?
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A I felt my breast pockét and I told him they were
thers, that I hadn't lost them. He said there was
some possibility tha; the olasses that had been found
in that vioinity had something to do with tkz Franks
éase,but he didn't think it was ocertain that they did.

Q Did he ask you whether youhllzd two palr of glasses?

A I beliecve he did.

Q What did you t211 him?

ATl to0ld him I had only owned one psair,

Q Vas there anything further said?

A He suggestzd that I should not tell my father =and
mothexr, that there wag a poseibility of my being
quectioned by the policef ag he thought it might
worry them,

Q Wae there anything further?

A T believe not,

- MR, CROWE: You may crosgs examine.

' MR, BACHRACH: No crose.

(Titness excused and no crose examination)
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THOMAS C., WOLF,
called as a Witness on behalf of the prosecution, being
first duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,
Q will you kindly state your name, Captain?
A Thomas C. Wolf,
Q And where do you reside? A 115 Fast 57th
Street.
Q What is your occupation?
A A police officer.
Q | And what rank do you hojllfi?‘
A Captain.,
Q Where is your ocommand or district? | A 8th
Police District.
Q And where is that loocated? A . At 10130
"Ewing Avenue. |
Q I willask you to state whether or not 1létﬂ
' Street md the Panhandle track is in that distr‘iot’t
A Yes sir,
Q That is in the City of Chiocago, County of C%k and
State of Illinois, 18 it?

A Yes,
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Q Do you remember the finding of the body of
Robert Franke?
| Al dos
Q And did you question people in reference to the
Franks matter?
ATl did. \
Q I will a8k you to state whether or not yéﬁ know the
defendant Nathan Leopold, Junior?
AT do.
Q vhen did you firsteee Nathan Leopold, Jr.?
A In the forenoon of May 35th, 1924,
Q That was the Sunday following the Wednesd;y upon
whih the Franks boy had disappeared?

A Yes,

3

Q And hov did you heppen to get in touch with Nathan

¢

‘Leopod, Jr.? ‘

A In meking our investigations we learned that ; man
answering his name used t0 go out.there what they
called birding, around Wolf Lake and Hyde Lake, that
is in the general loocality where the body was found,

Q 8o you sent for him?

A Y630
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Q Did you have a conversation with him?

AT aiq.

Q State what the conversation was, if you will please?

Al asked him if he ves familiar with the neighbore
hood of 131st and the Panhandle Reilroad traock and
he said he was, that he used to go out there frequently
birding, that he had been visiting the place aboutb
that season of the year for the past 8ix years, and
that he was out there this year p;avious to May 18th,
about 8ix timss, thatxhex he was out there on May
17th and on May 18th, birding, that & gentlsman
named Sidney Stein was withhim, & gentleman named
Lewis was with him on those dates, and that s met
a2 Dr. Link and hie wife ag he was going through that
neighborhood, that the last time that hewas there
wa® on Sunday, May 18th, that he was out as far as
May's Shaok which would be 1318t about a block east
of the Panhandle Railroad track, that he borrowoed a
gun fram him one of those daye to sboot & bird, that ~
classes from the Harvard School used %o go out thers
birding, that he knew of young Frankse' father, that he

dfidn 't know whether young Franks used to go out there

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 377 1924



20r #6378-

xbi%dilzlg or not, but that classes from the Harvard Sohool
gsed to go out there, and that he himself was a student
at ghe Harvard School =~
Q‘ was, or had been?
A Had been.
Q ‘Yes,
A That he was a lav student at the time at the
Universityof Chicago, that he was nineteen years of
age, that he lived, I forget the address where he lived,
that everybody was speaking about the Franks case, they
were talking about it at home, that he didn't know
who would commit the crimgg words to that effect.,
Q Now, did you have the glaeses at that time, Captain?
A No sir,
Q Afterwards you got the glassss, did you?
A I had them previoue to that,
Q Oh, you had them previous?
A I had the glasses on the night, the day the body
was found, on the 33nd of May,
Q You had the glasses on Thursday before this Sunday?
A Yes sir,

Q Then what did you do withthem?

A At the miérgue Chief of Detectives, Michael Hughes,
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and Cpptain Shoemacher and I got talking about glasses
being found there, and that Nr. Franks said that his
boy did not wear glasees, and Chief Hughes and I
decided to turn the glassesa over to Chief Hughes and
have them checked up.

Q ®Well, you gave them to Hughes?

A1l gave them to Chisf Hughss,

Q I will show you a pair of glasses whioh were intro-
duced in evidence y=sterday = do you know the number?
People!s Exhibit E for identification -~ or People's
Exhibit 16, and I will aek you to look at them snd
state Whether those are the glasses that you
have been talking about and that were turned over to
Chief Hughes?

A They are.

Q Did you make & msrk on them at the time?

A Chief Hughes made a mark on them in my presenéé,
the mark ie here.

Q You find the mark there, do you?

A Yes sir.

Q What was the mark?

A He marked it with a knife, there‘ara tﬁree éutn on

the glasses,
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‘MR, CROWE: Do you want to see that?
THE COURT: I saw it,
MR, CROWE: You saw the "A??
THE COURT: Yes,
MR. CROWE: There are three cute on it also.
Q Now did you get & written statement from Leppqld}’
at that time?
AT dig.
Q I will show you & brown piece ofpaper and ask you
~to look at that and state whether or not that is =
statement that Nathan Leopold, Junior gave you on the
Sunday following the murder? -
A Do you want me to read it?
Q well, lookx at it and see whether that ie the zame
statement ? ' ‘
A Yes, that is the same statement.
Q In whose handwriting is that, if you know? -

A Nathan Legpold, Junior.

!
|

Q He wrote it himself ?
A He did.
Q Now after he gave you this statement he went home,

did he, or he left? , , '
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Q fbu had him in custodydt no time?

A No sir,

MR, CROWE: If your Honor please I desire to read
into the record =-

MR, BACHRACH: May I see it first, Mr. Crowe?

MR, CROWE: Yes,

MR. BACHRACH Very well,

THE COURT: You may read it.

MR, CROWE: Q I will direot your attention agein,
Captdin, to the signature and address, and ask you
to state whether or mé you know whether the address ie
in the handwriting of Nathan Leopold, Jumior, or
wvhether somebody else wrote it on afterward?

A T think somebody else wrote that on.

Q A 1ittle louder?

A Somebody else wrote that on.

Q After -

A I think after he wrote the statement,

Q Now what 1s this at the top? "Given to Anderson
and Burne, 8th Distriot, 11:30 A.M. May 35th"?

A Those were the xxx officers who wers present at the
time he wrote the statement.

Q Well who wrote that on?
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A 1 thinkAnderson wrote that,
Q So that the statemént "Given to Anderson and Burms,
8th Distriot, 11¢30 A.M. May 235th, 1924" and also
4754 greenwood Avenue, Chicago, I1linois® is not in the
handwriting of Nathan Leopold, Junior?
A %o the best of my knowledge it is not.
Q But the balance of the statement 1s?

A Yes,.

Whereupon the statement Was here read
in evidence to the Court by State's
Attorney Crove in the words and

'figures as follows, to=-wit:?
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"Yay 35th,1934.

I have been going to the general locallty of
xi§3§§ Street and Avenue F for six years.

I have been in this locality about five or

gix times this year. The last timee wers
Saturday, May 17th and Sunday, May 18th.

On May 17th, George P, Lewis and 1 drove

out through the Forest Preserve and down south
along the west shore of Wolf Lake %o about 136th
Street. We then returned, arrived about 2:30
P.M, and left about 5:00 P.M.

| Sunday, May 18th, at the oonoluaion.

of a day's birding, Mr. Sidney Stein, Juni;r,
George Lewls and I drove along ths west shore

of Hyde t2ake to Hegewich, arrived at 4:30 or

5:00 P,M,, then met Dr, and Mrs. Link £a of

fos

the University of Chicago, also looking for
birds.

Vie returned by the same road, dzdpped
Mr. Stein at 106th Street, and then Mr. Lewle
and I drove along the rocad to Forest Preserve

and out to May's Shack between VWolf and Hyde
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Lakes, arrived about 6330 or 6:45, Walked
east toc the lce house and back to the R.R,
» track, left by same road about 7:30 or 7:30.
The purpose of all these trips were
the observation of birds,

Nathan F, Leopold, Jr."

MR, CROWE: If your Honor please, I desirs to offer
this in evidence now and have it marked "People's
Exhibit 19",

MR, BACHRACH: No objeotion,

THE COURT: It may go in,

Coy 4

A
‘¥R, CROWE: You may croes examine:

MR, BACERACH: Nooroes examinsation.

(No cross examination and

witnese exocused)

’

- e s e oy
y 1o
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HOWARD MAYER,
a witness called on behalf of the prosecution, having
been first duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE,
Q Will you kindly state your name?
A Howard Mayer.
, THE COURT: Talk a little louder wiil you plesse?
, A Howard Mayer,
MR, CROWE: © Andyour address? A 23138 East
ggth Street,

Q And what is your occupation or busimes, if any?

A Newspaper reporter. , | :l

Q And by whathewspaper are you employed?

A The Chicago Evening American.,

Q And for how long a time have you been with them?
' A Vell, over & year.

Q Now then, in addition to that have you been a
student during the past year atthe Chicago University?
* A1 have,

Q what are you studying out there?

A I am in the CYllege of Arts, Literature and Soience.
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Q Do you know the defendant Richard Loeb in this
cese, |
AT ad.
Q For how long a time have you known him?
A Ten months to a year.
Q You met him out at the University did you?
A Yes sirx.
Q Now, were you a8signed by your newspaper to do any
work on the Franks case?
A I wse told to pick up whatever I could on it,.
Q Vhen was that?
A Thgt was on the porning of May 33rd.
Q That is the friday following the dssappearance and
marder of the boy?
A ves sir,
Q Did you meet ‘Richard Loeb that day?
Al 4aid.
QDid you have a tdk with hig?
AT diga,
Q Whoelse was present, if anybody?
A vwell our conversation, when we started our conver-

sation we were alone.
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Q Well go shead and tell it in your own way, where
you met him and what followed?

A X met him on the campus @&f the University of Chicago
at noon on May 33rd. Qur conversation turned to the
Franks ocase, and Loeb suggested that if Mr. Franks
were sending ten thousand dollars to a drug store
on 63rd Streetthat he wuld not be met there by
the kidnappers, but that some word would be left
at the drug store direcoting that the money be sent
somewhere else, Aa I recall his words he said, "You
know, these kidnappers would not meet a man on a
busy street like that, that is common sense."

I agreed with him. He 'said, "why don't you make

the rounds of some of these drug etores on East 63rd
Street, and see if you can't find the one at which

some word wae left for Mr. Frenks.," 1 heeitated,.

'I had school work to do thut afternoon and I didn't

want to go along. About that time Alvin CGoldstein
and James Mulroy of the News came along. KmEm Loeb knew
Goldstein and he turned to me and he said, “If youwont
take my proposition® =-

MR, CROWE: Just a moment. Both of these other

witnespes are in the room —
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KR, BACHRACH: No objection,
MR, CROWE: All right‘. |

@ Go ahead,

A He said, "if you wont take my proposition, why I
will put it up th them." I $0ld him that I didn't
care, and he talked to the other boys and they secemed
anxious to go and suggested that as long as I had a
car therethat I go along with them. It was ralning
and I was hesitent, but I finally agreed %o do that’
for about an hour. e started out, Goldstein,
Mulroy, Loeb and myself, and we drove to 63rd end
Stoney Island, We started at the drug store on
the corner there, and worked our way west on 63rd
Street. VWhen we got down as far as Blacketone it
was raining pretty hard and Mulroy stayed in 'checar.,‘

Goldstein tried a cigar store acrose the estreet,

and Loeb and I walked into the drug store of Van de Bogert

and Ross and walked up to the colored Porter and asked

.him if he had been there the day before andhe said

"Yea", We asked him 1f any calls had come for Mr.
Franks. He sald, "Yes,"that two calls had been
received, but he said the other clerk reoeived the

other one, that he is out just now but he will be in
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in a few minutes,

Loeb turned to me, "You aee,\I told you we
could find it, now you have got & scocp". And suggested
that I keep it for myself, and I told bim that I
couldntt very well, that we had started out with the
boys from the News, and I suggested that he go over
and call them. He did. And by the time the boys
from the News came in the other oclerk had arrived
and we questioned bim in detail as to exactly what

wag sald over the phone, and we learned that the boys

'had called for Ur Franks and when told that no Mr. Franks

wa8 employed there the wvoice asked the clerk to look
about the drug store and see if there wmas anyone therg
by that name.,

While we were there -~ we Wwalted there for
some time for the Bureau Squad to come up, after
calling our offices, and when the burewu squad
came up we talked with, I belleve it was Nick Hughee,
and Loeb I belleve even mentioned that the white clerk
had said that he knew more about it than the colored
porter. I don't recall the glet of our conversation,

that 1z anything in particular, but I know it all centered
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about this case, and as wewlked out of the drug store
Loeb remarked t0o me, "Rell, that is what comes from
reading detective stories," and I myself honesfly
believed 1it.
We then went to the inquest where Ispoke
to Mr. Franki.&nd Loeb was standing alongside of me.
From there we went down to get & newspaper to see if
our etory had got in and we couldn't get a late
edition, but or the way back to Loeb's home, golng
easton 47th Street, we plcked up a police officer who
had a late edition of the American and Loeb asked him
if he ocould keep it because it had this etory in it .
We dropped Loeb off at his home, close to five o'clock,
Q FNow did you have any conversation with the defend-
ant , Loeb, after that?
K aid,

Q when was the next conversation?

AX donit recall meeting him on campue again, but on
the morning, on Decoration Korning I was sent down
to the Loeb home sbout seven o'clock in the morning.

I got there about eeven fiftesn and one of the Buremu
8quads came up and Dick etepped out of a Marmon and
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turned to me, shook hands with me end he says,
"You know, Howie, I have always wanted to ride in
one of these Marmone, and now I am getting my ride."
And I don't know, I took the mstter rather lightly,
joked with them about getting in a jamb and about
the police pulling a boner, and guch things as that.

Q That was on the morning of Deooration Day?

A Yee sir,

Q Before any charge had been lodged againet Loeb?

A Yee sir,

Q All right. What else was said?

ATl didn't see him until later on tha£ day. I igarned
that the boys were telling different storlee, and
I thought that Loeb was lying, because I thought he
was afrald to say that on that day he had been out -~
he had been drinking, and had picked up a couple of
girls, So I went to Mr. Ettleson at the Franks home
;nd I told him that, and M¥r. Ettelson =«

Q Not what you told Mr. Ettelson, all that may go out.

A ALl right, |

Q Confine yourself to the conversation you ﬁad'With

Loeb.

A I met him then down at the State's Attorney's Office
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about five o'clook that evening., I was put in a
room alone with him, and I told him that if he vwere %o
clear himself that he would have to tell the truth.
He sald Well, he didn't want to talk at that time,
and I tried to persuade him that he had to talk
to get out of this thing,

Q You were looking for a newspaper story were you?

A No sir, I was not., I was trying to clear him as
a fima friend.

Q All right.

A Mr, Ettelson came down to the office and gpoke ¥o
you, I believe, Mr. Crowe, about that?

Q Woll all right, go ahead?

A The conversation was never used a8 a newspaper
story. Loeb was quite hesitant. Then Mr. Sbarbaro
and ¥r. Cronson came in, and they finally persuaded

him that he should talk, He then told a story

' substantially the same ae Leoppld's story, with the

Hei nOnli ne --

exception orthe time that Dick said he was under

the influence of liquor and he couldn’t recall exactly
what had happened, but it, in general, followed out
Leopold's story very closely. |

Q Did you have & conversation wibkh him after that?
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A I saw him many times in the County Jail, in the
capacity of a newspaper reporter,

Q Now state when the first time was you saw him in
the County Jail?

A The firet time I eaw him in the County Jail, I am
not positive, but it wss, I believe, the Tuesday after
the oconfeseion,which Would be on June 3rf,

Q what if anything wee said then by Loeb?

A Wwell he greeted me a8 usual, with a handshake and
a emile, eand I forget exactly what the substance of
the etory was at thattime. He talked to me in confie
dence. He inquired about bis chum's out at the campus
at the University, and asked me to take a word of
greeting to them. I don't believe that I used any
of that meterial in a story.

Q Did you have any other conversztionswith him
after that about this casge?

A On one oocasion I mentioned to him) Well, Dick,
you sure wrecked the headlines". He sald to me, "hell,
I tried to give you a story," Otherwliee we didn't
touch very closely on the case,

MR, CROWE: You may oroes examine,
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MR, BACHRACH: That is all.

(No oross examination and witness exousad)
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ALVIN H. GOLDSTETIN,
a witnese called in behalf of the prosecution, having
been first duly sworn, teetified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROVE.

Q ¥ill you state your name please?

A Alvin H., Goldstein.

Q .What ie your addrees, Mr. Goldetein? A 5507 Ever-
ett Avenue.

TEE COURT: What aveynue?

A Everett,

MR, CROWE: Q Whst is your occupation?

A Reporter for the Chicazo Daily wews,

Q Andyou have been a reporter for how long?

é Approximately a year, |

Q Are you s etudent at the Chiocago University also?

A I have been a student at the Chicago University,
yes sir.

Q Ang were you last'ye&r?

A No eir.

Q %hen were you a studentl

A Tvo years agp, 1933.
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'*Q‘ ﬁolfou'iﬁéﬁ $he dﬁfeﬁaﬁﬁf in this case, Richard
Loeb?

A Yes sir.

Q Did you have & convereation with the defendant,
Richard Loeb, any time after May 31st, 1934 in reference
to the Franks case?

A yes sir.

Q When is the first time you hadsuch a conversation?

A Some time during the evening after five o'clock
Thursday, May 33rd.

Q TWhere were you?

A In front of the Franks residenee,

Q Wednesday was the 31et, Wwas this on the 33rd or
wes it on Thureday?

A The 33nd, Thursday.

Q On the 33ng?

A Yes,

Q Well now etate what the conversation was?

A At that time, the actual words of the oconversation
are very dim, but I do remember of Richard Loeb coming

pp to me and aeking me something bearing upon what had
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happened. 1 wont say that he pretended ignorance of
anything going on because I an bt ocertain, but he asked'
me something about what happened, and I told him breifly,
and that is about all,

Q Now did you have a conversation with him afterthet?

A Yes 8ir, The next day, Frigay, Mr. Mulroy and I,
we were working together on the story, had about two
hours bstween noon and three ofclock in which we had
ndthing planned to do, and discussing what was the best
thing to do, e had started toward the fraternity house
and stopped in there zgmi® e moment, and as we gat there
and rested, Loeb came out and suggested that we hunt
the drug store, as Mr. Mayer on the stand said, and
to follow the conversation would be almoet as Mr., Mayer
told it, and it was ended by #s, the three of us,
accompanying Loeb to the drug store,

Q Did you have a conversation at any time withoap
a8 to whether he knew the Franks boy or not?
| A Yes sir.

Q State when and where that Qas?

A I would hardly say that it was a conversation I had,
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I overheard 1it.

Q Did you hear somebody else ask him whether ha lmew
the Franks boy?

A Yes gir,

Q who?

A I was seated in the front eeat with Mr. Mayer snd
Mr., Mulroy was seated in the rezar seat with Richard
Loedk on our way from the drug store xeturning, and
the disocusesion had turmed to the newspapers, Richard
Loeb had several newspapere, one of which wae the
Daily News, and we had been arguing who would reed if,
end wo came acrosd & certaln passage in it whioh rg%
ferred to young Franke, and one of w, I sam not cer-
tain whioh, a®ked Loeb if he knew young Franks end
what kind of a fellow he wse, to which Richard Loed
replied, "He ig just the kind of® -~ I know him" and
"he ia Just the kind of a kid® =-using some expletive,
which I sm not absolutely oertain -—= x8& "I would have
picked to kidnep"® — or murder. |

Q What word did he use, if you know Or remember?

A Bir?

THE COURT: what word did he use, "Kidnap® or "murder"?
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A It seems to me that he used both.

MR. CRORE: @ Well go ahead and tell us?

A1l anm trying to recollect exactly., I am not
certain whether he used "kidnap® or “murder" or both,
but I know w=-

Q But in describing the boy, do you remember the words
he used in describing what kind of a boy he was?

A This 1s the reason thst remark stands plainly in
my mind -

Q No, nos, Do you remembser the wWordsthat he used in
describing the boy?

AT know I am evading, but the reason is I wanted
‘to say this, Mr. Crowe, that the roason I absolutely
remembered the remark,whioh o¥herwise I would have
forgotten,was that vhen he wasltaken into custody and
'I saw him here I said to some reporter, *I don't think
he had anything to do with it; he is the kind of a
chap who might say when he wae questioned, might
say oiroumstantial things Which might lead them to
believe that he was guilty", and then I repoated this
remark and I remembered ~-

Q Now, what is the remark?
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A The way I repeated it was, *he is juet the kind of" --

Q No no, what ie the remark, how didhe Qescribe 1t?

A "I thought he vwas just the kind of cooky litile’
son of & bitch that I would pipk."

ﬁR. CROVE: You mﬁy cioss’examine.

¥R, BACHR ACH: No oepses examination.

(No cross examination and

witness excused)

e e = ae
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JAMES w, MULROY,
called a8 a witness on behalf of the prosecution, having
been first duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR,CROWE,

Q You may state your name please?

A James W, Mulroy.

Q where do youlive, Mr. Mulroy? ' ‘A 1533 East
Marquette Road.

Q what 1s your occupation?

A Yewe paper man.

Q You have been & student at the Chicago University?

A I have bheen, yes sir.

Q' Dirscting your attention to the Friday following
-~ Friday, May 33rd, did you have a oconversation with
Richard Losb, the defendant in this ocase?

AYass 8ir.

Q Now go shead and tell the court when and where
and what wae said ond doneo?

A Well, my pertner, Alvin Goldstein and I had just
left the Hartman home, wg were on our way out south,

further south, trylngto pick up what we could on
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the story, and we stopped at the fraternity house to
shich Mr. Goldstein belonge, and while we were sitting
there Dick Loeb came out of the dinlng room, I believe
he had besen at lunch with Howard Mayer, and at any
rate he came out of that room and hecame up to me

end sajid that he understood I had been working on the
case, I had had some luck with Al in gstting the body
identified, and I said "Yes" and we talked for a
while about the terrible orime it was and 20 on, and
then he suggested going down 63rd Street and we said
we had had that in wind, but we didn't intend to do

it then bec2use it was raining, but we intended to

do it that day. S0 he wxid he would get Howard Mayer
and his osr and go down there, which he did, and

we set out for 63rd Street, and the first place we
hit was thies drug store, at the corner of €3rd and
Stoney Island Avenus, and at that place I Qusstioned
the druggist, and Diok took = great interest,

a8 I remember, in what I said tothe druggist. If

I recolle ot correctly, I not ofily asked the drugglet
if some man had called from there, but if a oall had
come into that drug store, and Dick couldn't understand

why I had agked him that question. In any case, we
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ed about it quite a bit, and we started down
63rd Street, stopping at every ocigar store and drug
store untii we got to the corner of 63rd and Black=~
stone Avenue, then Diock and Howard got out of the car
to go in this drug store, and Alvin and I were arguling
about some theory of the case as I recollect, and
as I started out of the car Loeb came running out
the door yelling "this is the place®, and we hurried’
across there, and sure enough it was the place. We
talked with the pharmacist and with the Porter, and
then I wont t0 the phone booth and tried to got
the call traced. I called the chief operator,

- I believe, something like that, and at that time when
I started into the phone booth Dick Loeb said, "for
God's eake, don't use my name". Ve waited then for
the bureau car. I didn't have any success in getting
the cell traced, We waited for the bureau ocar and
when it came we started again, and we stopped at
more drug stores, and on the way down Diok had a copy
of almost every newspaper, and he was very ocareful to
keep them intact, he didn't want to read them, he
sald his mother was very, very much interested in the

case, and he had promised to bring her all the papers,
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Q Just a moment. When you are talking about Dick,

you mean the defendant Richard Loeb in thie case?
A Yes,

Q All right.

A on the way baok to 6lst, to Furtoch's Chapel, I
believe it was, I asked Digck Loeb wheat kind of a boy
Bobbie Franke was, I believe I asked him if he was the
kind of boy that would put up a 8truggle if he was
kidnapped by anybody, and in his stnuggle scare
the kidnappers into killing him, and Dick's snawer
to that was to thie effect, "If. Iwas going to murder
anybody I would murder just such a cocky, little
gon-of-a-bitch as Bobbie Franks". I don't remember
where we separated, I think it was at Furtchs'.

Then I ea¥ him several times after that. I don?t
knopw whether you are interested in that or not.

MR, CROWE: You may oross examine,

¥R. BACHRACH No cross examination.

MR. CROWE: Just & moment.

Q You wereout there, Mr, Mulroy, when the body vwas
discovered, were you not? \

A Fo, I wio at the Franks homs . I had heard sll

that, and Alvin went out inthd csy and I stayed to get
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the description and cheock it with the family,

Q You gave the State's Attorney, you and your two
partnerghere, some information on the typewriter, which
lead to the diescovery of this Underwood portabls,
didnt!t you?

A Yes gir,

Q Tell us about that?

MR, DARROW:

MR, CROWE: I don't want the oonvereation that you
had with any of ue,bist if you gave anything to us
tell us wha it was?

A well, do you went that whole story of how wejf
got 1%?

MR, CROWE:  Well, Qe will let it go. You may
0ros8s examine. |

MR, DARROW: That 1s all.

(No orose examination and

" witness exocused)

- et n ek W e e
'
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MR, CROWE: Mr, Gold=tein, will you take the

stand again?

ALVIN H, GOLDSTETIN,
was recalled a8 a witness on behalf of the proseoution,
having heretofore been duly sworn, and being further

examined in chief by Mr., Crows, testifled as follows:

Q Do you remember having a conversation with the
Defendant Richard Loeb at the Franks' home or near
the Franks home aftertthe Franks boy disappeared?

' A hell, there was some convercation at the Franks
home on the night of the & # finding of the body.
At thls time he, as I said, inquired =~

MR, DARROW: Just a moment. Who is this a conver~
gation with?

MR. CROVWE: With Richard Loeb, the'defendaﬁt in
this case,

MR, DARROW: All right.

MR .CROWE: Q Now what was saild by either you or‘he?

A He inquired about the nature of the crime, in
some way, and after I had -- I remember I described

to him, and to two or tiree others that were standing
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around there, the condition of the body when I was
out atthe Morgue, as I had seen lt, =nd then he, with
several others, shook their heads and sald something
about it being a terrible crime, and that punishment
should certainly be meted out, and I belleve the
exXpression they used was thaﬁ they should be strung up,
that whosver committed the orime should be gtrung up.
MR, CROWE: 7You may oross examine.

MR, DARROW: That ies all.

(No orose examination and

witness sxcused)

+
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SIDNEY STEIN, JR.,
a witness called on behalf of the proseoution, having
been first duly sworn, testified as follows:
- " DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CROWE.

Q what is yowname?

A Sidney Stein, Jr.?%

THE COURT: A 1little louder.,

MR, CROBE: Q Andwhere do yulive, Mr. Stein?

A 5136 University Avenue,

MR, DARROW: Will you speak a little louder, please?

THE COURT: Talk up louder,

A 5136 University Avenus.

MR, CROWE: Q And are you a student at the Chiocago
univerd ty?

A No, I am not.

Q Have you been?

A Yes, I have.

Q Do you know the defendant Richard Loeb?

AT do,

Q And Nathean Leopold, Jr.}

A 1 doo
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Q Have you at sny time taken sn interest in the
‘studyof birds?

A Yes sir,

Q H"ve you ever gone out birding with Nathan Leopold,
Jr.?

A Many times,

Q Do you know where the culvert is at 118th and

the Panhandle railroad?
AT believe I do. It is hard to state just exaotly
where 118th is, but I think I am acQuainted with

that oulvert.

Q Have you been out there, in that immediate neighbor~
hood, prior to May 3lst, 10347

A T have heen there prior to that time, yee eir.,

Q With the defendant Nathan Leopold, Jr.?

A Yes sir. |

Q How many times would you s&y that you and he went
out to that place prior to that date?

A It is hard to tell., We went out quite a few times
during the #pring of each year until thie lest year
I have only been out once this year,

Q Well approximatel y how many times?
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A On about ten times a year for five years I should
say, as much as that .

Q Were you out there on the Sunday prior to, imme-
diately prior to Wednesday, May 31st, with the defendant
Nathan Leopold, Junior?

A Ieas in that vicinity, but I wasn't near the
culvert, I was at Hegewlch, I had been to Hegewich.

Q They let you off gt 106th Street, did they?

A And then they drove me back to 106th Street where
I took a ocab homs, and I didn't go out with the
others to the immediate region of the culvert on that
day.

Q énd George Lewls accompanied the two of you?
A Yes sir,

MR, CROWE: You may orocs examine,

MR, DARROW: No oross examination,

THE COURT: We will have a recess now, gehtlemén, for ten

minutes,’

Whereupon a short recess was here taken by
Court and Counsel.

’
i e W ew =
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1 ‘(Whereupon pursuant to a short rescess herstofore
Harvey

rels taken the following proceedings were had,)

Snyder

at THE COURT: I wish those that are not attaches of the
11:15

7-35-34 Court would not take it upon themselves to move things
around., Somebody yesterday took in the pitcher and heavy
glass and left it in what is known as the bull pen, where
the prisoners ocome in and out, It might cause a lot of
trouble or confusion, Now, don't do it without asking
my consent, I don't suppose they meant anything by it,

but leaving a heavy glass and pitcher in where the prisoners

are might cause 2 lot of trouble,

CHARLES ENOS,
called as a witness on behalf of the People, having been
first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Mr,Crove,

Q What is your name, please?

A Charles Enos.

Q And you 1ive at 1619 East 55th Street, do you?

A Yes, sir,

Q You are a police officer?

A Yes, sirs
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3 Q I direct your attention to the early morning of
Uay 33nd, 1934, and ask you, did you meet at that time
a man named Bernard Hunt?

A Yes, sBir,

”Q Did he give you anything?

A He gave us a chilssl,

Q And where were you at the time you met him and got
the chisel? |

A Was in a flivver going north on Greenwood Avenus
at 48th Street,

Q Did you mark the chisel in any manner?

A I did, I put an E, my initial.

Q Can you find it?

A Yes, sir, there,

Q And ohisel which I hand you has your initial on it,
and 18 thse same chisel that was given to you by Bernard
Hunt on the night of ng 32nd, or the morning of May
32nd, 193417

A Yog, sir, the sams one,

Q Will you state whether or not the chilsel is in

substantially the same condition as it was when you got
it?

A Yes,sir,
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3 Q And the blood, was that on 1t at that time?

A Yes, slr.

THE COURT: Now, get back out of the way, you, Get
back or step out,

MR, CROWE: Q@ What is the number?

MR, ALLEN: (Reporter) 6-J.

THE COURT: 1If you keep on abusing your privilege you
will lose it altogether,

MR, CROWE: The chisel I am showing the witness is &
chisel which was marked yesterday, "People's Exhibit &-J
for identification," I will now offer the same in
.evidence and ask that it be marked People's Exhiii ¢
30, |

MR, SMITH: Yeé.

MR, CROWE: Is there any objection?

MR. DARROW: No objection,

THE COURT: It may go in.

(Marked as requested by ooupgg}k ‘
MR, CROWE: That is all, |
. THE COURT: Any cross?
MR, DARROW: No oross examination.

(Witness excused)
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4 MR, CROWE: Well, 1f your Honor pleace, thlisg witness
here I understand was merely with the other officer, and
his testimony Would be the same,

THE COURT: All right,

YR, SMITH: Put him on and get his name and address,

FRANK A, MULLIGAN,
called as a witness on behalf<;f/the People, having been
firet duly gworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION

By
Mr.,Crowe,

Q What is your name?

A Frank A, Mulligan,

THE COURT: Speak louder, plecae,

THE WITNESS: Frank A, Mulligan.

MR, CROWE: And you 1ive at 5513 South Ellzabeth Street,
‘and you are a police officer?

A Yes, sir,

Q And you were present on the morning éf the Bénd with
Officer Enos who just testified when the chisel was
turned over to him by Bernard Hunt?

A Yes,

Q You are a member of the flivver squad?
HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 414 1924




15

B A Yos,
THE COURT: What distriot do you belong to?
THE WITNESS: Fourth District,

MR, DARROW: We will admit his testimony will be sub-

stantially the same,
THE COURT: All right, call the next,
MR, CROWE: There is no neoessity of calling Behan.

(Witness exoused)
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HUGH BYRVNE,
called as a Witness on behalf of the People, having been
firat duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Mr, Crows,

Q@ VWhat is your name?

A Hugh Byrne.

Q Where do you live?

A 10643 Hoxie Avenue.

Q Do you spell that B-y=r-n-e?

A B-y=ren-e,

.Q You are & police officg:f‘

A Yes, |
Q What station?
A Eighth Distrioct,
THE COURT: What?
THE WITNESS: Eighth District.
MR, CROWE: That 1s out south,
A Out south, 1l@let and Ewing Avenue.
Q Did you work on the Robert Franks ocass?
A T did,
Q@ In company with Sargaant Edward finderson?

A Yes,
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7 Q Did you go out to the oculvert and drain near 118th
Street and the Panhandle Road?

A T did,

Q@ With Anderson?

A With Anderson,

Q When?

A I went out there on the 33nd.

Q About what time?

A It was eleven o'clock, eleven thirt&.

Q And did you find anything thexe?

A Yes, we found & stooking., We found a stooking about~-

MR, CROWE: What is the number of this Exhibit, Joa?

MR, SAVAGE: I don't know.

MR, CROWE: I will show you a stocking which hasg here-
tofore been presented and marked as People’s Exhibit 1
for identification, the stocking Mrs, Franks testified
was her boy's stocking, yeeterday, and ask you when gou
first saw that,

A Well, the first time I saw that stookis,g was sbout

'+ ¢énea fifteen ~- |

THE COURT: Talk a littls louder, ploéae.

THE WITNESS: About one fifteen.

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 417 1924



4184

8 MR. CROWE: On what date?

A On the 33nd of May.

Q And where did you see 1t?

A I seen it about nine hundred feet north east of the
culvert,

Q And by the culvert you mean the culvert located at
118th =--

A 131st and the Pennsylvania Rallroad,

Q@ Is that the stoocking -~ is that stoocking in the same
condition as when you picked it up?

A Same way, yes,

Q All right.

MR, CROWE: I now offer the stocking in evidence and
agk 1t be marked People's Exhiblt 31, Mark a card and
fagten it on there,

THE COURT: It may go in,

(Merked as requested by oounaél.)

MR, CROWE: You may oross exemine.

MR, B, BACHRACH: No cross examination.

MR, CROVE: That is all, Officer. |

(Witness excused)

MR, CROWE: Send in Anderson.  If there is no objection

I will ask one question that will cover all of his

- testimony. . .
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MR, DARROW: All right.

EDWARD Fe ANDERGSON,
called as a witneas on behalf of the Peopls, having been

first duly sworn, was exXamined and testifiad as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATIQN
By
Mr, Crowve,.
Q State your name please?
A Edward F. Anderson.
Q@ You are a police offiocer?
A Yes, sir,
Q And assigned to the Eighth District?
A Yes, sir. |
Q And worked on the Franks case?
A Yes, sir, |
Q And your partner was Officer Byrne, who just testis
fied? |
A Yes, sir,
Q Do you remember on the 33nd of May, 1934. around
one o'olock in the afternoon you and Officer Byrne,

finding a stoocking about nine hundred feet =~ or yards
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How far from the culvert was it?

A About nine hupgdred feet north east of the culvert,

Q Now, I will Bhow you a stocking which has been
marked People's Exhibit 31 and ask you to state whether
that ie the stocking that you found at that time?

A Yeg, gir,

Q Did you make a mark on it or Byrne?

A That darning on the heel,

MR, CROWE: That is all officer. No oféee?

MR, DARROW: No oross,

(Witness excused)
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JOSEPH BEROUNSKY,
called as a witness on behalf of the People, having been

first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Mr, Crowe,
Q What is your name? |
A Joseph Berounsky.
Q@ And you are & polios officer, are you?
A Yes, sir.
Q Vhere do you live?
A 6137 South Whipple Street,
Q Where are you assigned as a police officer?
A Detective Bureau,
Q@ You work under Captain Schumacher and Chief Hughes?
A Yes, sir,
Q And you worked on this Franks case, did you?
A Yes, sir.
Q I direot your attention to Saturday , May 3lst, 1934,
Were you in the State's Attorney's office?
A 3lst, yes.
Q 2lst.

A Yo.
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13 Q 3lst, rather?
A Yesg, sir.
Q And did you go any place from the State!s Attorney's
office around eight-o'clock in the morning?
A Yes, sir,

Who was with you?

> o

St. Germaine and Officer Hackett,

Anybody else?

» O

That ias all,

And where did you go?

o

A I got orders to meet Chief Hughes and Captain
Schumaocher at 40th and Greenwood Avenue.

Q Well, you met them there, did you?

A I met them there, and'--

Q And then where did you go?

4 From there we went to Jackson Park,

Q And what did you do out there? Juat.wha.t you‘ciid,
not what you said?

A Well, we stopped at the bridgse, at the lagoon there,
and Chief Hughes and Captain Schumacher, the Statels
Attorney and some of hie assistants got off the machine

wihh the defendant Lecopold, and T saw Leopold pointing into
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13 the water. That was one lagoon, and then we drove to
anéther lagoon, another bridge and he pointed there.

Q Now, do you know where Blair found the typewriter?

A No, sir,

Q Can you describe the two bridges? Desoribe the two
bridges that you just referred to, Desoribe the bridge,
one 1s a high one and one is a low bridge?

:A One is & high bridge and one is a low bridge.

Q And they are bridges over the lagoons in Jackson
Park in the City of Chicago?

A Yes, sir,

Q Now, after the defendant Nathan Leopold, Jr,, pointed
into the water from each one of the bridges, what did you
do?

A TWhy, then we got into the machines and drove to
73rd and the Lake,

Q And at 73rd and the Lake who was with you?

A VWhy, the same officers, St. Germaine, and Hackett,
and several other machines, Chiefk-—

Q Now when you were in Jackson Park did you hear the
defendant say anything?

A I did at 73rd and the Lake,

Q But not in Jackson Park?
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14 A To, sir, I was not within hearing distance.

Q Well, when you got to 73rd and the Lake who was in
the party?

A State's Attorney Crowe, his assistants, Chief Hugheé,
Captain Schumacher, Officer Gortland and myself., I
heard the defendant Leopold say, "There is the blankets,"

Q And poaht to something?

A Pointing to something that was partly burned,

Q@ You saw what he pointed to?

A To some objeect that was partly burned,

Q And vwhat was done with the objeot to which he
pointed?

A It weas ploked up by Officer Gortland and I got some
paper and helped him wrap it up.

Q I will direot your attention to the remains of a
blanket, charred blanket == will you get the exhibit
number?

MR, SMITH: 3 of July 34th.

MR, CROWE: Well, the card on which we have the
identification mark is hard to find there and if it io
not objected to I will refer to 1t as the blanket or the

automobile robe, charred robe that was offered for
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15 for identification yesterday, and a piece of which
Dootor MoNally took and made s ochemiocal analysis of.
MR, SMITH: Offered as Exhibit 3 of July 34th,
THE COURT: Whioh was testified to by Sven Englund.
MR, CROWE: I think it 1s Exhibit 3 of July 24th.
Q Directing your attention to that, Officer, is that
the objeot to which the defendant Leopold pointed at

7374 and the Lake?

A That looks like it, yes, sir,
where

Q And from there/did you go, if any plaos?

A From there we drove out to Hessville, Indiana.
- Q@ And what happened out there?

A At Hessville, Indiana, we got off there, and the
defendant Nathan Leopold sald that Loeb had put the —
Oh, we drove on the Michigan City road between Forsythe
Avenue and Hopp Road. We stopped at Forsythe Avenue

~and the Michigan road and then we turned back. Leopold,
Nathan Leopold, got off the machine and sald the shoes
,are either on this slde of the road or on this side, now
I don't know which is which, The belt 1s on one side of

the road and the shoes on the other", so everybody started

to look around for the shoes, and then the Statels
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Attorneys , Chief Hughes, Leopold and the rest of the
officers left, and I got orders from Chief Hughes and
Captain Schumacher to remain there and make a diligent
search for the shoes and belt with my squad, and also
Sergeant Dunn, We remained there and searohed around
until about five thirty that P M. Officer St. Germaine
was on the north side of the road and I was on the south
side of the Michigan Ciiy road.

Q That is all prairie there?

A Yes, sir, Just a road running east and west,

Q Rumning through a prairie?

A Yes, Officer St, Germaine called my attenﬂ&on, he
sald, Sergeant =-

Q Not what he gaid.

A He sald, he ocome across the road and saild "I think

I got the shoes,"

MR, CROWE: Strike that out, He called you and you

4

Went over and what happened? .
A I saw a palr of tan oxford shoes buried under ﬁhe
leaves, One was partly sticking out.
Q Do you know what the exhibit number is? I will show

you & pair of tan shoes, the exhibit number of whioh I
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haven't got, but which were identified yesterday by Mrs.

Franks, Mr. Franks, and he says they were the shoes
worn by the Franks boy on May 3lst, 1934. I will find
the exhibit number later and if there is no objection
have it put in.

A Those are the shoes.

Q Those are the shoes you found at that gpqﬁ?

A Yes,. J

Q What did you do with them?

A I put my initial on them and the rest of the officers
put theires on there.

Q You see ycur initial on there, do you?

A Yes, gir, "J B" , my initial, on there,

Q Are they in the same condition, substantially, as
when you found them?

A Yes, s8ir,

Q DNow, I will introduce the shoes in evidence,

MR, CROWE: I want the right shoe marked Psople's
Exhibit 23, and the left one People's Exhibit 33,

THE COURT: They may go in. ‘ |

(Marked as requested by counsel,)
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18 MR, CROWE: Q Then what happened, without giving any
conversation.

A We continued the search for the bslt, Thess shees
were found on the north side of th® Michigan City road,
sbout five hundred feet, about five hundred feet west
of Forsythe Avenue; about between Forsythe Avenue and
Hopp Road, We ocontinued the search for the belt until
it got dusk, and then we called up Captain Schumacher and
told him we had found the shoes. |

Q Well, you called up the Captain. Then what did you
do?

A I was ordered to come in,

'Q Did you go back again?

A Ve drove in, On ouf vay in I gtopped at Mrﬁ Franks
home, that was about nims P M that same evening,

MR, CROWE: Well, I don?t care about thate.

Q Did you go tack to this prairie, or road where the
shoes had been found, after that?

A The following day, June lst,

Q And who was with you on that occasion? That waa\Sun@ay?

A Chief Hughes.

Q That was Sunday, wasn't 1t?

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 428 1924



19

Hei nOnli ne --

425

A Yes, sir.

Q Sunday morning?

A Yes, sir, Chief Hughes, Captd n Sohumacher, the
two defendants, Nathan Leopold and Loeb, Officers St,
Germaine, Hackett and Heavey,

Q Now, what, if anything, did either oné of the
defendants say at that time?

A Ve started off from 48th and Wabash Avenue, and
drove to 63rd and Cottage Grove, Chief Hughes took the
two defendants into a restaurant and they had lunch,
Then we -= after lunch we drove through Jackson Park,

MR, B, BACHRACH: I objeect to this, if the Court vlease,
The answer is not responsivs,

MR, CROWE: Tell what was said,

MR, B, BACHRACH: What the defendants said, you asked,
MR, CROWE: Tell what, 1f anything, these defendants
sald thatmorning, elther one of them to ‘you or gsomebody

else in your hearing?

A Vell, in Jackson Park when we got to Jackson Park,
Loeb got off the machine and pointed down into the water,

‘and he says, QWe threw it about there,"

@ And whathae he talking about, do you know?

1 1Illinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 429 1924



430

20 A I did not ocatoh what he was talking about, but he
sald "We threw it about there,"

Q Then what else?

A Then we drove to the other bridge and he indicated
fo the water, pointed to the water, and said "It must
be thers." Then we drove out to Hessville, Indiana,
Vhen we got out there, Richard Loeb got off of the oar
and Leopold remained in the car,

Q@ Now, when you say "Hessville, Indiana®, ie that
the road you were talking about, where the shees were
found?

A Yes,sir,

Q All right, what happened?

A He asked whers the shoes were found, I said they
vWwere found there , indicating to a bush, and he saild,
"The belt must be across the road." He started to dig
around and he found the belt.

d Well, did he go across the road?

A Yes, direotly acrose the road where the shoeg were
found and he dug in the sand and dug up the belt and
gave it to Chief Hughes,

MR, CROWE: Now, I will show you two pleces of a belt

which were marked People's Exhiblt 3-C yesterday, and
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3l and have beon identified as the belt of Robsrt Franks,
vorn on May 31st, by his parents, and ask you whether
you ever saw that before?

A T% looks like the same belt he dug up.

Q Did you make a mark on 1t?

A MNo, sir, I did not, He gave it to Chief Hughes,

Q Then what else happendd?

A Well, he says, the belt olasp and the buckle are
buried in the sand around hers, and he says within a

radius of about 20 feet, Well, we were digging around

looking for the clasp and buckle and then Chief Hughes
and Captaln Sohumacher took the two defendants and went
back and gave me orders to remain there with my esquad
and make a search for the olasp and buokle,

Q Well, did you find the clasp and buckle?

A Yes, pir, We dug in the sand and Officer St.Germaine
found a olass pin, which he turned over to nme,

Q Now, I will show you a olass pin which was marked

' ' People's Exhibit 3-D of yesterday, the same having been

identified by Jacob Franks as the class pin belonging to
Robert Franks, and ask you wag that the one thatyou

found at the place you are tdking about?
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33 ‘A This was found by Officer St, Germaine and turned
over to me, and I turned it over to Chief Hughes,

MR, CROWE: I will now offer the class pin in evidenoce
end ask that i1t be marked People's Exhibit 34, that is,
the envelope. |

(Marked as reguested by ocounsel,)

MR, CROWE: Q VWhat else did you find?

A Shortly after, on digging in the sand, Officer St,.
Germaine found the belt olasp-which he turned over to
me, ‘

Q I will show you the belt clasp =~

A This is the buckle,

@ I show you & belt clasp which was marked for
identification People's Exhibit 3-B yesterday, and
identified by the parents of the Franks boy as the‘glasp
of his buckle worn on May 31st, and ask you whether
that ig —

A This is the piece, yes, sir,

Q == the oclasp turned over to you by Officer St,
Ge¥maine at that time?

A Yeg,sir,

MR, CROWE: I wil® ask to have the clagp marked Peop;gﬁp

Exhibit 35 and introduce the same in evidenoe,
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23 (Marked as rsquected by counsel)

Q What else was turned over or found by you?

A We dug around and I found this belt or this belt
buckls,

Q@ I now show you s belt buokle which was introduced
as Peoplel!s Exhibit 3-B for identification yesterday,
and identified by the father and mother of Robert Franks
ag the buckle on the belt of young Robert Franks.

A This is the buckle, I put my initials on it when
found.

MR, CROWE: I offer the buckle in evidence and ask it
be marked People's Exhibit 36, that is, the envelope
contalining it,

(Marked as requested by counsel,)

Q That is all, isn!t it? I don't know whether I
introduced the belt or not.

MR, CROWE: If I did not introduce the belt I will
offer the belt in evidence now and ask it be marked
Peoplel's Exhibit -- it was People's Exhibit 3,

MR, DARROW: I don't think you introduced it.,

MR, CROWE: As People's Exhibit 3e«C for identification
ag of yesterday, and I will now offér it in evidence as

Peoplels Exhibit 27,
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24  'THE COURT: It may go in.
(Marked as requasted by counsel.)
MR. CROWE: That is all, Officer.
MR, DARROW: That is all,

(Witness exoused.)

MR, CROWE: Now, will you tell Officer 8t, Germaine
to ocome in. I will merely put one guestion to Offiocer
St. Germaine, I will put & leading question and let
him ans®er yes oOTr no,

MR, DARROW: Yes,

THE COURT: All right.
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RICHARD STy GERMAINE,

called as a witness on behalf of the People, having been

first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

> O » O >

> O

Q

DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Mr, Crowe,

Your name is what?
Richard St. Germaine,
You are a polioe officer?
Yes, sir.
Assigned to the Bureau?
Yes, sir,
And “you 1ive where?

At 5353 South Winchester Avenue,

Now, on Saturday and Sunday, did you accompany -~

on Saturday did you aocompany Chief Hughes and the

State's Attorney and the defendant Nathan Leopold, JrT.,

L4

out to Jackson Park?

A

I d4i4, sir.

Q And to 73rd and the Lake and’'out in Indiana, to

Hessville?
A T did, sir.
Q And on Bunday did you accompany == that is June 1lst,

and the next day, Sunday, did you go out with Captain
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36 Schumacher and Chief Hughes and both of the defendants
in this ocase, to Hessville, again?

A I did, sir,

Q And you found the belt and some of the artioles
conneoted with the belt, a clasp and shoes, or you were
present when they were found?

A 1 found the shoes,

Q@ You found egerything except the belt buokle, and
what did you do with them?

A T turned them over to Sergeant Berounsky.

THE COURT: Talk louder, please,

MR, CROWE: You turned them over to Sergeant Berounsky,
he i1s the man that just testified?

A Yes, sir,

Q@ I will ask you to look at this belt, People's
Exhibit 37,

4 I did not see the belt,

Q Oh, this is the one thing you did not find?

A Yes, sir,

Q Were you present when these were found ofifoﬁnd_
them? |

A I found that pair of shoes,

MR, CROWE: What are they marked?
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UR, ALLEN: (Reporter): 32 and 33, Beople's.

THE COURT: 33 and 23. Did you put your mark on them
at that time?

A Yes, sir, it is.

MR, CROWE: Did you find the class pin, showing you
People's Exhibit 347

A I did,.

Q 1Is that the oclass pin you f&und?_

A Yes, sir,

Q@ TNRow, where are the parts of that belt?

MR, SAVAGE: Heres,

MR, CROWE: You found the oclasp of the belt?

A I did,

Q I show you People?s Exhiblt 25 and ask you whether
that 1s it?

A Yes, sir, that is the oclaspe.

MR, CROWF: All right, that is all, Cross examine,

MR. B. BACHRACH: No oross examination.

(Witness excused)
MR, CROWE: May we suspend now, your Honofz
MR, DARROW: All right,.

MR, B, BACHRACH: All right.
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~ THE COURT: All right., Now, those that are interested
in the case and have their seats, pleass be here on
time, It does not seem falir when other pcople get into
your seats to have them put out. If you folks will be
here on time you can tske the seats that you occupy now,
and the members of the families that are interested
here won't have to change around, They are entitled

to their seats also.

We will suspend until two o'clock, and be hare

at two sharp, everybody.

(Whereupoh an adjournment was taken until two

o'cloock P, M,, Friday, July 35th, A, D, 1934.)
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Suly 35th, 1934,
3200 o'clock P.M.
Court convened at 3:00 o%cloock P.M. July 35th,

1934, pursuant to adjournment heretofore taken,

Present: Same as before,

ERNST W. PUTTEKAMNYER,
called a® a Witness on behalf of the prosecution,
having bsen first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, CROWE?

Q Will you kindly state your name? A Ernst
%, Puttkemmer.
Q And what 18 your oocoupation or profession?
A I am professor of law at the University of Chicago,
Q Have you any specialty?
A 1 have the olass in Criminal Law, among othere, .
Q ' Ané for how long a time have you taught law 1n'the'
Chicago University? |
A I am now beginning my £ifth year, $o that it is
& little over four years.
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Q where do you live, Professor,

A At present at Mackinaw Island, Miohigan.

Q Are you acquainted with the defendant in this case,
Nathan Leopold, Jr.t?

ATl anm.

Q was he a member of your class this year, after February
of this year, in the Chicago Univeriety?

A He was,

Q And did you teach him oriminal law?

A 1 endeavored to, yee sir,

Q Did you have a talk with the defendant on the
Vednesday following the murder of the Frankse boy, that
would be the 28th of May -= well, the Wednesday following
would be the 38th of May, 19347

A The 38th of May, 1934, that is a Wednesday, sir?

Q That would be Wednesday?

A Yes, I did.

Q And where were you and he when you had this talk?

AIn my office in the University Law School building.

Q@ About what time of day was 1t?

A I couldn't say ae to that, So far as I recall

it was perhaps about mid-day, but I am not positive,

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 440 1924



ar "*4 1"

Q@ Well now will you state to the Court what
Nathan Leopold, Junior seid to you and what you sald
to hinm?

A Examina tions were going on and it is customary
for the students to gome down and ask questions on
points that have troubled them, and he cams down on
that errand. He asked me rebative to the Franks case,
what the la® would be, that is, he used that as I
understood him, simply a8 a dramatic state of facts
on which to hang his questions. He started out by
asking me what the situation would be, that is what
crime would be committed If it were supposed that the
little boy were taken into the car with the intention
of then and there killing him, and I said that it
seemed to me that it was perfeotly obvious that there
the intention would be to take a human life, and human
life aotually weas taken, and 80 that 1t would be mur-
der, very olearly.

Then he went on to say,"suppose the intent
vas 8imply to kidnap, nothing else apparently®, and I
sald to him, kidnspping iteelf was a felony, or perhaps

I put it in the form of a question and said, "Isn't
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kidnapping a felony here in Illinois"®, if I put it
in the form of a Question I am sure the answer on
his part was, lmmedlately, "yee", and I sald, "supposing
a2 man causes somebody's death while he is intending
to commit a felony, is that murder or manslaughter,”
I took it for granted that he would be able to answer
that qQueetion for himeelf, and apparently he felt
gatiefied, because he sald, "Well now, suppose that the
intent were simply to take impropsr liberties with
thie boy? I understand" -- that wae his word == "that
that 12 a misdemeanor here in Illinois.® I eaid, "hell,
wholly without regard to that, on your assumed case,
you 8till gre talking about someone who had an intent
to kidnap at the time, 80 that it i1s none the less
a case where the intent ie to commit a felony, oven
though other crimes might enter into it which are
sliuply misdemeanors," I belleve that was about all,
on the law of the ocase,

Q Now did you have any further discussion with him
with reference {0 the caee at law? i

A I remarked to him that generally I did not take
a very keen intereet in murder cases, I had enough to

do to read them when they appsared in the State Supreme
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Court reports, but that this caee was different because
there werea number of elements in 1t that had Justice
and personality. That made up all the difference.
And I said that the principle one of those was the
faot that before going to college I had gone to the
Harvard Sehool, and so I had some sort of personal con-
tact with the eurrounddnge at least, and I bslicyq’
he said, "You have nothing on me; I went %o the
School myself,"

I sald, "Well, thon, your intersst perhaps
1s even greater than mine, bscause you went there so
mach mord recently and must know many more of the
people.® Perhaps I added then thet most of the
faculty had changed since then.

Q Let me interrupt you just a momant, Do you know
whether or not at that tims the State's Attorney had
in oustody a man by the name of Kirk Mitohell, who
was a teacher in the Harvard Sohool?

A He did,according to the newspepers.

Q All right. No go mhead with the conversation.

A( We of course immediately drifted onto the Ques-
tio% of whether the case wWouild ever be found out,
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who had done it and so on, and I think that I remember
saying that I couldn't imagine Mr. Mitchell's having
done it, that I had had a slight acquaintance with
Mr. Mitocholl for a long time and thet he always had
impresced me a8 a very upright, high-grade sort of
a man,
Then he answered, ®Well, I don't know, I am not
8o sure about that.® And perhaps I looked inquiringly.
Anyway, our convercation went on, and he sald that he
had known of instances in which Mr. Mitchell had
golicited boys, presumably boys in the school, to im=
proper sexualrelations with him, and I expreesed
surprise at that. I think I said something about
deals like that springing up 80 easlly with Mitohell
in custody.
Anyway, he said he had it on very reliable
information. 4&nd I sald, "Are you sure of that?®
And he said, "Yes; he made that eort of a proposie-
tion to my brother; that is straight enough, isn't 1t,"®
%ell, of course I couldn't say anything as
to that, and frankly, I thought to myself ==

MR, BACHRACH: We objeot.
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MR, CROWES Yes.

MR, DARROW: We objeot to what he thought.

THE COURT: vyes,

MR, CROWE: @ Nor was there any furthar conversation?

A After mentioning this matter in regard to Mr. Mitchell?

Q Yes.

A OQur oconversation went on in regard to Mr. Mitohell,
but not after we left that subject, He did say."I wouldn't
put it past that man, Mitohell; I would like to zes
them get that fellow,® and then he sort of turned on
his heel a8 he went out and he eald,'gggz I gon't say
he did it," and he left the sentence up in the air.

I remember that was the end of our oonversation.

Q Now have you detailed all the oconversation that
you recollect?

A A1l that I rechllect at the moment., Let ms see,

We might, condsivably, have gone into law problems
a 1ittle more fully, but I don?t recall any other points
of fact just now.

MR, CROWE: You may cross examine.

MR, DARROW: NO cross examination.

(No oross examination and witness excused)
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MAX WESTER,
called as a witnéss on behalf of the prosecution, having
been f£irst duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE.
Q Will you state your name please?
A Max Viester.
Q Wheie do you live, Mr. Wester? | A 559 East
S50th Street.
Q What i8 your business or profession?
Al am a lav clerxk.
Q Have you been admitted to the bar?
AT just found out this morning that I have been, .
Q I congratulate you. What firm are you employed by
as a law olerk?
A Newman, Poppenhugen, Stein & Johneon.
Q Do you know the defendant in thie case, Nathan
Leopold, Juniort |
AT do,
Q For how long & time have you known him?
A Oh about two months. Five weske to two months,
around that time.

Q What is the nature ¢f your goquaintance with him?

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 446 1924



Or ~-447-

A 1 was instruoting him in law, He was intending to
go to Harvard next year and asked me to give him private
instruction in two courses in law, in contraote and
propertys

Q Now when you say Harvard, you mean Harvard University
in Magsachusetts?

ATl do,

0 And not the Harvard Preparatory School?

A No,

0 Did you have a talk with Nathan Leopold, Junior,
one of the defendents in this case after May 2let,
the date of the murder and prior to the time the State's
Attorney took him in custody?

A I aid on several occasions,.

Q When was the first time during that period when you
had & discusslon with him?

A On $he following esvening, on Thursday evening,

Q Did you talk about or did he talk about the Franks
case?

A vell, I openad the discuseion that evening. I zkx
" passed the Franks home, thers was a large orowd there,

and I told him what had happened and expresesed my

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 447 1924



10r ‘ | =448

sympathy and so on. I opened the discussion that
evening.

Q All right, go ahead and tell what you sald and tell
what Nathan Leopold, Junior, said, ifanything.

A Well that night I asked him whether he knew the
Franks boy and he said he did not , He eaid his family
did know the Franks family, and then I expreossed my
synpathy for the Frankefamily, naturally, and I don't
recall anything furthexr that he said that evening.

Q Did you heve a talk with him on the Sunday
following?

A Woll I was thers on several ogccasions after that
and sach time we would discuse the ocase,

Q Well toll what was said from time to time by you
or by him?

A Well on one occasicn he aBked me a question of law
about the matter, Hssald the papere had said that

the kidnappers probebly couldn't be convicted of murder,
and be eald he wae studying criminel la¥ and he wanted
to know the difference between manslaughter and murder,
and he asked me the Question whether, if a boy were
taﬁan out and being kidnapped and he were killed, whether

the person doing that would be guilty of murder, and I
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galid he would.

Q Anything further?

A Well we discusged = I put forth theories about
the ocase, we discuseed it in a general way. I don't
recall anything more definite about what he said con=
cerning it. He seemed to discusz it as anyone else
would. I noticed nothing about him that would indi=
cate that he was involved,

MR, CROWE: You may cross examine,

MR, BACHRACH: No orose examination.

(No croes examination and witness

exoused).

WE wn a» W W e ae W &
'
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a witneess called on beshalf of the prosecution, having
been firet duly evorn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CROVE,
Q You may state your name please? '
A williem Crote - S
Q Where do you live, Mr, Crot? A} 7937 Laflin
Street.
Q You are a pplice sergeant, are you?
A Yos sir,
Q And connected With the Detective Bureau?
A Yes sir.
QDo youknow the defendant, one of the defendants,
Nathan Leopold, Juniox?
A Yes sir,
Q When is the first time you saw him?
A On the afternoon of Maya39th,
Q@ Thet was Thursday?
Ayes sir,
Q And who was with you?

A Sergeant Johnson and Sergeant Gortland of the Deteotive
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Bureau.

Q And where did you see him? A A%t hie home
at 4754 Greenwood.

Q You had been sent out there to get hia?

A I was sent out there to g:t him snd bring him down
to the State's Attorney who was in room 1618 of ths
Hotel LaSalle.

Q Did you have any eanversati.n with the dsfendant
Leopold either at his house or on the way down to the
LaSalle Hotel, or did the other officers?

A The only converasation I had was on our way down
he said, "this 1s funny, thie 18 twice I have been
arrerted Withinaweek," and I said, "what was the
other time", He said, "Well, a week ago I was
arvested and brought into the Captain of the District
where the body was found." I said, "Why were you
brought in there®™ and he sald, "because I was familiar
with the area out thers and I had been birding out
there; in faot I was thers two days prior to the_
murder. "

Q Did he say anything further at that time?

A That was about all that took place on our way down.
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Q About whet time in the afternoon was this?’

A About two thirty. |

Q Then yo® brought him down to room 1618 Hotel LaSalle
where I was?

A Yes sir,

Q Did you go back to his house that afternoon?

Adbout eix o%clock Sergeant Johnson and myself went
back t0 1ook for his glasses wWhich he stated he thought
vere at his home,

Q And the defendent Leopold, was he with you?

A Yes,

Q Now tell wmhat happened when you got out there, whom
you gaw gnd What was done and what was said?

A When we got there, why he explained to his brother
Mike, who was, I believe, the first one we seaw when
wogot to the house, and CGortland and Leopold went
upstairs and searched the upstaire, and some lady
wag there, I believe it was an Awnt, end Sergeant
Johneon and myself searched the first floor in
the library.

Q Well, what if anything did Leopold say?

A Well he said that he wes being question edin refer=-
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ence to this Franke murder, and that the glasses that
were found were identical to his glasses.

Q Who did he say that to?

A To his brother Mike and his Aunt.

Q Yes.

A And he said "They eay that the glassea they have
down there are my glaeses," and he says, "my glasses
must be in the house,” 20 we had everybody in the house
searching for his glasses.

Q FHow after he got through searching what 1f anything
did he or his brother Mike say?

A When we got about ready to go Mike suggested to
get in touch with Erbetein -- with Ettelson. He
locsted Etteleon at Mr. Franks homesand suggested
that we bring the boy over to the house, whioh we
did., When we got over there, Why Mr. Ettelson was
in the parlor with Mr. Franks.

Q Now what 4id either Nathan L2opold, Junior or
his brother Mike say to Mr. Ettelson at the Franks
home ?

A ¥hen we ocame in thers brother Mike greeted Ettelacn
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and said, "You know Babs, don'*t you®™? And Mr. Ettelson
sald, "Yes, I know him since he was a small boy or
baby, " something to that effect,

Q vhat else was said?

A And he asked what we had the boy for, and we
explained to him about the glasses, and Leopold then
went on amd told the story about where he was, Ve
asked him where he was on that day and he told us about--

Q Tell what he said?

only he met Losd

A He said that he was out, /KmxEanXdXERZxxixzxxs
after school at eleven ¢'clock, and they went out
to Lincoln Park to look for a red Heron, a sort of
gpecie of soagull, and they searohed around thore
for an hour and they ocouldn't find one, and thatthey
came back, drove downtovn. Prior to that they etopped
at the Marshall ,Fleld Grill and had lunch, oame
back and drove around town and went to 83rd street
and had dinner in the evaning at eome Inn out there
on 63rd Street and they had & bt tle of «= Loeb
had & bottle of gin and Leopold had a bottle of

Scotoh, and we asked him how they took it, and he #3id,
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that they just took a nibble out of 4t once in a
while, and that after they got through with their dinner
it was suggested that they look for some girls, and |
that they drove over 83rd Street and picked up & couple
of girle and then rode arcund the park, and that in
the neighborhood of ten o¥clook they made #ome advances
to the girls and the girle "turned them down" and
they put them out of the car on the Midway, somewhere
near ¢one of the parks.

Q Then what heppened, and what was sald?

A %hen wo were aboub to leave Mr., Ettelson mde
a goequest that after the boys were brought down -- after
Leopold was brought down =nd queationed and it looked
like he was going to be held, that we would notify
the State's Attorney to have him notifisd, which we
sald we would.

Q Then you brought him back to the Laéalle Hotel,
did you?

A Yes,

Q And did anybody aocompany him?

A His brother Mike.

Q ind his brother Mike end he remained in the LaSalle

Hotel how long?
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A Wll we remained there until about Midnight,
and then we all came to the State's Attorney's.
Q And his brother Mike came along with you?

A Yes sir,

Q Now did you have any further oonversation at any
time with nathan Leopold, Jr.?

A Why, we had a conversation after the confeselon.

Q Dia you go back to the house again?

A That night about twelve thirty we went back to
-=- Sergeant Johnson and myself and Mike Leopold, Mike
suggested -- or we, I don't know which suggested,
that we all go together so that we would not have
to awaken anybody in tle house going in, and we
immediately went to the top floor to get a typewriter,
a Hammond typewriter,

MR. CROWE: Havé you got a Hmmmond typewriter, Joe?

Q I ozll your attention to a Hammond typewriter -
is that marked? ¥ell I will call your attention to
a Hammond typewriter here and case, and I will ask you
whether you have ever #een that before?

A Yes sir.

Q Is that the Hammond typewriter you got at the

Leopold home?
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@ That is the typewriter we brought back from the
Leopold homa.

MR, CROWE: If the Court please Iidesire that to be
introduced in evidence and marked ae People's Exhibit
384

THE COURT: I% may go in.

¥R, CROVWE: Q@ Now when you wont back to the
Leoopold houwe the firet time, about eix o'clock, did
Leopold or anybody else find & case, a glass oase?

A They did. I don't know who it was, Sémebody
announced "here is the casa for the glasses."

@ Dld you see 1t%

A Yee eir,

Q I will show you a leabther case for speotacles and
agk yoyif that is the one?

A That is the one,

Q Do you remember when that wes out for the purpeee
of identification?

A Yes sir.

Q The cut in there was mads sothat you would be
able to identify it later?

A Yes sir.

Q0 And the other officers?
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A Yes sir.

MR, CROWE: I desire to offer in evidence a leather
case,with the words "Almer, Coe & Companyg Chicagoy
Evanston® printed on it, and let it be marked "Peopleh
Exhibit 39",

THE COURT: It may go in.

MR CROWE: Q well, after you got the Hammond type-
writer, what did you do?

A Well, we searched all through his room while
hie brother Mike waes there with us, and wo found a
large oan of ether.,

MR, CROWE: Have you got the ether, Joe?

MR, SAVAGE: Yes,

A And a bottle of stryomine.

MR, CROWE: Wwait & minute,

QI will ask you to look at this can of ehher and
state whether that is the can that you found in the
room of Nathan Leopold, Junior that night?

A Yes sir.

Q And you brought that back with you also?

A Yes sir. e

MR, CROWE: I desire to —
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Q Will you shake that &nd state whether there is any
ether in i¥,0r something in 1t? \

A It seems like it i# about half full, or three-
quarters full.

MR, CROWE: I desire to offer the can of ether
in evidence and have itmarked Pecople's Exhibit 30.

THE COURT: It may be received.

MR, CROWE: Q I show you & bottle of stryohnine.
Is that the stryohnine you found at the time?

A Yes air]

Q 4And a bottle of arsenio?

A Yea sir.

Q That is the bottle you found atthat time?

A Yes sir,

MR, CROWE: I offer the strychnine in evidence as
People's Exhibit 31 and the arsenic as People's
Exhibit 33.

THE COURT: They may be admitted ;

MR, CROWE: Q VWhat else did you find, if anything?

A thy, a lot of copies of typing and ocopies of his
handwriting on different papers.

MR, CROWE: Have you got those Joe? Will your

Honor indulge me just & moment while we get the exhibits
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there?

THE COURT: Very well.

MR, CROWE: Q I will direot your attention now
to a great many, various® papers, and ask you to glance

} through them and state whether thies is the patch of
papere that you got at that time?

A Yes sir.

MR, CROWE: If there 48 no objection I willintroduce
all these papers as one exhiblt, and later on those
that I deem material we can plck outand read to the
court or give to the court separately.

MR, BACHRACH: They may &ll be oonsidered in,

MR, CROWE: Ag one exhiblt?

MR. BACHRACH: As one exhibit.

MR, CROWE: You might wrap that up and just mark it
"Peoplets Exhibit 34",

Q Now what else, if anything, did you find at

that time?

A1 csnnot recall of anything else at thattime.
Q Did you go baok there again, to the Leopold home?
A The next morning at seven o'clook I believe,

Q V¥ho went with you?
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.A Jobnson and Gortland -- Sergeant Gortland, Johnson
and myself,

Q What &1 d you £find at that time?

A ¥hy at that time ws ¥ent and searched Leopold's
room, the room he slept in.

Q Anfivhat did you £find?

A We didn't find a thing, we &idn't take a thing out
of there,

Q You didn't take & thing. Did you go bsck again,
were you backthere again when you got anything?

A The next morning about twelve thirty or one o'clock
-~ well, that night previous when we were there with
Mike we found & -~ when we were coming out Sullivan,

a newspaper reporter, I belisve his name Was and
Winge of the Tribune, were searohing the red car which
was standing out in the driveway on the north side

of the house.

QThat is the red Willyes-EKnight car owned by Rathan
Leopold, Junlor?

A Yes sir.

Q Did you find anything in it?
A We scaroched the car and we found & Tribune paper

wrapped up with a e2tring around it.
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Q Are you sure it was a Tribune?

A T wouldnet eay for sure, I thought it waa‘.

Q You found a newspaper wrapped up. Vas it tied?

A It wae tled up as tight as possible, rolled up
and tied with a string.

Q And what else?

A And a flashlight.

Q Anything else?

A There was alz20 in that osr, in the pocket, either
one or two time tables, but ae they were of no sipgnif-
icance at that time we didn't take them out,

Q I will show you & oopy of & newspaper, it is a oopy
of the &eily News of April 33rd, 1934, tied with a
string, and agk you whether that is the newspaper

_ that you found in the ocar at this time?

A It ia,

Q In Leopold's oar?

AIt 18, I put my inti3isl on it.

Q And your initial is on it?

A Yes air.

Q Is it in the samo ocondition now as when you found it?

A Just about, pes,
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MR, CROBE: I deeire to offer this newspaper in
evidence as People's Exhibit 35 and ask to have it
markead’

THE COURT: It may be admitted,

MR, CROWE: Q I will show you a flashlight and ask
you to look at that and state wWhether or not that 1is
the flashlight found by you in the car at thattime?

AT believe it is. I didn't put any mark on thers.

MR, CROWE::! Well we will hold that for one of the
other officers, Let me mark 1t. Well, we will
holl this until later,

Q I8 that youwr initial?

A No, I think that is Sullivan's or Savags's,

Q Now did you find anythingelse that you took at
that time?

A
That was about &ll.

Q Did you go back tothe house after that at any time
when you got @omething?
A No, The next morning, but ®e didn't take anything.

Q Now did you have a tak with the defendent Leopold

at any time after that ?
A TWell on the same morning as the confession was made,
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Q V¥hat morning wag that?

A That was on Saturday morning I believe.

Q On Saturday morning?

A Yes,

Q Did you have any talk with bim end if so, when and
where?

A He wae given into my custody ani we went into
one of the amall rooms.

Q Small rooms whers, in the State's Attorney's
office?

A In the State's Attorney's office, yes.

Q All right. Wwhat if anything did he say or did you
eay?

A Wellwe got talking the cace over and that was the
first him and I got together since hemade the
confession, and he stated that he had originally planned--
he said, "you or the State 's Attorney wouldntt have
me,* and I said, "how is that?" He said, “WEll,

I had a plan where I would have twelve headache powders
in the box, of some harmless nature and oneof them
would bs strychnine, shich would be the same color, "
and he aaid, "I expected to be pioxed up, and if it

gt to look kad for ms I was going to take one of those
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po¥dera, but®, he said, "I thought I was brought in
there once and got away", and he said, "I thought
I might be able to talk myself away again,® and he
says, "if I were searched and these were found on
me and they were analyzed, it probably would be
looked on with suspicion.”
Then he gt talking about the night we

were out to the house looking for the glasses, and he
said, *If I knew that Loeb was going to "peachd I
could have killed myself that night", and he said,
"While I was doing it I could have taken s couple
of coppers wWith me", and I said, "why & couple of
coppers,” and he said, "what wae the difference", -=

MR, BACHRACH: What is that?

A Ee said, "while I wae doing it I could have taken
a couple of coppers with me®, and I e&id, "why & couple
of coppers™, and he sald, "what is the difference.”

MR, CROWE: Q HNow while he was saying that did
be make reference to any Weapon?

A He was referring to the weapon that was in 2
drawer in his room,

Q What kind of & Weapon?

A 1 believe in the upper lefthand draver, a msgagine
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gug.Did you have any further talk with him?
A That wqe about all our conversation.
Q Did you have a talk at any other time since then?
A No, outeide of --
Q Did you have a talk at any time with the defendant
Loeb?
A No, I was with Leopold most of the time.
Q You were with Leopold?
A Yes,
MR, CROWE: You may orcss examine.

MR, DARROW: No crose examinat ion,

(No oross examination and

witnees exoused)

’
- o oy " e
.
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FRANEK A, JOHNSON,
'a witness oalled on behalf of the proseoution, having
been first duly sworn, testified =o follows:
I RECT EXAMINATION
BY ¥R, CROTE.,
Q What ie four nams, eir?
A Frank A. Johnson, |
Q Where do you live, Hr. Johnscn? \ ”134132
North Crawford Avenue.
Q You are & pollice sergesnt aseized to the Detective
Bureau?
A Yes siz.
Q Do you know the defendant Nathan Leopold, Jz.t
A I do,
Q when was the £irst time you saw him?
A About two thirty P.M. con the aftsrnoon of May 39oth.
Q Of this year?
A Yes Bir.
Q.And toll under what oirocumstances and where you saw
him?
A The State's Attorney told me --
Q You went out to get him?

A 1 went out to Mr. Leopold'e house at 4784 Greenwood
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Avenue., I was admitted by the maid and ifquired if
Nathan Leopold, Junior was home, and she sald he

was, and she went upstaire and he ¢ame down, and I’
told him my name was Serggent Johnson, I was from

the State's Attorney's office and I vwanted to talk
with bim, he says, "Johnson", "“Johnson", "Let me
gee your oredentials?® I shoved him my star and
satiefied him ae to my identity, He says to me, Fyou
know, I thought you wae Johnson mentioned in the
Franks case." He says, "I was about to ocall the
police." I said, "I am not Johneon of the Franks
case, I am a police officer, and they want you at

the Suate’s Attorney'soffice.® I sald, "by the way,
have you got yourglassges, Oor do you wear glasses® and
he sald, "yes." I said, "did you loss your glasses",
and he said, "no". I say#, "Have you got them", and
he saya, wthey are around here some place,® and I salq,
"well We have got to go down to the State's Attorney's
office,* He said, "mell, I have got an appointment
to teach & olass about three o'clock." I said, "well
you will have to postpone that appointment." He sald,
"can't you postpone this until soms other time", and

I said, "no, you have got to go dwn now,." 8o wo
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got on a car and I broughf ﬁim down to the LaS%lle
Hotel to you.

Q Vell now did you go back to his house that day?

A In compeny with Sergeant Gortland and Crot. Crot
and Gortland went ineide and I went around to the
rear of

the garage and looked overthe grounds and
they shortly oame out.

Q Did you have any conversation with him on that
ococagion or go eny other place with him?

A In company with his brother, lMichael Leopold,
myself and Gortland, we went %o the Franks Residence
Lo see Mr, Ettelson, Michael Leopold wanted to see
Mr., Ettelson before we brought him downtown, We
went %o the Franks home and Michael Leomld =xxR met
Mr. Ettelson there and told Mr. Ettelson that we were
taking Nathan down to the State's Attomey's office,

XEKXXEXX Mr., Ettelson wanted to know why, and I told
him that you had sent for him and that the glasses
had been traced to him, and he says, "take him downtown
and let the la¥ take 1ts course,"
Prior to that he asked Leopold where Leopokd

had veen that day, and Leopold told him that he had

been out with Loeb and wag riding around and that he
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had later on picked up a ooupl®s of Janes and took
them out to Jackeon Park and there let them go and
mede them walk home.

Q You brought him back to the LaSalle Hotel , did you?

A Yes sir.

Q Did you go back to his house any time agein that
day or night?

A Xbout twelve thirty or close to one o'olock.

Q who went out with you?

A Bergeant Crdt and Michael Leopold.

Q Michael Leopold came with you and Nathan and
the other officers back to the LaBalle Hotel?

A Back to the LaSslle Hotel.

Q Andremained there until you went out to the house
again?
A Yes,

Q Now tell what happened on that trip?

A We went into Nathan's room, into Nathan Leopold?s
gtudy room or where he has different specimens of
birds and searched the place, got a number of papers,
a book, and in a 1ittle wooden safe in one of the cornmers

of thatrmom a bottle of arsenioc -- a small bottle
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of arsenic and a nBmall bottle of stryochnine, and1abqut
a half pint can of =- marked "ether",

Q All right, go eshead, what else?

A Ve came downstaire and sa¥ a red cer standing in
the drivevay.

@ What wmake?

A A Wllys-Koight oste

Q Thatie the cur that we have over at the Municipal
Pier now?

A Yes,

L Q A1l right,

A Ve searohed the car and I guess there were a couple
of newspaper men there a% the time, we found a newspaper,
or several newspapere, tightly packed and tied together,
Ye found several time tables in one of the side pockets
of the car, and we found a flashlight,

Q Did you take the flashlight?

A Ve took the flashlight and the time tables in tle
slde pocket o6f the car and later had the oar removed
to a garesge,

Q@ Are you the officer that took the flashlight out?

A T took the flashlight up and leid it down again,
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Q No, but I mean are you the officser that took the
flashlight?

A Yes, I dld sventually take the flashlight out of
the car at the Municipal Pler,

Q At the ¥unicipal Pier?

A Yes,

Q I will show you a flashlight here and ask you if
that is the one you found in Nathan Leopold's car?

A Yes sie,

Q A red Willys-Knight ocar?

A Yes sir.

Q And you have it marked, have you?

A Yes, I put a mark on i1t here I think,

MR, CROWE: I introduce the flashlight in evidence
and a8k it be marked People's Exhibit 36,

Q Did you take the Illinois Central time tables out,
andthe Michigan Central time tables?

A Yes,

-

QI will show you two Illinoise Central time tables
and a Michigan Central time table and I will ask you
if those are the time tables that you took out of the
car when you brought 1t down tothe Municipal Pler?

A Yes, I turned them over to Shoemacher.
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MR, CROWE: I will offer these three time tables
in evidence, first the Illinoie Central time teable
as People's Exhibit number 37, and next an Illinois
bentral time table as People's Exhibit 38, and the
Michigan Central time table ae People's Exhibit 39.

THE COURT: Thsy may be admitted.

MR, CROWE: Does your Honor ﬁant to see theese
exhiblite now, or later?

THE COURT: Just as you like, I can see them
now, or later,

MR, CROWE: These are the time tables of the Illindis
Central and the Michigan Central,andthat is the Flash-
1ight (handing exhibits to Court).

THE COURT: Very well,

MR, CRO®WE: Q Now did you get anything else out
at the Leopold homs ?

A Two or three days leter, I think it w»as on the
firet, I ®elieve, I went to the Leopold house,

Q And whet did you get?

Al got a pair of field glasses,

Q Iwill sho¥ you a case for field glasaes here and
agk you to look at it == do you know how to open it --

and look at the fisldgzlasses inside and state whether
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they are the field glasses and the case that you got
at that time?

A Thyy are.

MR, CROWE: I introduce those in evidence, the case
zxxxeax as People's Exhibit number 40 and the glesces
a8 People's Exhibit 41.

THE COURT: They may be adwitted,

MR, CROWE: Does yourHonor wish to look st the field
glasaes?

Q What else, if anything, did you find?

A 1 found a number of letters and a book,

Q Did you find a book?

AT gid,

Q@ I w11 ask you to look at that book and state
whether that 18 one of the booke you found?

A I did, I found this in Nathen Leopold's desk,
above hie desk in his room,

MR, CROWE: I desire to offer in evidenoe now,
if the court please, a book entitl d "kidnapped”,
Stevenson, kidnapped, and Xsxxsz Leonard.

MR, BACHRACH: Are you going to read it?

MR, CROWE: It didn't make thesame impression on me

when I did read it as it has on some people I know,

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 474 1924



37r

Hei nOnli ne --

“4?5e

thank God. Mark that 41,

MR. DARROW: I object to it, if your Honor please, It
is 8imply e etandard book and has nothing to do with
this case,

MR, SMITH: Mark 1t 43.

THE COURT: It may be admitted.

MR, CROWE: There is an additional reason, or one reason
wvhy I think it is competent, 1if for no other reason.
Your Honor will remember in the ransom letter kidnap
is epelled with a double "p", and it is here, and
there was a2 disoussion, &8s we Will show later, by the
defendant Leopold, a8 to the proper way of spelling
Pkidnapped". It is a circumstance.

THE COURT: It may go in.

MR, CROWE: Mark it exhibit 43,

Q@ Now, Sergeant, did you have a talk at any time
with Nathan yeopold in reference to this case?

AT did.

Q Oh, did you get anything else?
AT got & tightly packed newspaper,

Q We have gone over that. Anything in addition? Are
you the man that got the revolvers?

A No, I left them there.
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Q ©Now did you have any conversation at any time
with reopold about this case?
A I did the day following the con¥ession,
Q On what day?
A The day that we went out to the different drug
stores,or the different etores for =-
Q That was Saturday?
A That was Saturday I believe,
Q SBaturday of that week?
A Yes,
Q well now what convereation did you huve wih him?
A vwe uxxkx were in the car, together with Sbarbare
and myself, Sergeant Crot, Dick Loeb and Nathsn
Leopold, we were riding out toward Cottage Grove
Avenue, 47tb and Cottage Grove jvenue, and Fathan said
to me, "I can't understand why the papers say thise
is such an atrocious murder", and I eaid to Nathan
"Is 1t necessary that you had to kill the boy," and
hoe says, "it wae®, and I =2aid, ¥why". Well, he
knew Dick Loeb and "we couldn't afford to take a
chance to have him come back and say it was Dick,"

I says, "well, he didn't know you," and he says, -
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a quegtion of time before he would see me,"

Q Did you have any other conversation with him?

AT did, taking him to a restaurant,

Q@ When was that?

A That vas Saturdey or Bundey, I think it was Saturday,

Q Sunday. | | o |

A Sunday, the following day, we Went to Welss'
restaurant to have our lunch, and after we had finished
our lunch, a8 we got outside the door I caught him
by the arm and he says, "I want to thank you for not
holding my arm in that restaurant.” I said, "well,
I am going to hold it now," He says, "I wouldn't
run," He mald, "If I thought you would shoot to

. kill vhy I might take a chance."

Q Was there anything said in the restaurant by
Nathan Leopold?

A Thera was a lady at the opposite table who said
to the gentleman that was with her"there ie Nathan
Leopod@d®, and Nathan Leopold got up from his chadr
and he said, "I beg your pardon, Madam, I am not

Ne&tthan Leopold. I have been embarrassed several
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time by being taken for him," and then he sald down
and sald to me “how would you like to be able to
lie like that."

Q Did you have any other oonverzation with him?

A Not that I remember just now, outside of conversaw
tione he had with Mr. Ettelson in my preaencs.

MR, CROWE: Youmay cross exXamine,

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR, BACHRACH.

Q Mr. Johnson, at what time ofday was it that you
obtained from the Lepold home the can of ether and
the polson -- arsenic, is 1t?

A Yes sir.

Q What other poison is there?

4 Stryohnine I believe,

Q What time of day wae 1t1?

A It was about one A,M. in the morning.

Q And thatwas on May 29th «= or May 30th?

A That was on May 30th.

Q It wes in the early morning of Decoration Day?

A yes sir,

Q From what room did you take thosze poisons?
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A From hias study or 1ibréryo

Q All the birds are up there too, aren't they?

A Yes s8ir,

Q ¥ill you desoribe that roon?

A vell 1t is a room about, I should judge about 30
by 15, I wuldn't be positive, it is a large roonm,
there are four or five babinets cirocling the roon,
All these oabinets have from one to twenty-five drawers,
In those drawers are different birde, stuffed and
otherwise. There is a desk in the southeast cormer
of the room, there is a table ==

Q Make it brief,

A -- in the center of the room, and there is a
bathroom and a rubbing table.

Q Vell, were there two or three thousand bird
apecimens there?

A Yes,

Q Lerge birds and small?

A Yes,

Q@ Theae poisons, you understood, wero used up there
in coonection with the vird coddeotion?

A That was what I was informed by Mr. Leopold.
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Q And the poisonwas not ooncoaled up there, it was
axound in the roomup there?

A It vae in a little ocabinet, but the cabihet vas
unlooked. It was a small wooden safe,

MR, BACHRACH- That is all.

(¥itness excused)
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JAMES J., GORTLAND,

a witnesg called on behalf of the prosecution was firet
Quly sworn and teetified as followe: |
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CROWE,

Q Vihat is your name?

h James J. Gortland,

Q whers do you live, Mr., Gortland? & 1325
Addieon.,

Q You are a police offiosr?

& Yes sir,

Q Aesigned to the Deteotive Buredu, aﬁdayéﬁ’érg
Chizf Hughes! Seoretary.

A Yee gir.

@ Now when is the first time you saw Nathen Leopold,
Junior?

A Leaw ng his home at 4754 Greentood Avenue in the
neighborhood of 3:30 P.K., on May 39th.

Q@ Mnd dd you have any talk with him at that time
or overhear any talk?

A In company with Johnson and Crot as we approached
the machine Johnaon eays "this fellow ha@ been in before,

Captain VWolf has had him! and on the way down in the

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 481 1924



ar

Hei nOnli ne --

machine he told us the reason why Captain Wolf had
brought him was that he wae familliar with that
territory out there., He aleo had a conversation with
ue. He expressed hie anxiety as 1o what would become
of his ornithology class which he had scheduled for
three o'clock that afternoon and whether he Would bs
permitted to use the telephons or not to clear that
gituation up. S0 we told him that would be taken
care of on hie arrival at the Hotel LaSalle where
State's Attorney Crowe was to talk to him.

Q Did you go back to hie houee that daey with him?

A He wag Questionedin the Hotel LaS*lle about
his glasses, and he sald he probably had them home,
and we wers eent back to his home %o give him an
oprortunity to look for his glasses. Sergeant Crot
and I entered his home with him, and we searched
&1l the lower floors, then the eedond floor, then

went on up into his etudy, the attic room, and he
got the asslistance of his aunt and his brother Michael
and the maid, and there was a general discussion about
the different pleces where the glasses might have
been, different oclothee to ssaroh and s0 forth, and

Nichael Leopold made the remark that there was no doubt
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but whet those muet be the glassesd, and they dicoussed
the subjeot that he had probably lost them out there
on previouve visitae.

Q And vhat else was gaid or done, if anything?

A Vell, Michael Lecpold was wondering what would bs
done if souwsbody made the suggestion that theoy should
get hold of Ettelson, that they were friends of Mr.'
Ettelson, 80 Michasl Leopold evidontly called up --

Q Juet a aoment. Hr. Ettelson was the attorney
and friend of Jacob Franke?

A Yes sir, and as they expresged it he was a;so a
friend of the Leopolds,

Q All right,

A 80 they called up Mr. Ettelson, evidently at the
Franke home, and we stopp d at the Franks home on
the way down on our return trip to the Hotel 18 Salle,
We entered the Franks hone and weme admitted into the
parlor where Mr, Ettelson was, Mr. Franks and Judge
Graves. Michael 1,60p0ld say? to Mr. Etteleon,

"¥r. Ettelson, you know my brother Nathean®, and Mr.
Ettelson says, "Yes, I know Nathan, I have known him
practliocally #ince he was a baby, and I slways knew

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 483 1924



41

Hei nOnli ne --

well of him." Michael Leopold says, "Vell, they
are taking him downtown in connection with thie
Franke case, about these glaeses, they sesm to be
his®, and he went on to question him, and Nathan
told a story about he used to go out there on his
birding expsditions, which Mr. Ettelson seemed to bs
familiar with, thot he w&8 oonnected with Ornithology,
and made these viglts in the different sections® of
the city, and he 8ald that he probubly had lost his
glasses on one of those tripe.

¥ell, ¥r. Etteleon Questioned him as to
where he was on thatWednesday, the day ofthe diféppear-
ance of the boy,and ho went on to tell the sames story
as t0 pioking up Diokie Loeb and going down to Marshal,
Field's Grill room, where they had lunch, then going
on out into Lincoln Park vhere they vanted to examine
some seagull. He alao mentioned the faot that he
had @ bottle of gin and abottle of whigkey, and that
Dickie Loeb had besn drinking and how they epent
some of the afternoon in an exemination of the birde
in Lincoln Park. Then he says they drove ocut south

to Cogoanut Grove, out around 63rd Street, where they
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had éinnér. ne seid, Diokie Loeb evidently became
more under the influence of liquor, and after dinner
they went out on 63rd Street and tried to plck up

gome girle. He said they succeedsd in picking up &
couple of "janes® as he expressed it, and drove out

on 55th Street, and the Boulevard, and out into Jaockeon
Park, where, as he expressed it, "they didn't come
acrose? and they put them out in the park, so that they
had to walk from the park.

Then Mr. Ettelson when he ueed the term "Janes",
he eays, "why, the more these fellows talk, tho worse
it eeems," and I explained to him that we were on the
vay back to the Statets Attorney's office, md he says,
"Oh, I didn't understad the situation". S0 he seays,
"Go on snd take them on back, znd if their storyle
correct, they will be let go, and if the Judge deocides
to lock them up, why have them call me up, as a favor
to me."

This latter converration, about "Jenes" znd
8¢ forth -- and then he also saild "Let nature take

its couree."
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Q Did you hsve any further talk with Leopo;a?

A With Leopold?

Q Yes,

A We then brought Leopold back to the Hotel LaSalle,
and Loeb was then in & room being questioned by
State®s Atwrney Crowe, Chief Hughee and Assistant
State®s Attorney Joe Savagg, and they were Questioning
hie story ee %0 where he woe on different doys, and he
had difficulty, the parts that I overheard, he wze
being questioned about where he wae the week before
and on different dates,

Q Well, confine yourecelf to Leopold?

Avell Leopold was brought back into the room then
and questioned as to whether or not he had found
his glasses, I omitted to state that while we
were out at Leopold's giving hi@ a chance to find his
glasees =-

MR, DARROW: Vwait a minute now. Just state the oon-
versation.

A While we were out on our visit, returning with
Leopold to give him an opportunity to find his glasaes,
he didn't find hie glasses, but he found hie eyeglass

case, which he turned over to nme,
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¥R, CROﬁE: Q Are yoﬁ‘the'offiber that made &
cut in 1t7?

A No gir., I hsve my initial on it,

Q %ell, I show you People's Exhibit 16, 1g that
the case?

A Yes sir, with my initial "J,J.G." on the inside.

Q That is the case that wes found out there in o
Natban Leopold's house?

A It was turned over to me by Nathan Leopold in
hie hoae.

Q Now then, did you have any furtber talk mt\a@g‘
time aith Leopold? |

A I had a oonversation later on the trip after the
confsssionas?

Q kell go ahead and detail that conversation?

A then we left the State’s Attorney's office, out
over the different instances noted in his stateument,
why we Went to his home and we stoppsed at & hardvare
gtore =w

MR. BACHRACH: I objeot, if the Court plesse. He
igs asked to state the conversation.

THE COURT: Yes.
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YR, CROWE: Q Stute the conversafion, what convexr-
gation did you have with him on this trip?

A we went into his home, we went into the side door
of his hone =-- +

MR. DARRFOYV: I object,

THE COURT: We don't care if you went inthrough the
window or the basement. You are asked for the conver-
aation., Tell §t.

MR, CROWE: Q where was the conversation, in his
home ?

A It was only one-slded, it ves a statement he
made to me #a he handed the rubber boots to we &nd *
his cap, in his home,

MR, DARB®W: Now just a minute. He is very voluble,
if your Hcnor please.

MR, CROWE: Q Did you go to his home with him on
Saturday norning?

Al 4did.

Q And did he say anything to you there or did he
give you anything?

A He gave mo a pair of hip boote and a cap.

Q And what i1f snything did he say?

A These wore the boots that he had used on that
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occasion, referring to =-

Q On what occagion?

A On the occasion of pusting the body into the culvert,

MR, CROWE: Have you got those boots, Joe?

Q I show you & pair of high rubber boots, which were
marked "People's Exhibit" of July 24, for 1dentificgtion,
yesterday == onc of them was marked "P" and the other
wee marked "Qv f.r identification yesterday, and I
will ask you to gtats whether or not thoss are the
pair of bootsz that Nathan‘LeOpold %X turned over to
you in his house Saturdey morning, May JSlst, 18347

A They are.

MR. CROWE: I wil! now offer those boote in evidence,
your Honor, and usk that one of they be marked "People's
Exhibit" — what ie the number?

MR, SMITH: Forty-three.

MR, CROVE: One 44 and one 45, and I will show
you a cap ==

MR, BACHRACH: Befors you offer them in evidence I would
like to ask him one gquestion?

MR, CROWE: All right.

KR. BACHRACH: Q Are they in exectly the same condition

now that they were in when you bhad them over therxe?
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4 They are not.

Q There is & hole in one of them?

A That is corraot,

¥R, BACHRACH: Thatis all.

¥R, CRO¥E: Q VWhose cap 18 thie?

A Thst 18 a cap that w2s turned over to me ;n the home
of Nathan Leopold by Nathan Leopold.

Q what, if anything, was eald by him as Yo when he
had worn that cap?

A He hsd worn it on the occarion of the kidnappiﬂg
of Robert Franks.

MR, CROWE: I willl offer the cap in evidence, if your
Honor please, and ask that 1t be mrked as Peopls'e
Exhiblt—~ what is the next number?

THE COURT: 46,

MR, CROWE: As Psople's Exhibit 48,

THE COURT: Very we{ll'

MR, CROWE: Q Who was with you 2t this time?

A Azsistant State®s Attorney Jos Savege and Sergeant
Billian Lang .

Q How about Captain Shoemaoher, was hs With you?

A He wa® not in ¢he houees.
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Q Well, he was on the ==

L He was in the vicinity, yee sir, on the propexty.

Q Now did you bave any other talk -- did you k get
the gune?

A Yes sir.

Q ¥%ell will you tell about the revolvers?

k Captain Sllcemacher and I at 10:20 A.M. June let;
entered the home of Nethan Leopold, went up into his
room on the zecond floor, and cn the south side of the
room is a bureau. In ths lefthand upper drawer, I
opened the 1efthand upper drawer and I there found
a 32 caliber Remington automatic in the draver, or in
a2 bureau juet to the right and with ite back to the
weet 18 another bureau in which, in my presence,
Ceptalin Shoemz2cher found & 38 ocalibver Remington magagine,

Q@ Did you examine thom to see whether they were
loaded?

A They were loaded, that is, the clips were loaded.

Q well I will show you an automatic =- i@ it loaded
now?

AT will not vouch for i%t,

THE COURT: Never mind it.

MR, CROWE: Never mind it.
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"THE COWRT: Give 1t back:

MR. CRO®E: Take it out, Joe, and empty 1%, will you,
ond take the other one out.

THE COURT: He can identify it without thot.

¥R, CROVE: ®ell, they are undoubtedly empty by
this time, your Homoy, but I vwont be sura.

THE COURT: All right.

MR, CROWE: Q And are these ths cartridges that
you found there?

A Yes air,

MR. CROWE: The cartridgee are in here, your Honor$

THE COURT: All right.

MR. CROWE:Q I will ask you to look at this gun?

A Yes sir,

Q Is that one of the guns you and Shoemagher got thst
morning?

A Yes eir, .

MR, CRORE: I will introduce the automatic in evidenoce,
togsther with the holster, and ask that it be marked
Peoplde's Exhibit what?

MR, SMITH: 47,

¥R, CROPE: Q Ie that the othsr gua?

A Yes sir,
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\R. CRORE:  &nd I ssk that the other gun be marked
People?s Exhibit 48.

THE COURT: There being no objection they ma§ be
admitted.

¥R, CROVE: And I offer in evidsnce the oartridgee
conteined in the »ma envelop.

Q Those are the cartridges taken out of the 'gun?

A I marked the ocartridges.

¥R, CRO%E: T1et the envelop be marked?

THE COURT: All right.

¥R, CROWE: There i& no use cumbering up the record
with the other thinge here,

Q Now then, did you have any further talk with Nathan
Leopoilid, Junior, at any time?

A After the oocasion of plokinglp the robs I said to
bim, "thet i8 hserd luck, setting that afire andnot
entirely burned®", and he sald, "Yes." I efaid, "If
it wae anything that you didn't want to kex burn it
probably would hauve burned®™ and his reply wae in the
affirmative,

Q Did you have any further oconversation with him

at any time?

A The only thing was that during the trip I asked
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_him direoctions, when weé went to Indiana Whether we

ware on the right rodd and things of that sort, andmy
next conversation with him was around the evening of
Sunday.

QThat is the following day?

A Sunday of June lst, in the early evening,

Q All right. VWnat oconversationdid you have with
him then?

A It was in the sarly evening. This was after he had
made his statement, I &agsked him how it was that he
confessed. He said that it becams manifestly ilmpossi-
ble t¢0 maintain hiz story. I said, "The people are
probably not satisfied with the motive expressed in
thie case, of adventure, excitementand money," and I
says, "1s there an} other motive,® and he says, "Well,
adventure and money," and he says, "but you don't

think I am entirely a fool". Don't you think I am

entitled to ressrve something for my defense."

I said, "Well, what do you think your defense
will be,"
He stated, "Well, that will depend on the

wishee of my father and the la¥yors. Of cowrse, 4%
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they wish ®s to hang I will plead not guilty and the
jury wil) heng me, or I will plead gullty before

a friendly Judge and get life imprisonment.® He
says, "I have lote of things that I want to work om,
and whioh would be of bsnefit to the world." He
saye, "Also there is the insanity plea."

And then I asked him as to Whether he was
sorry for Robert Franke and he says, "™not at all.®
I asked him if he was gorry for the Franks people
and he said, "t don't give & dsmn fazExkkex 1f they
would esmxek oroak this minute.”

Then I says, “the people will probably think
that this crime wae probably due to early religious
training," and he eaye, "no", "I went tc Sunday sohool
up to the age of elegsn", and he says, "to confirmation
class, but I wae not confirmed on account of being
too young." He pays, ®up to the age of eight
years oconscience ¥ae drilled into me, but after the
age of eight I drilled that consoience out.® He says,
"Kurder, in my code, is not a crime." He says, "iy
orime wae in getting caught."

MR, CROWE: Q VWas anything further ssid?
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A The only thing is that i wasg present with Sergeant
Johnson in the restaurant oz?ztme evening, and on
our entry we sat down at & table about the middle of
ths room, in Weise' restaurant on Claik Street just
about two blocke up on the west side of the stredt,
we sat &t & table in the middle of the restaurant,
2 table atthe wall, the south wall, and Frank Johneon
sat to the dast, Leopold sat wWith hie back to the
west, and I sat alongside of him, At the table
directly to the east wa2 a couple sitting there,
and the gentdéman had his back to Johnzon. There
wa® & lady faoing Leopold. On our entry we of course
gat down, and the women paesed a remark to her
escgort, saylng, "There is Leopold". Leopold ovsrheard
this remark, immediately jumped to his feet and sald,
"I veg pardon, lady, I am not Leopold; I have been
mistaken for him a number of times". Then he sat
down. A 11ttle later some reporters ocame in and
gat at tha table directly --

Q Have you finished that conversation?

A Yessir.

Q Did he say anything after he sat down?
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A He xmds made some reciark about "what do you
think abcut thet lie® ox something eimilar to that.
é All right, then what happened?

A Why, he had & conversation there, a general ccnver=-
gation between the reportors al the next tabls and
our table, in which something about what he was doing,
I belicve the matter was discu-zed, and he went on to
gy that he’'liked to eat everything, that he hed
ate roast dog, rosst hores, had attendsd a Japanese
vedding in Honolulu and things ofthat sort, then
there was a disoussion about tﬁe double "p" in the
kidnapping. One of the reporters said, "that is
where you slipped, Nathen." He saye, "You mean
'they'! slipped."

Q Now did you have any further oconversation at agy
time with him about this case after that?

A I cannot recall at this time.

MR, CROwE: All right, cross examine.

MR, DARROW: Your Honor, it ie just about t ime for
recesc,

THE COURT: All right.
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‘(Thie follows James J. Gortland's testimony).

MR, CROWE: I have this suggestion to make, if
your Honor please. I have both the cars in the jail
yard, and I would like your HOnor to see them,

I would like to have the defendants taken down there,
and court Sonvened for a few moments.

THE COURT: Allright., When we suspend, or now?

MR, CROWE: Well, we might do that now and then come
back.

THE COURT: Very well.

¥R. DARROW: How there is thie matter that I want
to bring to your attention., There are some of our
Doctors here, and we would like to have arrangements
made 820 thatthey can be seated here, the same as
Doctor Krohn and Dootor Singer?

MR, CROWE: Yes, make aﬁy arrangements you like,.

MR, DARROW:® Perhaps they could sit at the table
there, together with Dr, Krohn and Dr. Singer, right
over there?

MR, CROWE: Yes, the tables ocan be taken out,

THE COURT - All right, yea, let the table be taken out.

Let those people put & little table in where they are,
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Hei nOnli ne --

(Harvey fodlows bnyder 5:lb Y.M., 7/3b/34)

-495-

get them a #mall table, HNow, do you want to go down
there?
MR, CROWE: TYes, and I would like to have the defend=
ants present, and I think your Honor ought to open
up court in the jall yard.
THE COURT:  All right., We are going to get your
people over there 2 small table, We have got to
take this ons out,
We will suspend now for fifteen minutes,
Officer Gortland will remain please. That is, he don't
need to remain, but he can come back in fifteen minutes,
The Court W 11 now go downsatalrs, Will the
olerk and balliff ocome down to the jall yard with me?
MR, CROWE: And the stenographers wWill go down.
THE COURT: Mr, Sheriff, bring/the defendants down

to the jail yard.

Whereupon s recess was here taken by court

and gounsel.

- am .
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Hei nOnli ne --

(The Court, counsel, and the defendants retired
to the Jall yard to view the automobile of
Nathan Leopold, Jr., and the automobile used

by them on the night of May 2lst, A. D, 1924,)

(The following proceedinge werc had in the jail

yard.)

CAPTAIN SCHUMACHER: Here is where the head of the boy
lay, on this side.

MR, SAVAGE: That is bdlood.

CAPTAIN SCHUMAGHER: Yes, but that is where the blood
souked through. This was all blood, all along here,

MR, SAVAGE: That is where the pieces were taken off,

CAPTAIN SCHUMACHER: Yes, but I say this was all aloﬁg
there, and on the floor board up there you will gee 1%
gseems like that, and that is the way it looked when I
first saw 1t.

MR, CROWE: He said there was a big squeak there when
he got out,

CAPTAIN SCHUMACHER: Leopold told me the boy's head lay

on this side, here,
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(Whersupon pursuant to a short recess heretofore

taken, the followlng proceedings were had,)

JAMES Jo GORTLAND,
resumed the stand, on behalf of the People for further

direct examination by Mr, Crowe,

MR, CROWE: All right, Sergeant, take the stand again,
Juat one more question I wo 1ld like to ask that I did not
ask before,

Q Did Leopold at any time tell you where he and Loeb
had parked their car on the afternoon of May 3lst when
they vers obcerving the boys o the Harvard School?

A He did,

0 When and wherc did he tell you that?

A It was on the night of Sunday, June lst,

Q Vhere 4id he =-- what did he say about parking the

,car?

A He says, "You pentlemen are forgotiing one thing, as
to where we had the cer parked when we were watching thess
boys at the Harverd School,"

Q What else?

A And we ssked him where it was and he direoted us over

and ve drove the car over to the south side of 47th Stre-t,
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Sor

" Just south of the alley on fhe east side of Greenwbod
in front of a flat building, "There", he said, "that is
the place," that they had the car parked,
MR, CROWE: You may cross examine.
(Witness exoused)
MR, DARROW: Your Honor, I could not hear well to get his
gtory and I don't know whether there will be any cross
examination but I would like to aefer it until we ocan look

over the record,

MR, B. BACHRACH: What is the name of this witness?

MR. CROWE: Gortland,

THE COURT: This was the seme man that was on ihe stand
beforc recess,

MR, DARROW: Cortland?

MR, SMITH: Gortland.

THE COURT: James J, Gortland, police officer, Detective
Bureau and Secretary to Chicf Hughes,

MR, CROWE: If your Honor please, we might adjourn and
lot them read his testimony andreturn tomorrow morning and
have & short gession, 28 I understand, I vwould prefer not
to put on another witness until he is through,

THE COURT: :All right.

MR, DARROW: That is satisfactory, There are a lot of
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things we can do so We are willing, |

THE COURT: All right, Counsel on both sides are willing

to adjourn at this time so we Will adjourn until tomorrow

at ten o'olock. Reémain seated you folke until the witnesses

come in, It will save us a lot of troubdble,

MR, CROWE: They are all in now,

THE COURT: All the witnesses #tand up that are in this
cass now, please, ‘ |

MR, SMITH: They are all here, your Honor.

THE COU-T: All the witnesses in this case, The Peopls
agalngt Leopold and Loeb return tomorrow mozning at ten

o'clook, Be here promptly at ten pleass,
(Whereupon an adjournment was taken to

Ten o'clock A, M,, Saturday, July 36th, A. D,

1934, )

- @& e -
i
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